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REGUIAR MEETING
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

May 13,2014

This regular meeting of the Santa Fe Board of County Commissioners was called to
order at approximately 2:07.m. by Chair Danny Mayfield, in the Santa Fe County Commission
Chambers, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Following the Pledge of Allegiance and State Pledge led by Nelson Abeyta and Wade
Ellis from the Corrections, roll was called by County Clerk Geraldine Salazar and indicated the
presence of a quorum as follows:

Members Present: Members Excused:
Commissioner, Kathy Holian, Chair [None]
Commissioner Danny Mayfield, Vice Chair

Commissioner Robert Anaya

Commissioner Miguel Chavez

Commissioner Liz Stefanics

L E. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

The Moment of Reflection was given by Diego Lovato from the Corrections
Department.

L F. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

1. Amendments
2. Tabled or Withdrawn Items

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners, in front of us we have a request for
approval of agenda. We’ll go to Ms. Miller for any suggested changes or withdrawals.

KATHERINE MILLER (County Manager): Mr. Chair, Commissioners, the
agenda is as published except for a couple of items. One, I understand that under action
items, page 3, item IV. A. 2, there’s a request to table and I believe Commissioner Holian
made that request and she had a comment.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Madam County Manager. The
proposed weight limit ordinance for County Road 33 has revealed that the County does not
currently have an official process in place with criteria for setting weight limits on County
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roads, so I feel that it is important to set up a framework for determining weight limits for any
road in the county before we consider any ordinances for a specific road. So I would like to
table this ordinance until we get that process in place.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Holian, I believe there will be no
problem doing that. We’d actually like, with Greg coming on, I’ve asked him to also get up to
speed on that and talk to Public Works about looking at a comprehensive policy that deals
with weight limits on all County roads.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Well, it seems like we’re opening up a little bit of
discussion just to table it. So if there’s a motion to table and a second, but I have some
questions before I even take a motion. So Ms. Miller, we had an ordinance that we had
requested to publish title and general summary, and this would be the first or the second
hearing on this?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, this particular one was the first hearing.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: For tonight?

MS. MILLER: Yes, and Mr. Chair, what I would recommend is if you do
choose to table it is if people do show up because they didn’t have time, the very next item
was Matters of Public Concern, that they would be able to make any comments relative to
whatever issues they want, but that if we’re going to table it we don’t actually have a public
hearing on it.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So we will still have two public hearings on this when it
comes back to us.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, yes, we will.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners, is there a motion to table
this item?

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: I move to table item I[V. A. 2, an ordinance
setting a weight limit on County Road 33.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second.

The motion passed by majority 3-2 voice vote with Commissioners Anaya and
Mayfield voting no.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I also want to change mine to no. I just don’t think it
came up timely for this tabling today and we did have a notice for a public hearing on this
tonight. So with 3 to 2, and I’'m sorry; I don’t know if I heard you, Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I said yes, but to explain my vote.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes, please.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I have thought about this topic and I believe
that there might be another way to address it that would be equitable across the county, and
that’s the reason I voted yes. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Since we’re explaining our votes, it was a public
hearing. We were going to have to hear concerns associated with the issue. I think there may
be other alternatives. I appreciated the fact that I was able to co-sponsor the resolution that
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Commissioner Stefanics brought last meeting, but it was noticed for feedback and public
comment. So that’s why I voted no. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Again, with a motion of three to two to
table this will be moved to the last meeting of May, Ms. Miller?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, what I’d like to do is make sure that we have an
opportunity to research the issues that were brought forward and make sure that we deal with
all those issues and provide good information to the Commission about how to put forward a
weight ordinance.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Mr. Chair, just to explain my motion.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Sure.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: My motion really was to table it until we have a
process in place for determining weight limits on roads.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: And just to follow up on Commissioner
Holian’s motion, I was willing to support that because of the process that I think needs to be
identified and so I wanted to be sensitive to that. But I think that even though this may — even
though it’s postponed I think it would be up to the chair’s prerogative to allow for public
comment for those that are here this afternoon. I don’t know if that would be — it wouldn’t
count towards the two public hearings but you could take public comment and we could note
that for the record.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: No, I appreciate that, Commissioner Chavez, and what I
will do is as it was tabled and it was priorly noticed that we would be having this discussion
we still have Matters from the Public and I’'m going to be flexible with Matters from the
public today knowing that individuals may be coming in or out of today’s Commission
meeting to comment on certain matters. So I look at it that this item is no longer on our
agenda so this can come up under Matters of Concern from the Public. Thank you. Thank you
for that, Commissioner Chavez.

MS. MILLER: And then, Mr. Chair, the only other item I’d like to comment
on is that under item VI. B, Presentations, if we have staff from the Public Works
Department and the Emergency Medical Services that we recognize them at the beginning of
the meeting so they can get back out to their jobs. So I think that they were going to come at
the beginning of the meeting. So that would be my request, that we move those two items up
if they’re here.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. So Commissioners, I just want to let you all
know that I received an email this morning requesting a matter that I have from the
Commission on the discussion of the Aamodt JPA, the actual agreement that Santa Fe
County is working with the pueblos on. Also there was a presentation by, I believe, Mr.
Leigland and staff on what is going on or what has been developed with the JPA and also
various issues regarding the Aamodt settlement. Commissioners, I postponed this from two
weeks ago till tonight. There was ample public notice on this. Again, this is just a discussion
item where there will be no action taken. It’s just to take in any public input and I would be
more than happy to have this on the agenda every single meeting from here until whatever
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action is taken. So with that I am going to ask that this stay on our agenda and we can put it
back on the next agenda also to afford comment availability to anybody who cares to have
any discussion on this matter. Thank you.
Any other changes, Ms. Miller?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, not at this time. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners, we have our agenda in
front of us as amended. Do we have a motion for approval?
COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I’ll move for approval as amended.
COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Second.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second.

I1.

The motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1.

Approval of April 8, 2014 BCC Meeting Minutes

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Any discussion?
COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Move for approval.
COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second.

The motion passed by unanimous [S-0] voice vote.

CONSENT CALENDAR (Public Comment)
A. Resolutions

1.

Resolution No. 2014-36, a Resolution to Authorize the Santa Fe
County Manager to Execute All Documents Required and
Necessary to Complete the County’s Purchase of the Pojoaque Ball
Fields (Public Works/ Agnes Leyba-Cruz)

Resolution No. 2014-37, a Resolution Imposing an Annual Liquor
License Tax Upon Persons Holding State Liquor Licenses.
(Treasurer’s Office)

Resolution No. 2014-38, a Resolution Confirming Santa Fe
County’s Commitment to Fair Housing, Establishing a Citizen
Participation Plan, Establishing a Residential Anti-Displacement
and Relocation Assistance Plan, Adopting a Section 3 Plan,
Confirming Its Commitment to Abide By Relevant Procurement
Policies and Regulations, All as Required By the United States
Housing and Urban Development Community Development Block
Grant Program Requirements

B. Miscellaneous

1.

Request Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Building Lease
Agreement Between Santa Fe County and Bokum Burro Alley for
Office Space Located at 142 West Palace Avenue, Santa Fe, New



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 5

Mexico to Increase the Amount of Leased Square Feet From
14,549 to 15,580 Square Feet, Add 8 Parking Spaces and Increase
the Janitorial Services for the Additional Square Feet for an
Annual Increase of $24,843.90 (Purchasing/Bill Taylor)

C. \ . R . Resi .

1. Reappointment of John Abrams (District 3) to Health Policy and
Planning Commission (Community Services Department/Rachel
O’Connor)

2, Reappointment of Judith Williams (District 4) to Health Policy
and Planning Commission (Community Services
Department/Rachel O’Connor)

D. Approval of Proclamations (Presentation as Listed on the Agenda Below
Or at the Call of the Chair)

1. Approval of a Proclamation to Recognize May 18 Through 24,

2014 as National Public Works Week (Commissioner Holian)

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Everybody hopefully knows that we can pull this off for
limited discussion taking no longer than five minutes on any item that we believe needs any
attention. Otherwise we will go back and have something pulled for full discussion.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I defer to Commissioner Holian or whoever.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Mr. Chair, I just have a comment about item II.
C. 1 and 2. I would just like to thank John Abrams and Judy Williams for their service on the
HPPC. They’ve both worked very hard. In particular Judy has been chair for three years and
she really runs a good meeting. I can attest to that myself since I attended the last commission
meeting, and even more importantly she has shepherded the commission through the process
of developing and completing the Santa Fe County Health Action Plan, and [ think that’s a
real achievement, and probably the most complex task that the HPPC has ever undertaken. So
I would just like to put my thanks on the record to both John and Judy.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Echoed, Commissioner. Thank you for bringing that up.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: From all of us.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: All of us. Thank you. Commisstoners, any other —

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I actually had a brief comment on all
of them but they are very brief comments.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let’s have brief comments, Commissioner Anaya,
please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So do you want me to go —

CHAIR MAYFIELD: A. 1, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I would defer to you on A. 1 if you want to
make a comment on it.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I appreciate that. I know that Manager Miller and staff
have been working very hard on this. It’s a resolution to authorize the Santa Fe County
Manager to execute all documents required and necessary to complete the County’s purchase
of the Pojoaque ballfields. I just want to thank staff for all their work. I believe Ms. Miller
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has even, and staff has identified an additional taxpayer savings of $30,000, $40,0000 on this
acquisition, Ms. Miller, so I really appreciate that. If you care to make a brief comment or
not, that’s entirely up to you.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, it is a $30,000 reduction in the price based upon our
negotiations with the school board and that means that the acquisition would be within the
appropriations that we received from the state, which was what our ultimate goal was as well.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Well, thank you. So hopefully now we have a little
more money to do the actual build-out. So thank you all for your great work. Thank you,
Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, Mr. Chair, if I could just follow up and say
that that’s been a project that you’ve been carrying that’s going to be good for youth, not only
in the north but all over the county and the region because baseball teams travel and soccer
teams and other people that will ultimately use those fields. So I think it’s going to be a great
project for the County, for northern Santa Fe County with the cooperative effort that you
helped spearhead with the school board and the superintendent as did staff. So ditto and echo
your comments and your work on that project.

Mr. Chair, I just — could I get a little clarity as to the resolution imposing the annual
liquor excise tax. It’s an annual resolution, I’m assuming?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commlsswner Anaya, yes, it kind of one of those
required things that we restate every year by June 30™. The $250 fee that we have for the
annual liquor license renewal so that the Treasurer can actually collect that when people
come in for getting their liquor license out in the county.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: It’s not a new fee; it’s an existing fee, Mr. Chair,
Ms. Miller?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, yes, that is.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you. And then I just want to note that
Santa Fe County is committed in item #3, a resolution confirming Santa Fe County’
commitment to fair housing and establishing a citizen participation plan. This is a
requirement that we have in conjunction with our housing programs and it is a very serious
requirement that we have fair housing and equal opportumty for all persons, so I wanted to
note that for the record.

Mr. Chair, under Miscellaneous, B. 1, I just wanted to note that this was brought up
earlier in our study session and this is something that you’ve discussed but the Commission’s
discussed about saving resources and this is moving some staff to a more affordable place in
the Bokum Building where most of the other staff is — Finance and others. Ms. Miller, do you
want to make a brief comment?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, yes, that’s correct. We had
the Assessor and some of the Assessor’s staff in one building but the cost per square foot was
significantly more. The Commission brought that up last year, concerning that and we didn’t
have time to actually do something different last year when the lease was expiring so we
worked with the Assessor’s staff, moved some of the staff in the Bokum Building over to
some County-owned property and made space in there as well as renting some additional
space in the Bokum Building but I’d say per square foot it’s about half the price. So net, we
actually get increased space for a very small cost difference and we’re actually able to
accommodate the Assessor’s staff and the Assessor and his staff have been really good about
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working with us in the transition. So hopefully this was the direction that the Commission
wanted to go and we really appreciate the Assessor working with us on that.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Ms. Miller. I know
the chair may have comments and Commissioner Chavez has a comment.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Ms. Miller, could you expand just a little bit,
because [ know we’re talking about increased space but with the Bokum Building we also
have parking and we have janitorial services.

MS. MILLER: Yes, Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, that is correct. We got
additional parking spaces as well as cleaning in that facility in our lease, so we have that
existing but they added eight additional parking spaces included in that lease. So I think we
lose about four spaces but we pick up eight. The Assessor will actually be relocating back to
this building in his office and then staff will move over into the Bokum Building. We’ve
really been struggling with space needs. As you know, we kind of are busting at the seams in
this building and the Bokum Building has been a good overflow for that space and they do
provide parking with it.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: And I guess the janitorial services, is that a
separate contract to a private entity?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, the janitorial — there’s a
little history with that. Initially when the County leased the Bokum Building it came with
janitorial services but during the economic downturn the County staff tried to take it on with
the same number of staff we had. That really wasn’t adequate and we were struggling with
issues between having enough of our own staff to clean buildings that we do own and over
there and with the owner of the building. So we put janitorial services back into the lease, and
it’s just a separate line item, so it’s not included in the square foot price, but it is within the
lease itself.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners, if we are going over that five-minute
time limit that we’ve kind of self-imposed. If you want to pull this for further discussion —

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Just one brief comment and then I think we can
go on. The savings, because [ do agree with this. And so the savings translates from $18 a
square foot in comparison to $33 a square foot. So that is a big savings. I just wanted to talk
briefly about the other components.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Thank you, Commissioner, for bringing those
points up.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, on items C. 1 and 2, I echo and ditto
the comments of Commissioner Holian. I would add that Health Planning Commissioner
Abrams is Councilor Abrams for the Town of Edgewood and an excellent partner working on
other school initiatives in the region in the whole county as well as Santa Fe County, so I
appreciate both their efforts and I want to echo those comments. So that’s all I have on
Consent. Thank you for allowing me to make those comments, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. And that was on each individual item,
Commissioner. Thank you so much for bringing that. We also have item D, approval of
proclamations. That is a presentation by Commissioner Holian which is listed also later in the
agenda for discussion. Commissioners, [ will go to the public. What we’ve just briefly
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discussed, if any of our public members care to have any comment on the Consent Calendar
just kind of stand up and come on up, seeing none, Commissioners.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes, Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Is it appropriate now to move for approval of the
Consent Calendar?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [ would be very honored with a motion on that.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So moved.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a couple seconds.

The motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

III. ELECTED OFFICIALS
A.  Treasurer’s Office
1. Call Meeting to Order
2, Roll Call

3. Approval of the New Investment Policy as Presented to the Board
of County Commissioners on April 29, 2014

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, the next item, when we had the Treasurer present
his invest plan and invest policy last Commission meeting, it was captioned to approve the
plan and the Commission did do that, but unfortunately, we missed a caption to approve the
policy. So nothing has changed from the policy that was presented to the Commission at the
Investment Committee and to the Commission last week. This is more of a formality. If you
could go into the Board of Finance, approve the policy that was presented and then go back
into the regular meeting because we do act as a separate body.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Ms. Miller. Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I move that we temporarily adjourn
as the Board of County Commissioners and that we reconvene as the Santa Fe County Board
of Finance.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second.

The motion to convene as the Board of Finance passed upon unanimous roll call
vote with Commissioners Anaya, Chavez, Holian, Stefanics and Mayfield all voting in
the affirmative.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I see we do have a representative here from our
Treasurer’s Office. Theresa, would you care to come up and ask for formal approval on that,
as it was presented.

THERESA ROMERO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and Commissioners.
Unfortunately, Treasurer Varela was not able to attend so I’m here in his place. As presented
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at the BCC meeting on April 29" he presented his quarterly report and now we are asking for

approval.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I move for approval of the
investment policy.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Second. We have a motion and a few seconds. Thank
you and it was a great investment policy that was brought forth. Thank you, Theresa for you
and all your staff and even Treasurer Varela for all the great work.

MR. ROMERO: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners, we have a motion and a
second. Any further discussion on this? Seeing none.

The motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

Im. A 4. Adjourn and Reconvene as the Santa Fe County Board of County
Commissioners

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAY A: Motion to adjourn as the Board of Finance and
reconvene as the Board of County Commissioners.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second.

The motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

VI. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS/PRESENTATIONS
B. Presentations
1. Presentation of a Proclamation to Recognize May 18 Through 24,
2014 as National Public Works Week

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, could I now request that we go to recognizing the
Public Works employees? I do believe, if Adam is here, that they’re here as well as a
recognition of any of the employees that are here for the other presentation item for
Emergency Medical Services Week.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Ms. Miller, you're taking us to item C. 1?

MS. MILLER: VL. B. 1.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: VI. B. 1. Thank you. Mr. Leigland.

MS. MILLER: He said he would have them here at the beginning. Here he is.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Just so everybody knows, Mr. Leigland, a lot of our
department staff are in our back legal room doing a lot of work back there so there is some
audio. It just takes them a couple seconds to get up here. Mr. Leigland is very dapper today.

ADAM LEIGLAND (Public Works Director): Mr. Chair, Commissioners,
excuse me. Actually, [ was meeting with the consultant on the Las Lagunitas Improvement
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District. We got their first 30 percent proposal today, so we’re going over that, so I apologize.
It’s with pleasure today that I talk on behalf of the Public Works Department. We actually got
a little bit of an inkling of our range and depth of our activities this morning at the budget
hearings, and I was pleased that Commissioner Holian wanted to recognize that by taking
part in the American Public Works Association National Public Works Week. And so as you
know, we cover a wide range of topics and some of them are kind of behind the scenes, if you
will, and they’re not always recognized. Operation and maintenance of our facilities, just the
people who are keeping our buildings clean, making sure that our streetlights are on, that our
signs are reflective enough, making sure that the trash is collected and keeping the roads clear
of vegetation so people can see the stop signs. So we do a lot of stuff and so I had asked some
people who will represent some of our unsung heroes, some of the people who are out there -
doing the good work but they don’t necessarily get the recognition from everybody, though I
will say that I get a lot of positive comments from constituents. In fact I got one just today
from someone who said, hey, great job on fixing that pothole. And those are really, really
gratifying.

I also want to mention that I have for this last six months or so been spending time out
in the field, shoulder to shoulder with the crews, just to learn more about what they do and
the challenges they face. It’s easy to sit in my office with my computer wondering about work
order closure rates and why they need that new trailer and so you get out in the field and you
see the challenges that they face and you say, okay. Now I understand why this or now I
understand why that. But what I want to relate today is that that crew, they’re out there
working hard every day. They’re being safe. They’re being polite to customers, and they
really care about what they do. And so that’s been really gratifying. Some of these crews, for
instance, they can be out on Ojo de la Vaca Road, up on the mesa, and there’s no supervision
there. They could be out there doing who knows what, but I’m here to tell you they’re not.
They’re out there working. They’re taking great care in the works that they do. And it’s the
simple stuff. It’s just making sure that that little bit of cold patch goes all the way to the edge
of the cracks, because they know that if they don’t they’re still going to get infiltration.

So the 148 people in the Public Works Department, I want to tell you that you have a
really good, hard working department that cares about what they do. They realize the
importance of what they do. They realize that in some cases they are the face of the County,
because when someone’s driving on a road and they’ll see the street sweeper out there and
that’s sometimes the only interaction they have with their County government or going to the
solid waste transfer stations. So I think we have good representatives out there. So again, 'm
really pleased to be up here. I thank you, Commissioner Holian for bringing this, and I just
want them — let’s see. Where are they all sitting?

We have Albert. Go ahead and stand up. Who else do we have? So we have Marcel
who’s in our Roads Department. Actually, he was the one who did La Joya Road for you.
And then we have Albert, who’s open space. Albert and I just strung about, what? 300 feet of
four-strand barbed wire fence about two weeks ago. Justine is from our utility. Let me tell
you a little story about Justine. We had a water break out in one of our newly acquired
customers through annexation in Aldea in the middle of the night and while she was out there
a constituent drove by and had some car trouble. And I think he was elderly and he was a
little bit confused and so Justine actually helped this gentleman get back home. This was in
the middle of the night and she helped this gentleman get back home. And Justine was also a
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recent quarterly award winner. And then we have Tim, who is from our property control. Tim
and I spent some time up in a 40-foot scissor lift a couple months ago replacing filters. So
anyway, this is just a snapshot of what we do and I asked them to come here so you could see
some of our unsung heroes and again, if you sense my enthusiasm I hope so because I think
you have a really good department doing a lot of good work out there.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, and a round of applause to all of our
employees. And Mr. Robert Martinez.

MR. LEIGLAND: And Robert Martinez. And Terry of course. We have Terry.
There are a lot of people here doing a lot of good work.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Holian, please.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’m really honored to be
able to sponsor this resolution and I would like to actually read the resolution because it’s
very succinct and it also summarizes very well why a well functioning Public Works
Department is crucial to the quality of life of the people who live in Santa Fe County. And I
have to say that in Santa Fe County, I am very, very proud of our Public Works Department.
Santa Fe County Proclamation to Recognize May 18 through Mau 24, 2014 as National
Public Works Weeks.

Whereas, public works facilities and services are of vital importance to sustainable
communities and to the health, safety and well-being of the residents of Santa Fe County; and

Whereas, such facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated
efforts of public works professionals, engineers, managers and employees in both
government and the private sector, who are responsible for and who design, build, operate
and maintain the transportation network, water supply, water treatment systems, solid waste
systems, public buildings, parks and open space and other public works facilities; and

Whereas, it is in the public interest for citizens, young people and civic leaders in
Santa Fe County, the State of New Mexico, and the United States of America to become
informed and appreciate the importance of public works and public works programs in their
respective communities; and

Whereas, the year 2014 marks the 54™ annual National Public Works Week
sponsored by the American Public Works Association, with the theme of “Building for
Today, Planning for Tomorrow.” I love that theme.

Now, therefore, the Board of Santa Fe County Commission of Santa Fe County
hereby proclaims that we recognize May 18 to May 24, 2014 as National Public Works
Week. Citizens and civic organizations across the county are called upon to acquaint
themselves with the issues involved in providing public services and to recognize the
contributions that public works officials make every day to our health, safety, comfort and
quality of life.

Approved, adopted and passed on this 13" day of May 2014, and it’s signed by all of
the Commissioners, our County Attorney, our County Manager and attested to by Madam
County Clerk, Geraldine Salazar.

So with that, just thank you from me to all of our Public Works employees, those of
you who are here and those of you who are not.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I know that
oftentimes your work is not the glamorous work, but if you did not do the work that you do
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we would have major holes in the road, we would have lines that weren’t working, we’d have
water that’s not running. So I want to thank you all. I know some of the jobs are messier than
others, smellier than others but we appreciate everything that you do for the public and for
Santa Fe County. And what the public doesn’t often understand is that you’re providing great
customer service. Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Yes, Adam, to you and your crew, for some
reason I thought Public Works was only about fixing roads, because that’s what 1 was
focusing on, but you have a lot on your plate, just on roads alone. Forget about the potholes —
well, you can’t forget about them but without a well maintained road system how would our
emergency medical equipment get to people, and even law enforcement. So I think well
maintained roads, well maintained buildings go hand in hand with a safe work environment
for both our employees and for our customers, the public. So congratulations. I think that this
is well deserved and it probably doesn’t capture everything that you do because as you
pointed out, there are cases where an employee will go above and beyond the call of duty and
that has nothing to do with Public Works or fixing roads or anything, but it’s about building
that trust or maintaining the trust between local government and the public that we’re
responsible for. And so I think that goes a long way. So congratulations to all of you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I ditto and echo the comments of my colleagues.
Some of these people are standing up here, they’re all dedicated employees to public works
but they’re friends first and employees second in my book but I appreciate what you do, what
you do, what you do, what you do, every day, day-in and day-out. And Mr. Leigland, you
made some comments at the beginning of your presentation. You actually got on a scissor lift
with Tim and saw what he dealt with and helped him. You actually ran some barbed wire
with Albert and it sounds like you’ve been getting out with some of the road crews as well.
Well, I have a lot of respect that you’re doing that. I think that shows leadership and a desire
to understand what’s happening, day-in and day-out. So I appreciate that you do that and your
staff does that. I know Robert does that and others but I appreciate that — you told me you did
it and you actually went out there and rubbed shoulders and worked and put some gloves on
and helped them do their job. There’s no better way to understand what’s going on that to
participate yourself. So for that I appreciate that you took that effort and went out there and
did that.

MR. LEIGLAND: Thank you, Commissioner Anaya. The truth is it’s just
more fun than sitting in front of a computer doing email.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Leigland, hopefully you reported that to Workers’
Comp, putting all that wire on your hand there. But again, I just want to echo, we have 148 in
your department. I know very few are with us today. I want to thank you all who are with us
and those who are listening and/or watching TV but the majority of them aren’t because
they’re out there doing work for the County and I just really want to appreciate them. They
live it, breathe it day-in and day-out. They hear from our constituency of maybe we’ll do it
this way or do it that way but they’re professionals, and I really appreciate all the work you
do for our County, and Mr. Leigland, I also want to recognize you for the great work done in
your department and that you are out there working hand-in-hand with your employees. I
really respect that, Mr. Leigland. So thank you all. I think we’re going to hopefully, if you all
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indulge us with a photo op I would be honored and I think the Commission would really like
to take a photo with you all.

[Photographs were taken.]

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Again, thank you all for the great work you do for our
communities. Commissioners, I’m going to take the liberty — I know that Mr. Shaffer was
introduced this morning at the budget session. I want to kind of jump around ask Ms. Miller
for an introduction of Mr. Shaffer for our first BCC meeting together, please.

MS. MILLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, I did introduce Greg earlier today
but as you know and staff knows, our County Attorney of, gosh almost 10 ', 11 years, Steve
Ross went on back to private practice last month. We were very fortunate to be able to find a
replacement who has experience at Santa Fe County. Greg Shaffer, aside from his years in
private and corporate law doing litigation practice he was also an Assistant County Attorney
here for two to three years and then in — I want to say 2006, was it Greg? In 2006 went to the
State and worked in the Department of Finance and Administration and I must say I actually
did steal him from the County at that time, and was an attorney at the Department of Finance
and Administration. And then in 2010, the end of 2010 I was already back here at the County
and then he was appointed as the general counsel for the Department of Finance and
Administration where he has been serving as general counsel. He’s worked with two
administrations and overseen Local Governments Division on legal issues as well as
intergovernmental through joint powers agreements all across the state, dealing with a variety
of issues in the Legal Department and the Department of Finance, you pretty much touch
every aspect of state and local and even federal governments.

So we’re very fortunate that Greg wanted to return to the County and he started last
week. So this is Greg Shaffer and welcome Greg. I don’t know if you would like to make a
comment but we’re very happy to have you here.

GREG SHAFFER (County Attorney): Thank you for that very warm
introduction and I would just say again it’s my great privilege and honor to be back working
at the County. I look forward to working with each of you. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Shaffer and welcome to Santa Fe
County once again.

VL. B. 2. National Emergency Medical Services Week, May 18 -24, 2014

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Chief, please.

DAVE SPERLING (Fire Chief): Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. It’s
my privilege to be here today, requesting your support in recognizing and honoring the Santa
Fe County Fire Department emergency medical technicians, or EMTs during the upcomlng
Natlonal Emergency Medical Services Week, scheduled for next week, May 18" through
24™ EMTs in Santa Fe County and across this country traditionally have served as a safety
net for America’s healthcare system. And it’s long been recognized that access to quality
emergency healthcare dramatically improves the survivability and recovery of those who
experience sudden illness or injury.
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Emergency medical services providers of Santa Fe County are both volunteer and
career staff who are well trained firefighters and emergency medical technicians. Many of
them cross-trained in both disciplines. These are dedicated professionals who strive every day
to provide top quality emergency medical care and safe transport services in Santa Fe County
and throughout the region. On our career staff alone we support 19 emergency medical
technician basics. These are individuals who have 160 hours at a minimum of training. We
also have 25 advanced EMTs. They undergo an additional 80 hours of training, and then we
support 20 paramedics who truly lead our emergency medical services provisions out in the
county and these individuals have in excess of 1,500 hours of classroom and field training in
order to be able to provide to quality services.

Right now we have three paramedic students who are just winding up training at the
Albuquerque Fire Training Academy. They have been participating for the last nine months
in the paramedic program. We have three career students and a couple volunteers who are
enrolled in the advanced EMT class at the Santa Fe Community College, and we have an
EMT basic class underway in the southern district — Edgewood, with approximately 20
students from Santa Fe County and other surrounding agencies.

So I’'m proud to be here asking your support and recognition of our emergency
medical technicians during the upcoming week of May 18" to 24™. And with that I'd stand
for any questions you may have.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners? Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to say that
EMTs are a very important part of the well being of our community. I heard some really
sobering statistics the other day that responding to 911 calls is the most used service of our
fire departments, in general, throughout the country I believe. And I think it was something
like maybe even 80 percent of the calls to fire departments are 911 calls.

I’m also personally thankful to the EMTs of the Hondo Volunteer Fire Department.
They helped rescue me when I had my horseback riding accident, and I don’t remember much
about that day because I had a concussion — you can probably tell. I sound kind of dingy now.
But one thing that I do remember is the voice of the EMTs who came to rescue me saying,
Mrs. Holian, we think that you ought to lie down on the stretcher now. And I thought to
myself, yes. That is what I should do. It seemed like a very good idea. So anyway, I want to
say a big thank you, not just on behalf but on the behalf of all the people in Santa Fe County
to all of our EMTs for their service to the community.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics, please.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and please convey
my thanks to emergency medical services personally. I have several neighbors who, living in
the rural areas of the county, depend upon those emergency services and I’ve had more than
one neighbor say to me thank goodness there was a service available, otherwise I would have
died. And just convey that message. It means a lot to the people living out in the county.
Thank you.

CHIEF SPERLING: Thank you, Commissioner.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I’ve spent my entire adult life in and
around emergency medical services and the work that goes on in this county and in the region
and have nothing but the utmost respect for all of them and for their numerous hours of
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training and sacrifice and their work on calls on a 24/7 basis throughout the county and in the
State of New Mexico. So thank them all for their service and their work. Thank you, Chief.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Chief, I also just want to give recognition and thanks to
all of our service providers, our emergency medical service providers. They do an '
outstanding job. Not only do they serve Santa Fe County residents but there are some very
close county lines in proximity to Santa Fe County and I know at least Med 50 does a lot of
call volume up in the Rio Arriba County area. So I just want to recognize that and thank them
and that is very much appreciated, knowing we do have those MOU agreements with our
other neighboring entities, and again, the work they do as Commissioner Anaya stated, 24/7.
Doesn’t matter if it’s Christmas, Thanksgiving, what holiday — they’re there to assist when
needed and hopefully they’re never called on but I know that they’re called on quite
frequently. So thank you, Chief, for bringing this forward and for supporting and promoting
this. Chief, I will close with you but at the end of the mike, you have a quick little second or
two to do a recruitment campaign if you care to.

CHIEF SPERLING: Thank you, Commissioner. I’'m really proud of the fact
that our volunteer and career staff work hand-in-hand, whether it be providing EMS services
or firefighting services or both. And we’re always in need of volunteer firefighters and
volunteer personnel who, if not interested in serving in a firefighting capacity or an EMS
capacity, are interested in providing whatever services, skills, experience and knowledge they
can bring to our operation. We welcome them all. We have 14 fire districts representing the
far reaches of Santa Fe County and there’s always a home for someone who is interested in
volunteering through out system for Santa Fe County and we take great pride in working a
system that brings career and volunteer together. And where the rubber meets the road you
can’t tell the difference. And that’s not something that every combination fire department
chief could stand up and tell you honestly and I’m up here telling you that’s the honest truth
and we’re very proud of being able to accomplish that mission. So anyone out there who’s
interested, we have room for you and I appreciate the time, Commissioner.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, Chief Sperling, could you speak just
briefly to the fact that there are many people who would like to support or work in the
volunteer system but maybe don’t have the physical capacity to meet the rigorous training
associated with being a firefighter and EMT, but there is an auxiliary program within our
volunteer system that affords the public a mechanism to help with those same departments in
administrative functions and fundraising efforts. Could you speak to that a little bit as well?

CHIEF SPERLING: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya. Each of our
districts supports an auxiliary and that is often comprised of members who, some of them
have already served in a firefighting capacity and feel no longer capable of doing that, and
some who just come forward wanting to contribute in any way they can. And they manage
some of the administrative functions that happen on a daily basis at each district, as well as
supporting the active firefighters and EMTs out in the field when the need arises. So they
might do food services, beverage services on extended scenes and help coordinate the
administrative and non-emergency activities of the district.

So as I said earlier, we welcome all comers, anybody who has a desire and feels like
they can contribute we’re all about it. '

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you.

Iy
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you again, Chief. Commissioners, because we
went off the agenda a bit I’'m just going to finish up on Discussion/Information items and
we’re going to go on to VL. B. 3, Presentation recognizing the students. Are they here?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, they won’t actually be here until after school, so
around 4:00 is what we’re estimating.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMIISSIONER ANAYA: Do we need a formal vote to recognize National
Emergency Medical Services Week?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’ll take that. I don’t think we need it but if you want
to take one we can take one.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: It wouldn’t work. I’d move that we
acknowledge National Emergency Medical Services Week.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I will second.

The motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.
V. MATTERS OF PUBLIC CONCERN

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So Commissioners, I’'m going to go really quick to
discussion items of Matters of Public Concern and that is item V in front of us. If there are
any members of the public at this time who would like to bring up a matter to the
Commission that is currently not on the agenda. Sir, if you could come up and just please
state your name. And Commissioners, we will be going back through this agenda throughout
the day or evening. Yes, sir.

RUBEN ORTIZ (Corrections Department): First of all, my name is Ruben
Ortiz with Santa Fe County Corrections Department. And first of all, you need a little bit of
history of myself. I come from Las Vegas, New Mexico, about an hour away. I have been
working for Santa Fe County for roughly about 6-/2 years. Commissioner Anaya, I have seen
you there quite a few times. Appreciate that. First of all, we want to thank you for going into
our facility and meeting with us on an individual basis and we ask that you may also go in
there and speak to us as individual officers.

First of all, right now we are being told that we have monies coming in for our staff
members, which include case managers, teachers, and corrections officers. Right now, we’re
also being told that if we don’t vote on the particular union that those monies will be
canceled. We are respectfully asking that whomever goes in there where there’s a coalition of
public safety officers or AFSCME that they may be treated in a fair manner and that nothing
will be done to them. We are being told that if we don’t go with New Mexico Public
Corrections Officers that we will have repercussions and we are asking that nothing be done
to those officers.

We have individuals that have been there for a lot longer than I have. We have staff
members that have been there or are up in their 60s and they do a really, really good job and
we can’t thank them enough. So we just want to ask you that nothing happens to them and
that you may once again go in there and talk to us as individual officers and see what’s going
on. We have a lot of issues that are not being met by our administrators and we had asked
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them if there’s no monies there that they not even tell the officers. The officers are right now

living on paycheck to paycheck and they depend on that money and when it’s being told that

they’re going to get raises and then all of a sudden that they’re not going to get raises because
something like this is happening, that is really, really gets to my heart and I — how shall I put

it? They’re like my brothers. I want to go out there and just argue with them. But whatever is

happening that they may put a stop to it.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [inaudible] Commissioner Stefanics, please.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe that this is a
union matter and I would ask our County Attorney, Mr. Shaffer, to investigate some of the
comments that were made today. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I would agree with Commissioner Stefanics. I
appreciate that you came forward and would say that the will and desire to collective bargain
comes from the employees and that this Commission has fully respected their desire and their
intent to collectively bargain with who they choose. And I think Mr. Shaffer can follow up
with some additional information but I thank you for coming forward and bringing forward
your comments and your concerns, very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you for coming in and I echo the comment.

MR. ORTIZ: Thank you. Once again, we’re just asking if you have a chance
to go in there and talk to the individual officers, see the issues that are going on you’ll find
out a whole lot different things. And we want to see you there because with you there, you’re
backing us up. So whether it’s on the streets or whether it’s behind the walls, like what we
say, we want to see you and we want to talk to you more as officers. But I appreciate your
time. Thank you. Thank you for your concern.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Is there any other members from the public who would
care to provide public information to this Commission that’s not on our agenda today? Seeing
none at this time we are going to move back, Commissioner to item IV. A. 1.

IV.  ACTION ITEMS (Public Comment)
A. Ordinances

1. Ordinance No. 2014-___, an Ordinance Approving the 2014
Economic Development Plan; Repealing on a Limited Basis
Ordinance No. 1996-07; Providing for Detailed Rules to Be
Applied to Assistance of Qualifying Economic Projects, Including
the Qualifications of Applications, Requiring an Application,
Requiring a Project Participation Agreement and Specifying Its
Contents; Providing for Limitations on the Amount of Assistance
Permitted Pursuant to the Local Economic Development Act; and
Requiring a Special Fund for Monies Received or Held for an
Economic Development Project (Final Public Hearing)

DAVID GRISCOM (Economic Development Manager): This is the final
hearing, Commissioners. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. So what you have before
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you today is a new Economic Development Ordinance for the county. This ordinance will
amend and repeal Ordinance 1996-07. Just a little bit of history, quickly, on the 1996-07
ordinance, it’s a LEDA ordinance, the County adopted the Local Economic Development
Act. We successfully completed three LEDA project using this ordinance — Santa Fe Studios,
BTI and Santa Fe Farmers Market. The new ordinance that you have before you is very
similar to that ordinance. There’s some changes, a few amendments, but for the most part it is
by and large a LEDA ordinance. With what I’m telling you today I’m also going to express
that we’re going to table this ordinance and I will defer to the County Attorney for further
comments on that but I will go ahead and give a brief presentation for you.

One of the key elements to this economic development ordinance, 2014 —

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair. [ really appreciate what you’re
doing, Mr. Griscom. We did go through this last time and if there’s going to be changes from
the County Attorney, don’t you think we should wait for a presentation until we have those
changes?

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, we can certainly do
that. I was told to present to you. :

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. I’m not trying to dampen any of my
enthusiasm for this project, because I think we should have it. Ms. Miller or Mr. Shaffer, do
you know when this review would be done and come back to us? Like in two weeks?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, there were a couple small
technical issues to be addressed really quickly. I think it has to do with definition of
qualifying entity as well as delegating authority with the process for an applicant. I think
some other things though, and it’s all up to whether you want us to expand it a little more but
some matters that you could consider are more of policy matters like minimum returns on
investments, like jobs, taxes, allocation of costs necessary and some things like that. So I
suppose it depends on whether you’d like us to look at all of those things. Part of the reason I
did want David to still present is whether you would like — I think the technical changes, yes,
those could be fixed by the next meeting, but if you’d like us to do a little bit bigger
expansion on policy matters that Greg noticed when he reviewed it it might take maybe to the
end of the month. And it was to look at things like those issues of whether you want in the
ordinance return on investment if we do make investment into an economic development
project relative to jobs, any kind of tax level, any allocation of costs for professionals,
whether that would be on an applicant or not, maybe any type of minimums of public to
private investment ratio.

If you’d like us to look into those they might be a little bit more extensive and take a
little bit longer.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So, Mr. Chair, Mr. Griscom, in terms of the
review, and I’m talking about what Mr. Shaffer is going to do with your product, what is it
you desire to have done?

MR. GRISCOM: Well, one of the most important elements to this ordinance
is that it adopts the economic development plan. And so for me, moving forward, we’ve been
in the planning process for this economic development plan for a year now and we need to
adopt that. That’s the most important thing.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So, Mr. Chair, Mr. Griscom, is this
economic development plan tied in with our new fiscal year or it doesn’t matter?
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MR. GRISCOM: There will be an economic development budget for FY15
that you will review and it is tied into the economic development plan. All of the items listed
in that budget are directly referenced, or most of the items directly reference action items in
the economic development plan.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay, so Mr. Chair, I think that hearing the
details that you wish to share with us is important.

MR. GRISCOM: Well, I’'m not going to actually go into the details of the
economic development plan unless you want to and we can certainly discuss that. I'll just
briefly mention that we did receive comments from the public. We received comments from
all of you Commissioners. We received comments from the Clerk. Those comments have
been incorporated into the economic development plan and the plan is — the draft is before
you now.

Just a few other things to mention, there is an FIR with this ordinance. The FIR is
dictated by LEDA, the Local Economic Development Act, which stipulates that we can only
spend ten percent of the general fund on any give year on LEDA project. So we have that
limitation to work with. We do have some flexibility within that. The general fund is up a
little bit and we have some money committed to a guaranteed loan through a previous LEDA
project, but we have some flexibility.

So with that I will stand for any questions.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. David, I guess — [ want
to touch on part of the economic development plan that is different from funding projects or
any kind of business activity and that would be the Art and Cultural Committee that would
try to capture, if you will, or focus on the cottage industry and the arts and crafts that are
produced in the area. And I know that there’s a lot of discussion about creation of a new Arts,
Cultural and Tourism Task Force, which is something that we’re working on. We hope that
that task force will be able to partner with the City so that the City and the County will be
able to work together in promotion of not only arts and crafts but I think tourism that’s
related to that arts and crafts market.

There’s a lot of discussion about support and development of a cultural corridor,
something that I hope would be countywide. On page 25 and 26 there’s a lot of talk about a
timeframe and strategy for this kind of work, both in Santa Fe and Santa Fe County. So those
are the things that I’m going to be interested in. I’m interested in all of the economic
development components but the one thing that I think we’ve missed the mark on is the
branding of our handmade items. And I think that — well, I’'m going to read this because this
is a policy, it’s policy 1.3. Build capacity to collaborate and enhance the Santa Fe brand to
include both city and county and feature the distinctive assets and attributes for business
activity. We know that Santa Fe’s brand is strong but limited in topic and geography.

I think it’s an understatement that it says, it would benefit the artists and craftsmen, a
branding campaign would definitely help the artists and craftsmen in the area because then
the public would know, the consumer, the buyer would know, that these are handmade. That
they’re authentic, and this is what we’re promoting.

And so it’s not to take anything away from anyone else, the gallery system or anyone
else that might be selling a product that may be produced somewhere else, but we’re also
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going to focus on what’s handmade here. And so all those pieces are in here. I wanted to
touch on those just briefly and hope that as we organize the Arts and Cultural Committee, the
task force, that we can focus their work on some of the strategies that you’ve laid out. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Chavez. Commissioner
Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, Mr. Griscom, I appreciate the work
on the plan and specifically I want to reference a few things and then maybe have you help
me find a few others. But [ want to go to your portfolio approach on page 22 where we talk
about workforce development, I had a specific request that we work closer with our
internship programs, specifically the Northern Workforce Board and the efforts, as you note
in page 22, Youth Works, Americorps, SER, Jobs for Progress and others. I think this is an
important component that crosses every sector of economic development and targets
specifically our youth and our youth initiatives. So I appreciate that inclusion.

And the other items that respectfully I provided comment on based on feedback that
I’ve had from the community, can you direct me to the section that deals specifically with
higher education and coordination aspects around economic development? I know you’ve
been in coordination with the people in EVEDA that I spoke to earlier in the study session
and had some preliminary discussions with the Town of Edgewood and others, but can you
show me the section that speaks to capacity building and education around our higher
education institutions throughout the county?

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, yes, give me one second.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you.

MR. GRISCOM: If you turn to page 8, we have a section on workforce
development and education and added some language based on your comments from that
meeting several meetings ago, into that section. And this basically talks to the need to partner
with Santa Fe Community College to develop a pipeline of trained professionals to be able to
work in the target industries that we’re identifying in this economic development plan. It also
talks about the need to partner with Youth Works and I’ve had several conversations with
them about two different options of either their working directly with the County, as County
employees, or being hired by county businesses where the County subsidizes a portion of
their hourly rates and Youth Works subsidizes the rest.

I’ve also had conversations, as you noted, Commissioner Anaya, with Town
Councilor Sherry Abrams in Edgewood and well as the Mayor, Brad Hill about this idea of
either CNM extension campus there, somewhere outside of Edgewood, or Santa Fe
Community College extension, somewhere outside of Edgewood. There was a lot of
discussion at the time about what was happening with those two elementary schools and
whether or not those two elementary schools are vacated, if those premises could be used for
an extension from a community college. So those are ongoing discussions.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So, Mr. Chair, I would just — and I would leave
it to you, Mr. Griscom to tell me if it is or it isn’t, but any educational or economic
development opportunity that complements the work of Santa Fe County is something —
complements and assists the work of Santa Fe County is something that we should keep on
our radar. So does this document sufficiently cover coordination aspects with an organization
like EVEDA with another institution of higher education? We have some specifically noted
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in here and some that are not. I just want to make sure we have something in the document
that captures that our interest is to coordinate the needs throughout the county and the region
with whichever entity might be most appropriate.

You specifically list Santa Fe Community College. It may be them but it may not,
depending on what the location is. It could be Northern New Mexico College, for example,
and [ don’t know that they’re noted in here. So I just wanted to see if there’s some simple
language we could make sure that’s in here or that we add that we’re going to coordinate with
our communities and partnerships that currently or may exist.

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I appreciate that comment.
I’ll have to go back and read this section on page 9 under workforce development and
education again. There is language that points to partnering with these entities and I believe —
I’ll have to check and see if Northern is listed. But there is language that points to partnering
with them. In terms of the County serving some kind of overall coordinating role, there is not
and I don’t know that that’s — we’d have to look at the —

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Let me give you a specific example. EVEDA
just recently was able to bring in a company that’s going to do manufacturing in the City of
Moriarty. It’s an opportunity to bring jobs and training into the region. Those jobs are not just
going to be limited to people that live in the boundaries of Torrance County or the City of
Moriarty or Edgewood, there’s going to be Santa Fe County residents that have a direct
benefit form that company. So when there are opportunities like that, I just want to make sure
our plan can adequately work with those, in partnership with those groups to help them
achieve their objectives, because there’s going to be a definite gain. So that’s the type of
language that I’m after and if we need to just for a little white postpone the final vote on this
today and make sure that’s in here, I’d rather do that then pretend it is and vote on it without
it. So I just want to make sure we have a mechanism, not to say we’re going to be the lead
entity, but that we will step up and coordinate our efforts with a mutual benefit. Does that
sound reasonable?

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, it does sound reasonable
and I appreciate your comments. I do work fairly closely with Myra Pancrazio at EVEDA and
I am aware of that company that’s moving in. Most people are. And yes, I completely agree
there will be spin-off effects in Santa Fe County, not just in terms of potential new businesses
created by new jobs created and impacts on residents. That will be a substantial economic
impact for Moriarty and the surrounding area. So I completely agree. As I mentioned, I do
coordinate with EVEDA and I will put in some further language on ensuring that we have
that two-way communication.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I would appreciate it. Thank you, Mr. Griscom.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Vice Chairman. Commissioner Stefanics,
please.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It’s on some of
Commissioner Anaya’s comments. In terms of the education, I would almost think that you
would want to be general about pursuing opportunities because my understanding is that
different community college districts are tied to the public school districts and then would
affect property taxes.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: That’s correct.
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COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: And so the more general we could make it
in terms of opportunities without tying something then it would allow us to pursue grants and
opportunities and maybe some public-private partnerships with a company that is actually
starting up. But that’s just a general comment. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Mr. Griscom, thank you for bringing this
forth today. I think we might be tabling this for a future date, just kind of hearing some of the
questions. But I’'m on page 25, I believe. Let me just go flip back. Policy 1.1. and this is
going to back to the Sustainable Land Development Code. I'm glad to see a lot of references
made back to the SLDC, knowing that we’re currently working on a zoning map, which has a
huge impact in my mind on potential economic development for Santa Fe County. I know
I’ve brought up the fees to make a one-stop shop, more user-friendly fees for some
promotion. Can you elaborate a little more on this section, please?

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, yes, thank you. This is a very
important piece. This is what we see as a quick win for the County, but essentially, we’re
charging, I think it’s $35 for business registration whether it’s home office or otherwise. I did
a very quick and informal comparison to some of the surrounding counties and municipalities
as to what their processes were and how much they charge for their business registrations and
it ranged anywhere from $35 to I believe it was $70 on the high end and the required
documentation that they had for their business permitting process was a little more
streamlined, a little easier to maneuver your way through.

So this is something that I’ve targeted, I want to work on. I believe that this is on hold
until we get the zoning map adopted and we’re going to target the fee ordinance. That’s when
we’ll address this.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Griscom, on bringing up the zoning map and I'm
glad you did, you’re out there in the communities day-in and day-out. I see you at numerous
meetings that we meet up on so I’m sure you hear from the public of what they think could be
of easier benefit to help promote some local economic development, and I just happen to run
into you in Ms. Ellis-Green’s office a little earlier today. But I’d like to hear your perspective
on that. I think again, Santa Fe County zoning is critical to us. [ know that we can look at it, I
guess more regionally or centralized, where we want to try to promote that through an SDA-1
area or potentially an SDA-2 area, but I still want to make sure that we give the opportunity
for a local mom and pop shop to have the ability to succeed, and I want to hear your
perspective on that, please.

MR. GRISCOM: I think that there’s going to be some mom and pop shops
that will be negatively impacted from the zoning to be perfectly frank with you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you for saying that, because I believe the same.

MR. GRISCOM: And none have come forth yet, at least to me, but I can see
that there will be some challenges. I want to make sure that we don’t — that we minimize the
impact to the mom and pop shops and if you look at Santa Fe County’s economy the bulk of
it is based on small businesses. It’s these small businesses that we need to take care of. So I
won’t comment any further as to the merits of the zoning process and what not, but we hope
to minimize the impact on small businesses.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: But I think it’s important for you to comment as far as
what you believe the potential zoning map could do for economic development within Santa
Fe County.
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MR. GRISCOM: So early on, I sat down and did a quick analysis with my
colleague in the Planning Department to look at how much commercial land was available
per capita and how much industrial land was available and how much we were setting aside
in the zoning that would be available. In fact, according to my colleague, we are allocating
more commercial and industrial land in this zoning process per capita than the average
around the country. So I feel comfortable that we have sufficient commercial and industrial
space for these businesses to operate in. It’s just a matter of getting — of not impacting them
negatively with the zoning process.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you for following up with that. Also, Mr.
Griscom, what about working — and I’m sure it’s in here — working collaboration with our
governmental entities out there, trying to secure HUD funding, secure any bonds that we can
try to partnership on, knowing that the infrastructure may not be located in Santa Fe County.
It could be in a neighboring county but that there could be great economic benefit for all of us
in that partnership.

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, absolutely. My philosophy has always been and
will continue to be that a rising tide lifts all boats, and I’ve been operating on a fairly regional
basis. I came from the Regional Development Corporation prior to working here at the
County and 1 recognize that by working with Rio Arriba economic development, for example,
or the City of Santa Fe economic development, which I do on a regular basis; I work with
their staff, that the County is going to reap the rewards. If it’s specific to Santa Fe County as
Carole pointed out this morning, even though the business may be located in the City of
Santa Fe, we’re still getting 1.25 percent of that GRT. We get 1.75 percent of that GRT if it’s
located in the county.

Nonetheless, our laborshed is fairly broad. It includes Los Alamos County, Rio Arriba
County, so by supporting my colleague in Rio Arriba County in economic development
efforts I know that it’s going to benefit the regional economy.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Griscom, you and I were both at a breakfast
meeting the other morning and there was one company that’s leaving Santa Fe County. I
won’t say it by name. They’re moving over to Rio Arriba County and I know I asked you to
follow up and look into that. Can you just do some general statements on that please?

MR. GRISCOM: So, I did, and I researched that, Commissioner. It came
down to land prices, something as simple as that, and he was able to find a piece of land in
the City of Espanola that was much cheaper.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Did it have anything to do with our zoning?

MR. GRISCOM: It had nothing to do with our zoning.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: That’s good to know. Thank you. We talked a little bit
about educational dollars and I know we’ve talked of higher education, but let’s talk about
cradle to higher education. Have we tapped into any potential federal funding from the
laboratory STEM dollars or looked at that in our economic development plan?

MR. GRISCOM: We are not tapped into federal funding through LANL other
than the venture acceleration fund, which is a Los Alamos Connect program and in the
proposed economic development budget [ am proposing that we become a partner in the
venture acceleration project, which essentially allows us to invest directly into start-ups and
small businesses. It’s not specific to LANL technology or LANL spin-offs or what not but it
would be specific to Santa Fe County companies.
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. And for all the tech transfer companies,
start-up companies they’re talking about that goes through the venture acceleration fund? Or
is that separate?

MR. GRISCOM: The venture acceleration fund is grant program that’s co-
funded by Los Alamos National Lab, Los Alamos County, Rio Arriba County, City of Santa
Fe and hopefully Santa Fe County, and it’s a grant program that provides up to $100,000 for
these start-ups with a claw-back provision that if the company is bought out, if the company
moves from the county, or actually if the company moves from the state, or if the company
achieves certain revenue targets, that they have to return that grant in whole in principal.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Ms. Miller, I don’t know if you’ve taken
note of this. Maybe you’re well aware of it but I’d like to look at this potentially for a request
in our upcoming budget, to partnership with this. I think it could have a big return on us
fiscally, an economic boom for Santa Fe County also, if we could just have that in one of our
future workshops.

And I guess my last question, and you may have touched into it, but with LEDA
dollars, so right now with the work that Santa Fe County has done with the Santa Fe Film
Studios, are all those LEDA dollars tied up? Can we — what’s kind of the ruling on that?

MR. GRISCOM: So, Mr. Chair, as I mentioned earlier, the LEDA stature 5-
10-4, Section B, stipulates that ten percent of our general fund can be allocated towards
LEDA projects in any given year. We have a certain amount already allocated to our
guaranteed loan for the Santa Fe Studios but we do have a bit of a cushion there because
they’ve been buying down or paying down that principal on that guaranteed loan, which frees
up money on our end. So we do have some flexibility.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: But do we know what the dollar flexibility is at this
time?

MR. GRISCOM: I do.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Can you tell me please?

MR. GRISCOM: $1.48 million for LEDA projects that’s available.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, I actually want to review that. I
think that it may depend. There’s some statements in the agreements with the Studios that
may make that different, may make that a larger possibility, but it really then is going to come
down to having some standards of how we want to address that, and that’s something I
mentioned. I believe you were out of the room, but in the beginning about how we actually
approach reviewing a LEDA applicant, because we’re kind of silent on that in the ordinance.
It just say, oh, here’s what the statute says. I actually think that’s an area. If we don’t do it
right now [ think there are some technical fixes to this ordinance that are really minor that we
should make before you vote on it. There are things in definitions of qualifying entity as well
as delegating authority, but then some bigger policy issues that if somebody did come
forward with a LEDA project, how we would set some standards of jobs, how we might set
standards of taxes, how much of a percentage. If we have up to ten percent of our general
fund that can be expended in a year on a LEDA project how that’s determined and how much
could be allocated to any one project.

So there’s a few things I think would be really good to still consider amending. If you
adopt the ordinance as it’s written with some technical changes but then go back and look at
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some of those things that are kind of bigger policy issues that I’d really like to vet out a little
better with David, with Greg and with Finance, exactly how those things are calculated.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. And my last question for today would be on
REDI, on our telecommunications technology. Is that addressed also? And how will we
address that for our infrastructure?

MR. GRISCOM: Broadband is addressed in this plan. We’re calling for
redundant and ubiquitous broadband insofar as that’s possible. REDI-Net is addressed in this
plan as well. One of the things in the FY15 economic development budget is to fund a
contractor to come in and essentially tell us where we can get the most bang for our buck.
There’s a lot — this is a fast-moving industry and there’s a lot of pieces at play. Commissioner
Anaya mentioned the company moving into Moriarty. Essentially this is going to open up the
broadband market because it’s going to be a solar powered glider that stays aloft for five
years that essentially serves the purpose of providing broadband over a service area that it
flies around. Things like that demonstrate just how quickly and how technologically engaged
this industry is.

We have some other ideas. One of those is to directly invest into two towers, one in
the south, one in the north to provide services for the ISPs so they would lease the towers
from us, lease the space from us and relay their signals to some of the rural parts of the
county that are underserved.

So broadband is addressed in this economic development plan but as I mentioned we
need to be very careful about where we spend our money and that’s why I feel comfortable
with bringing on a contractor who has professional expertise in this arena.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners? Vice Chairman Anaya,
please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I actually think we’ve had a lot of
work on this document and Mr. Griscom’s been working on incorporating feedback and I just
have a couple things I think I’d like to propose as amendments that are relatively simple
amendments. On page 9, if you go to the top of the page, second paragraph, it says Santa Fe
County must also consider the quality of education generally in the performance of all its
schools and students as vital precursors to effective economic development. Students who
fail to graduate from high school or do so lacking basic employment skills will prevent the
county’s economy from reaching it’s potential and discourage companies and entrepreneurs
from establishing operations. Therefore staff should be working with all county public
education districts. And [ would just insert, and institutions of higher education that serve our
region to improve their performance.

And then to my earlier question, Mr. Griscom, you had it in here relative to
partnerships, if you go to page 10 at the bottom, it speaks to partnerships and says Santa Fe
County is part of a closely linked interdependent regional economy with numerous critical
stakeholders representing the public, private and NGO sectors. What’s NGO?

MR. GRISCOM: Non-governmental organizations.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Non-governmental organizational sectors. And
it speaks to the City of Santa Fe and it also goes on in that second page to list the partners in
Santa Fe but also in the north and our Native American tribes and lists the EVEDA as one of
the partners as well. So I think that adequately covers the intent to work in collaboration and
partnership so I would just propose that one amendment to the document to cover institutions
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of higher education, and I would defer to my colleagues but I would be prepared to vote on
this today.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I think there are some details that still need to
be worked out but [ also agree with Commissioner Anaya that the ordinance may need some
definitions but I think that the document itself, the economic strategic plan that dovetails with
the ordinance — and I don’t think that there’s anything left out. I think a lot of this will work
itself out as we move forward. I'm on page 37. This is policy 6.2, build capacity, explore how
Santa Fe County can better support our artists outside the city, marketing galleries and
destinations other than Canyon Road. It also would encourage business training for artists and
things like that.

I focus again on the cottage industry because it’s here. We don’t have to entice too
many artists to come here; they’re already here. Some of them are doing well. A lot of them
could do better. It’s not to say that we shouldn’t pursue some of the larger economic
opportunities but everything is in here to build that economic engine that we need to keep on
that track. And there are different components to it; there are different pieces, but all of those
pieces have to be working together or it’s not going to work. Am I too far off in making that
statement, David?

MR. GRISCOM: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, no. I completely agree.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: And so when we talked about, on policy 6.2 it
says many artists living and working outside of the City of Santa Fe are removed from the
potential buyers drawn to the galleries downtown and on Canyon Road and so need help
developing other means to reach markets physical or virtual, or even an export market. That’s
another thing that we really haven’t touched on. We want people to beat a path to our door;
that’s not going to happen. We have something — we have components that we could export
if we looked for those export markets.

And so I think it gives us different opportunities, different potential to increase sales
and generate gross receipts to continue the work that we need to do. So for those reasons I
think that there is enough in here to take action on, not leaving out the other definitions and
work that needs to be done for the ordinance itself. So [ just wanted to build on
Commissioner Anaya’s comment a little bit and go back to the strategic plan for the areas
that I’'m more familiar with and that I know more about. I don’t know too much about the
LEDA projects and that gets real complicated and real technical because you want a rate of
return. You have to justify that. So that’s a whole other area that I'm not real familiar with.
"1l get up to speed in those areas, but I hope that we can start building on the foundation that
we already have and then move up from there. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Chavez. Commissioners?
Commissioner Stefanics, please.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair, I favor supporting the ordinance
when it’s completed. And from what I have heard today, the Attorney, our County Attorney
has some language to review, and I don’t want to vote on an ordinance twice, because then it
becomes two ordinances in one year. So for that reason I wouldn’t support passing it today.
Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner. Commissioners, any more
comments? Vice chairman.
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, so Mr. Shaffer, what’s your
recommendation?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner, I think that the very minor
technical items that were discussed and put on the table by the County Manager could be
accomplished fairly quickly and could be brought back at the next Board meeting. It would
not be a particularly heavy lift, or we could try and get through it today with some language
that we propose as we go forward. It’s always a little bit of risk of drafting on the fly that we
might overlook some things and not give you adequate time for consideration, but the minor
things that were discussed, again, could be brought back expeditiously at the next meeting.
The larger picture framework for evaluating applications, minimum returns on investment
and the like, that would take a longer period of time and that would be your decision as to
whether you want to backfill with that a later time or hold up the project where it’s at while
those are developed.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: That said, I think in the interest of
Commissioner Stefanics and your comments, I’d move to table to the first meeting in June.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners, this is noticed for a public hearing. I
would like to see if there are any members of our public who would care to comment on this,
please. Are there any members from our public who at this time would like to comment on
our proposed ordinance of adopting the 2014 economic development plan? Seeing none, this
portion of our public hearing is closed. Commissioner, would you restate your motion please?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I’d move to table to the first land use
meeting in June. ¢

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. We have a motion and a second for tabling.
That is non-debatable.

The motion to table passed by unanimous [S-0] voice vote.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Katherine, we have students that will be coming from
the Early College a little later today?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, they said roughly around 4:00.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay, so then we will also, just housekeeping, we also
have some discussion items after 5:00 regarding Aamodt, the JPA. Also, I think there is
another 5:00 meeting proposed on an ordinance, a public hearing on an ordinance for the
quarterly installments of the gross receipts tax and various other ordinances, so with that,
Commissioners, we’ll take a five-minute break and then we will most likely move to Matters
from our County Manager. Thank you.

IV. A, 2. Ordinance No. 2014-___, an Ordinance Establishing a Twenty-Six
(26) Ton Weight Limit on Old Lamy Trail County Road 33 (First
Public Hearing)(Public Works/Robert Martinez)

This item was tabled. See page 1.
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[The Commission recessed from 3:45 to 4:05.]

VL.  B. 3. Presentation Recognizing the Students From the Early College
Charter High School Masters Program for Their Contributions in
Restoring and Beautifying Santa Fe County Public Lands

CHAIR MAYFIELD: With us today, we are very fortunate, Ms. Carol Branch,
please.

CAROL BRANCH (Volunteer Coordinator): Thank you, Mr. Chair, members
of the Commission. I’d like to introduce today Jody Lefevers and Anne Salzman, who is the
principal of the masters program. Jody is the instructor and mentor of the public lands course,
and Albert Lucero, our lead technician for open space and trails. As the volunteer coordinator
I worked with Jody on a 12-week program to improve and restore the trails, parks and
stretches of the river in Santa Fe County. Jody and 12 students did an extraordinary amount
of work amounting to 300 volunteer hours and I’d like to thank you for recognizing their hard
work and dedication to Santa Fe County today. Albert is going to pass out the certificates of
appreciation.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let’s go to Ms. Salzman and Mr. Lefevers please.
Come up and say a few words, please.

JODY LEFEVERS: Well, the purpose of this program is for the masters
program is on Fridays our students have a menu and our students are allowed to choose from
different projects where they can kind of get engaged, involved in community service and
service learning and sort of project education outside of the classroom and one that I
developed with Carol Branch is to sort of get involved with County lands and public lands
and study their usage and their histories and also to do service. So it’s been a great
partnership and we really appreciate all the work that she’s done and Albert’s done and we’ve
all just learned an immense amount about land use and what it takes to keep our trails open
and upkept. So we really appreciate all the work that Carol and her group has done. So thank
you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you and thank you for the work you do. Ms.
Salzman.

ANNE SALZMAN: I just want to say how proud I am as the leader of the
school that we have teachers who take charge of making things happen for students,
especially outside the classroom and involving them in service to Santa Fe. So we’ve had a
group working at the rail yard as well on the convergence project. We’ve had students
working at the humane society, and this is on an ongoing basis so they really get to know
people and are involved. We’ve had — I’m trying to think of the other groups — a group doing
a stomp project where they were learning drumming and so on and then they have performed
as a way to make money to contribute to places in Santa Fe. So it’s something that we’re
really committed to as a school. We do a lot of academic work but we also want to make sure
that they’re out involved in their community. So thank you so much for recognizing them. It
means a lot to us.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Well, thank you and if we can, how about a little plug
for your school and a little background on your school, really quick, please.
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MS. SALZMAN: This is our fourth year as the masters program, founded by
John Bishop who’s sitting right there. It was his idea to have this school and I think some of
the things that make it really unique are the fact that students have a college-like schedule.
They have a lot of freedom Ninety percent of them handle that beautifully. We have high
school level teachers who teach the academic courses but they can also take courses at the
college. So we’ve had students graduate with an AA degree. Students graduate with 40
college credits when they leave here, go to UNM as juniors. And I think the other thing we
pay a lot of attention to is the idea of community and who we are as a group. So we’re pretty
proud. We’re going out for renewal as a charter school next year, our fifth year and thank
you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you so much. Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ms. Salzman
and thank you students. I wondered if one or more of the students would like to get up and
talk about the open space areas that they worked on, and the kinds of things that they did.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Extra credit right now.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Extra credit for public speaking.

TRISTAN SHEFFIELD: My name is Tristan Sheffield and to start off we got
introduced to two of the County firefighters that were helping along with our project and they
helped us along the way with clearing brush for fire prevention to thin out areas near the
Audubon Center and other areas and we cut down trees. We were clearing acequias and we
were building a trail for one of our last projects. We were rerouting it. So that required a lot
of hard work and dedication to what we were doing and I think it was a great learning
experience. It was something that I will be doing in the fall again at the masters program and
I hope other people do it too.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you very much. Anybody else?

GEORGE DAVIS: Hi, I'm George Davis. I got to — I didn’t know what to do
at first for my volunteer work, and then he said public lands and I was like, I like camping
and hiking. I did not expect to be building trails or having to use my hands a lot and I’m not
one to do a lot of hard work but this actually got me to help out the environment. I actually
learned it takes a lot to keep trails beautiful and stuff like that. And I didn’t expect that —1
thought trails just magically appeared. And you learn a lot of communication in volunteer
work. That’s something else I picked up. Like the circle of death, but someone told me it’s a
circle of communication. Things like that you take on to real life situations, not just volunteer
work.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you so much.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you all. I think that what you do is a
great public service for our community but [ also think that it’s important to learn these skills
for the future because I think that as we go into the future, land restoration, and that is
making land so that it’s more resilient to fire and so that it can feed our aquifers more by
absorbing water into the land. I think that those kinds of skills are really going to be needed
and used a lot in the future.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners? Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’d like to thank the
school, the leadership at the school. I’d like to thank the students for choosing this and
getting involved, and Carol and Albert, thank you for being involved and coming up with the
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projects for the students, because the projects that you worked on are going to actually benefit
all of the public of Santa Fe County and that’s when you know it’s really worthwhile is that
it’s not just benefiting you, it’s benefiting a couple hundred thousand people who live in our
county. Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner. Commissioner Chavez,
please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I also want to thank the school, the faculty, the
teachers, the students. What I like about this is that it takes education outside of the four
walls that sometimes it’s contained in. So for me, education is not contained in any four walls
nor is it captured in any one degree. I think one of you pointed out that you hoped to use these
skills that you’ve developed as life skills. These are skills that you’ve learned, that you’ll
have with you and that you can share with others. And so you’re taking the education outside
of the classroom. You’re applying, I would imagine, some of your subject matter — math,
what other subject matter have you applied to these projects?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Science.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Science. Can you think of anything else? So
anyway, I think it’s applied education because you’re taking subject matter that you would be
studying in the classroom and you’re applying it to an outside classroom. And then that
transfers into a benefit, not only for you, for the school, but for the county and many of the
public that use the trail that you’re working on. Earlier, we talked about ongoing maintenance
of trails because we’re going to be — the County will have the responsibility of maintaining
those trails into perpetuity. So with groups like you that help us do that then everyone can
enjoy those trail systems. It doesn’t have to cost the County as much to maintain them. So
there’s a lot of value added component to what you’re doing that I think you’re just kind of
scratching the surface. But anyway, thank you for all that you’re doing now and that you will
do in the future. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner. Commissioner Anaya,
please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Well said by all my
colleagues. I would just sum it up this way. Applied learning, communication and
coordination, elbow grease that I know you guys all instituted to get these projects done,
capturing community service, and it was a collective effort. These are things that you’ll carry
on throughout your life and hopefully continue to give back to the community, so thank you
very much for your efforts. Thank you to our internal staff and the leadership at the school as
well as most especially you the students.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I"d also just like to thank you all, giving back to our
community and to your community. Also the importance of our open space areas. Now you
have had a first-hand experience of how beautiful they are out there. So hopefully you will
utilize these trails and trailheads personally and spread the word. These are public spaces.
They’re accessible and available for all of our public. We have Mr. Lucero with us who is a
great mentor in that role and he does great work for Santa Fe County also. But I would, I
would just definitely get out there and let your family and your friends know about this. I’'m
sure that you all are tied into Twitter and Facebook and all other social medias and let the
public know, these trails are for them and that you all put this work to maintain them and
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improve them for them to keep them safe and accessible. So thank you, and with that, Mr.
Lucero, do you want to read out some great names?

ALBERT LUCERO (Open Space): Mr. Chair, Commissioners, I’d like to
thank these individuals. These are great, great students and they are great, hardworking
individuals. They put a lot of effort and a lot of hours into our open space and trails program,
which to me, myself, it’s the best thing for the community to look out for our constituents.
Anyway, I’d like to read off some names here: Tristan Sheffield, and I’d like to personally
thank him for great hard work and dedication. I’d also like to give him this pin from the open
space and trails program. A little pin, along with his certificate. Thank you, Tristan. And
we’ve also got Skylar Benavidez. Skylar, we also thank you for your hard work and
dedication to Santa Fe County and the open space and trails program. Thank you, Skylar.
And George Davis, I’d like to thank you also, George for your hard work and dedication.
Andreas Montoya Lopez. I’d like to thank you, Andreas, for all your hard work and
dedication to Santa Fe County open space and trails. And last but not least, their leader,
Jody. I"d like to thank him. He also is a great mentor and a great advocate and helped us with
this program and I’m glad that you chose us as the public lands. I’m really happy that you
chose us.

MR. LEFEVERS: See you in September.

MR. LUCERO: Here’s a pin for you also.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Again, thank you all. We’re going to take a quick
picture but I also just would like to ask and request, we’re going through a budget process
right now and we’ve had some pretty extensive discussion on open space and trails. You all
have the practical working experience on that and we would value your comments of where
you think we could as a Board do some improvements or some enhancements for funding
and/or any suggestions. So please take that into consideration and give us your comments
also.

[Photographs were taken.]

VI D. Matters from the County Manager
1. Miscellaneous Updates
a. Annual Report [Exhibit 1]

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners, again, we have some public discussion
starting at 5:00 but we’re going to move now if it’s okay with the Commission to Matters
from our County Manager.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, we’ve got the annual report. We finished that. Got
your letter, Mr. Chair, incorporated into it and it’s now finalized so the final copy is on your
desk. It really lists out all the things that at the Board’s direction and through resolutions,
through the budget, through policy initiatives and objectives that the County has completed
this year. It is broken down into our policy areas of healthy community and all of our health
programs and community service programs, seniors, Teen Court, DWI programs, the fair,
housing and then safe community, all of our public safety initiatives, starting on page 10,
talking about the law enforcement side of our DWI program, the law enforcement side of
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Teen Court, the Fire Department, RECC, Corrections and Sheriff’s Department, our
recruitment efforts that we implemented last year, emergency management, adult facility and
the other correctional facilities and programs.

Then a sustainable community goes into the approval of the Land Development Code
and the next steps that we have on that, our transportation efforts to provide public
transportation and economic development, open space and trials planning, affordable
housing, GIS, our volunteer coordinator program and then our growing community. In the
growing community are things like the traffic calming policy, our projects, all of our road
projects and facilities construction projects, fire station, Vista Grande Library, La Cienega
fire station, then it also goes into Santa Fe County Solid Waste Division and all of our
different trails and projects that we’ve done in Public Works.

Then also proficient and transparent community. These are some of the initiatives like
with the satellite office, human resources, online comment forms, some of the different
financial information, bond ratings, performance-based budgeting, audits. And then the final
few pages go over our total budget and a breakdown of where our property taxes go.

So we’ll be distributing this as we have done the last few years out into our different
facilities, community centers. We’ll have — if you have any meetings out in your districts,
townhall meetings, community meetings, anything that you would like copies printed for you
and made available, a chunk of them, just let us know and we’ll make sure we get them to
you through your liaison or in your inbox or whoever is going to those meetings with you.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics, please.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And Ms. Miller,
every year I ask that we have some copies printed and taken to all the senior citizen centers,
because many of them are not accessing or printing from computers. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners? Ms. Miller, I just didn’t
see a letter from you or a picture of you in this annual report so hopefully we can maybe
make one little slight modification to this. [ know your work is very valuable for Santa Fe
County and I appreciate all the work you do, your leadership here. And I just want to also
thank staff. Staff, you made this annual report happen and you made all these projects in 2013
and now going into 2014 happen. So I really want to thank staff. Ms. Mihelcic, thank you for
all your contributions to this annual report. I just appreciate it and Santa Fe County does a
great job for all of our constituency. This annual report is your annual report for our
constituency. It will be available on line and we do have, I believe, some hard copies but we
tried to save on — do our best for recycling and waste of paper. So electronic copies are
available and thank you again, Katherine, for all your contributions and staff’s.
Commissioners, anything else? Commissioner Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Well, actually I wanted to deviate just a little
bit and I’1l follow your lead, your reference to staff, and [ want to recognize one staff that’s
here today that’s celebrating a birthday, Erik Aaboe. He didn’t want me to do that and I
caught him off guard because he wasn’t paying attention. Probably reading a document
having to do with the Manager’s Office, [ would imagine. But anyway, Erik, happy birthday.
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MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, thank you. He’s actually
been trying to hide the fact that he’s had a birthday. He said he didn’t want to get any older so

he wasn’t going to celebrate birthdays. ;?;%{

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Right. And I figured that’s why he didn’t want i
anybody to say anything but it wasn’t going to happen. So anyway, happy birthday, Erik. ¥

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, additionally, in a previous meeting i}l
we had some discussions and this came up a little bit earlier but I want to just clarify an issue. :f,,'
There was a union contract that had been negotiated with the bargaining unit that exists in o
Corrections. However, that bargaining unit is going through some changes and the Labor n%l
Board has directed that there be an election. So we have stopped all actions relative to that as £
we were directed to do by the Labor Board, so that’s why in this morning’s budget there’s :ifiﬁ
nothing relative to that contract because we have to wait to move forward on anything else, ﬁ;gi‘
based upon an election. The Labor Board said they will move expeditiously to have the entity H
do the election but that’s something that County management has to stay out of and that is W
completely directed by the Labor Board and worked out through the potential union members ]
that would hold the election. So I just wanted you to know that that’s why we didn’t talk “‘;,
about bringing that contract forward for approval by the Commission because we have been ful
directed to stop. ,,::3;

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics. ﬁf’

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So this was related to Be
the corrections officers that spoke this morning? This afternoon?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, I’'m not 100 percent sure what their issue was but I
can tell you that AFSCME was here relative to this issue, wanting to know where that stands
in the budget. We didn’t budget that specifically, so —

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: My question is really about the gentleman
who spoke during public comment. If it’s related to this issue, do we have any opportunity,
from management or Legal, to clarify anything? I understand the Board has made a decision,
which is fine, but if their concern is related, is there any way that you all —

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, basically, we cannot now engage
anything with the employees relative to wages or anything. They know that they need to have
an election and at that point, when they have an election then we can re-engage with
whichever affiliation that bargaining units elects to, but at the moment we can’t. I think the
issue of confusion was that they were fairly far along in the process of negotiating a contract
under their former union or their current union and we have been I guess enjoined — is that
the correct word? — to not move any further with that contract, as has their bargaining unit.
But the Labor Board sends out that notification to their group and to us and we have ceased
and desisted any action relative to their bargaining unit.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay, so what I heard, Mr. Chair, was some
allegations of threats or harassment this afternoon. So that’s what I was concerned about
when I said maybe our Legal Department could investigate. I understand about union
negotiations. I am concerned if employees are going through some other adverse —

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner, I need to speak to you about that
specific statement in limited personnel matters.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: And Ms. Miller, I think I’m pretty clear on this, but it’s
the Labor Board that has asked us at this time to stay any contract negotiations with that one
particular union, correct? It’s not the County that’s doing it; it’s not the union that’s doing it;
it’s the Labor Board.

MS. MILLER: That is correct. It goes through a Labor Board process. That’s
the State Labor Board and the State Labor Board has directed both sides to stop any further
movement. They need to call for an election. And that all is done with the Labor Board and
the employees. County management stays out of that issue.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: Additionally, there were some issues brought up relative to the
budget this morning. We really haven’t had time to come back with those. All the pieces of
information that you did request, we will get that to you immediately. Also, we’ll go back and
look at the areas that you indicated that you have requests for additional adjustments to those
areas. When we come back at the end of the month meeting we will bring some alternatives
and some recommendations relative to the areas that you requested clarification and
potentially increased allocation of resources to those areas. And then, at that particular
meeting we’ll bring some back that we know that we can actually incorporate in time to get
turned in with the interim budget. If at that time you have more extensive requests that you
would like us to drill down and make changes to the budget we would then need to do that
between the approval of the interim and the final so we could make additional changes in
June.

So I don’t have anything specifically captioned for presentation at this meeting, plus
staff didn’t really have time to go back and put much together to bring back to you this
afternoon. So with that, those are the only items I had.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Ms. Miller, on your last point, Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, Ms. Miller, I appreciate your
comments in regard to that. I would like to state on this record some of the comments I made
earlier today. There was one additional item that I had brought up before. In fact David
Griscom had included it in his economic development report. But I do want to ask the
Commission to consider an allocation for the internship program for youth that’s specifically
referenced in that economic development plan in coordination therein, for the SER Jobs for
Progress in coordination with the Northern Area Local Workforce Development Board. I
would propose an amount of $75,000 be considered by the Board for discussion. But this
would be resources that would go directly through the Workforce SER Jobs for Progress and
be directly utilized for job training and development programs for the entire county, residents
in the entire county, not any specific district.

I would also like to restate that I had asked this morning we consider joining the
Estancia Valley Economic Development Association as a formal board member in the
amount of $15,000. And then I also was very vocal about supporting doubling the funding for
what I call boots on the ground, associated with our wildland interface workers that are
working in the field, and revisiting and looking at opportunities for additional road graders
and road grader operators.

So I also think Commissioner Stefanics made some brief comments on it this
morning, but associated with the request by the RECC, I went back and looked at your
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spreadsheet associated with additional positions from 2010 to now, they didn’t have any
additional positions in RECC from 2010 until now. And I think Commissioner Stefanics
mentioned the potential of a dialogue between the City of Santa Fe and the Mayor in
particular about possibly partnering to help offset some of those costs, but this might be an
opportunity with this particular position, and I’'m going to recommend that we at least
consider a half-time position with that and engage the City about filling the other half of that
particular individual that would help with IT deskwork and technologies for texting and other
emergency outreach. So I just wanted to say those on the record. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Oh, there was one other thing, Mr. Chair. We didn’t talk about library funding and we
have continually provided library funding. Could you talk about that in particular, because we
didn’t talk about it this morning, and whether or not we had budgeted some resources to
augment the work we’re going to do on the library in La Cienega.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I do believe we increased the
library funding to include a small increase to the Eldorado and I believe some operating funds
for La Cienega. I’ll have to get the specific dollar amounts but I know that was one of the
areas when we set a priority area and so we did include some. Rachel may know specifics on
each library.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So right now we have funding on those in the
South Side Library, Edgewood, Eldorado, La Cienega and I thought we also had some up
north as well.

MS. MILLER: Espanola.

RACHEL O’CONNOR (Community Services Director): Espafiola. I believe
the request is $50,000 for Eldorado, $30,000 for the other libraries and $10,000 for La
Cienega.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I think that’s reasonable as startup for a new
library. I would ask that we up that to at least $15,000, given the others are at $30,000, but
appreciate that it’s budgeted as a request for consideration by the Commission.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: So, Commissioner Anaya, on the library
funding, is it for operation and maintenance? Is it to build libraries? Is it to buy books? What
exactly — just for clarification.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I would defer to Rachel, but
essentially it’s operational costs for the library. We already have the facilities constructed.
We’re doing construction on expansion at La Cienega as we speak, but the other libraries are
existing libraries and Rachel, you could speak to the specifics as far as the uses. They use it
for materials and other operational costs?

MS. O’CONNOR: Mr. Chair and Commissioner Chavez, it’s general
operating costs.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: So operation — no maintenance? O&M?

MS. O’CONNOR: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, no, it is not for
maintenance. There are some, for example, the Vista Grande Library does receive
maintenance because it’s a County building.
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COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Okay. Just asking. So then maintenance might
not be factored into all of them. I think we can work on that.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, I’d like to point out that
three of the libraries are actually owned by other entities, so we don’t pay their maintenance.
That would be the City of Santa Fe, the Town of Edgewood and City of Espafiola. We just
contribute a small portion of funding. It’s been $25,000 a year, recommended $30,000 for
next year, to help with their operations, because county residents come in and use those
libraries. '

Then Eldorado is actually our library but it’s run by a non-profit organization that
raises a good percentage of the money. They probably raise anywhere from 60 to 80 percent
of the operating costs. We supplement the operating costs because it is our facility and it is
run by a non-profit that we contract with. And then La Cienega is actually trying to somewhat
mirror that model of Eldorado. That’s what we’ve been doing — some of the changes to the
community center to expand the community center to have a small library room, community
room for the youth in the La Cienega area, and that funding would be to help get them up and
started running to operate that library. As far as books, we get books for the Eldorado Library
and I would venture to say the La Cienega one, when we get that up and running, through the
State Library program and the GO bonds. And so we do get funding separate from this for
acquiring books and library resources.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Good. That really explains it. That was a good
summary. And Commissioner Anaya, on your youth training, $75,000, you draw no
distinction between the incorporated and unincorporated parts of the county? It’s countywide
for youth training across the board?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez. The
Northern Workforce Development Board works in the 12-county northern area but
specifically there’s funding that’s geared at SER Jobs for Progress, and they make no
distinction for incorporated or unincorporated. They work to provide youth training,
workforce retention and creation services for youth.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I’'m familiar with SED and their background
and I do appreciate the work that they’ve done and will continue to do but I just wanted to
touch on the funding because I think that it’s encouraging that there would be no distinction
between the unincorporated or incorporated parts of the county. That’s always how they’ve
operated. I just wanted to be sure that that was the case here. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In regards to the
Workforce Board, I believe that any — and I used to have a seat on the Workforce Board many
years ago. [ believe that any funds that we provide have to be matched by them. Otherwise we
don’t have full investment from their goals and they’re seeing to it that our money is used
appropriately.

The other issue is that I would prefer that money we put to an internship program
really be for Santa Fe County. That we used to have a very viable summer intern program and
that’s how we recruited individuals to come work for Santa Fe County. So I have some mixed
feelings about sending money outside of the county versus supporting individuals working
for the County. Thank you very much.
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COMMISSIONER ANAY A: Mr. Chair, follow-up.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, I sit on the
Workforce Development Board and been on it for well over a decade, actually and was the
chair of the Workforce Board at one time, but the services I don’t think would step in front or
surpass what you’re talking about as far as the County program. I think we should do both,
frankly. And I think we have an opportunity to provide youth funding and services for people
outside of employment at the County of Santa Fe. [ know we’re going to have a lively
discussion tonight about some of the living wage aspects and some of it’s tied directly to
youth, as well, so I think there’s an interconnection between County issues as well as external
issues that affect all youth in Santa Fe County. So you’re correct relative to matching funds.
These funds would not isolate in a vacuum and would work in cooperation and coordination
with existing funds that come from the federal government and from the State government as
well. So it would be a comprehensive matching source that would augment those funds so it
wouldn’t be a standalone type program. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Anaya. Ms. Miller, thank
you for the budget presentation and accommodating me by telephone. A couple things that
came up though. I just want to ask staff for some more consideration because I don’t know if
I brought it up. But our Public Works Department, I saw the increase and I appreciate that
we’ve ramped up Public Works almost 100 percent since fiscal year 2011. But I still think it’s
important that we recognize rural areas, rural parts of our county and even incorporated parts
of out county. I know I’ve had extensive discussions with Mr. Leigland and I will continue to
have discussions with him on this matter, but a chase crew. I think that we have folks out
there, we have our operators out there with our backhoes and with our graders, but those
operators have to get down time and time again, and so a project that might be done a little
more expeditiously where they could move on to another road project, just for general
maintenance within the county, just if they had maybe a chase truck with a couple of
individuals in that chase truck, they could do the signage. They could use the shovels to do
some backfilling and moving what needed to be moved out. So I would just ask for your
consideration of that limited expansion within our Public Works Department.

And then also, Ms. Miller, I wanted to bring up our Legal Division. In working with
Ms. Rachel Brown, the great work she did, the intervention on the JIMEC, the Jemez
Mountain Electric Cooperative cost recovery rate increases and knowing now what the
County may be looking at for considering also with the stranded cost recovery by PNM. I just
want to make sure that there’s ample budget within our Legal Division in case we need to
hire outside expertise, and/or if any of those litigation costs escalate because I just will tell
you from my experience that litigation costs continue to escalate, and I just would like to
assure that our County Attorney’s Office is funded appropriately for those matters. If you
could take that into consideration I’d appreciate that also.

Commissioners, that’s kind of my recap on some of the budget discussion this
morning and thank you for that. I don’t know if anybody else has anything to add. Ms. Miller,
so when will we have another public working session on this? What is our timeline for our
budget approval process?
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MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, unless you guys can meet next
week I don’t see us having time for another study session, so our goal today was to see if we
hit most of what you wanted. We’ve heard a couple of other additional requests. I’ll have to
go back with Finance and see how we can balance out the additional requests with the
capacity that we have in revenue or possibly using cash balances on a one-time funding
source and then see how it comes out next year.

So what we’ll do is take your comments and requests today, go back, work with the
departments and programs that have those functional areas and see what we can do to meet
some of your additional requests within the funds that we have available. And then on —
because we’ll be putting all of that together in a budget document next week to put into your
packet for Tuesday the 27" So we really won’t have time for another study session for this,
but I think that we can address most of your requests in some capacity or another and then
also, just a reminder that the 26" isa holiday so that makes our time frame of working days
fairly limited. But what we’ll do is bring that back for an interim budget approval on
Tuesday, the 27" of May at our regular BCC meeting, and then we submit that to DFA so
that they can start reviewing what we have in the budget. And then we have all the way till
the end of June to do final budget approval.

So if there’s still some things in there that you feel like you would like us to go back
and address, that maybe we didn’t hit the mark, then we can do that in June and we’ll request
your approval of that on the last Tuesday in June. So we can have another, if it’s needed,
have another study session in June. It really just depends on whether you see that we’ve hit
most of the issues that you requested. And then that goes to DFA and we close the year-end
and then provide DFA in the month of July all of our ending balances and then we do kind of
the final approval with DFA’s recommended changes in July.

So it’s kind of a three-month, three-step process to get the budget completely
approved.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, and Ms. Miller, just kind of my thinking
right now, also you and I are well aware of a recent letter that was forwarded to us by the
Bureau of Indian Affairs regarding road easements in District 1, so I want to make sure that
there is ample funding in our Legal Division for what we may have to, as far as any
negotiations or any legal endeavors that we may have to pursue on behalf of Santa Fe County
and potentially no road closures. Thank you.

MS. MILLER: And Mr. Chair, that brings forward another thing that I just
wanted to reiterate, because I'm not sure if you were on the phone when we talked about our
actual capital budget. We’ll bring that separate to you. That’s not required. And what [ mean
by that is our quarter cent GRT and our projects budget. We’ll bring that to you separate. It’s
not required to go in with our operating budget to DFA, much in the same way that it’s done
separately at the state. They kind of approach local governments submitting those separately
as well.

And we just want to make sure we get our operating budget in place and get that
reviewed and make sure that July 1 operations can continue without any issues with the
operating budget. But I do anticipate us bringing capital recommendations to you sometime
in June. We’d like to meet with you to make sure we understand what you’re priorities are on
that and we could possibly do that as a study session or sit down with each of you
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individually about what we’re looking at and then bring in back in possibly one or two
meetings in June.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Ms. Miller. Any other discussion,
Commissioners?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes, Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, just a further comment. I’ve asked as
well as SER as well as the Workforce Board to come and make a brief presentation
associated with targeted goals and expectations that we might have as far as service. And I
would actually absolutely be amenable to a one-time allocation with those targeted goals and
achievements, outcome-based measures that we might attach to those funds. But I just wanted
to put that on the record. Thanks.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioners. Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, one more thing. As you know, we picked the
coldest week of the spring to have Bike to Work Week. Actually we didn’t pick the week and
we didn’t pick the weather. But this week is Bike to Work Week and if you’ve seen some of
the emails and on our website several of our employees have been really enthusiastic about
different initiatives to support Bike to Work Week. We have one of our County staff, Peter
Olsen in the DWI program who’s been fixing up people’s bike’s volunteering to do that
during his lunch hours.

We have a challenge, by the way, on Friday. The City has challenged us to a Bike to
Work Week Rally over at the Railyard at 3:30 on Friday afternoon. So any County staff that
want to participate, they would be granted admin leave and I will be racing the Mayor, I
believe, and one of the City Councilors from the front portal over to the rally. And Erik, too.
So I encourage you to join us. If you want to bring your bike out we also are encouraging
employees to ride their bikes to work this week and as part of kind of the wellness issue,
Commissioner Anaya, that you had mentioned, promoting fitness, we’re giving some latitude
and administrative time to do that so that people could get inspired. Unfortunately, the
weather is not completely cooperating but my understanding is that Thursday and Friday it
should warm up. So hopefully we’ll have good participation of County staff in that event and
in biking to work this week for fitness efforts as well as a sustainable community, reducing
our carbon footprint.

And then also, one other thing, it culminates with the Bike and Brew Festival that’s
sponsored by several entities, including Santa Fe County Lodgers’ Tax Board, our economic
development, Outside Magazine, the City of Santa Fe, this weekend starting with several
events throughout our open space and trails bike trails. Mountain biking on Saturday and
events in the evenings, and then also on Sunday that starts at St. Vincent’s and rides all the
way out through the county, south on 14 and back up through Stanley, Galisteo, Eldorado,
back to St. Vincent’s. I’'m going to take the shortcut over to Galisteo, though. I’m not doing
the whole 100 miles. But it’s a great weekend of outdoor activities related to cycling,
mountain biking, roadside cleaning and great participation with a lot of local businesses, the
Santa Fe County, the City of Santa Fe and the organizations that put these events on. So I just
want to encourage you to check your email where we list out all the events. Also our website

(o




Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 40

and there’s an app that will tell you where all the events are and what kind of activities are
going on. So I just wanted to remind the Commission of that.

v

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Great. Ms. Miller, I’d suggest if we do collections or Mi
want to take any wagers for non-profit that could benefit I would wager on your beating our t
Mayor on that race and hopefully it could go to a worthy cause of a non-profit. Also, maybe ¥
next year we could consider hang-gliding to work week because it’s been pretty winding out :,’}:

there. Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics. Is that all you have, Ms. Miller? !
MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, yes it is.

By
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Great. Commissioners, we’re going at this time move 1%
back to matters of public concern and then I'll give a quick summary of what’s going on with nzsﬁ
the rest of this evening’s agenda. ";gii
t:j\v
V. MATTERS OF PUBLIC CONCERN “{
s
. . . . 1¥
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Anything that is not on our agenda tonight, knowing “3t
that were was one item that was tabled and we did say that we would afford any public m
comment on this matter. Is there anybody wishing to — and that was on our road ordinance for
weight limit requirements. Is there anybody from the public who would like to comment on ﬁ;ﬁgﬁ
any matters on the Commission agenda — that are not on the agenda. So any matters of public b

concern? Seeing none at this time.

Commissioners, we are going to go to discussion items, and I will go to now a
presentation from staff, and I want to thank all the public for being here today. We have a
couple different issues that are going on right now. We are going to have a briefing on the
Aamodt from our staff, the Pojoaque Basin water system update. We also will be having a
discussion on a proposed draft JPA for public comment. I did receive a letter this morning
from the pueblos asking that this matter be tabled so that they could be here to also discuss it.
I will be moving forward with this discussion knowing that we will be having many more
discussions on this matter. So I just want that to be known also, that I will always afford
public opportunity for anybody to speak on this matter.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Sorry to interrupt, but could we do item VI.
C. 1 before too late in the evening, because there might be some members of the public who
might want to hear our comments?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Sure. So with that, and just really quick, so we’re going
to move on to the Aamodt matters and then we also have some ordinances tonight, a big
ordinance tonight also. They’re all very important for Santa Fe County as they are the laws
that Santa Fe County imposes on all of our constituencies, but we will be talking about the
living wage ordinance again tonight. And with that we will go to Matters from the
Commission.
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V. C. Matters from the Commission

1. Commissioner Issues and Comments

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I know that you’re
going to be talking about Commissioner Ortiz so I won’t, but I’d like to commend, first of all,
our Corrections graduating class. I’d like to read their names. They graduated this past Friday
and they are prepared to take over and start work: Jerod Apodaca, Michael Batista, Cesar
Chavez, Erin Flores, Mario Herrera, Leonard Montoya, Edward Owens, Jennifer Orozco,
Dwayne Rellano, Paul Sena and Troy Wood. The Santa Fe County Fairgrounds was full of
family and staff from the detention center and the graduates, the cadets went from being
cadets to being officers and they appreciated the crowd that was there.

I also would like to mention that we received a notice that this week is National
Police Week and we’d like to recognize all of the employees of our Sheriff’s Office and our
Sheriff’s officers. All of these positions, whether it’s Fire, Corrections or in the Sheriff’s
Office do face danger and we truly appreciate the work that they do. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I have nothing, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, a couple items. I wanted to follow up
on Ms. Miller’s comments about the Santa Fe Century. The date on the Santa Fe Century
again, Ms. Miller? And the reason I’m asking to read this date is because if there’s thousands
of bicyclists that enter into the Santa Fe Century and it’s a great event, but if you’re proposing
to drive on the route where the Santa Fe Century goes — Highway 14, Highway 41, 285, you
should probably think about an alternate route. Unless you’re very, very patient and you don’t
have to be anywhere it’s important to know that it’s tough to travel at the same time with the
vehicles as the bike racers. So the date on that is again?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, you are correct. That is
Sunday, May 18™ It’s in the morning. I’d say most of your cyclists are off the road by 2:00,
3:00 in the afternoon, but it does start at Christus St. Vincent’s, heads out — I don’t know the
very beginning route, but I want to say down like Rodeo Road and out Highway 14. It hooks
up and then you do have thousands of cyclists that come in from all over riding down 14
through Cerrillos, through Madrid, through Golden and up over what they call Heartbreak
Hill and into the Estancia Valley. They cut over before Edgewood. I don’t know all the road
names.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: 4727

MS. MILLER: 472 and then head all the way back up 41 through Galisteo to
Lamy to 285 through Eldorado and then back on the highway back to Old Pecos Trail exit. So
it’s 100 miles and a lot of cyclists and you are correct. People break down, there’s big packs
of cyclists. It’s fun to watch but you have to be a very patient driver.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, and please be careful and remember that
those cyclists have the right-of-way on those roads so you have to be careful with them.

The other thing I want to mention, on a sad note, Robert "Bobby" Rodriguez passed
away at his home after a brief illness on Monday, May 5, 2014. He was preceded in death by
his parents, Ernest and Laura Rodriguez; and his sister, Martha Stump. He is survived by his
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wife, Imelda Rodriguez; daughters, Roberta Robinson and Gordon, Barbara Menke and
John, Linda Rodriguez and Marc, Laura Vieria and Walter; sons, Ronnie and his wife
Frieda, David and his wife, Patricia), Ernie and his wife, Geri, Billy and his wife, Natalie,
Mark and his wife, Marla; brothers: Abe Rodriguez and his wife Sara, Miguel Rodriguez and
his wife, Diane; sister Angie Romero and her husband, Eloy; 26 grandchildren, nine great
grandchildren.

Bobby was born on September 17, 1938. He was a three-sport athlete at St. Michael's
High School, but especially excelled in basketball, becoming an all-state selection who was
recruited by UCLA and UNM. However, Bobby was intent on becoming a Marine. His dream
did not materialize due to a knee injury. He enrolled at St. Michael's College, played
basketball and became an all-American. His passion, commitment and determination were
his trademarks. His greatest love and his joy is his beautiful wife, Imelda of 56 years, his
children and grandchildren and all the players and students that he so diligently worked to
guide.

I was coached by Mr. Rodriguez, Coach Rodriguez. I'm going to follow with a
resolution that I hope to get some co-sponsorship on but I wanted, Mr. Chair, if we could, on
behalf of his entire family and many friends, have a moment of silence.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Vice Chairman. Also on a sad note, a great
community member of the Nambe community, Mr. Gilbert Ortiz, passed away last week and
his remembrance services were today. I will read in Mr. Gilbert Ortiz was born in Nambe in
1932. Gilbert worked all of his life to better his community, his family and his church. His
mother, Sarah and father, Henry Ortiz taught him the value of hard work, strong family and
faith. Gilbert loved his brother Eddy and sister Jennie, Angie, Silvia and Linda.

Gilbert graduated from St. Michael’s in 1950. He joined the Air Force and served as a
crytograph operator in the Korean War. Gilbert returned to New Mexico, married the love of
his life, Emilie Barrone Ortiz, raised three daughters, Christianna, Deana and Bianca. He took
great joy in spoiling his grandchildren, Christopher, Tia and Kiki, and enjoyed loving
relationships with his grandparents, his son-in-law, and his many cousins and nieces and
nephews.

Gilbert had an esteemed career at the Los Alamos Nation Laboratory for over 40
years. He served as Santa Fe County Commission, was a small business owner, a part-time
farmer, and always a proud New Mexican and American. He cherished our land, acequias,
rivers and all of God’s creatures and I had Mr. Flores pull this and Mr. Ortiz, a great
individual took his oath of office for Santa Fe County January of 1963. So he was a great
public servant for all of us and I know this valley that is here today remembers him well.

My heart goes out to — all the Ortiz girls are friends of mine but Deana is very special
in my heart and Kiki is very special in my heart, Cristianna and also Bianca. Bianca works for
Senator Udall’s office. And just a moment of silence for the Ortiz family and Mr. Ortiz,
please.

Thank you, Commissioners. Also, I would just like to reiterate in remembrance of a
beautiful past Mother’s Day to all our great mothers, daughters, granddaughters out there. So
happy belated Mother’s Day to everybody. So with that, Commissioners, Commissioner
Holian — we’re going to pass on her communications. We’ll respectfully go back to that when
she comes later in the day and we’re going to move on with the agenda. Seeing it’s a little
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after 5:00 I’d like to recognize Representative Carl Trujillo for being here today. Thank you,
Representative. There are many dignitaries in the audience but I won’t go as far as naming
everybody because I'll probably get in trouble by messing up a few names. But
Representative, thank you for being with us today.

V. C. 2, Summary and Update on the Aamodt Settlement Agreement

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Leigland, I see that you have with you today,
County contract attorney, Mr. John Utton. We also have our Public Water Works Director,
Claudia Borchert. Adam, I want you to preface to me some of your comments. Are you going
to try to spell out where we are? Are you going to let us know exactly what the County has
done or what the County hasn’t done and where we’d potentially be going? Because this is an
item that you all asked to have on this agenda prior to my discussion of what is going on with
the joint powers agreement to date and I will want to look if I need to put that joint powers
agreement up first before your discussion. So what is your framework of what you’re
proposing?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, Commission, the intent of this was just to set the
state for the JPA discussion. So obviously, there’s a lot of interest in this. It’s a somewhat
controversial issue, but it is just one document in a context of a number of documents and a
very complicated and long-standing agreement. So we just felt it was important to establish
where exactly the JPA fits in the overall process, what it means with respect to the settlement
agreement, the regional water system, just so that there’s a frame of discussion, so when the
actual JPA comes up everyone understands where it fits in and everything and what the JPA
is expected to do, what it’s not expected to do because there are other agreements that address
some of the things. For instance, it’s not the purpose of it. And so — and also I just wanted to
take this opportunity to provide just a very brief update on the process just because there’s a
lot going on and of course we know what happened with the order to show cause. That was
what we were just dealing with with all the public meetings.

But there’s a lot of technical work going on. I wanted to just provide a very brief
update on that. And so that was the intent. We put together a very detailed informational item
in the packet again purely to establish context.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Do you have copies for the public?

MR. LEIGLAND: Well, it was in the packet. It was in the packet material, so
it’s just a copy of the settlement act, copy of the settlement agreement, copy of the cost
sharing and integration agreement, past resolutions the County has passed, so it’s all items
that are already in the public record, just compiled again so it’s a place for easy reference.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I appreciate that. I also see that Mr. Utton’s here. Again,
this Aamodt, as far as the settlement as there have been numerous objections filed. This still
has to be adopted by the federal court before this would even move forward. Are you going to
comment on that also in your presentation?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, I had a very brief comment on that and for more
detailed comments we’d probably want to turn it over. We also have a representative from
the legal team of the State Engineer; he may have some answers. But in the context of what I
was going to provide I just had a quick update.
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, and [ see Mr. Bagley here. So who is all
here regarding the Aamodt settlement, as far as, say, staff from the State Engineer’s Office or
County staff at this time or any other parties?

EDWARD BAGLEY: Mr. Chair, my name is Edward Bagley. I’'m an attorney
for the State and I’m here in regard to the Aamodt settlement.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Mr. Chair, maybe you could ask that question
again of the public. Is there any public here that would want to speak to the Aamodt water
suit?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Speaking of the JPA and even I’m going to ask for
public comment after this presentation is made by Mr. Leigland. So just by a show of hands
so I do know for our timeline, who is all caring to speak tonight? Thank you. It’s not very
many but as the early evening goes on we can add more individuals to please comment and
speak their opinion on this. Mr. Leigland, please.

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, as I said, I put together, as it says, it’s just a
quick summary of the settlement and then a brief update on where we are with regard to
certain aspects of it. As I reread it in preparation for today I realized that maybe I could have
done a better job summarizing it, so with that, I actually prepared just a one-page summary
that Il distribute today and we actually made some more copies and put those in the back.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Leigland, do you have that, by any chance, .pdf so
we could put it up on our screen behind us? Would that be too hard to pull off really quick?

MR. LEIGLAND: I think we can — I'll see if we can do that.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: If they could do it while you’re speaking please. Thank
you.

MR. LEIGLAND: So Commissioners, this is just a summary of everything
else I’ll present. [Exhibit 2] Again, it’s just an attempt to establish the context of documents
in which this JPA sits. Of course we know that the Aamodt litigation is a settlement
agreement. It’s a negotiated alternative to a final judgment. The litigation started in 1966 and
it’s been going on since then but in 2000 all the parties involved said they would rather
pursue a negotiated settlement than take it all the way to final judgment so negotiations for a
settlement started in 2000 and they came to a finalized settlement agreement in 2006.

The Commission first saw this in 2005 and actually passed a resolution in 2005
supporting the concepts of the settlement agreement and that resolution is in the packet, that
resolution from 2005. The Congress was sent the settlement agreement in 2006 and passed
the Aamodt Litigation Settlement Act in 2010. And so that’s the first document I’d like to
mention is the settlement act that was passed by Congress in 2010, and that does a number of
things. It defines the regional water system which is part but not the entirety of the settlement
act, and that’s the surface water distribution system that will be built in the Pojoaque Valley.
It tells what the federal funds are for the regional water system, so it establishes the federal
obligation, and it also specifies two other agreements.

One is known as the Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement, and the second
is called the operating agreement. The next big document that covers the settlement
agreement is the settlement agreement itself. That’s a very complicated document and I think
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that’s where a lot of the confusion has come up because that is actually talking about water
rights, both for pueblos and non-pueblo, in particular well owners, so I think that has a lot of
ins and outs. The settlement agreement is also in your packet material and [ won’t summarize
it and I’'m not even expert to summarize it but others are.

The next agreement is called the Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement,
and that again refers back to the regional water system. That starts to talk about location, line
locations, capacities, allocations, how it will be managed, who’s going to pay for what, both
in particular for construction costs, who pays for rights-of-way, and acquisition. The Cost
Sharing System Integration Agreement is in your packet, that [ would like to point out that in
that agreement it specifies that the US will pay over $100 million for the construction of the
regional water system. The State will pay $45 million, and the County will pay $7.4 million,
and that’s to pay for the construction of the system.

The agreement does say that those costs will be indexed for inflation so that over
time, all those numbers can be expected to increase and with regard to that, the BOR
estimates that the County’s share, which started out at $7.4 million, by the time that it’s
actually requested it will be indexed up to about twice that, about $15 million. So that’s the
cost share. And it also talks about the system integration. It’s also where the Top of the
World water rights transaction was specified. That agreement was finalized in 2009.

The other agreement that was specified in the Settlement Act is known as the
operating agreement. That agreement — the work on drafting that has not even begun yet but
the Settlement Act does specify certain things that need to be in it. For instance, it has to talk
about distribution of water within the regional water system and how allocation of the
capacity is allocated. There could possibly be unused capacity in the system on both the
pueblo and non-pueblo side and so this agreement must address how that unused capacity
will be managed. It will have to be addressing shortage sharing. Also how wells are used and
located, and also the transfer of water rights for pueblos. So these federal law specifies these
have to be in the operating agreement.

And so that leads me to the final agreement, the one we’re here for today, and that is
the joint powers agreement. The joint powers agreement is actually not specified in any of the
existing agreements. Rather, the settlement agreement says that the pueblos and the County
must establish a regional water system, and it was agreed that that sort of establishment could
happen a number of ways but it was agreed that the parties would avail themselves of an
existing process, which is the joint powers process under state statute. And that is where the
four parties voluntarily get together and agree to share powers, hence the name.

And so they decided to create a joint powers amongst them, and so the joint powers
agreement is really about the creation of the regional water system and the regional water
system board. So the joint powers agreement should specify the composition of the board, the
duties of the board, how the board will operate. Current drafts address the operation of the
regional water system. It talks about creating some subsidiary agreements for fiscal
management and things like that. So the joint powers agreement is just one of many and so
many of the operations of the regional water system are addressed for instance in the act, in
the agreement, in the Cost Sharing System Integration Agreement and in the operating

agreement. So it’s just important to remember that just because it’s not addressed in the JPA
doesn’t mean that it’s not going to be addressed at all.
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So, Mr. Chair, Commission, that’s sort of an update just on kind of the document
context of the joint powers agreement that we’ll be hearing about today.

So just a couple of quick updates on the process. The Aamodt litigation is a court
process and so the federal court has been sort of managing, leading this up till now. The court
sent out an affidavit to show cause to all people in the valley to see if they agreed with the
terms of the settlement agreement. The County had a large outreach effort. The court had set
a deadline of April 7" by which all objections had to be received and of course that deadline
is passed and my latest numbers and I’1l ask for correction is that about 790 objections were
received. 322 acceptances were received and of those objections, they fell into roughly about
26 different categories. So that’s the latest information I have. Now it’s the court’s job to sort
through those and to determine what those objections mean, and again, that’s up to the court.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [inaudible] of what was sent out and you said what was
received. How many were mailed out by all the parties?
MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, I’ll have to turn to the state, but it was about

5,000.

MR. BAGLEY: It was approximately 7,000.

MR. LEIGLAND: 7,000.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Returned for bad addresses.

MR. BAGLEY: About a third of those, which is typical for a mailing of this
type.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So we can —I'll just ask this question, Mr. Bagley.
Thank you for being here Mr. Saunders, also. I appreciate that. So as of those third, what
happens to those third of individuals who never received notification of this Aamodt
settlement?

MR. BAGLEY: With regard to those, that third, Mr. Chair, the court
anticipates this type of thing. It’s familiar with this type of mass attempt to contact and notify
claimants in these types of lawsuits. And to take care of that issue that you described the
court directs — directed in this case, that we publish, in this case once a week for four weeks,
the same order to show cause that was mailed to claimants. The purpose of this is to notify
claimants whose addresses are unknown or claimants who are unknown with the idea being
that there are, for a number of reasons, people that we are not going to be able to get a hold of
by direct mail.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So when did that publication take place?

MR. BAGLEY: In January. From January 1* to January 31*. And it was
published in the Albuquerque Journal.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: That’s not a very big circulation for the New Mexican.
Why was it not published in the Santa Fe New Mexican or —

MR. BAGLEY: This was at the direction of the court. They asked us to
publish in the Albuquerque Jourral and the thinking behind the court was that there are
claimants that live outside of the Pojoaque Valley. This is a paper of wider distribution but
it’s also distributed in the Pojoaque Valley and in Santa Fe. I think in my own experience, I
know people who read the Albuquerque Journal at least as often as they do the New Mexican
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in this area and I think the court’s expectation that the people would receive notice this way,
as opposed to the New Mexican is justified.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Fair enough, Mr. Bagley, but for that, I believe they
stopped the Journal North publications in northern New Mexico area, and also on that note,
but as of the third that were undeliverable or returned, what was that percentage that were
outside of even Santa Fe County or outside of the Pojoaque Basin.

MR. BAGLEY: I couldn’t give you an answer to that. I don’t know the answer
to that.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay Thank you.

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, I just wanted to give you a
quick update on the technical implementation of the regional water system. So the Settlement
Act has stipulated that the US Department of Interior, through the Bureau of Reclamation
will be the lead agency on the technical implementation of the regional water system so
included in technical implementation is the environmental impact statement and the
Settlement Act actually has very specific requirements that the environmental impact process
be performed and then once performing that, doing the design and construction and then
actually, while it’s in construction, the operation of any operational phases.

So the EIS is in progress, and in fact as you know, the surveyors are on the ground
doing all the sort of alignment studies that need to get done. They’ve also done some
geological analyses. The federal act says that the EIS has to be complete by September 2017
so they’re on track to meet that. The BOR is also progressing with the design of the system.
We at County staff reviewed a transmission design, which is the large diameter line, tank
locations, pump locations. The BOR based that on the 2006 that was performed by the BOR
which set a lot of the parameters.

So the design is progressing. They’re evaluating several alternatives for the diversion
itself. I think there are five different possible diversions on the table ranging from a diversion
very similar to BDD, which is just a side cut channel to various types of a subterranean
collection well known as a Ranney gallery. So the design process is on going.

The Settlement Act actually has a number of deadlines that the BOR has to meet in
this technical implementation, so for instance the EIS, as I mentioned, has to be done by
September 2017 and by June 2021 the BOR must report on the state of completion of the
regional water system so they have to basically give them an estimated completion date and
the system must be substantially complete by June of 2024. So there are certain reporting
milestones and then certain construction milestones that the BOR has to meet in the
settlement, in the federal law.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Leigland, can you define substantially complete?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, substantially complete would mean that it’s
essentially complete and usable. Maybe there’s some small punchlist items that need to be
complete. The construction contracts themselves haven’t been closed out but for all intents
and purposes the system is functioning as it was intended to. So on a system of that size 1
don’t know what, for instance, what sort or punchlist items you would expect to see but it
would be functioning. So it would be delivering water as expected.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay.
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MR. LEIGLAND: And actually as of today the BOR feels they are on track to
meet all the deadlines for the implementation of the regional water system.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Is anybody from the BOR here?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, no.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay. Thank you.

MR. LEIGLAND: The last thing I just wanted to indicate that was distributed
to you just now was another County resolution with regard to Aamodt that I had neglected to
include in the original packet and that is Resolution 2012-53. And the reason I want to bring
that out specifically is just because it is the only one that has specific language about the JPA.
So in April of 2012, the Commission directed staff to work with the pueblos to prepare a
joint powers agreement and directed staff to have certain provisions to protect against the
withdrawal to ensure that there was reliability of service and to assure financial integrity. And
then it also directed staff to ensure that there are other positions necessary to carry out the
purpose of the regional water system and to protect the interests of the County and its
customers.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: There was also a punchlist of questions that community
members brought up. Was that in the 2012 resolution or —

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, that was questions on the technical aspect of it,
so that was, for instance demand estimates, future demand, water quality, estimated costs,
service map, and if you recall, those were answered in September of 2012.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: There were also many questions that weren’t answered
at that time. Have you all produced answers or has staff produced answers for all those
questions?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, my recollection is the technical questions were
answered at that time. A demographic analysis was performed. The demographic analysis led
to the technical analysis in terms of customer demand. Of course some assumptions had to be
made of how many people would hook up but you can determine, we had a low, medium and
high estimate based on expected water usage and based on expected customer costs. Of
course we don’t know what the final rates would be because it will depend on cost of service
and other things, but based on some assumptions and some inflation rates and data we had in
the 2006 report I mentioned earlier, which had already made some preliminary estimates for
operating costs, we conducted that capacity analysis and looked at —

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Well, Mr. Leigland, in a document that was either
produced by the Utton Center that’s gone out to the public in various meetings, a cost
estimate that was given to potential customers was $45 for 5,000 gallons. Is that correct?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, that was merely given as a point of comparison.
That is what current County utility customers pay. So that is what County customers pay
today based on today’s usage and today’s cost of service. They were also given a comparison
to several other utilities in the Pojoaque Valley. Again, all those serve as points of
comparison. We don’t know what the final rates will be because it will depend on — we’ll
have to perform a full cost of service analysis. But if you look at all six of those utilities and
look at the rates they’re all very close to each other, so it gives you an idea of what the
average customer would pay.
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So in today’s County utility, the average usage is about 5,000 gallons a month, which
between the fixed fee, which is $14.50 and the variable fee, which is based on usage, it comes
out to about $45.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.

MR. LEIGLAND: So Mr. Chair, that’s all | have. Again, I just wanted to set
the context. There’s a lot of information here. I anticipated some questions but I really
anticipated most of the discussion would come on the JPA itself and so [ have all the experts
here who can also answer questions. With that I’ll stand for any questions myself.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners? Thank you. Then what
we’ll do is we’ll move on to the presentation on the proposed JPA and then we’ll open it up
for public comment after that. Mr. Leigland, who’s going to be doing the presentation on the
proposed JPA? Yourself? Is our County Attorney doing that? Is Mr. Aaboe doing that?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, we have Mr. Utton here. He was — I think he
was more prepared to answer discussions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Whoever’s been negotiating it with the pueblos I’d like
to have that.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, I did want to point out that we put about 40 copies
of the memo in the back for individuals who might want to pick up the memo that was in the
packet.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. And then also, the proposed JPA also was
put out electronically. It is in our packet. Again, I don’t want to produce a lot of paper but if
anyone needs one of those copies of that JPA that’s currently being proposed just kind of
raise your hand and we’ll make some copies please. Anybody want a copy of that? So we
have a request for at least ten. Please, Ms. Miller. Thank you, Mr. Utton, please.

JOHN UTTON: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, John Utton with the law firm of
Sheehan and Sheehan, representing the County. And along with Steve Ross I have been
involved in working on this I would say on and off over the last several years because it’s
taken some time with fairly long periods of waiting for responses and I think one thing I want
to make clear as we start on the discussion and public comment, which I think will be helpful
is we’re not to the point where we are recommending a draft to the Board of County ‘
Commissioners. We are still working on the drafts. In fact the draft that was made public and
is in the packets was the latest draft we received from the pueblos in January and we have not
yet responded to it, and I note that since the last draft that the County worked on, and that
was towards the end of the summer of last year, we have a new County Attorney, Mr.
Shaffer, we have a new water utility director, Ms. Borchert, who I’m sure will have, along
with various members of the public and the Commission itself some comments that I think
are going to help us in bringing a final draft that we could recommend to you.

One thing I note in the resolution that Mr. Leigland has passed out that was adopted
essentially two years ago, in April of 2012, it covered three kind of fundamental areas that the
Board of County Commission wanted the County Attorney’s Office to focus on in negotiating
the document. And also, to receive input from potential utility customers so there would be
some public comment process that would further inform that negotiation and probably result,
I would think, in further negotiations with the pueblos, culminating in a final document that
the staff and the attorneys could recommend to the Board of County Commissioners.
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So I think this is an extra step and I think it’s a welcome extra step, given the length
of time since this resolution was passed and the fact that the court process and the objections
that it called for resulted in many comments about this. And so actually, when we saw that
the comments were starting to come in we stopped working on the joint powers agreement so
that we would have an opportunity to complete that process, understand those comments and
then Mr. Chair, you scheduled this, which I think is an appropriate way of furthering public
comment.

So while a lot of effort has gone into this joint powers agreement draft it is not
complete. If I were going to estimate I°d say it’s 85 percent complete, something like that. So
this is — the timing is very good for public comment. I don’t want to take up too much of the
public’s time, because | know they’re here to give their input. There’s the three areas that the
Board of County Commission addressed or directed the County Attorney’s Office to focus
on. I would be happy to discuss each one of those or not do that at this time or do it in
response to questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Utton, being out in meeting with the public and
various meetings that Representative Trujillo had and that Santa Fe County had, one thing in
regards to the joint powers agreement was the authority of the makeup of the water board. So
can you comment on that, please?

MR. UTTON: I’d be happy to do that, Mr. Chair. That really goes to I think
the second item. So for those who do not have the resolution that the Board of County
Commissioners passed two years ago there were three general areas and Mr. Leigland did
mention them. They’re on page 5 of the document if you have it. So that we know what we’re
talking about, let me just summarize them. There’s protection against withdrawal. I guess at
the time there was a question of whether if one of the members of the water authority decided
that a governmental entity didn’t want to participate, what would happen? Would we then
lose the financial contribution and participation by that member? And we’ve addressed that
in the JPA.

One thing, just taking a step back, so under the Aamodt Act, Congress directed the
Bureau of Reclamation to build the regional water system and authorized appropriations for
most of the funding. As Mr. Leigland summarized in the packet there’s a cost-share between
the federal government which bears most of that and then next the state and the County has a
smaller portion. But once the Bureau of Reclamation has finished building the water system
it’s not going to operate it. It’s going to turn over the keys and it’s going to convey title to the
local governmental entities that are going to be supplying their citizens with that water. And
so this is a multi-jurisdictional project. Rather than relying simply on local supplies within a
confined jurisdiction, we’re reaching out down to the Rio Grande to get additional supplies.
So this is similar to what the County and the City did for the Buckman Direct Diversion. In
order to try and save local supplies we’ve spent the money to reach down farther and create a
regional system down to the Rio Grande that then we can bring water in to relieve some of
the stress on local supplies.

Well, this is the same thing but a little more complicated because we’ve got a lawsuit
we’re settling, plus we have five governmental entities, four of which are pueblo
governments. So this is quite a challenge and if it’s something that we can do well as a
governmental, cooperative effort, including tribes, for the benefit of everyone within that
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area, despite the fact that there are these jurisdictional lines that we draw, we’re saying we’re
going across those lines. We’re going to have a system that is based on hydrology and
supplies the whole basin. If we can do that that would be a great achievement. That is quite a
challenge and this joint powers agreement is a key aspect to that.

And so there was protection against withdrawal, which I think we’ve addressed. In
fact in the last section of the JPA now it would require all of the parties, Congress, and the
New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration for anyone to withdraw. So once
people have signed this and the operating agreement requires payment for each parties’
portion then we’re on the hook to be partners in this system.

Reliability of service I think is where most people are concerned about — which is the
second item — is where most people are concerned about the board. Probably there’s some of
that concern also in the third item, assurance of financial integrity. And so I think the County
staff>s approach so far in looking at the board number and membership question is if, as the
current proposal is, that each governmental entity would have only representative. So the
County would have one and each of the pueblos one so that there would be a total of five.
Can we have enough legal assurances that we can be satisfied that even if we only have one
representative on that board that the water supply will be provided to our County water utility
so we can provide it to our customers.

So that’s really a lot of the focus in the draft and I’'m going to try to finish in about a
minute. So let me just summarize some of the other items that we’ve negotiated to try and
counterbalance that concern. Now, ultimately, whether these other items are sufficient we’ll
have to I think make a recommendation to you. One thing I do note is I represent a similar
entity in Dofia Ana County where there’s been a fair amount of strife between the county and
the City of Sunland Park over utility service and land use planning down in the Santa Teresa
border area in southern Dofia Ana County. And there was fights over annexation, who would
supply that area at the border crossing area that’s almost a suburb of El Paso, a very bustling
and growing area, who would be in charge of land use?

Ultimately, those two governments signed a joint powers agreement with seven board
members, and it was interesting how they did it. There were two county commissioners, three
city councilors, and then two members appointed by the two New Mexico legislators
representing that area. So that was one way of addressing it. So what we’re looking at here is
trying not to have too big a board. It could be more than five, but at some point if you get too
many I think perhaps it gets a little unwieldy. Five — we have five here — it seems like a good
number.

So what we tried to do is add protections that would assure that the board would not
have the ability to cut off the supply of water to the county, to set rates and charge
inappropriate assessments to the county. So we’ve put — there are provisions in the JPA, and 1
think also in the federal act, to protect against those things. And I think we actually did a lot
of our homework in Section 6-12 of the act which the County spent a lot of time working on.
That section of the act, which actually I’ve attached to the draft JPA, Congress specifies what
the terms need to be in the operating agreement which will govern payment procedures, how
cost will be allocated, how water will be distributed, and essentially it is not federal law and
it will be incorporated into the operating agreement that water has to be delivered to the five
beneficiaries. In fact let me just grab —
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The joint powers agreement — we’re attempting to complete, even though the
operating agreement has not been finished. Now, the operating agreement, we wish we could
finish it now but it’s an agreement that’s based on what the system ultimately is engineered to
look like. We know where the tanks are.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let me ask a question. I just heard Mr. Leigland, and
correct me if I’m wrong, say that the operating agreement hasn’t even been started, and now
I’m hearing you — I’m hearing something a little different from you right now.

MR. UTTON: I agree with what he said. It has not been started. And because
of that we wanted to assure that there would be certain protections in the operating
agreement. When the County signed the settlement agreement, when the County signed the
Cost Sharing System Integration Agreement, and we did that by drafting a section in the
federal act that spells out what terms will be in the operating agreement. And let me just say
the reason the operating agreement can’t be signed today is it is an agreement based upon
what the system is engineered to be. It’s not quite as-built but it’s final design, when we
know where all the tanks are, the pipes, what the capacity allocation is and then it would
actually say Santa Fe County, your portion of the system is x-percentage. It’s these pipes; it’s
these tanks. Your fixed costs are going to be this amount. Your variable costs are going to be
this other amount and then it will make clear what each party’s cost will be.

And so we wanted — because that’s not going to happen until final design, which is
several years off, we wanted certain provisions that we knew would be in that agreement to
protect the County. So those are spelled out in Section 6-12, which is attached to the draft
JPA, and they provide that first of all, if there’s shortage it’s shared, so there’s no preference.
Pueblos don’t get more water in times of shortage than the County. We’re hoping there
would be no shortage because it’s going to have backup, but if there were shortage it’s shared
alike. The act specifically provides that the regional water system shall ensure a reliable, firm
water supply to all users of the regional water system. And it provides that obligations for
delivery, payment, operations and management are enforceable.

So between the act and the operating agreement, the rights of the parties, the payment
obligations, enforcement mechanisms, I think we’ll be quite clear. And I know people are
concerned that somehow the pueblos are going to gang up on the County and cut off the
County’s water supply. That would be contrary to federal law. It would be contrary to the
court approval. It would be contrary to the agreement. So that I think is one very big
protection. I’'m sorry. I’'m going on a little too long.

Let me just list a couple other items then I can sit down because I think people want
to talk. But there are special voting protections, so there’s four specified items: annual
budget, hiring, firing of the executive director, contracts for more than $150,000 or debt.
Those things the County has to be in the voting majority favoring that. So there’s no
questions about what if the County representative wasn’t there at that meeting? Well, then
they couldn’t pass that. So it’s not as though — I think there’s some confusion about how the
quorum provisions work and we can clarify those but let me just state that what we’ve agreed
to with the pueblos is that those things cannot pass unless the County is in the affirmative

voting for them.
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Two major items that actually the pueblos have just agreed to at the end of last
summer was that the County will serve as the fiscal agent for the entire system, that the
County will serve as the operator for the entire system.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I was going to ask a question on that but since you
broached it, since you haven’t discussed the operating agreement yet, I heard this talked about
at every public meeting there was, I have questions of what the cost will be on the County if
we are the operators of this system. So then was it negotiated that Santa Fe County will be the
operator of this system? If we don’t have an operating agreement in place?

MR. UTTON: This is the operator agreement; it’s not the operating
agreement. So the operating agreement that Congress approved essentially divides up the
capacity in the system. It says this pueblo gets this much; this pueblo gets this much; Santa Fe
County gets this much. Your costs are allocated this way. It requires payment. It has
enforcement provisions. It’s really more of a nuts and bolts operating agreement for the entire
system.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So do you have a copy of the operator agreement that I
can have?

MR. UTTON: No, no. In fact if we were to put that it would be — that
agreement is called for if you approve the joint powers agreement. So let’s just look. If you
look at the joint powers agreement that’s proposed — again, this is a working draft. It’s not a
draft that we’re here asking you to approve. We may not come back for a year with this. It
depends on how long it takes to negotiate the changes that are needed to make this
satisfactory to all parties. But if we look — let’s first look on page 11, Article 9, fiscal agent.
And then the next page, Article 11, there’s regional water system operator. So this JPA is not
going to create a regional water authority that’s going to hire 50 employees and run the
system. It’s going to have a board, at least as it’s contemplated now. One executive director,
maybe there might be one or two other employees. But it’s then going to contract with
somebody to run the whole system.

What is proposed here is that Santa Fe County will be both the fiscal agent, and
would be paid for it, would charge for that, would cover its costs for being the fiscal agent
and for being the operator of the system.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: How are we going to cover our costs?

MR. UTTON: Well, how we are going to cover our costs is the pueblos would
pay us to run the utility services for them. And then our customers would get a monthly bill
to be part of the County water utility. So in effect, the County water utility, even though we
have five separate jurisdictions, they are going together not only to build this system, to have
a board that would oversee it, but then have one of those five entities, the one with utility
experience to run the whole thing. So this person right here is going to have a lot of work.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I’'m kind of snickering because respecting all staff, we
have a great deal of utility experience in water operations at Santa Fe County and I've
broached that many times with our joint venture with the BDD. I won’t go down that track
today but I’ve been down that track many times, Adam, and we don’t have a lot of experience
as an operator.

MR. UTTON: Let me say just one last thing and then I’'m going to sit down. I
think one thing that’s important is that as Mr. Leigland said, the federal law says that those
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five entities need to create a regional water authority. It doesn’t say what the vehicle is. I
think an important thing here is that the pueblos have agreed this vehicle would be created
under state law. And so we’re using the Joint Powers Act, not some federal law or some non-
profit corporation or federal corporation. We’re using our State of New Mexico Joint Powers
Act agreement provisions and so DFA would approve that. In fact, interestingly enough, Mr.
Shaffer, in his capacity as general counsel at DFA reviewed an earlier draft of this to make
sure that all the New Mexico requirements, like public records, Open Meetings Act, audit,
procurement, that all those provisions are in there for this entity.

And so that I think is a helpful thing, that we’re basing this on state law. But I think I
should sit down and let other people have comments.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let me ask two questions. Going back to the settlement
agreement you have in front of us. Excuse me, your draft memo. Hearing Mr. Leigland, and I
don’t know what page I’m on; it’s not numbered. But we have a joint powers agreement. The
JPA between the County and the four pueblos is not specifically mentioned in any of these
four key documents described above. So how binding is this JPA if we engage in a JPA with
the pueblos and with Santa Fe County? Can it be ratified? Can it be changed every year?
What binding authority does this JPA have?

MR. UTTON: So it would be binding on all of the signatories — the pueblos
are waiving sovereign immunity for purposes of enforcement of this. Specifically, the federal
act requires them to waive sovereign immunity for obligations of payment responsibility, so
they could be sued in federal court if they didn’t pay. It can be amended but it would require
all the parties to agree. It isn’t mentioned by name but paragraph 9.5 of the settlement
agreement, a condition of settlement is that the parties form this entity. The United States
isn’t going to build — the United States does not want to run this water utility. They’ve agreed
to build it. They’re not going to build it if there’s not someone to hand it over to. So they’ve
said to the County and the four pueblos, you form this entity and we’ll build it and give it to
you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: My last question and we’ll go to the public is what
authority — I’ve heard that they’re not going to set rates. What authority will this board have?

MR. UTTON: I think it’s going to have authority to operate the system
consistent with the operating agreement, the federal act, the settlement agreement. It’s not
going to have a lot of discretion to go and do other things. It really has a lot of obligations. Its
role is to implement what is being required under the settlement. So it doesn’t have the
authority to cut off water, for instance, to Santa Fe County. So if someone is a customer of
the Santa Fe County Water Utility, the only entity that could cut off water would be the
County utility, if parties or customers were not making payment and after notice and
whatever procedures were acquired. This utility doesn’t have the — the water authority board
wouldn’t have the power to set rates. Its obligations with respect to finances are constrained
by the operating agreement. And so the costs that would be established in that are essentially
determined already.

So I think the biggest fear is we need an entity that runs well. I think the biggest fear
is that somehow it doesn’t do its job, it doesn’t maintain the pipes well enough, or replace
things that are worn out. So that’s the biggest worry is that it somehow falls down on the job.
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And I think that’s our biggest concern, to make sure that it doesn’t. So our approach has been
to have our utility department run it.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners? Seeing none, I’m going to
go out to the public now, and I know we had a few hands. We’ll start with Representative
Trujillo, please. If you all can just state your name for the record and don’t be shy to come
and speak your thoughts on this, please.

REPRESENTATIVE CARL TRUJILLO: Thank you very much,
Commissioner Mayfield and Commission. I really commend you for putting this on the
agenda. [ know this is very welcome from the people of the Pojoaque-Nambe Tesuque River
Basin. I first would like to start off with, I don’t want to take too much time but I have a lot
of material here.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: You have all the time you need, Representative. Just so
you know.

REP. TRUJILLO: Okay. Thank you so much. I want to let the Commission
know what has transpired up to this point. During this past legislative session, during the last
couple days of the session, Santa Fe County contracted out with the Utton Center to have
public meetings for this to make the citizens aware of this very complicated settlement
agreement. Those two meetings were held basically within the last two days of the legislative
session but I was unable to attend those due to that [ was there at the legislature, but in these
two meetings I understand there was more than 800 people that attended, so it can give you
an idea of the magnitude of how the concern that people have in this area.

So at that point, I know Santa Fe County contracting through the Utton Center and
Darcy Bushnell, she set up a series of these workshops and I think in the published data there
were going to be 25 members from the public that could sign up. I think they did allow more
as it went, but I got bombarded, literally bombarded by emails and phone calls because it was
just so complicated and people didn’t have any idea what was taking place. So at that point I
decided I would hold some of my own meetings and I contacted Santa Fe County to see if
they’d send a representative, which they gracefully did at every meeting. There was a series
of six different meetings. I contacted the State Engineer’s Office as well. They were there as
well, graciously, to answer all questions.

Between these six different meetings held from Tesuque to El Rancho to Pojoaque to
Nambe, at each and every meeting there was between 60 and 150 people there. So it gives
you an idea of the amount of concern here.

Now what I did at these meetings, because we’re speaking only of the joint powers
agreement tonight is I heard many, many concerns on the settlement agreement but this was
one of the ones that resonated the most within the community, and as Mr. Utton mentioned,
the concern of the makeup of the board and the joint powers agreement was of a real concern
and I think what’s happened is that all — the message that kept coming through to me was that
everybody affected in the settlement agreement would ask of this Commission that careful
consideration into this joint powers agreement to the regional water authority board would be
fair and be representative of the community that it makes up and that it will serve.

Now, whether you choose to hook up to the system or not, because thankfully that is a
provision for many in there. You can keep your well. You are adjudicated down to the right —
or to an adjudicated right, but you do not have to sign up for it. But there will be those that
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do, that choose to, because maybe of water quality or they feel this is the right thing for them.
There will be the ones that probably never got anything in the mail, and it sounds like the
State Engineer will enter them into defaults and they will have to choose option one of the
election which will put them on the regional water system.

With this we have to make sure that whether you sign up to use your well or you sign
up to be on this regional water system, it has the potentially of affecting the community and
the property values. So everybody, whatever the choice they make will be affected by this.
And in that community, I don’t know the breakdown between the pueblo members and non-
pueblo members but I'll go through as far as maybe what some of the recommendations that
could be made on this joint powers agreement. [ know it’s still in draft form.

But the other thing that was very clear, and I want to address a few comments that Mr.
Utton made and Mr. Leigland made. I know as we were continuing through this process the
County was looking — I saw it published in the paper — about 1,500 people to sign up for this
system to make it revenue neutral for the County. And as mentioned, there was 790
objections and 322 acceptances. Those acceptances don’t necessarily mean that they chose to
hook up to the water system. As I understand it, it’s only about 130 currently that have signed
to hook up to the water system. The others out of that 322 are people that have elected
already just to keep their wells.

And I know Mr. Leigland mentioned that this was another area of concern was the
cost of the bill. And I know in Santa Fe County we all do different types of landscape and
we’re all here to conserve water. I think Santa Fe County and the City of Santa Fe have done
a wonderful job with that. But we do live in a slightly different area down there because
we’re a very agricultural society out of tradition for hundreds of years. Most of the people
down there have % of an acre all the way to ten-acre plots of land. And there was a settlement
that was prior to this that allowed some of the people to put a meter on their well, and the
State Engineer found that these people, traditionally, the wells that were put down there —
now this is an average because they all fluctuated, used about a third of an acre-foot, .3 to a
third of an acre-foot, because they had gardens and they had a lot of livestock and things alike
because you can have all that stuff down there. We’re very fortunate.

So that 5,000 gallons actually goes up doubling it to about $85 a month, and if you
apply the City of Santa Fe rates, you’d but up around $130 a month. The issues that people
still don’t know what those rates are and that was a major concern. And so the settling parties
here — the settling parties being the four pueblos, the US government, City of Santa Fe, State
Engineer’s Office and Santa Fe County have been working on this settlement agreement for
the past five years to match the legislation up with it and it was then in this interstate position
and the courts literally gave the people about 50 days to decide in this complex settlement
agreement what to do.

Furthermore, there was a mistake on the paperwork that was sent out that was vetted
by all the settling parties that asked the people to make an acceptance or make an objection.
The issue is the court hadn’t set a date for the acceptances and I did go to the State Engineer’s
Office and speak with them that [ was a little troubled by that, that we created this state of
panic down there in the community because this wasn’t correct. And I did ask the State
Engineer to please set the record straight. I know the State Engineer released something the
day before the April 7" deadline.
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The other thing that I’d like to speak before I go into what I believe may be —
Commissioner, Chairman, you had asked what is this board, this regional water authority
board going to do? The joint powers agreement provides that the regional water authority will
own, manage, operate and maintain the real property, facilities and equipment to divert,
collect, treat, store and transmit water within the basin. Sounds like a lot of responsibility to
me. And so as I mentioned, the people down in the community just had a concern to make
sure that this is a fair process and that things — mistakes, whether they were unforeseen or
not, well, probably mistakes, unforeseen. My apologies. That this didn’t happen again. And it
was interesting, because as I walked in the room earlier I heard the discussion about the right-
of-way easements that took place down there in the valley.

And what took place is — I know Santa Fe County now is, there’s something taking
place here between one of the pueblos down there, but there was an agreement signed
between one of the pueblos, San Ildefonso Pueblo, and the County in 1989 and money was
exchanged and many other items were exchanged on that, and now it’s come full circle. And
a letter here from the Bureau of Reclamation — I’'m not even sure if you’ve had a copy of this,
but this was actually sent to Congressman Lujan as he inquired about it, and in there the
Bureau of Reclamation, and I’m going to read directly from this letter, states, to Congressman
from the Bureau of Indian Affairs, in response to the notice to show cause related to legal
status of six roads designated by the County as County roads, the County provided a letter
and right-of-way agreement by and between San Ildefonso Pueblo and Santa Fe County
signed in 1989. The County argues the right-of-way agreement between San Ildefonso Pueblo
and Santa Fe County grants to “the County a right-of-way on all the roads in question.”

While the County’s letter contains some useful information that we will consider, we
and the pueblo believes the County reads the 1989 agreement too broadly and that the County
does not, in fact, now have the legal authority to occupy all roads in question.

So my concern with that is that this is water, this is life, this is property values here
and I want to make sure that whatever action this Board takes in this joint powers agreement
that it is very carefully thought out to make sure that we can avert some of these types of
issues.

[ would also like to — I know that Mr. Utton mentioned that the pueblos are waiving
their sovereign immunity in the joint powers agreement. On the current draft form, unless I
missed it, I think — I don’t believe that I actually saw that. I’'m not exactly sure where. I wish
—I’11 get with Mr. Utton after this as well. The other thing that I have to caution this Board
with in reference to Commissioner Mayfield, Chairman Mayfield, is the joint powers
agreement in this settlement agreement, in this joint powers agreement actually talks about
the board of directors and in Article 14 of the draft agreement, in there it talks about the
members and officers of the board of directors shall be immune from any liability of their
actions as directors or officers, and the actions or omissions of the authority or any director,
officer or employee thereof to the fullest extent by the federal law by the New Mexico Tort

Claims Act.

Currently, in some of the joint powers agreement that Santa Fe County has entered
into in the commissioning of tribal officers hasn’t held up in court on three different
instances. They — an individual that is of a tribal nation does not follow under the Tort Claims
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Act and this County has spent tons of money spending on litigating this issue. And so I want
to make sure that that is addressed appropriately.

The other issue that I would like to address is I know Mr. Utton said this is very
similar to the Buckman Diversion and that was to keep this water in this area. In the
settlement agreement, I know you don’t have a copy of this lengthy document, but in this
settlement agreement it does say in Section 7.3 as far as the export of Pojoaque Basin water,
any water that’s diverted from the ground physically in that basin has to stay in that basin.
But it’s very explicit, at the very last sentence, it says diversions from the Rio Grande shall
not be considered to be diversions within the Pojoaque Basin. And so I want to just make the
Board, the Commission, aware that I think that there is the ability — and I know as Mr. Utton
said there’s $150,000 is what the one individual that represents the County, that they have to
be there, anything above $150k. I think in the current draft it’s $125,000. But $125,000 or
$150,000, it’s still a lot of money to commit a board to without — or the Santa Fe County to
commit to without that vote there. A utility could be leased out or sent to an operator at a
one-month time event and that you would have no jurisdiction over that.

The other thing, as Mr. Utton mentioned, a lot of the concern was the makeup of the
board — four pueblo members and one member from Santa Fe County. We would — I know
many people would propose or would like to propose that maybe three non-pueblo citizen
directors are on that board with some sort of qualifications, whether they be finance or
executive qualifications or public works qualifications, something that the Santa Fe
Commission would entertain, and also maybe to break up the tie, get a member from the
State Engineer’s Office, or some other makeup of this regional water authority.

The other thing is this board, the chair never rotates, so in the current configuration,
the chance of a Santa Fe County representative ever being the chairperson on this board are
probably not very likely. Another thing in the joint powers agreement is that board meetings
can be held anywhere in the state of New Mexico. Anywhere in the state of New Mexico. I
know the membership of the community feels they should be held within the NPT Basin. It
would make it easier for people to attend, therefore we could follow the Open Meetings Act
and have public input and attendance.

Under the current JPA directors can all be there by telephone, which can make it very
difficult for a public meeting. There is no term limits on the directors, and directors can seat
themselves indefinitely. The director appointed by a member entity cannot vote to enter a
contract if that member entity is a party of the contract, but there’s no prohibition on voting
with the director, a family member or the party entity has direct or indirect financial interest
or any other type of conflict of interest. And that’s one thing that I would look on as far as
following conflict of interest.

In the powers section of this joint powers agreement, these customers are not subject
to any parameters other than the vague reasonable standard. And the reason why this is very
troublesome to a lot of the members there, and I’m sure many of the Commissioners have
heard this but probably aren’t very well aware of the details. Down in the valley there we are
experiencing tremendous right-of-way fees for electrical easements to the tune of $32 million
that is being committed to the residents there and being a cooperative down there, we’re not
investor-owned, these fees have to be directly collected from all cooperative members,
whether they be pueblo members or non-pueblo members. And to give you just an idea of
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what’s taking place there is that our sister cooperative to the north, Kit Carson, they
negotiated leases with the two pueblos up there to the tune — between both pueblos, to the
tune of about $250,000 over the course of 25 years, which was considered market value. So
-down in the valley where we’re at, it is to the tune of $32 million.

Now, granted, some of those pueblos sit outside of the river basin or this particular
NPT Basin, but nonetheless, this is certainly a concern of many of the members there.

In the fiscal agent part, the draft JPA requires the authority to enter a fiscal service
agreement with the County to be its fiscal agent. There’s no mention of a minimum or
maximum time limit on here if the vote of four directors removes Santa Fe County from it. It
appears there could be no fiscal agent at that point. It’s hard to tell from the current
agreement. In the annual budget and financial provisions, the contributions of the parties to
the amount necessary to meet the regional authority’s operating budget is to be defined in the
operating agreement. However, the draft joint powers agreement includes the word joint. The
issue that a lot of members have with joint is that there will be an unequal share of water
taken from there and so something may be apportionate or something that’s going to indicate
that the cost would be shared according to the water that’s delivered to the different
individual systems might be more appropriate.

Under this same annual budget and financial provisions the authority is required to
present a comprehensive annual report to the parties within 90 days of the close of the fiscal
year. However, there’s no requirement that the report be made available to the public as the
audit is, and so we would just ask that it would be available to the public as well.

And under the regional water system operator, at its discretion, the regional water
authority board may enter into a contract with the County to be the system operator for a term
to be agreed upon. I know through these meetings many of the people, that was a major
concern is Santa Fe County, how long were they going to operate this for and if Santa Fe
County’s contract was terminated, at that point what is Santa Fe County on the hook for
under this joint powers agreement? Any such contract would be terminated by a vote of four
directors and would be managed by the general manager of the authority. Alternatively, the
board may choose as the system operator any of the pueblos or an outside private entity under
the current joint powers agreement as I understand it. A contract with the County would
require that all of its employees be subject to the pueblo hiring preferences and that they
become County employees. However, as County employees, they would be subject to the
supervision of the general manager who would also have the authority to recommend
discipline and firing.

In more general terms, the joint powers agreement states that the County is the system
operator, employees of the authority — and I highlight authority — shall be employees of the
County.

And so lastly I want to close because I have far more comments. I know this is the
very beginning stages and once again, I want to commend Chairman Mayfield for bringing
this dialogue forward. I think it was very ripe in the community. And I guess the joint powers
agreement, I take it it’s just a government to government agreement as far as — [ guess there’s
still a lot of unanswered questions as far as the cost and who’s going to share that burden and
I want to make sure that the membership or the people down there that are hooking up to this
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system don’t feel like costs can spiral out of control where they can no longer afford it. With
that, Chairman, Commissioners, I would entertain any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Representative Trujillo, thank you so much. If you
would indulge us, I would really like to have your comments so they could actually be
incorporated into the record and given to Mr. Utton, because those are great comments that
you provided that we need to look at.

REP. TRUJILLO: That would be fine with me.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners?

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Just a follow-up, Representative Trujillo. 1
think that even though nothing has been finalized it does seem that there is some cost-sharing
identified between the State of New Mexico, Santa Fe County and the US government, those
numbers could change, as was mentioned earlier. But I think the cost that you’re referring to
is the direct cost to the customer, right? I think that’s the biggest unknown right now.

REP. TRUJILLO: Absolutely. As I hosted these meetings, people did ask the
question, where is the money coming to build the system and as you heard those numbers
earlier, those were 2006 dollars that need to be indexed all the way to 2020 or so. But yes, to
answer your question it is what is ultimately their water bill going to look like? You’re asking
me to sign up for the settlement agreement but I don’t know what the joint powers agreement
looks like. I don’t know what the State Engineer’s rules and regulations look like. I have no
idea what I’'m signing up for. It’s like, going to buy a house that’s unfinished and you don’t
know how they’re going to finish it out.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Right. And even though, if you use that
analogy, we have some comparables to look at, if you’re buying a house you can look at
comparables and you can estimate, more or less, what price range that might be. In this case I
think that’s probably not the best analogy to use because you have a group of customers that
has relatively free water. It’s not completely free because you have the investment in your
well and the upkeep of that well, so there’s a cost in that water. So the biggest unknown, I
think, is the direct cost for the customers that do decide to hook up to this new regional water
system. We don’t know the exact dollar amount but we have some comparables that we could
look at or look to to try to come to an estimate of what that would that be, but I think people
want to know a more exact amount so that they can start budgeting for that.

So I just wanted to, for myself, to clarify that just a little bit and tell me if I'm off the

mark.

REP. TRUJILLO: Chairman, Commissioner, no, you’re absolutely right. And
what I’d like to add to that, which brings more fear, or potential fear I should say, is that
under this settlement agreement for a non-pueblo person, they will never issue another well
permit in that basin. So you can start to understand if you’re a property owner that’s been
there for 300, 400 years and passed your land through generations, and you have 20 or 30
acres that you were looking to potentially give to one of your children, they will not have a
well permit issued in that basin again. The only caveat to that is if the — well, the caveat to
that is that if the regional water system doesn’t come by your house at that point you would
have to go out in addition to the cost of drilling the well, you would have to go out and
purchase a half-acre-foot of water from — I’'m not sure who would be the person at that point.
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So you can see how there’s a lot of hesitation in this, because people — it’s hard with
uncertainties.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Right. No, I can only imagine. I’m not in that
situation or position myself personally, but I can relate and I can feel for those that are. But
then I also have to try to balance that, if you will, and look seven generations ahead to see
what that Pojoaque Valley would be like only depending on individual wells and septic tanks.
What is that picture going to look like in seven generations? We don’t know that. It’s hard to
look into the future to that degree, but I think that we want to protect our groundwater and
water and sanitation districts might be the best way to do that. And I’ll leave it at that. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner, Representative again. Thank
you. I’m going to open this up for — it is open for public discussion so anybody who would
care to comment, just please come on up, but really quick while I do this. A quick
housekeeping item. We have other individuals here for various topics on tonight’s agenda. I
know one is the living wage ordinance. I’ll defer to our County Attorney. I know we need to
go into executive session. When we do break to go into executive session how long will you
keep us in there?

MR. SHAFFER: I think we can complete the items that I’ve listed in 15
minutes, no longer than a half hour, but I think we can get it done in 15 minutes.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Shaffer, this is I guess your first BCC meeting so a
half an hour is going to be close to an hour just in my mind. With that, just so everybody who
is here for any other discussion tonight, aside from the Aamodt discussion, after we complete
the Aamodt discussion tonight we will take a vote to go into executive session. That’s
contingent on the Commission’s action to do that, so I think that 7:30 would probably be a
safe bet if not a quarter to eight for other items on the agenda tonight. Commissioners, are
you all in agreement with that or did you want to hear other ordinances before we go to
break?

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: If I could, if you would ask those that are here
in attendance now to raise their hands if they are here to speak on the living wage issue.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners, with your indulgence I will take this
ordinance on before we break for executive, if you want to do that.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: 1 just wanted to get a gauge of where the
audience is and I think if we can accommodate them first that might be good.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: That’s what we’ll do. We go to that order of business
next and then we’ll break. Thank you.

VL. C. 3. Public Input and Discussion of Aamodt Draft Joint Powers
Agreement

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Will you say your name, sir.




Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 62

JACK SHELLER: My name is Jack Sheller. I apologize for any violations of
the rules of order because I don’t go to many meetings. I represent myself and my wife’s
family who own a mobile home park in El Rancho and we’re in the middle of this whole
mess. I’m not going to go through all of the questions and everything that we have
concerning the JPA because they’ve already been discussed quite completely by
Representative Trujillo. My biggest concern, fortunately, and I’ve heard it mentioned many
times, in light of the JIMEC and also of your recently mentioned right-of-way and easements
for the County roads is the fact that everything changes when it comes to the pueblos.
Nothings applies. Our community has been threatened and coerced and intimidated
concerning the whole JIMEC situation. And they’re starting again with the same tactics about
the rights-of-way and the easements for the roads. Perhaps you’re aware of that, perhaps not.
It really doesn’t matter.

The other point I want to make is how do you plan to enforce any of these things
concerning the JPA, concerning the water conservation district, concerning anything that you
concern here this evening when the state cannot even get the pueblos to pay their taxes? How
is that going to happen? I’m not a lawyer. ’'m not a legal consultant. I have a limited
education. I’'m a water operator for a 16-unit mobile home park and I know that at .5 acre-feet
[ won’t have enough water to supply my people. And I’'m scared to death to hand all that
regulation and all of that control over to the Native Americans. I am not trying to be
disparaging. I’'m not trying to be racial. I am very concerned, because first of all, they don’t
care. Second of all, no one is in charge of them. I don’t know what we’re going to do.

I do know that property values have decreased, probably close to 60 percent in the last
year in our particular neighborhood. I know people that have built homes that are worth % of
a million dollars and they can’t even get people to come and look at them at $325,000. I
know that for a fact. I know that we’re concerned about our electric rates. Most of the people
in my mobile home park are very poor. I charge $350 for a mobile home space. Go find
another place in the county that charges so little. The EPA, State of New Mexico Drinking
Water Bureau are constantly after me. I’'m looking at over $60,000 worth of investment in
order to treat my water for a slightly elevated level of uranium. I don’t know how I’'m going
to do it. I’'m going to have to try to get revolving funds.

And I know that if the electric rates go up I’ll go broke. I’ll have to close it down. I
have 16 connections and I have 40 people — 40. And these are just people with families trying
to scratch a living. And they’re not going to have anywhere else to go. They won’t be able to
afford anything else. And I’m not tooting my own horn. I’'m just stating a simple fact. And I
just don’t know how in the world they’re going to survive or I’m going to survive. I can’t
even sell the business that I have and my family has for enough money to leave, and believe
me, we’ve considered it. That’s how dire it has become. And if they’re going to use
intimidation and threats, blackmail, close off roads, put gates up across our property, charge
our neighbors $500 just to get into their home per year, where do you think this is going to
go?

I can pretty much tell you that it’s going to go back, way back to when the courthouse
was taken over in Rio Arriba County. It’s getting very dire. It’s becoming violent. I know my
neighbors have told me that they’ve been taken off of roads that the pueblos claim at
gunpoint. This is the situation you’re having to deal with, so I’m going to caution you to be
very careful, very careful. And I know this is just in the planning stages, and everybody
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thinks that they’ve got everything covered, and I don’t want to be disparaging and I don’t
want to predict anything, but if you think you’ve got it all covered, you’re wrong. And again,
I apologize for any toes I might have stepped on. I’'m pretty famous for doing that, but that’s
the way it is, and that’s not just tonight. We live that every day. We leave our homes to go to
work, go to town, go wherever, go around the corner to visit a neighbor. We don’t even know
what’s waiting for us. There might be a ranger there waiting with a gun to tell us we can’t go
through that road.

They’re trying to close down roads that have been open for centuries. They closed
down a road that was open between El Rancho and La Mesilla that had been open for as long
as I can remember and as long as my father-in-law can remember, and he died at the age of
91 six years ago. These things have been going on for hundreds of years and now all of a
sudden the whole climate has changed. Your law enforcement people come to our community
to take care of things out there. Recently, we’ve noticed a great drop in crime because they
patrol regularly. If the pueblos close the roads, what’s going to happen? Where’s your law
enforcement going to go? Where’s your fire department going to go?

I’ve heard of instances when the fire trucks are told they can’t go through there
because it crosses pueblo land. There’s a lot more to this than just water. Water is life. I
remember the constitution of the United States. I remember the tenth amendment that assures
the states that they have powers that the government can’t take away. I also remember the
Emancipation Proclamation where we’re assured of inalienable rights. And unfortunately,
Native Americans, because of their sovereignty status do not see it that way. Thank you very
much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Who else would like to comment on the JPA that’s
proposed in front of us? If anybody would just like to sit up here in the front rows, those
chairs please, that would kind of help out a little bit for time tonight. We have two rows on
each side. Mr. Gutting.

JOHN GUTTING: Mr. Chair, my name is John Gutting. I’ve been here before
among all of you up there except for Commissioner Chavez. He wasn’t yet elected. 'm very
appreciative of that has happened to this point throughout the process. I have no conflict with
the Indians’ water rights. What they have been given through the settlement, what they are
entitled to through the brought in waters. I have no conflict with that. My conflicts are the
same as the gentleman’s you just heard and of our great representative, Mr. Trujillo. The
things that are not fair that the people don’t understand and everybody needs to understand,
Adam in his presentation said that he had answered all of our questions. Well, one of the
questions that Adam answered was that he felt like 85 percent of the people that live in the
basin, there will be a waterline that will go by it within 300 feet.

I don’t know that that’s actually the fact. A new issue came up tonight. [’'ve been
under the understanding that the design criteria for the system that they’re now working on
was predicated upon an engineering report that was done by a company called HKM. Mr.
Leigland tonight says they’re going to use a 2006 engineering study that was done by the
BOR and there’s a world of difference between those two. The HKM report eliminates all the
people that live up towards Chupadero; they’ll never have water up there. There’s a number
of people that live off of Camino Encantado or Tano Road, I guess it is, a better explanation,
off of Tano Road, that are outside the city and inside the county that are in the basin. I think
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the number is about 250 people that live up there and there are absolutely no plans to service
any of those people.

There are also a number of people that live in the county along the 285 easement from
the opera to the bottom of the Tesuque Hill that still have properties to develop that have no —
that have not been considered for the services of water in the future. I don’t know how many
untold acres of land that are in the valley that are available for development in your
Sustainable Land Development program at % of an acre that will not have water going by
them because there’s nobody living there now so there was no reason to go by it to begin
with, so there’s no plan to develop the water system into those areas.

I realize that can be done in the future but that’s going to be an awful great expense to
not only the people in Santa Fe County or northern Santa Fe County but it’s also going to
affect the other four Commission districts. That money’s going to have to be raised from
revenue sharing bonds or however you decide to appropriate the money.

Another thing that has come up that nobody has talked too much about lately is what
is known in the HKM report as the Bishop’s Lodge extension, or the extension of the water
system from the southern Tesuque Pueblo boundary to the top of Bishop’s Lodge Road,
roughly where Circle Drive comes in. That’s another several million project that was not
originally funded in the $106 million by the feds, nor was it funded in the state’s $45 million,
nor is it funded in the County’s $7 million. That’s money that is on top of that, and that likely
will be a very high cost to go up that road. It’s going to be very expensive. It’s almost all
completely under asphalt. It’s very narrow. There’s a lot of properties. A lot of those
properties could be over 300 feet, so consequently they won’t be getting service.

I think these are the things that you as the Commissioners need to look to. Another
thing I’d like to point out, within the settlement, if you’ve read all of the settlement, it talks
about a wastewater system. The wastewater system, to the best of my knowledge, has been
canceled by any further looking forward as far as the County is concerned for additional
easements at the time that this is done. If that wastewater system is proposed and tried to
build later, the gentleman that just spoke before me, you do not understand the difficulties
you’re going to have for the easements to get that wastewater system implemented.

One other thing — back in the early 2000s this Commission made up of different
members signed a joint powers agreement with one of the existing pueblos that you’re in
negotiations with now to establish a wastewater treatment plant. And this Commission
authorized the expenditure of $1 million towards that wastewater plant. There was supposed
to be a joint meeting held on an annual basis so that everybody could see how this was going
forward, and to the best of my knowledge, the only public record I’ve ever heard of that was
one meeting and that was less than six months after the establishment of the joint powers
agreement. There’s never been another one made. That’s a million of your dollars that you
aren’t getting reports back from nor are the people that live in the valley, nor is there any EID
permit for any use of that water other than for the tribes only use on their 36-hole golf course.

These are things that have to come forward also in the EIS for this very settlement
that we’re discussing. I think that’s critical, because I think that the environment is being
hurt. It’s been talked about many times that we needed a wastewater system before we had a
water system. I won’t go into that because that’s not the issue of the settlement. The
settlement is about a water system. But I think that Commissioner Chavez pointed out what’s
going to happen in seven generations? Well, I can tell you that in seven generations, if there
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isn’t a wastewater system plant there won’t be the people that are living out there now. So
that is something that is going to have to be taken on, but we can’t take that on now. We’re
only talking about a water system.

And I think it behooves all of you Commissioners to go through this entire package,
all 400 and some pages of it and make sure that it’s not going to affect your part of this
county because your constituents are much more or equally important to us as they are to you,
and I don’t think that it’s fair that they’re going to be maybe possibly having to foot the bill
for something that some people believe is a good deal because the federal government is
going to put in $106 million to start a water system. And with that, I'll let anybody else come
to the table. But these are very important things that you the Commissioners of the other
districts need to know as much about this system and what it’s actually going to cost, where
it’s going to go and what it’s going to provide, because it doesn’t provide water to all of the
individuals that live in the NPT Basin. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Please, come on up.

BEVERLY DURAN CASH: [Exhibits 3-7] Hello, Chairman Danny Mayfield
and Commissioners, my name is Beverly Duran Cash. I have first started representing the
community of El Rancho and it began with the Jemez Co-op issue of electrical lines. Again, |
know that those are things that are outside of what we’re here today but I think it’s very
important for you to know why we have so many fears and why we’re asking you as elected
officials to take it very serious. We’ve heard from many lawyers today. We’ve heard key
words, agreements. That wasn’t our agreement. Those were agreements from government to
government, from lawyers, our federal representatives, our state, City and County and the
four pueblos. Those agreements were done government to government without our
knowledge and it was to resolve or to settle a long-time agreement, that yes, I agree, probably
had to come to an end.

We heard of protection, and all I could hear from protection was a protection of
funding. I never heard of the protection or your constituents. I never heard of the protection of
those that earn an income of an average of $30 to $35k. There’s been no protection when it
comes to the easements and especially those easements to land grants that should have been
given by our federal government who is the one that actually has caused this. Because when
the government came in and issued those land grants they avoided to give those the
casements that we should have held.

We hear comparable. Where are you going to compare this? Right now with JMEC
there’s no other comparison. A gentleman here, a lawyer, talked about how there was a board
and there were County officials and there were City officials. They are elected officials. Tell
me where in the state of New Mexico do you have all the tribes with a sovereign nation and
one County official? Is that comparable?

We talked about the comparison between Kit Carson with market value was $119 and
$130k for 25 years. That’s market value. And we’re telling you in our area we’re looking at
over $30 million of easements, which is 600 over the market value. Is that comparable?
Where are we going to find comparable with what we’re going through? You go out and you
ask all the other districts. Do you live comparable to what we’re living? You talk about
- fairness. I have to tell you, the woman behind me will tell you that there’s no such thing, not
where we live right now.
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Now one of the assumptions I want you to recognize, and I’'m going to take a different
approach, because you’ve heard about the JPA and you’ve heard about it hurts the individuals
and you’ve even heard about the easements and things like that and again in the water. I'm
going to ask you to bear with me and let me show you some of the examples that we have
about the County having any authority over the sovereign nations, because we’re living it
right now. It’s not an assumption; it’s not an estimate. We’re living it.

The first one I brought to you because I’m not even sure if you guys have this so I
went ahead and made copies myself. This letter, these letters I’'m going to give you are letters
where our County roads, which we pay for through a 1989 easement agreement are now
we’re filed in trespass. I’m going to go ahead and give you the letter for Ben Ray Lujan that
asks the BIA to please consider these easements and the effect on a community that’s already
been hit with electrical and water and their property values going down.

I’m also going to give you a letter from the reply from the BIA, which basically said,
not only congressman, you don’t know what you’re talking about, and you have no
jurisdiction, but neither does your County. And I’'m going to pass these out to you because
everyone behind me has a copy. So when you sit here and the legal system tells us that we’re
protected and that we have rights, then I ask you as the Commissioners, how come I haven’t
heard of any one of you standing up and helping us with these easements? We’ve begged and
we’ve pleaded to the Congress and the Senators Udall, Heinrich, and they tell us it’s a state
issue.

Then we go to our state, the Governor of New Mexico, Susana Martinez. We’ve gone
to several people within the state and they tell us, I'm sorry; it’s federal. They’re sovereign.
We are a people that have fallen through the cracks. We are an unrepresented people today.
And the only power we have is our vote. That’s the only power we have. I’m also going to
share with you, we went to the roundhouse and we asked our representative, Carl Trujillo, to
please put in a bill that would help us with the Jemez Co-op issue. Again, we’re not disputing
anything that they should get market value. Actually, at this point we’d probably be happy if
they get double the market value. We’re disputing 600 percent of environment and a society
and workers that can’t afford that. And it seems like there would be protection because I
know the consumers are protected everywhere else, and it falls on deaf ears.

So we asked him to please put a bill and it was a joke. We had the business industry
committee members and we had the Health, Government and Indian Affairs tell us people,
we can’t help you. 25-CFR-169 is a federal law that in the days back when it was established
to protect the pueblos so that they would get at least minimum market for the easements.
Their knowledge didn’t come with reading that law; it came from Robbie Robinson who was
an economic advisor who said, hey, guess what? They didn’t put a cap. We can be rich at the
expense of your constituents.

So we went to the roundhouse. We had to hear how we had no rights. How the state
couldn’t help us. We lost. Wednesday we were at the PRC. We went forward, a roomful,
asking to please hear how this was going to affect our community. Please come and listen to
your constituents again. Let us tell you how this is affecting us. How it’s not fair, how it’s not
healthy. The animosity is not healthy. Not for our neighbors who are in the pueblos, who I
believe are good people and struggling just like we are. This is about the governments that
are taking advantage of laws and they’re suffering like we are and we’re fighting for them
also.
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Because [ would love if all of that money would go back into their community to help
them. Maybe I’d have some peace after paying those bills, at least knowing they would
benefit. So at PRC, basically, Patrick Lyons looked at all of us and he agreed. He said it’s i1
really sad. It’s going to affect the state. Pueblos are part of the state. Can’t you see the small
businesses, the unemployment? This is affecting everyone. And then he looked and he said £l

we can’t help you. It’s under our jurisdiction. You have to go to Ben Ray, and he called him 'il’;
out. And he’s not the only one. We had two Senators and we have a Congressman. And he |:’ﬂ
said that’s where you have to go. We can’t help you. ‘ "
[ have a copy for you and I’m going to share this with you. Again, this is what we’re .ﬂi -
living. It is from Senator Heinrich, directly to me, that says, ma’am, all I do is pass federal i]i
laws for all New Mexicans. [ can’t help you either. Go back to your PRC. 3;@
I want you to know that these again, aren’t assumptions. They’re not estimates and ¥y
.. . . f1
they’re not proposals. This is our life today. Now, when you mentioned about the pueblos 1;;;;}{
wanting and agreeing to go to the state law for this JPA to be governed in the state law, well, &
why not? We’ve had everybody in the state legislature tell us that they have no jurisdiction (h
over sovereign nations. Beautiful. Just one more. -
I want to address, Mr. Chavez, what you said about concern for us in the next seven L2
years because of all the wells. "
Commissioner Chavez: Seven generations. ﬁﬁ
MS. DURAN CASH: Seven generations, thank you. We’re concerned about Fim

that also. And we’ve asked for, because my understanding is in the water act, you should be
looking at the waste and the water system, and my understanding is we did ask Senator
Domenici at the time if he would look at both and he said that the wastewater would be too
expensive. You see, literally, right now in the State of New Mexico and because of this
settlement saying that they can go outside of the basin and lease water, that’s a money-
making thing at our expense. With all due respect, you can’t sell crap. But you can sell water.
And that’s your answer.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Ms. Duran Cash, I want to really quick, because 1 want
to have of course decorum and respect for all my colleagues on this bench, but also, just so it
is noted and so it is stated, these documents that you’re passing out and the community by
me, with the exception of the last BIA letter that I’'m still waiting to receive, that [ have
received and the Commission has received it. So the Commission has all these letters. Santa
Fe County, along with my colleagues sitting on this bench. They did provide dollars to
intervene in the JMEC rate case. So that’s very important. Santa Fe County really stepped up
to the bar, stepped up to the plate on this intervention. We hired experts. We provided a lot of
testimony that’s beneficial for the whole community on the JMEC cost recovery case. I think

_that’s important to note.

MS. DURAN CASH: It is important.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Ms. Duran, please. So I think it’s very important to note
that my colleagues have, and they will continue — I can’t speak for them but I think they will
still continue the support of making sure that there’s equity done. As of earlier today, through
a budget hearing request for all of us and a proposal, we asked for — I asked for additional
funding for our Legal Division to continue looking at these cost recovery cases. If it’s not
with an IOU as mentioned by Representative Trujillo from PNM or through a local
cooperative that’s passing out these rate riders back on us. I’ve asked for continued funding
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on that. Hopefully we will receive support with my colleagues and I don’t see why I won’t. [
also have asked our colleagues as of concern, it’s been addressed on numerous occasions as
these letters and you will see the response from Santa Fe County in this letter back to Bureau
of Indian Affairs as far as the road easement issues.

So I want you to know and also the community that Santa Fe County has been very
active and involved with these issues. Thank you. Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: No, I would only say that I don’t mean to be
disrespectful but there is a value in treated effluent. And I’ll just leave it at that.

MS. DURAN CASH: You can have it.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: We’ll be needing it in the future.

MS. DURAN CASH: And equally, with all due respect, we have started a not-
for-profit in our community called Northern New Mexicans Protecting Land and Water
Rights This isn’t about Indian and non-Indian neighbors. This is about the people that we are
electing into office that are focusing on special interest groups and forgetting the people that
have voted them into office. And our mission is to remind them that we may not have
sovereignty but we are 92 percent of the elected vote in our community and we will go door
to door to remind them that they have that power. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Next speaker please. Please stand up and state your
name for the record. Do we have anybody else wishing to provide public comment to this
Commission? Please stand up.

CHARLES ROSACKER: My name is Charles Rosacker and I have a well in
the basin. I’m also a member of Cuatro Villas. I also live in Santa Fe and I would like to kind
of question the representative’s numbers on the rates for Santa Fe. As some of you know who
did live in Santa Fe, it’s not a flat rate and in the summertime we’re allotted more water at a
reduced rate. From my perspective it really hurts me because I look out at this audience, these
are people from Pojoaque. My kids all graduated from Pojoaque with pride and I feel very
disrespected and hurt, because guess what? Now I have two little Native Americans in my
own family.

So when these people talk about Native Americans in a negative way, they’re talking
about my family. And I’'m also raza and I’m also white, and I’m pretty damn proud if it too.
And you know, I’ve had this feeling of hate in this room and we shouldn’t hate each other.
Some of you, I see you come to feast day. I see a lot of you participating at the wellness
center, a wonderful joint venture for the children. The Pojoaque Pueblo provides tutoring and
they don’t discriminate. They also provide a teen center that you guys helped build, but they
provide the people for it.

Relative to the water issue, Cuatro Villas, he was right. For 5,000 gallons it is indeed
about $40. The City of Santa Fe member, I don’t know where he pulled that out of but the
average usage in the City of Santa Fe is 1,200 gallons per capita. Now I do worry about — and
the City of Santa Fe is going to be addressing this. We can’t continue to consume our
neighbors’ feces, but that is really only one issue. The big hurdle that we’re going to face in
the future is pharmaceuticals. Who knows what your neighbor is putting down the drain?
You don’t know. You don’t really know that.

I think la raza has a culture of giving their children property. And la raza, in a sense is
going to be — the bigger families we have the more demand on water. And where is it going
to end? So I think for my kid, in the valley, if they wanted to have water rather than spend — I
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don’t know what a well costs now, maybe $15,000, $20,000, I would say hook up. Hook up
to that system. You’re guaranteed good water. And radiation is a problem throughout the
valley. La Puebla too. We’re outside the parameters for uranium.

So it really hurts me to see the hate and the things, particularly the gentleman from the
trailer park made about my grandkids. And you know what? Guess what. It’s maybe funny to
you guys but for Christmas the Boys and Girls Club went to all of those trailer parks, and
guess who was Santa? And we gave everyone of those kids a gift.

Isn’t it about time that we embrace each other? I'm pretty ignorant. I didn’t go to all
those meetings that Carl set forth. I did listen to Carl on KSWV. I thought he was pretty
good. But this culture of hate has got to end and before you say about the sovereignty of the
Native Americans, think about this. Those facilities that the Native Americans have jointly
provided to that valley with your help have made it a better valley. I think it’s time you guys
really look at the issues, and I'd like to address wastewater. Okay. There’s a way to address
wastewater. One of the problems that we would have in the valley relative to wastewater is
getting it to a main. And getting it to a main line would encompass crossing a lot of people’s
property. But I can only imagine if you as a County Commission said okay, let’s address
wastewater and there is technology out there will contain that wastewater through
evaporation. I wonder how many of these same people will be coming forth complaining
about that.

The money for the easements, I can’t really address that. The bottom line, it seems
like Jemez Co-op weren’t doing their homework. The Indians’ time has come. It’s come.
[inaudible] kick them to curb no more. That’s a reality. Thank you for your time and I still
consider you guys friends whether you consider me one or not. Thank you, Danny.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners? Anybody else? Please.

ANN GIFFORD: Mr. Chair, members of the Commission, good evening. My
name is Ann Gifford. I live in Nambe and I'd like to thank you very much for putting this
item on the agenda. I wasn’t aware of the instructions to the County representatives who were
doing the negotiation on the joint powers agreement that were referred to earlier. I certainly
thank you for having instructed them to have consumer input and I’m very thrilled that by
putting this on the agenda tonight the first step in making that happen has come about. I have
a few points I’d like to mention.

I also think that that memo or those instructions were very appropriate in the sense of
providing — making sure there were protections against continuity and I’ve heard tonight
sweeping statements about the County being the fiscal agent and the operator. However, the
present draft of the agreement doesn’t provide any guarantee that the County will be the
operator. It says that it’s at the discretion of the board of directors of the regional water
authority to enter into an agreement with the County to do that. it does provide that the
County will enter into an agreement with the regional water authority to be the fiscal agent
but that agreement — there’s no term specified. It can be terminated any time by a vote of four
directors and I think it may be useful to you to note that the previous draft of the joint powers
agreement had a definite five-year term fixed in it for the County to at least have an initial
five-year period of doing both those services, being the operator and being the fiscal agent.
However, you can see that as the drafts have progressed there has not been more certainty but
less certainty in the fact that the County would have a role. So the idea of having certainty has
decreased with the recent draft.
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Also I heard a sweeping statement that sovereign immunity had been waived. In the
current draft of the joint powers agreement, sovereign immunity is waived to a very, very
minimal extend and the current agreement provides that any disputes about — arising from
this agreement or between the parties about performance under this agreement can be settled
only by arbitration. Arbitration, as you know, is a private proceeding. The public would have
no access to understanding anything about what might be going wrong.

In addition, the sovereign immunity is waived for purposes of enforcing an arbitration
agreement but only as to non-monetary awards. Therefore, any kind of fiscal malfeasance
would not be able to be enforced under the way the agreement is written currently.

The other thing that’s of concern is that the typical way of assessing costs to water
customers is cost of service. And I think it’s really important — there were absolutely no
parameters in this agreement for a method of determining what cost would be to consumers.
And as Commissioner Chavez pointed out, not only are the consumers uncertain about what
their costs would be, but given perhaps at the present moment the estimate there are only 150
people who have signed up and it’s also considered that it takes 1,500 perhaps for the
County’s costs to be cost neutral. So if there are no more people who sign up it’s not only the
consumers who will worry about the cost but the County will be left, I think, being forced to
supplement the operating costs in the differential between 1,500 customers who would make
it break even and 150 customers who might actually be there.

So if cost of service were used to determine the cost of the water, which is usual with
utilities, I think there’s quite a different situation here because typically cost of service allows
the utility provider to recover capital costs, and here the taxpayers have already paid the
capital costs. There are virtually none. So I would think that the rates should be considerably
less than they are in a typical cost of service arrangement.

As I said, I personally and I think the whole community is very appreciative of your
giving us an opportunity to express some of our concerns this evening, and I’d like to ask that
perhaps we revisit your original direction and perhaps form a committee or name some
representatives who are consumers or would-be consumers of the system to join in and be
able to participate in the negotiations. Thank you for your time.

NANCY GRABOWSKI: Commissioners, Commissioner Mayfield, thank you
for giving us this opportunity to speak tonight. I am a newer member in the El Rancho
community. I’ve only been there for about three years. However, when I purchased my
property the prior owners were forced to put in a new well and a septic system, of course
raising the property costs that I had to pay, and now I’m told I can’t use my well anymore, so
I’m also concerned about my property values.

As a newer member of the community I did not receive my settlement letter in the
mail. It was sent to the original owners of the property, and the only reason I actually received
it was because they forwarded it to me. I had already changed my well rights and I was
curious to know why they had sent it to the owners, and I’m wondering if that maybe
happened to a lot of other people that are newer to the community, that the documents were
sent to the old owners and they never received them. So thank you for your time. I’'m just a
concerned property owner and I appreciate your listening to us today.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: ma’am, would you provide your name please?

MS. GRABOWKSI: ’m sorry. My name is Nancy Grabowski.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Ms. Grabowski.
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LYNN VELASCO: Good evening. Thank you, Commissioner Mayfield. We
really appreciate this ability to come before all of you. A few of you were present when Mr.
Mayfield’s predecessor was involved in this.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Would you give your name please?

MS. VELASCO: Lynn Velasco. And I haven’t been here as long as a lot of
these people in this room. I’ve only been here 40 years. But this is a very, very serious issue.
I’ve seen the community change, go upon each other, and it’s really sad, because the reason I
moved here is because part of my ancestry is Cherokee, the other is about four other different
directions. And I love the ability to have a community that is diverse and I feel like this is
now becoming a burden. Not because of the people but because of the political and the legal
system that has created this absolute separation of our neighborhood and our community.
And if you Commissioners from other districts besides District 1 think that you are not going
to be affected by this, think again. This settlement will eventually or indirectly affect you. It
allows for, and I have a feeling that there were reasons for the other Commissioners, for the
other political leaders to sign on to this document. And note, like many other people have
said here tonight, this was government entities only that have signed it.

And who was pushing or behind them? Probably special interests. But I feel like none
of us have had a voice in this. And not represented. At least please look at this document
carefully. Look at all the letters that Ms. Cash supplied you with and you will see this is a
shameful, shameful abuse of water, power, and a disruption to a community that really longs
to have and honor its diversity and its traditions. And I also request that you remember a
healthy, civilized community is totally dependent on a healthy watershed and we have a very
sick potential here. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Sanders.

DALE SANDERS: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, my name’s Dale Sanders. I’'m
the chief counsel of the New Mexico State Engineer. And I feel slightly compelled, and most
of you were not. I believe none of you were here when we began these negotiations in 2001.
And the purpose of these negotiations in 2001 resulted from the prior 35 years of litigation.,
The culmination of our inertia in completing the adjudication resulted in a potential priority
call by the four pueblos in 2000, 2001. I first became chief counsel at that time. The
negotiations on the settlement began about that same time.

I was invited — or I wouldn’t say I was invited — the United States federal government
invited themselves in the form of the federal marshals, the BIA, Department of Justice and
Reclamation. They came to our office and arranged a meeting to ask us how would we handle
a priority call when the four pueblos called for the water to which they were entitled to and
being shorted? And our response was, well, that is the law in New Mexico. The rights that
they have have been minimally, but have been adjudicated and their right to water would
actually allow for most of the three river basins to be curtailed almost completely for all non-
Indian water right owners. We responded by saying it’s going to be a potentially volatile
situation when we try to shut off all the other non-Indian water users in that valley. And they
said we’d require a significant amount of presence of police, both primarily federal and state.
And they said they’d already made those — already had those discussions with local police
forces, the State Police and the federal marshal had been involved.

This is a very real situation at that time. They also had proposed to make a call and
they actually filed the papers in the Jemez for a priority call. We went out and looked at all
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the head gates and we determined that the call could be handled. That day it began to rain and
it rained quite a bit that year and this priority call, both in the Jemez Basin and in the Nambe-
Pojoaque-Tesuque, they were averted.

That highlights for us the reason why we proceeded to go with these negotiations. I
should tell you the state of New Mexico organized and at the request of the representatives of
all the Indian water users and non-Indian water users to convene negotiations anew with the
idea that we could bring in a pipeline that would replace the water that the Indians felt that
they were entitled to and not receiving and that way be able to avert having to call the non-
Indians. That was the purpose for which we began these negotiations. The reason why we
have a pipeline, as convoluted as difficult it is, I suggest the pain we’re going through in
trying to get this thing completed is far less than if we try to shut down people and take away
their water rights. That would be the resuit.

The settlement does provide and preserve agriculture in the valley. That was one of
the fundamental tenants of this settlement. The idea was if you can continue to irrigate and
you regularly use your water you can continue your historic irrigation practices. That’s
important. For those of you with wells, there’s sort of a one-size for each individual if you
want to maintain your well. And so there are four different versions of the way folks with
wells can settle if they choose to. They can take the risk, not sign up on the settlement, take
the risk of curtailment. Maybe that will be minimal. With a pipeline, the idea is that should
avert almost any need for priority administration.

This is a painful process. I’ve sat here and listened to you. I’ve been in government 26
years. I’m retiring. It’s nice to see Chairman Mayfield up here now. I don’t know who’s
luckier — him in being in charge of this Commission or me retiring. But I appreciate your
patience in listening to folks. These are very good questions. That’s not to minimize the
concerns that people raise about this. I just feel like at times we are always chasing our tails
and this is a long process. And the problem we set out to solve is a problem we are solving.

Other issues such as wastewater systems, that’s another issue, and that’s for another
day. Speaker Lujan, who I feel like I knew quite well, he told me that this problem could have
been largely averted years ago when he proposed having a water and wastewater system for
the Pojoaque Valley. One of his initial objectives was to pursue that and it was resoundly
pushed back by his constituents.

When you’re trying to take care of large problems it takes a progressive and
calculated risk to solve them. We have a reservoir in eastern New Mexico, Ute Reservoir.
That was build in 1965. It holds millions of acre-feet of water and since 1965 until 2010, that
water just sat there. One might call it a white elephant. Today, we’re building a pipeline to
deliver water along the eastern border of New Mexico to all those communities whose water
supply is going to dry up in 40 years as a result of the dewatering of the Ogallala Aquifer.
Building this pipeline, as painful as it is, I can understand that. It’s insightful and it’s
visionary. It brings water into the valley and I think in the long term, I believe it will the
correct decision and I hope you stay the course. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Do we have anybody else? Sir.

CALVIN NELSON: Commissioners, my name is Calvin Nelson. I’'m from
Pojoaque. Just to go on with what he said, this thing’s been going on forever. I guess the
question is if it’s been going on for 37+ years why hasn’t this been worked upon in more of a
graded approach, instead of oh, here’s the settlement. You’ve got two months to look at it
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and figure out what you’re going to do. I mean, where’s the education in all this? This JPA,
what’s going on is they want us to buy a car without knowing anything that’s in it. All I'm
buying is the shell. I might know it’s red, but I don’t know if it has an engine. I don’t know if
it has a transmission. It doesn’t have any seats. It doesn’t have a steering wheel. It doesn’t
have a signal.

So how am I as a consumer supposed to buy this car and drive it? I can’t. So this
thing, it’s still immature. It’s still trying to mature and there’s no way right now to solve all
these issues. You’ve got people that have no clue what’s going on with this. I can’t even tell
you the amount of people I've talked to that have told me, I didn’t fill out the paperwork.
Why should I fill out all this paperwork? It doesn’t affect me; I have a well. I don’t want to
get on this water system. And then when I tell them, well, you already missed the deadline to
object and you’re part of this water system, now all of a sudden, they’re like, oh, wait. I
didn’t want to sign into this water system. But that’s what’s happening is there’s no
education.

Thank you to Carl Trujillo for giving these open house meetings to inform people. We
live in the day of social media, but the problem is though is that a lot of people don’t have
social media. A lot of people don’t have emails. There’s people that don’t even have phones.
So how do we get those people informed on what’s going on? Especially when the paperwork
gets mailed to the wrong owner. Or it gets mailed to the wrong address. There’s people I talk
to that live in Pojoaque that they’re paperwork got sent to Los Alamos. Why would it get sent
to Los Alamos? Why would it get sent to Albuquerque?

This is the type of issue that’s going on is that these people weren’t able to make an
informed decision on something that’s going to affect the rest of their lives. If the water
system is great and everybody can hook into it and it works, awesome. But the fear is is |
don’t want to hook into it now and all of a sudden, now, later on down the road, yes, you
know, [ want to hook into it. Okay. That’s going to be a check for $50,000 to run the pipes
and all this. Nobody understands that. Nobody understands how much the rates are going to
be. Yes, we can use comparables. I understand that completely. You buy a house, you
compare the rates of other housing. Look at our housing market in this country. It’s horrible.

So you’re telling me that I’ve got to use comparables. Okay, so we run the rates on the
City of Santa Fe. This gentleman back here was pretty irate. Oh, yes. We get all these benefits
and all this stuff. There’s a difference versus living in the city and living in the county. I was
raised in the city for 20 years. I’ve only lived in the county, in the valley for the last five. It’s
different. W

When you’re a city kid versus a county kid there’s a whole lot of different things.
When you’re in the city, yes, you just make out your check to the water. When you live in the
county and you have your own well you don’t make out that check. That’s another hesitation
people have. They don’t understand what it’s going to cost them. They’ve never paid for
water in their life. They’re not used to paying for water for their life. Why are we expected to
play a game when we don’t understand the rules? I guess that’s the biggest thing I can ask
you to take into effect when you look at this JPA, is we’re playing a game with no rules. So
that’s all I have to say. Thank you.

DAVID DOGRUEL: Mr. Chairman Mayfield, Commissioners. Also, welcome
to Santa Fe County, Mr. Shaffer. A couple of my comments are going to be perhaps a
reiteration of what Representative Trujillo said. When Mr. Utton mentioned wanting to do
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well in regard to some of these multi-jurisdictional issues, so I would also ask the
Commission and other people have said this in different words is to also by the JPA to do
well by those who are impacted. And what we’re asking for is equal and fair both pueblo and
non-pueblo representation on this water authority board and other folks have spoken more
eloquently to that so I won’t go any further on that.

I’d just like clarification on one of Representative Trujillo’s comments regarding cost
sharing, and I believe he was speaking toward operating cost sharing and that it might be
more appropriate to base some operational cost sharing issues, and I think Ms. Gifford spoke
to this also, on as-delivered resources or as-delivered water, versus as allocated, particularly
since the hookup numbers as far as customers and costs are unknown, and so I would ask that
that be given careful consideration in the JPA.

Regarding meeting schedules, [ would also like to ask that the JPA language include
regularly scheduled meetings, that those meetings be physically located within the NPT
Basin, and that there be some requirement to the greatest extent possible of physical
attendance by the majority of the board members.

Again, I know we’re not here about wastewater, but this water system may drive
development and increased discharge of wastewater. If this JPA is done right it could set the
framework for some agreements regarding wastewater. And lastly I’d like to ask Santa Fe
County and encourage the County to allow public participation in this process as the previous
speakers so eloquently requested. And also, and I’'m sure the County will, as well as Mr.
Shaffer to go into this with eyes wide open and perform the greatest extent of due diligence
possible.

Lastly, I’d just like to thank Santa Fe County and particularly County Public Works
for the great work on the Nambe Community and Senior Center. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Do we have anybody else with us tonight, wishing to
comment? I’m sorry, Mrs. Trujillo. I saw you come up.

MARTHA MONTOYA TRUJILLO: My name is Martha Montoya Trujillo.
I’m a lifelong resident of the Pojoaque Valley and I just wanted to make note to Mr.
Rosacker’s comments. It’s not that we are hating our neighbors, and I just wanted to clarify
that. It’s that we’re hating what’s being done because of what’s taking place. So for me and
for me husband it is — this could be an opportunity for our representatives to bring us together
and to create a system that will work and that will eventually, I think, have to be used in all
ways the Top of the World — help me out here, Commissioner.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’re moving the water rights from the Top of the
World.

MS. TRUJILLO: Top of the World water rights. Because we’re all surrounded
by sovereign nations. So I believe if we’re going to do a model and if we’re going to put
something in place, let’s do it right. Let’s do it right the first time. And all I think that ’'m
asking of the Commission is to take your time, to listen to what we’re petitioning before you
and if we’re going to do it, let’s do it right. And I’'m trusting that that’s what this Commission
is going to do for the next seven generation. I’ve been in this community all my life and the
Aamodt litigation is almost in the AARP field if you will, and let me tell you, now that ’'m in
the AARP it’s worth the wait to get some of those benefits and I would just encourage you to
wait and press forward with what we’re giving you but take your time and weigh it out
carefully. And I thank you for your time.
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mrs. Trujillo. Do we have anybody else
with us tonight that would wish to put in any public comment? Seeing none, Adam, you want
to say something?

MR. LEIGLAND: Mr. Chair, I just heard a couple times mentioned tonight
something that I feel needs a little bit of clarification and the number of times we heard the

fact that if people did not object that they were going to be presumed to connect to the system

and [inaudible] their wells, but the decision to connect to the system is known as the well
election. That is a decision that all the people in the valley will have to face but that’s not
going to be for some years yet. So what I think we heard from the State Engineer, really what
he said was if you did not object you were presumed to accept the settlement.

So accepting the settlement is much different than hooking up to the water system.
Accepting the settlement just means that you agree with what’s being portrayed in the
settlement agreement. And so if you did not formally object you were presumed to accept the
settlement agreement. Now, all the people in the valley will at one point have to make this
well election and as we heard from the State Engineer as well, they will have four choices
with their well election. They can choose to keep their well, they can choose to keep their
well but obligate their successor in interest, they can hook up to the system, or they can just
not accept the settlement at all and be at risk of priority calls. So I just want to clarify that,
that if you did not make an objection it’s not forcing you to hook up to the system.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Adam, I really want to thank you for that
clarification, but as was mentioned earlier, I think the outreach to the public, and the piece of
information that you just put out now needs to be broadcast I think consistently and almost on
a daily or a weekly basis, somehow. I don’t know. Through newspaper or through senior
centers or how you would do that, but one thing I heard is there’s a gap in getting accurate
information on a consistent basis, education. Lack of information. So, Commissioner
Mayfield, if there’s a way that we can consistently share that information with those that are
most affected — [ don’t know how we would do that but I’'m just posing that as a challenge
and a question that we have to grapple with collectively, because I don’t want just dump it on
you, because I do agree fully that all of us in this room are going to be affected by this
Aamodt water suit. No matter where you live in the county we are going to be affected in
some way, shape or form, because water is all of our future. And so I will just ask that we
work on that education piece and getting that information out to the public. Thank you, Mr.
Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, members of the Commission —

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Sir, can you come to the mike, please?

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Why did you wait until now?

DAVE NEAL: Because you raise a good point, sir. ’'m Dave Neal. I live in
the valley. You guys do a very good job of mailing out property taxes. Believe me. And that
would be an excellent way to start telling us what the hay’s going on. You’ve got that nailed
down right away. And the other thing [ was going to mention real quick like. I think you’ve
heard there’s a problem here. You’ve got to fix it, guys. Somehow we’ve got to get the
secrecy broken apart, because that’s what’s happened all along. That’s what you’re seeing
tonight, is a lot of decisions were made that we weren’t aware of, and now that we get the
chance to see them, now we’d like to have our voice. But that’s not happening.
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You guys are smarter than me; I know you are. So you ought to be able to figure a
way out of getting the system back on track and unbroken. Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Vice Chairman, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, I just have a few
brief comments. I appreciate very much any time whether one individual walks through those
doors and provides comments to this Commission or whether the room is completely full like
it is today. I respect those individual comments when no one is here to here the comments or
when everybody is here and watching. [ want to say that first. There’s a lot of things that we
heard today and in many previous meetings that are very pertinent and prudent to this
discussion. What I would respectfully ask all of you, there were comments about diversity
and who we are as a county and as a state and there were some historical references even
made.

Well, historically, I don’t have to get into the detail as to the complexities of the
relationships that this country has gone through and the diversity and the challenges that all
walks there before us have faced including Native Americans, Hispanos, Anglos, Chinese
and many, many other denominations, Japanese, and the turmoil that they faced during World
War II and many other times. I’d be happy to have those discussions offline and not on this
bench. But I will say is this: We are diverse. We do have challenges. We do need to listen.
We do need to cooperate and coordinate and work together through those two solutions.
Please, please. My colleagues sitting on this bench would never make or pass judgment on
any of you individually. Please look at the things that the Commission has done, not whether
they’re right or wrong but judge them on the basis of the comments made and the feedback
made.

And I want to say this and I want to address it to several comments that were made
about what we haven’t done or what we should do or what we might do. I mean, there’s
many, many things to come that we need to do and on a regular basis we hear concerns and to
the best of our ability we make those decisions, and yes, ultimately, at the end of the day it’s
up to the electorate to keep us here or send us off. And I fully respect that.

Go back to the minutes of previous meetings, not only this meeting, not only this
Commission. Take a look at some of the discussions that were held. It doesn’t mean that they
were right; it doesn’t mean that they were perfect. But there were some comments that were
made today that were taken out of context, or that weren’t even based on context that was
made in these recorded minutes. Even on the resolution that was passed in 2012.

At the end of the day though we all sit here and we have to continue to communicate
and work together. We absolutely have to. There is no alternative. We’re in a position where
we have a binding settlement agreement that was passed on from prior decision that were
made through a Congress and through other discussions. Let’s take it forward. Let’s make
sure we have education and outreach and all the things that you brought up in your concerns,
but let’s not also do that in a vacuum. We have to do that in concert and in communication
with our Native American communities as well. Respecting everyone’s perspective.

But I truly and sincerely thank you for your input and stand ready as a Commissioner
that’s going to sit on this bench for a little while, I think, God willing, to try and work
through it and come to resolution and ultimate action to do something for the community and
the citizens.
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Commissioner Chavez mentioned it several times. I mentioned it many, many times,
not just in the 2012 resolution discussion but in every single discussion that we’ve had
associated with the settlement. The settlement’s going to cross every part of the county and
it’s going to cross the region, not just the county, because every part of the state of New
Mexico is watching to see what’s going to happen and how are they going to roll it out.

So Mr. Chair, big challenges. Not only in District 1. We have challenges in all five
districts in Santa Fe County. But it’s these types of instances that we can either choose to rise
to the occasion and deal with those challenges head on, not saying it’s going to be perfect, but
head on and respectfully in a transparent way. And I think we’ve tried to do that. We don’t
always do that. But I can tell you sincerely we have no malice in our hearts and we try to do
that and will continue to do so. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Commissioner. Representative.

REP. TRUJILLO: I would like to make just a couple quick, closing remarks.
Once again, I really thank the Commission for allowing the public to have that input and I
commend Commissioner Chavez and Commissioner Anaya, the education component is
huge here. And to go back to Mr. Leigland’s comments, the people that haven’t sent in that
piece of paperwork or who didn’t receive it are part of that settlement agreement. That is
correct, and the courts will have to try and get a hold of these people at a later time so that
they can make this well election. But the confidence as far as the courts or the State Engineer
getting a hold of them if they weren’t able to have the right address the first time is very
unlikely the second time.

So as you mentioned, if we can somehow broadcast this or make people more aware.
The idea of the State Engineer putting it in the Albuquerque Journal in the legal section that I
think we all scour and we read through every single day of our lives probably isn’t very
acceptable in my opinion. And we want to work together as a community, like you
mentioned. Water is life. We need to make sure that it’s completely sustainable. There isn’t —
the people — it’s not the overall thought process of this whole settlement agreement. It’s the
implementation. And if the implementation can be done correctly I think there could be a lot
of people happy. That’s where we’re at and I really appreciate your time tonight. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Representative. One, I want to thank all of
you for being here tonight and commenting on this. Two, I also want to say to staff and to
thank staff. Santa Fe County staff has put a lot of effort into this as far as trying to do public
outreach. This Commission takes great pride in being the most open and transparent
Commission that I'm aware of in the nation, arguably. And I’m proud of that fact. I’'m proud
of the fact that there were — I received numerous comments, numerous comments when I first
came into office that the settlement agreement or how it was done was deliberated behind
closed doors. To that, to this day, I don’t know if that’s totally, totally factual, but I do believe
a lot of those negotiations on where we got to the settlement were done without a lot of
attendance there or with certain representatives from the community representing the
outcome of that.

But with that, there was the implementation agreement that needed to come in front of
this Commission. I spoke with County staff and County representatives and the public and
asked that this implementation agreement or where this potential settlement could go would
be open to the public and it was attended by various members. So with that I just want to say
that anything that this County does, we don’t try to do in a vacuum. I definitely know we



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 78

don’t do it behind closed doors and we try to have the openness of what you’ve elected us to
do, open and transparent government.

Again, people may agree or disagree with decisions that are made by any governing
board, and I tell you what, I disagree with decisions all the time that are made by the
governing boards but [ still respect the process as long as it’s open and we provide and allow
for public input. And that’s one important reason why in speaking with community members
that I did ask and I do value. Let me go back. I have no idea what’s going to happen with the
settlement. Right now it’s in the federal courts. It may be accepted. It may not be accepted.
But if it is, that’s why I definitely want to get prepared for the implementation side of it. And
I think that’s why it’s critical to have questions on the governance and the JPA. Also on the
operating agreement. I’ve made no bones about it. [ definitely question the dollars that it will
cost to put this system into place if Santa Fe County is the operator of it. I’ve done that since
day one when I’ve been on this Commission and I’'ll do it till the last day when I leave this
Commission.

Because again, you all — I have a background of working and helping out ratepayers.
You are my constituents; you are my friends, you are my family. And you’re my neighbors
and I want to make sure that nobody’s taken advantage of and it’s equitable for all, that’s
including non-pueblo and pueblo alike. We have to work as neighbors. I hear stories of how
the community grew and I’'m very proud of the community that I live in. My grandparents
came from that community. And I’m proud of that fact and I’m proud that I live in that
community. I respect every one of my colleagues that sit on this bench next to me and I’'m
sure they have beautiful communities. I wouldn’t trade the community I live in for nothing. I
want you all to know that.

And I will respect various opinions and represent your best interests but I need to hear
what your interests are. And I'm very glad that this meeting was well attended tonight and I
know that there will be future discussions on this and I hope that they’re as well attended. But
if not, I’'m your representative. You all can talk to me in the grocery store, on the streets of a
phone call. I think everybody has my cell number and my home phone number and my office
number. Call me. If I don’t get back to you right away — [ know everybody always says,
Mayfield, your voice mail is always full. But I try to get back as soon as I can.

But with that, I do appreciate you all being here tonight. This is, an [ understand, a
proposed document in front of us that we have to hear about from your positions and we’re
going to make some changes and bring it back forth. And then Mr. Utton, I guess will go
back, as I understand the process and negotiate with the pueblos. But again, I just want to say
that I’'m proud of the folks that I sit with on this bench, that they do support and listen and I
want you all to know that. I really believe that. I respect Representative Trujillo had
numerous meetings. Santa Fe County had numerous meetings also. Santa Fe County and on
my website I’ve had everything that I know about Aamodt on the website. Not everybody has
internet accessibility. That was a discussion earlier talking about getting some fiber up north.

But we also will provide these documents for you. [ want you to know that. If you
need them to be mailed to you, let us know. We’ll do the best we can. I know numerous times
I think I’ve spoken with our County Manager on a comment that was made. Everybody gets
their property tax bill, why can’t they get every other bill. I think there’s a — and Katherine,
please correct me if I'm wrong. We can’t put stuff in our property tax bills separate? Can you
explain that?
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MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, I believe that’s correct, that we can’t mix things in
with our property tax bills, however, I don’t know what data base the State Engineer’s Office
used for mailing. The County, when we do mailers uses our property tax database and that
was a discussion earlier this morning that the Assessor, we use the mailing list for property
taxes that are notice of value and our property tax bills go out for. We still have issues with
people moving and not changing those addresses, but we’ll work with the State Engineer’s
Office for sure on what database they used and reconciling that with our records, but we still
have issues where people moved do not provide us with updated mailing addresses if they
don’t live at the actual property.

So just for information, we probably don’t have a perfect mailing address database on
either the state level or the county level, but ours is probably the most accurate relative to
property tax records.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. So everybody, I believe every one of my
colleagues has a newsletter that we try to push out. Our County Manager has a newsletter. 11
ask our County Manager to also please have Aamodt updated information in that newsletter.
Please go to Santa Fe County’s website. Go to my direct website. I try to keep as much
accurate, timely information on my website as possible, again, knowing that some of you may
not have internet access. And also knowing, and I’ve question this of staff, this needs to be
done bilingually also in Spanish. I think that’s one of our requirements or one of our
mandates. We have a Spanish contingency out there that speaks Spanish also and reads
Spanish and I've asked that that be done.

So with that, again, I thank you all for being here. ’'m not planning on taking any vote
of approval of an JPA before I hear your discussion. There were a lot of great comments
tonight that I will try to do my best to have incorporated. But Katherine, and I know Mr.
Leigland, you all have talked about a potential working session for the Commission that we’ll
talk about potential cost, every other aspect of the Aamodt. When are those timelines going to
happen? I'd like to know when that’s going to happen, if you have a schedule for that yet.
And again, the public is welcome to every one of those meetings. This Commission meeting
is, again, [ don’t get cable access channel where I live, 28. We’re on KSWV, I guess a couple
second delay. We’re on the internet, a couple second delay. But we’re also on public access
channel. Unfortunately, I guess it’s pretty much wherever I guess Comcast delivers and that’s
28. And we do have minute meetings, as Commissioner Anaya stated, that anybody can look
at. But Adam, when are we looking at having some public working sessions on this, that is
open to the public. And also [ would ask that we have these meetings up north, too. I think
it’s very important that we have them not just in the downtown seat of Santa Fe County but
also in the northern part of the county. I’'m sure one of the schools would give us some space.
If not I can probably find you space in somebody’s home out there. But Adam, talk to me
about that.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, I think, first of all we had about sixteen public
meetings. There was the two large ones and then the ones that had anywhere from probably
ten to forty people relative to the mailings. But the next set, what we had discussed with you
was putting together something kind of along the lines of this was a study session for the
Commission to look at what are the next steps and then also kind of where we were in each
one of those. We don’t really have anything to bring forward to the Commission again as
stated by Adam and the attorneys. This JPA could be as long as a year before it’s actually at a
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point to bring it forward saying, hey, this is a recommended draft that we’re putting in front
of you for adoption. There are still a lot of issues being negotiated between the parties to the
JPA.

So I don’t know that the next stage is really what the Commission feels they need to
know more information about and what the public would want more information about. But
there isn’t anything to my knowledge at this stage of a deadline out to the public that they
need to meet other than what had been presented for April 7" by the courts. So from our
standpoint the courts are going to deal with that, the objections, and they have to set up their
process for that. That doesn’t involve us. And then for our portion it would be to continue to
work on the JPA and any other subsequent agreements that would come out of that.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So, Mr. Utton and just so for those that are still here, so
right now, the settlement is in federal court. Can you give everybody who’s here a quick
timeline?

MR. UTTON: Yes, Commissioner Mayfield and Commissioners. Chairman
Mayfield. So there’s been a filing recently — actually we had a little bit of a disagreement.
The County, the City and the State filed a proposed procedure that had kind of an extra step
in it of the United States and the pueblos filed a separate proposed procedure for how to deal
with the objections. We’ve asked the court, because there were so many objections to
essentially categorize those and look at them and figure out the best way to address those so
that people have an opportunity to provide further information if they want to about the
positions they’ve taken. We felt that the procedure proposed by the United States and the
pueblos was perhaps rushing the analysis by the court and so I think what the federal court
will do, and it’s in front of Judge Martha Vazquez is she’ll hold a status conference and she’ll
give notice. I think that’s going to be one of the biggest, first issues for the court is there are
between parties that filed acceptances and objections I think over 1,000 parties. So I think the
court is probably going to direct all of those parties to use the court email service unless they
show they don’t have email, because otherwise, each person would have to mail out — if you
filed something you would have to mail it out to 1,000 other people.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Utton, I’m not an attorney. So when you say status
conference, who can be participants in that status conference?

MR. UTTON: They’re public; anyone can attend. There will be notice given
to all the — I think initially thousand parties and then probably they will be told that if they
want to continue to participate — this is what we’ve proposed. In fact the County and the State
and the City’s proposal was mailed out to all the objectors. In fact, Mr. Bagley was in charge
of that. Am I right about that? And he actually probably knows more about this procedure
than I do but I can tell you that we want to make sure that everyone has an opportunity to
participate, that if there’s more information that’s needed that people will have that
opportunity. We don’t want to rush through the process. I actually represented the State in the
Navajo settlement and we just went through that. So I think we learned some lessons about
making sure that we take it one step at a time and everyone has a chance to understand the
process and participate in it.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: And no levity with what I’m going to say but all of
those individuals who have objected, we have correct addresses, correct? For them?

MR. UTTON: Well, we should, because they gave us their addresses. And so
we’re just using what they submitted on their form. And so —
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: And we also have that posted on our website when
these — [ don’t see why we can’t, I'll post it on mine — when these settlement negotiations —
not settlement but when the judge asks us to all come together on this issue.

MR. UTTON: Yes, Mr. Chair, so I think the first thing we’ve proposed doing,
the State and the City and the County, is to come up with a list of all the objections, all the
issues that are raised in those objections, cross referencing them so that essentially we know
who’s raised which objection and I think it’s essentially there are about 25 objections that
have been raised by a lot of different people. There are some others that are unique. So that
the court can actually look at those and understand them and address them.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. And again, I just want to thank the public
for being here. I also want to thank my colleagues on this bench. We did give this time. It
needs to have a lot more time give to it. I know sometimes I’ve been criticized of having
longer meetings but I think it’s very important to have the public be afforded the opportunity
to comment. And I will stand by that as long as I am right here as the chair to afford that
public comment in a setting where all five Commissioners are present and not when one of us
are out there just at an individual meeting. So I do. I want to thank the patience of my
colleagues here to hear this and thank you all for your comments and look forward to you
attending many more of these meetings and we still have very pertinent information in front
of us tonight. So with that, we will move on. We’re going to take about a five-minute break.

[The Commission recessed]

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING

A.  Ordinances
1. Ordinance No. 2014-4, an Ordinance Dedicating, in Quarterly

Installments, an Amount Equal to a Gross Receipts Tax of One-
Twelfth (1/12) Percent Applied to the Taxable Gross Receipts
Reported During the Prior Fiscal Year By Persons Engaged in
Business in the County to the Newly Created Safety Net Care Pool
Fund; and Providing an Effective Date of Transferring Funds
(Final Public Hearing)

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’re going to call this Commission meeting to order.
We’re moving on to item VIIL A. 1. With us we have Ms. Boies and Ms. Martinez, please.

PATRICIA BOIES (Health & Human Services Division Director): Thank you
and good evening, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. This ordinance before you is required by state
legislation from this past 2014 legislative session, replacing the sole community provider
program with a new Safety Net Care Pool fund and as part of that whole act which was
discussed before this body, both at the Healthcare Assistance Board and at last month’s
meeting when we requested notice to publish. This will dedicate, as all counties are required
now to dedicate the equivalent of 1/12 of the gross receipts tax to the state. This replaces the
sole community provider fund and then the Human Services Department will be using this
fund for hospitals across the state, including increasing the Medicaid reimbursement rate.
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So this ordinance is required by statute. It has to be effective now, by the end of this
fiscal year and it will go into play and the first time that any funds will be turned over to the
state will be the September quarterly payment. I stand for any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, [ just want to state for the record, we
did not have an alternative associated with this. This is statutory mandate. Just clarify that.
Thank you, Mr. Chair. I move for approval.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Discussion please. Commissioner Stefanics, first.
Nothing? Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I have no comments to
make. I just wanted to mention the public hearing.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. So again, we have a motion and a second,
but we also have — this is a public hearing. Would anybody care to provide any comment on
this tonight? Seeing none.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Mr. Chair, I have a question. I know that you
did read the title in and we’re dedicating an amount equal to a gross receipts tax of 1/12
percent that would be applied to the taxable gross receipts tax reported during the prior fiscal
year. So do we have a dollar amount on what we’re anticipating in this new Safety Net Care
Pool fund?

MS. BOIES: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, right now, for fiscal year 2015
the number is $2.6 million.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: $2.6 million. So it may have been good to have
a fiscal impact on this ordinance but at least the number is out there. For me, I wanted that
clarification and for the record I though it would be good to put that out there because that’s a
big responsibility. We’re taking care of those that need care the most. So, as Commissioner
Anaya pointed out it’s by state statute that we have to do this. But still, I think I wanted to
touch on the dollar amount. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, just commending the staff’s work,
the Manager. We’ve done this before but we’ll do it again for their efforts in mitigating the
issues associated with this particular fund to the 1/12 that it is. Commissioner Stefanics, the
Association and many others. That’s all [ have. Thanks.

The motion to approve the ordinance 2014-4 passed upon unanimous roll call vote with
Commissioners Anaya, Chavez, Holian, Stefanics and Mayfield all voting in the
affirmative.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I just wanted to let the Board know that the
Association of Counties has already started a work group to look at alternatives to this. It
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doesn’t necessarily mean it will go anywhere in the current executive but we are starting a
work group on alternatives. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you for that, Commissioner Stefanics.

VIIL. 2. Ordinance No. 2014- _, an Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 2014-1
(an Ordinance Establishing a Living Wage within Santa Fe County;
Specifying Employers Subject to the Living Wage; Making Findings as to
the Necessity of a Living Wage; Establishing a Prohibition on Retaliation
for Reporting Violations of the Living Wage; Providing for Remedies and
Penalties; Specifying Enforcement Officers; Providing the Process to Be
Employed Upon Complaints of Violation; Establishing Severability; and
Providing an Effective Date), to Modify the Base Wage for Tipped
Employees (First Public Hearing)

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I'm going to turn it over to Vice Chairman Anaya
because I know he has a request.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On this ordinance there
has been some work done by staff to accommodate or try and accommodate some of the
issues raised with the ordinance. I've had dialogue with people on both sides of the
ordinance. I think that we’re moving in the direction of some options that will help us make
sure that the ordinance is effective and useful and also at the same time does not discourage
businesses from engaging their business in Santa Fe County.

With that said, there’s several groups. Mr, Hendry is sitting in front of me. I’ve
spoken with him and others that are going to have some discussions between now and the
next public hearing to see if we might come up with some options that help us make this a
workable ordinance. Today we’re going to hear comments. We’re looking forward to those
comments. Today we’re going to listen and I’m not going to have a whole lot to say today
other than I’'m hopeful that we can continue to have a dialogue and whatever we end up with
that it’s a workable, usable ordinance that not only makes sure that people get paid a wage
but that also makes sure that businesses are not put out of business. So Mr. Chair,
Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Thank you, Commissioner Anaya and Mr.

Chair. I want to thank the public for being here again to talk about this. I guess what I will do
is I will try to explain the amendment that I’ve put forward. It’s a little different than
Commissioner Anaya’s. But it will amend the existing ordinance in the area of the base wage
and the amendment that ’'m proposing would take it from where it is now at 60 percent of the
living wage to 30 percent of the living wage, and it would take it from what’s being proposed
now. I think it’s $6.40 for the base wage and it would reduce it to $3.20 an hour for the base
wage. In addition to that, it will postpone or delay the base wage until January of 2015. So
between now and then, I know it’s not good for the workers but it might be good for the
businesses. So they have about seven or eight months to adjust their business plan to
compensate for what’s being suggested.

So I agree with Commissioner Anaya that in that I don’t want to be unrealistic or set
the bar too high and I think it was the right statement to make, but I think in hindsight it may
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have been unrealistic from the business perspective and I want to balance those two interests
as much as possible. That’s why I was willing to, in visiting with a number of the restaurant
owners and with someone from Albuquerque who I guess was representing the restaurant
association. I don’t remember her name right off, but we did have this discussion. Everyone
at that time seemed to be receptive to this, but again, we’re not going to be making any
decisions tonight. The reason that I was willing to go along with Commissioner Anaya’s
amendment was to have the discussion. I’'m willing to continue to have that discussion, but I
was not willing to go back to the $2.13 an hour. I think we can do better than that. So then I’ll
leave it at that, Mr. Chair, and I know you want to have a public hearing on all of the
amendments that are in our packet tonight.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Chavez, for that. Yes, we
have tonight a noticed public hearing on this and then we have two others where we’re even
asking to publish title and general summary on one of them. I have a question for our County
Attorney on this. We’ve already passed a living wage in Santa Fe County. So what’s the
implementation timeline of the current ordinance that has been passed by Santa Fe County?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, the ordinance is already in place. The $10.66, and
the tipped wage employee is pending an outcome of your proposed amendments or no
amendment.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I’'m sorry, Ms. Miller. Would you repeat that please?

MS. MILLER: I said the $10.66 an hour, the living wage, that has already —
that’s already in effect. A notice was sent out to all business owners that have a business
license with Santa Fe County, that that was effective I want to say like April 26", but that
notice also stated, based on the advice of the County Attorney, Mr. Ross, that this portion that
was proposed amendment before it even came into effect would be on hold until such time as
the Board took action on an amendment or no amendment to the ordinance that was put into
place back in March.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let me ask a question. How can our Attorney, if we’ve
passed a law, how can our Attorney repeal what we’ve passed and ask that something be on
hold without coming to a public vote?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, that was the advice given at the time to the Board
and to me, so that’s how the letter went out to the business centers. If the Commission would
like us to go and revisit that issue, I can revisit that issue but at that particular time that was
the legal advice the Board and I was given based upon the Commission immediately putting
an amendment for it before it ever came into effect. Because the ordinance is not going to
come into effect for at least 60 days.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I actually appreciate the fact that Mr.
Ross did that, because I think one of the things in the discussions that I’ve had as a
Commissioner is that there are some effects and maybe in my perspective, unintended
consequences that I don’t want to see fully advance. And so I think that’s the intent of the
amendments, but I would ask, Mr. Chair, if we could listen to the feedback we’re going to get
tonight. I think we’re going to get differing perspectives and use that in our deliberations
between now and the next meeting to hopefully strike a balance between making sure that we
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uphold the living wage we voted for but we do so in a way that doesn’t put people in a
precarious position that are in business.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Vice Chairman Anaya. Commissioner
Stefanics.

COMMIISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. [ have a comment
and then I have a technical question, maybe directive. My comment is that for all the people
who had heartburn they sure didn’t show up in the three public hearings we had, and where
were they. That’s my comment. The second issue I have is technical. I think it’s totally
confusing and silly to have these three items noticed separately, two publishing title and
general summary when all we’re talking about are amendments. So [ would like Legal to
investigate whether or not you can just identify the amendments so that next time when we
come back we can just vote them up or down and move on. Because if we pass one ordinance
and we’re publishing title and general summary, and coming back to two more ordinances,
we could totally change what we vote on next time, and we’re not being consistent.

So I would really ask that Legal look at the process for this before we come back to
our next meeting. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Stefanics. Commissioner
Holian, please.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to make a
comment. | attended a meeting, I guess it was a few weeks ago with the restaurant owners
and what I learned from that meeting, not being a restaurant owner myself, is that there could
well be unintended consequences in setting a base wage for tipped employees to 60 percent
of the County minimum wage. And among other things it would create inequities between
restaurants in the unincorporated areas of the county and in the city. There are other
unintended consequences I think that could be caused as well, so I really do think that we
need to fix this part of the ordinance in the future with an amendment but [ would like to hear
from everyone who is here tonight from the public who would like to comment on this to
give us suggestions as to what would be the right thing to do. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I agree with all the Commissioners, but
Commissioner Stefanics makes a point about the three ordinances that we’re discussing. I
would ask is it okay to read in what we’re discussing and allow the public to comment on
anything that they might have as a concern associated with the living wage ordinances on any
of the three instead of going through them separately. [ don’t see any harm in having
comment on all three. We can do them separately if you’d like, Mr. Chair, but I think there
are people here who can address those concerns and once we get to that portion just allow
them the opportunity to comment on any of the three.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Well, thank you, and I appreciate that, Commissioners,
and [ want to afford public comment, but I also see items 3 and 4 that are requesting to
publish title and general summary. So I need to defer to our County Attorney, please.

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, thank you. The genesis of the additional items on
the agenda for consideration I would explain as follows is that the original title and general
summary that was authorized by the Board and published in the paper was very specific and
it was tightly drawn to adjusting the base wage for tipped employees. So that process has
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begun and that sets the parameters of what the Board should be considering with respect to
the amendment that is on the table now for its first public hearing.

As I understand it, subsequent to that process being initiated, a separate request and
topic was put on the table, namely creating an additional exemption for school age children
who are in high school. That’s outside the four corners of what was noticed to the public with
respect to the process that was begun, and so if you’re going to entertain that additional
change you need to start a separate process so that you don’t have any questions about the
legality of those additional amendments. So as to provide the Board with maximum
flexibility to determine how it wants to take these up we titled or put on the agenda an option
that would allow you to combine those processes of you wanted to have a single amendment
that addressed both the issue of the base wage for tipped employees as well as the separate
issue of enacting additional exceptions to the scope of the ordinance. So that’s the genesis for
the different items.

To sum up, you can continue with the process that you’ve put in place with respect to
the base wage for tipped employees and consider that ordinance on its own merits. You could
combine the two separate issues into one new process, or you could launch a separate process
specific to the issue of exemptions. So again, I hope that clarifies the thinking behind items
on the agenda, but that was the rationale for going down that path.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Shaffer, thank you for that. [inaudible] So then how
did proper noticing go out if we’re going to be taking comment on all these other issues
tonight if all we were asking for item 3 and 4 was to publish title and general summary on
this? How do I know the public’s been afforded the opportunity to come and comment on
these matters?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, the Board authorized publishing title and general
summary of an ordinance that amended the living wage ordinance specific to the base wage
for tipped employees. That’s been noticed in the paper for several weeks, both this first
public hearing as well as the subsequent public hearing at which final action is being
proposed. I don’t have it in front of me but we have the actual affidavit of publication with
respect to that issue.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So when have we noticed to enact one or more
additional exceptions to the applicability of this ordinance so that people will know that
we’re going to discuss that tonight? And my third is when did we notice to modify the base
wage for tipped employees and to enact one or more additional exceptions? I guess we have
notice to modify the base wage?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, those are on the agenda for this evening and so if
the Board were to direct that we begin a separate process to deal with the exceptions issue,
then you would authorize us to begin that process tonight, directing to have as many public
meetings on that issue as you want. If the Board wanted to combine the two matters so that
you have one set of amendments considering them at one time then you could do that as well.
So, to be clear, the only process that has definitively begun is the proposed amendments to
the base wage for tipped employees. If you want to begin a separate process to consider
additional exceptions to the living wage ordinance then that’s the process you would be
beginning tonight.
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. So you’re comfortable that proper public
notice has been afforded on all three?

MR. SHAFFER: Yes, I am. And again, this is a public hearing on the
proposed amendments to the base wage for tipped employees. The next two action items you
would vote on one but not both. Or you would vote down both, but you can certainly go
forward and hear public comment on the proposed amendment related to the base wage for
tipped employees. '

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez, and then Commissioner Anaya,
please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: No, I think that the County Attorney has
explained it. I did want to talk about the exceptions and that is captured in a second ordinance
amendment. So I guess we can discuss that at some time and vote that up or down. It has
three exceptions. One, interns working for a business for academic credit in connection with
a course of study at an accredited school, college or university; persons working for a
business in connection with a court-ordered community service program; and, I think this is
the third one that was added because the other two are in the existing ordinance. The third
exception would be minors enrolled in a public or private school in compliance with a
compulsory school attendance law, New Mexico, 1978, Chapter 22, Article 12, or who are
otherwise in compliance with that law. So these three areas would be exempt from the living
wage as it’s been proposed in this version, and so they would not paid the living wage, the
way I’'m reading it. They would be exempt from that. So those are the three versions of the
amendments that are in our packet tonight.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I would just like to hear public comment. It
sounds like what I heard was we stick with the base wage first and then we’ll go to the other
ones. Please, those of you that I’ve had conversations with associated with the youth aspect,
stick around or does it hurt if they comment themselves, by their choice, on both, or are you
going to restrict them from commenting on anything else but the base rate? They’ve been
waiting around a long time today.

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I think you’re going to
have a cleaner record if you focus your testimony or your input on specific issues so you can
move forward. That would be my recommendation.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, you do as you please. How’s that?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I appreciate that, Commissioners. [inaudible] So let’s
move forward with the ordinance coming up in front of us, item VIIL. A. 2. The title was
already read, an effective date to modify the base wage for tipped employees. This is a first
public hearing tonight, knowing that we have two others as Commissioner Anaya mentioned,
and so who here from the public is wishing to comment on this? Thank you, not seeing too
many hands — okay, that’s good. We’re getting more hands up here. So just please, come and
sit in the front row and we’ll just state your name and come and provide your comments,
please.

JON HENDRY: Good evening, Commissioners. My name is Jon Hendry. I’'m
here representing the New Mexico Federation of Labor. But I always, when I come here, give
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you the good news about my business. We have two TV series shooting in Santa Fe right
now, both in the county, and three movies. So there you go. ‘

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, if I could interject for a second on a point of
order, Mr. Chair. The rules of order of the Board of County Commissioners say the public
comment, input, on a proposed ordinance should be sworn and under oath. So I would just
interject that as a point of order.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, So Mr. Hendry, we’re going to have you
sworn in, please.

[Those wishing to speak were placed under oath.]

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I appreciate your patience on the earlier meeting but if
you can keep your comments timely please and not repeat.

[Duly sworn, Jon Hendry testified as follows:]

MR. HENDRY: I'll keep it as tight as I can. Thank you for the opportunity.
What’s interesting to me about this to me is being the conversations we were having in the
corridor before we came in here, I have been educated over the last three hours on the tipped
wage, on issues that had never occurred to me and I suspect that this evening you will get
some of the same education. Commissioner Anaya and I had a conversation about this. I
would like to continue to be educated on this because there’s issues, as Commissioner
Stefanics talked about, unintended consequences that I didn’t see coming. And the last thing
that we want to do from the Federation of Labor is put anybody out of work.

So to continue this conversation [ would ask the Commissioners to facilitate a
meeting, a sort of Loya Jirga, as they call them in Afghanistan where we put our AK-47s in
the middle of the table, sit on the other side and try to come up with some sort of meaningful
solution to this, rather than just simply adjust the wage by a certain percentage, because
there’s definitely issues in federal law. I think there’s going to be issues around Obamacare,
when it comes to what we’re doing with employees. We do not want to have that unintended
consequence of raising employees up to the point where we take them out of the credit pool
and put them into where they’re paying their own healthcare. There’s a number of issues that
we need to be educated on from my point of view, from the living wage point of view, from a
worker’s point of view and I would completely agree with Commissioner Anaya, but I would
ask that that process does not just include you but includes those of us on both sides and we
continue to have that conversation.

Another thing I discovered this evening is we have some great restaurateurs in Santa
Fe. These are great people. They’re great assets to our community. This is why people come
to the county and every time we lose a restaurant we lose a tourist. That’s money we don’t
need to be losing. So I would ask that between now and your next meeting that you facilitate
this opportunity. I promise that those from labor’s side will be there to listen respectfully and
hopefully on the business side they do the same and if wiser heads can get together we can
perhaps come up with something that works a little better than just moving some figures
around. We can come up with a long-term solution. So thank you for your attention.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Hendry. Sir. If you could just
state your name please.
[Previously sworn, Murphy O’Brien testified as follows:]
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MURPHY O’BRIEN: Hi. I’'m Murphy O’Brien and I realize I’'m under oath.
For me, I think many of the restaurant owners here have met together and I think all of us
supported the ordinance to increase the minimum wage in the county and we all support
living wage, but struggled with the part that increased the minimum wage for tipped
employees so drastically, and that created a bigger disparity between the tipped employees
and the non-tipped employees. And I don’t think that was the intention of the ordinance.

So I think we’re definitely willing to compromise and want to come up with an
agreement that works for everybody, and I think that the 30 percent figure definitely was
something that would be something that we could all live with, especially given more time to
kind of budget and plan for it. So many of the tipped employees that I’ve spoken to liked the
idea of getting an increase to a wage that hasn’t been adjusted in a long time, but they don’t
want it to jeopardize the current system and jeopardize the amount of work they have or the
stability of the restaurant. So thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, sir. Sir, do you have a restaurant in town?

MR. O’BRIEN: In the county but outside of city limits.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.

[Previously sworn, Roland Richter testified as follows:]

ROLAND RICHTER: Chairman Mayfield, Commissioners, my name is
Roland Richter. I live off Highway 14 and I do have a restaurant in Santa Fe, and I realize I'm
under oath. I would like to speak in regards of the base wage for waiters, tipped employees. I
urge the board to leave it at the federal level as it is now and I would like to explain why. The
living wage, the $10.66, encompasses everyone. It’s cooks, waiters, plumbers, carpenters,
retail clerks, and so on. Some of these jobs make more than the living wage but some barely
make it and therefore you stepped in and made it to $10.66.

Now, changing the base wage for tipped employees has consequences. It creates a
new group of preferred employees. You’re singling out a small group of employees and you
said, let’s give them more money. And why shouldn’t we give the cooks or the other people
more money? No, it’s just going to be the wait staff. And I don’t think that is fair, and I’d like
to give a small example, simplified example of how they would work.

Say, two restaurants, say, Denny’s where people make relatively little money and take
Geronimo’s, where a waiter would make a lot of money. The base wage would be, say, $2
and the minimum wage $10. So if somebody makes at Denny’s in one hour an additional $4
in tips, so it would come to $6 and the employer would have to add an additional $4 to go up
to $10 for the minimum wage. Now, at Geronimo’s if you make $2 as a base and the waiter,
say, makes another $18, then you would end up at $20. So the employer does not have to
make any money up. However, the waiter, when you do the extra base wage for the wait staff
would make an additional $3 on top of it. So somebody that makes $20 would end up with an
additional $3 for no reason whatsoever.

And the people that make only $10.66 or in my example $10, they wouldn’t notice
any difference whatsoever. That’s why I’m saying you’re singling out a group of people that
already makes more than the minimum wage and you give them more money. And if you
need to get this more explained in detail in a spreadsheet I am very well able to help you
looking through that. Thank you.
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Roland, really quick, and I just want to — Roland has a
great restaurant. I’'m sure all your restaurants are great, but you have a great restaurant. Let
me ask this question though. So if somebody has to say tip out a tipped employee, a waiter or
waitress, then has to provide some of their tips, say, to a busser or to the bartender, how does
that compute into what you just stated?

MR. RICHTER: In my example, the money that I said is what the waiter
makes after his tip out. So say a waiter makes, in his shift, $50 in tips and he tips out $10,
then on my payroll it would say only he made $40. And if he worked six hours in this time,
so he made six times — minimum wage would be ten, so he should have made $60 and his
base wage is $2, six times two is $12, so $12 plus $50, that’s $62, so he would actually be $2
over the minimum.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.

MR. RICHTER: So that would after the tip out.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.

[Previously sworn, Steven Cuoco testified as follows:]

STEVEN CUOCO: Good evening, Commissioners. My name is Steven Cuoco
and I am under oath. I am a public relations officer in the entertainment, food and wine
industry, as well as my background is in the political industry as well. I come from a family
of politicians, lawyers, military and so on. My experience in the industry is that of my
experience. Service is very underrated. If we were in Palm Springs right now where I had
originally moved from, in and during season there it would be apropos to leave the minimum
wage where it is at. However, Santa Fe is a 365-day community tourist area.

Now, as for places like Denny’s, places — McDonalds, so on and so forth, they have
corporate industries that run the public relations part of it to keep the wages where they’re at
and to make profits where they choose to. When it comes to the restaurants here in Santa Fe,
where they have an edge is that they’re able to make the rules where they want to make them.
They’re not governed and restricted by corporate companies. Just to let you know, Working
America had invited me to come here tonight. [ wanted to let you know that in my choices |
could have gone into law. I could have gone into politics, I could have gone into the military.
However, what I chose was for the community. I wanted to be of service and to be an
advocate and not only understand where you’re at, which I do highly and respect the position
that you’re in but most communities do not, and knowing where your hands are very tied, and
then when it comes to intellectual property and privacy where you can only divulge so much
information.

But also for the community I’'m aware when it comes to service and value. And what
I’ve learned with doing the opposite of what my family has done is that it’s about investment.
And what I encourage all restaurants here in Santa Fe as well as anyone in the world is to
understand who are your investors. When it comes to bartenders, waiters, waitresses, they are
not just waiters, waitresses and bartenders. They are public relation officers. The moment an
employee places on a customer, shall I say, a company-designed attire. When you are
learning the menu, the value of service that’s offered as well as the pricing, that is public
relations.

These are more than just employees. Their job description is waiters, waitresses and
bartending but once again, they are getting paid under what a public relations officer ought to
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get paid. I as a public relation officer, you would be very surprised at what I get paid per
hour. When I started in service it was very, very little. I’'m 40 years old. I grew up on the 80s
and I can honestly say that what I’ve learned is that I had to struggle for my value and I had to
prove over and over again of my own importance that there’s a difference between service
and servitude. And when I’m applying and initiating service it’s because I believe in the
company because I believe in what I’'m doing and what I have to offer.

When it comes to servitude, and as it’s stated, it is a state of being a slave or
completely subject to somebody more powerful. Slavery or bondage of any kind, political or
intellectual. What I’ve noticed with bartenders, waiters and waitresses is they have low self-
esteem. They do not speak up for themselves. They’re scared to have an identity, and
especially here in Santa Fe, they do not honor who they are for the most part from my
experience. And I encourage that to change. And I’'ve worked with Chef Andre Carthen, who
is supermodel Cathy Ireland. He is not only one of the top chefs in the world he has also
written information for Janet Jackson for her new cookbook. I’'m also affiliated with Brad E.
Ogden, who is Oprah Winfrey’s former chef and also Chef Bruno Solado who is the owner
for Anaheim White House in Anaheim, California.

These individuals know about public relations and service because they have been a
waiter, a waitress or a bartender at one time, and they believe that when it comes to public
relations that it’s all about establishing what your real investment is and what it’s worth to
you. So what I ask you and what I ask the public here in Santa Fe, which is a 365-day tourist,
is what is your value? And what do you believe your investments are worth? Because those
are people who see your clients every single day, day in and day out. They sell your products,
they sell Santa Fe. And they are the ones who will either encourage the tourists to come back
or to never come back. In my research I've reviewed many restaurants here. The reviews are
more than apropos in its horrificy.

The comments between menus that are misspelled, service being lacking, it’s the
education. I encourage restaurants to hire consultants. That is your cheapest, easy way to
bring somebody in that knows the industry, knows the area, to come in and to assess not only
your value but what the value of your investment is, including your restaurant and your
employees. It’s inexpensive. You don’t have to go out of town but I can honestly tell you
what is here that is not in New York where I’'m from and is not in California where I’ve also
lived, is it’s the hospitality.

The community here is very hospitable. They smile. They look you in the eye and
even if they do not understand complete English they still deliver hospitality. And on that
value is way more than $6.40. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you.
COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I can’t resist. I don’t know what restaurants
you’re going to but the people that give service at the restaurants I go to are very vocal, very
professional, very articulate and spot on. So I’'m going to speak in their defense and say — I'll
tell you where they are in the restaurants [ go to but I got to tell you, they’re not complacent,
they’re not shy, they’re very smart, they’re very articulate and they know what they need to
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do and provide excellent service to people that go and take their services in. So I couldn’t
. resist, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Sir, we’re going to go on but welcome and ask you to
stay for the rest of the hearing if you could please.

[Previously sworn, Holly Beaumont testified as follows:]

HOLLY BEAUMONT: Commissioner Mayfield and the County Commission,
I’m Holly Beaumont with Interfaith Worker Justice New Mexico. I understand I’'m under
oath and I’'m trying to rethink what I’'m going to say as a result of the last statement because
I’'m a little shaken by it. Which leads me to believe that I should also share with you that I'm
also a small business owner with a product, a line of gourmet blue corn pancakes that are in
some of the finest restaurants in Santa Fe. And when a restaurant in Santa Fe that serves my
product goes out of business we lose business.

So I'm concerned about workers but I’m also concerned about creating a climate
where businesses can thrive. New Mexico is the poorest state in the nation with the greatest
income inequality. That fact hurts all of us. It certainly hurts low-wage workers and their
families. It also hurts businesses, because when workers do not have expendable income they
can’t eat out. We need to address those problems and one of the best ways to do that is to
raise the wage level for everyone. Whether that means we increase the tipped wage from
$2.13 or if there is a compromise in there somewhere that is more livable I am definitely
willing to entertain that. But we do need to increase the tipped wage from $2.13.

Now, we are dealing with a professional with an expansive range from people who
work in some of the national corporate chains that are notorious for exploiting their workers
to those who work in local restaurants where they are treated consistently better than they’re
going to be by out of state corporations. That’s my experience. If you are in a restaurant that
serves wine or alcohol then you can make a decent living as a waitperson. But if you’re
working in a restaurant where tips are not forthcoming you are living in poverty.

Now, I worked on the living wage ordinance when it was passed in Santa Fe and I
have always been the lone voice saying that we need to stop calling it a living wage, because
it isn’t a living wage. Our goal was to achieve a living wage but what we have now is better
than what we had before but it is not a living wage and I think we confuse the discussion
when we keep referring to it as our living wage.

For example, the National Coalition to End Homelessness has done a study on what
the housing wage is in every state, and that’s the minimum hourly wage required for a worker
to afford a modest two-bedroom apartment. And in New Mexico the housing wage is $14.86
I believe. In Santa Fe it’s estimated that it’s somewhere around $19 and change, the housing
wage. [ don’t know what it is when you factor in the county.

So when we’re talking about raising the minimum wage in Santa Fe County to
$10.68, which was wonderful, and I commend you. It was bold and it was visionary. And it
was very appropriate and long overdue. As a restaurant owner who I know who serves my
pancakes told me today, being in an island, having a business in an island like Santa Fe,
where you’re competing with lower wages, minimum wages around you is very difficult.
Extending it to the county makes it better, but what we really need to do is raise the state
minimum wage and raise the federal minimum wage so that we’re all on a level playing field.
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I worked on raising the Santa Fe minimum wage and what we saw was a ripple effect
through communities in New Mexico — Albuquerque, Bernalillo County, Gallup. And that
put enough pressure on the state legislature that they finally raised the minimum wage to
$7.50 from $5.15. When New Mexico raised our minimum wage, we joined a group of states
putting pressure on Congress and Congress finally raised the minimum wage to $7.25. They
didn’t do as well as we did but at least they raised it from $5.15. That was in 2007.

We are in the same kind of climate right now. There is great traction in Congress.
Well, there is great pressure on Congress, a lot of traction nationally to raise the minimum
wage, and it’s going to be more than $10.68 or it’s going to be $10.10, but we’re already
seeing communities that are raising it above that. Seattle, Sea-Tac, almost on a regular basis
we’re learning about municipalities and states that are raising the minimum wage. It’s
acknowledged that the economy of our nation and our states and our local economies depend
on raising wages.

So I would encourage your to be bold and visionary and see that yet again Santa Fe
County has an opportunity to inspire and motivate our state legislature and then Congress to
do exactly what we know is in the best interest of everyone, businesses and workers alike.
Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Again, we have raised our minimum wage to $10.66.
We’re commenting now on the base rate component of this please. Thank you. Whoever’s
next. Come up, please, whoever’s next.

[Duly sworn, Jared Ames testified as follows:]

JARED AMES: I am Jared Ames. I’'m the state director of Working America
and I affirm my pledge. So I just wanted to first of all, on behalf of our members, applaud the
unanimous decision made by you Commissioners on behalf of raising the living wage in the
county and increasing the tipped wage to $6.40 an hour. One of the things that we found
alarming was hearing about the amendments that are being proposed. When we look at
bringing the tipped wage back down to the $2.13 or maybe the $3.20, I look at the living
wage should be for everybody and bringing this down comes into picking winners and losers.
And we look at the tipped wages, nationally, we have seen the tipped wage lose time and
time again. It has been 23 years since the federal tipped wage has been raised and at the time,
in 1991, the tipped wage was 50 percent of the minimum wage.

In 1996 they stopped increasing the tipped wage with tying it to the cost of living and
that’s why it has stagnated lower and lower in relation to the minimum wage. And so we look
at ultimately I think of when we passed this, or when you guys voted for this a few months
ago [ could tell that all of you really cared about the tipped wage. I remember the discussions
back and forth of the Commission. And when we look at kind of the stagnation in
Washington and how decisions can’t be made, there’s been a push for a $10.10 at the federal
level and that’s held up because of conflict, it’s really local governments that really push
decisions made at the national level.

And the decision to raise that tipped wage to $6.40 has a rippling effect with other
communities. There are communities that are weighing whether to raise a minimum wage.
We look at Albuquerque that had a ballot initiative where 66 percent of the voters voted to
raise their minimum wage but also raised their tipped wage to 60 percent of the minimum
wage. And I believe much of that language was in the ordinance that was passed.



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 94

And so if going back at that $6.40 an hour it will have a ripple effect in the opposite
direction, giving communities a reason not to raise their tipped wage. And so that’s what I
would really ask you all to be mindful of when you’re making and weighing these decisions
is that ultimately, the impact of your decision will affect other communities and not just the
county. Thank you.

[Duly sworn, Mario Girard testified as follows:]

MARIO GIRARD: Hi. My name is Mario Girard and I realize I am under
oath. I'm a Santa Fean. I’'m from here. My family goes back hundreds of years and many of
my family have been mechanics and janitors and low-wage earning careers. I myself have
worked as a busboy, as construction labor, dishwasher at the hospital in high school. I’ve also
worked as a server and I understand what it’s like to be on the end of feeling like you’re
getting exploited or definitely not making a fair wage for the amount of work you put into it.

I also belong to the union, Jon Hendry’s union. I used to work in the film business and
I really appreciate what they do and I also actually belong to Working America. So I'm a big
fan. I’m very progressive on this. I do believe people should make a living wage. I have in the
last several years have become a restaurateur of sorts and I am now on the other side of this
and it’s kind of a funny place to be, because I kind of see it now from both sides. It’s really
easy when you’re just on the side of getting a check to say I want more money. We all want
more money. | want more money, and I don’t really — I barely make a living wage as a
restaurateur. But I think it all has to be done intelligently in a way that the mechanisms that
make that money don’t break down, and I can tell you, for most of us — well, I speak for
myself for a local business, it’s not easy to make all the ends meet. We don’t have the big
corporate money that Outback has to support us if we have a bad season and we really do got
to make tough decisions. And having this dropped on us was something that was really scary.

But I’'m not here today to try and tell you that you shouldn’t offer a living wage. In
fact I commend you for bringing it up to $10.66. that not only fixes, or at least helps solve the
problem of the retail person and the gas station attendant. My bussers are now guaranteed to
make $10.66 an hour, one way or another. They walk away with $10.66 at the end of a pay
period and I augment whatever they don’t make. And I always feel guilty when I see my
bussers bust their butts and walk away with less than that. So I think — they’re already now —
that problem has been ameliorated somewhat. My dishwashers now got a raise and that’s
great. They deserve it.

I’ve got a whole other group of people. There’s always this front of the house, back of
the house thing where you’ve got waiters who come in and work for four hours and the rest
of the staff who works eight hours and they make the same amount of money. Those guys, in
the back of the house, this helps them and we can guarantee all of them they’re going to make
a living wage.

I have a hard time understanding why we are — well, let me back up and say my
understanding of the objective here is that we are trying to raise the living wage for
everybody. Period. To $10.66 and we’re starting from there. It doesn’t seem like we’re trying
to raise the living wage for some people and give other people a big bonus or a bonus. We
really just want to get everybody up to the $10.66 for starters, as far as I can tell. With that
said, I’ve got some stats here. Just last week, in the five-day period, my waiters made $30 an
hour, $29 an hour, $35 an hour, $38 an hour, and $20 an hour last night on a slow Monday.
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They didn’t make a lot of tips but we staffed it right so that the guys over there and the gals
walked away with $20 an hour.

So what we’re essentially — what we were proposing was to give those people, who
are being compensated $20 an hour, an extra $4 a hour, while the guys that worked all day
long, the guys in the back are now making just $10.66. I'm not sure why we’re focusing on
giving the raise to servers. I do agree that servers are great, and I don’t think this is really a
hearing or a public debate about whether or not service is great and I do —I’m with
Commissioner Anaya in saying that we have great service in this town and we do value it and
they’re compensated well for it. But I guess I would just want to make sure that you know
that in order to give the raise to the few people in the front of the house that are already
making well above living wage, in some cases two, three times it, it’s going to potentially put
the squeeze on the restaurant in a way that some of us may not be able to weather that. I don’t
know. It definitely will make things much, much harder and I’m not sure — hopefully, I trust
you can weigh all those ramifications as you said, the unintended consequences and I would
urge you to learn more about this and completely understand it before you pass anything and
know how it might affect the community. And I sure would hate for us to lose more local
businesses and have the chains come and fill in. It just wouldn’t be Santa Fe without some of
us local businesses. So I appreciate your time.

[Duly sworn, Ann Anthony testified as follows:]

ANN ANTHONY: Good evening. My name is Ann Anthony and I’'m an
ordinary citizen, and I do support and congratulate you for raising your minimum wage, and I
realize I’m under oath. I think it’s important that the wage for waiters be higher than the
$2.13 that it’s been. I’m not sure that $6.40 is necessary, but I urge you to study it more and
to be fair in raising it so that they’re getting something that is close to the $10.66 at least. And
of course there’s such a wide variety in restaurants that it’s hard to say what the average
needs to be, but please do think about raising it because it certainly has been too low. Thank
you very much.

[Duly sworn, Harry Shapiro testified as follows:]

HARRY SHAPIRO: Hi. My name’s Harry Shapiro. I have a restaurant,
Harry’s Roadhouse. I realize I’m under oath. It’s been very interesting for me to sit through
this process. I feel really fortunate that both my wife and I and every other restaurant owner
that I’ve talked to has supported the $10.66, whether you want to call it a minimum wage or a
living wage. I’'m in favor of it and I think we all are. The question of the $2.13 is really
interesting because I’ve been in the restaurant business for 30 years and there are two kinds
of tipped employees, first of all. There’s waiters who get the $2.13 and then there’s bussers,
bartenders, food runners and hosts. I can’t speak for every restaurant but in our restaurant
every busser, food runner, server and host gets more than $6.40 an hour, so this proposed
legislation would have no effect on them. It would only affect waiters.

When we go through our records and we are mandated by federal law to report our
waiters’ tips, we track them as best we can. I think that Mario just talked about what goes on
in his restaurant. Other restaurants we met with, at the top end, some of the waiters earn $35
an hour we were told. The waiters at our restaurant earn at least $20 an hour and it’s hard for
me to understand. Payton and I walk around in t-shirts and the best part of my day for me is

i
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when I’'m cutting onions, when I’'m helping people. I bus tables, I mop floors and I think
every one of us does. We’re all small business owners.

And it’s hard for me to understand how I can look at a dishwasher or a cook and tell
them — tell a dishwasher that they’re going to get a dollar an hour raise from this law, so
they’re going to go from — everyone already makes the $10.60 but maybe they’ll make a little
bit more money and then go to somebody who’s making $20 an hour and tell them that
they’re going to get a $4+ raise and I don’t see how this falls under any idea of social justice
or any idea of really raising the minimum wage.

I do think the comments about Seattle, San Francisco — I know Washington, DC is
considering these and I think it’s great but these are all communities that are three of the
wealthiest, most vibrant economies in the United State and I would love to see us, and I
would love to be part of figuring out how we could develop the economy in Santa Fe County
a little better so that the pie would grow and everyone would do better.

And I guess the last thing I’d like to say is that I forgot what I was going to say, and
that keeps me from rambling but thank you for your time.

[Duly sworn, Rory Ballem testified as follows:]

RORY BALLEM: My name is Rory Ballem and I’m aware that I'm under
oath and I own a restaurant in Santa Fe County. Pretty much everybody said mostly what I am
in agreement with but I wanted to state a few things for the record. I am absolutely for the
$10.66 minimum wage. It’s one of the reasons I didn’t go to any of the prior hearings,
because I wasn’t opposed in any way. Additionally, I am for the $3.20, 30 percent tethering t
the $10.66 or whatever we deem to be the living wage future forward. I think that as Harry
and Mario both stated, as far as numbers go, something that may not have been thought
through thoroughly is that every single busser, host, bartender in our establishment also
makes over $2.13 an hour so we’re already above the federal minimum for those servers. The
only people in the house that make the $2.13 an hour are the waiters themselves. They
average over $20 an hour all year long.

So our back of the house, our kitchen, the lowest paid prior to April 26" made $9.50.
He received roughly a 15 percent increase. There are only two of them; they were
dishwashers. Everybody else made more than that already. So all they got was a 15 percent
increase. If we raise the server wage from $2.3 to $6.40, we give our already highest paid
employees a 300 percent raise. That’s a huge difference, and it’s hard to — how do you
explain to the dishwasher or the cook that you can’t give them an extra 25 cents because you
gave the person how already makes $21 an hour an extra $4. It puts us in a really bad
position. It also probably means that most of us have to change fundamentally our business
model itself, because having that many servers on the floor, the way we do traditional service
become extremely expensive. For us along it’s an increase of $130,000 a year. It’s a lot of
money. And that has to come from somewhere. Raise the prices, decrease hours. None of
those things are good for employees in general.

Again, [ am all for the living wage, but I think we have to watch the unintended
consequences of $6.40 an hour. Thank you.

[Duly sworn, Laurie Lindsey testified as follows:]

LAURIE LINDSEY: My name is Laurie Lindsey. I own the Mine Shaft

Tavern in Madrid, New Mexico, and I also realize that I’m under oath. First of all I just want
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to say with the other restaurant owners and that we are not a 365-day restaurant. As far as
tourism, we are a six-month a year, seven-month a year tourist location. So I see that this
would be just devastating to my business. And I definitely agree with everybody else and 1
hope we do the compromise. The compromise makes the most sense, it’s the most fair and
I’'m really all for it. So thank you for having this hearing and we look forward to seeing the
compromise go into effect. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Is there anybody else?

[Duly sworn, Brenda Rodriguez testified as follows:]

BRENDA RODRIGUEZ: Hi, County Commissioners. My name is Brenda
Rodriguez and I work with Working America. I have a background in working in retail and
earning minimum wage and so something I just wanted to talk about. I hear a lot of the
people that are speaking and they’re business owners. And I’m just wondering, where are the
tipped workers. To be honest, I wasn’t aware of the amendment till Monday, which is really
shocking, because we passed this awesome ordinance and it was great. We did the good thing
for workers, and not just you all who took that vote but also the workers that came here and
spoke.

So we found out about this yesterday and so that explains why we’re low in numbers.
We started off the meeting at 7:00. We thought it was at 5:00 so we lost a lot of the folks that
were here in support of not repealing the tipped wage. I also want to mention that I support
the local businesses. When I go I tip very well to the people that come serve me my food. As
a consumer I’m very well aware of the folks that serve me and the great service that’s here in
Santa Fe, that’s across the state, that’s in Albuquerque. But I think we should also start
working at the facts. So I hear a lot of $20 an hour and I know a lot of servers and that’s not
the case. Right? It’s a lot of folks who are barely making ends meet. It’s a lot of folks that
don’t know if they’ll afford to pay the rent.

So maybe what we’re hearing is the story of owners who own really great businesses
where they have a lot of income coming. But what about the businesses that aren’t? The
businesses that see $2.13 an hour and then don’t make up that wage? Then we’re going into
wage theft where the workers aren’t being protected. There was a study conducted by the EPI,
the Economy Policy Institute to show that servers, tipped workers, are twice as likely to
suffer from wage theft, to not get paid the money that’s owed to them, and there’s also tipped
workers are 16 percent more to be on food stamps.

So I hear that it’s great, they’re making a lot of money, like it sounds like I should
probably move over to being a server, but what I hear though, from the people that I talked to
today, that’s not the case. That they aren’t making $20 an hour every hour, every day. There
is lows and highs, and that’s because of the business. So I do agree, we should start thinking
about this business model, but I also hear the concern of 30 percent versus 60 percent. So
when are we going to get to the place where the jobs for servers and all workers in this
industry is stable? Where they are going to be earning $10.66 an hour and higher.

Like I heard earlier today that that’s not a living wage. We’re moving towards higher
wages. So I’'m here to support keeping the tipped wage. I don’t want to see it repealed. I think
this is something that we did great, and I recommend you all read this article by Mother Jones
which has us listed as Santa Fe County, $6.40 for tipped workers. We are taking the lead in
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the nation of making things right for tipped workers. And I just would be on the side of that.
Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [inaudible]

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: There’s a second public hearing also, Mr.
Chair.

VIII. A. 3. Request Authorization to Publish Title and General Summary of
an Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2014-1 (an Ordinance
Establishing a Living Wage within Santa Fe County; Specifying
Employers Subject to the Living Wage; Making Findings as to the
Necessity of a Living Wage; Establishing a Prohibition on
Retaliation for Reporting Violations of the Living Wage;
Providing for Remedies and Penalties; Spegifying Enforcement
Officers; Providing the Process to Be Employed Upon Complaints
of Violations; Establishing Severability; and Providing an
Effective Date) to Enact One or More Additional Exceptions to the
Applicability of the Ordinance.

VIIL. A 4. Request Authorization to Publish Title and General Summary of
an Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2014-1 (an Ordinance
Establishing a Living Wage within Santa Fe County; Specifying
Employers Subject to the Living Wage; Making Findings as to the
Necessity of a Living Wage; Establishing a Prohibition on
Retaliation for Reporting Violations of the Living Wage;
Providing for Remedies and Penalties; Specifying Enforcement
Officers; Providing the Process to Be Employed Upon Complaints
of Violations; Establishing Severability; and Providing an
Effective Date) to Modify the Base Wage for Tipped Employees
and to Enact One or More Additional Exceptions to the
Applicability of the Ordinance.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [inaudible]

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: No, Mr. Chair. If we’re done on the public
hearing. :
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes. This portion of the public hearing is closed right
now. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So Mr. Chair, if I could.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: We don’t live in a perfect world. We all k now
that and acknowledge that every day, day-in and day-out. The County Commission voted to
take the wage to $10.66 an hour for everyone. That’s the bottom line. Associated with this
discussion I very much appreciate comments by everyone. Mr. Hendry made a comment
carlier. | had a conversation with him about having a broader dialogue associated with other
concerns with younger workers. In that spirit and in the spirit of this discussion on the tipped
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workers that we just had and the feedback we just had I’'m going to go ahead and move to
table items 3 and 4 and I’m going to ask that we have that dialogue in a collective way with
all parties concerned and taking into account differing perspectives, not just on the tipped
wages we heard tonight but also on youth workers. I think there’s some good comments I’ve
heard from both sides, and so with that, Mr. Chair, I’d move to table items 3 and 4 and
between now and the next hearing I’'m going to work with Mr. Chair, yourself and Ms. Miller
and any individuals that are listening in or that are in this audience to have a broader dialogue
and some communication to hear whether other alternatives or options might be out there.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: I’ll second that.

COMMISSIONER ANAY A: Thank you, Commissioner Holian.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: There’s a motion and a second to table items 3 and 4.

The motion to table passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote with Commissioner
Chavez abstaining.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: No, I just wanted to point out that for all the
speakers, and especially the workers, this is not an easy position to be in. I did revel in the
moment when we did pass the 60 percent and brought the tipped wages up to $6.40, but in
my position I had to be willing to listen to the other side and try to find a reasonable
compromise without slipping back too far. I think that in the discussion about the minimum
wage of $10.66 I really didn’t think it was in our best interest to have that discussion only and
not address the tipped employees. I really feel that we have to have the discussion at the same
time.

And as was pointed out, if it were not for local governments being bold and trying to
do what’s not being done in Congress, this is the position that we’re in. Local governments
across the country are having to step up, step into the hot seat and make these decisions and
have this discussion. If we were not doing it here now it wouldn’t be happening. So I think
we’re better off for having the discussion. We may be taking a step back from the position
that we were in a couple of months ago, but at least we’re one step forward than most of the
country. And I think we can weather this storm.

So I didn’t vote for the tabling, I didn’t vote yes or no. I guess I’ll abstain, because we
have a process. We had a second public hearing scheduled. I think personally we discussed
this and yes, there are going to be unintended consequences but we’re never going to be able
to move forward if we’re going to wait for all of those unintended consequences to disappear
or dissipate or whatever. Right? It’s not going to happen. We have to be willing to make
those decisions, be fair about it, be reasonable about it. And I think that going from 60
percent to 30 percent is doing that. I think going from $6.40 to $3.20 is very reasonable. But
to go back to $2.13 an hour? Can’t do that. We shouldn’t do that. We can do better than that.

So I was anticipating a second public hearing so that we could put this behind us for
now and move forward.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’re still going to have a second hearing.
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: We’re still doing the tipped worker. If I could,
Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: What was the tabling?

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Number 3 and number 4.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, if I could, the ordinance to have
discussion on rolling back the tipped rate is still going forward for next public hearing and
vote. What I tabled was the other two items that I think we can have a broader discussion
with members in this room on both sides that can bring some relevance to that piece
associated with the younger workers.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: So you’re talking about just the amendment for
minors enrolled in public or private school then? Because the other two components are
already in the original ordinance.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Right. So the ordinance that deals with the
tipped wage will still come back.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Okay.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Just really quick, I'm going to go to County Ms. Miller
really quick. Please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Sorry for that confusion but the packet is — the
way that it’s structured is a little confusing. The amendment that you are speaking to,
Commissioner Anaya, is on a separate page, separate amendment.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, I’d like to explain the agenda and
why it’s like that. We had already noticed in the newspaper very specifically two public
hearings for just the tipped wage amendment. In the process, however, some other suggested
amendments came up and it could not fit under the noticing that we had already done in the
newspaper. So in order to actually bring those items forward we had to notice that, to request
the authorization to public title and general summary, if it was wanted, in order to broaden
the potential amendments to the ordinance. And that’s why those — and one was to do an
exemption and one was to try to broaden it to capture both issues. It’s unfortunate, but
because you have to notice public hearings for ordinance for two weeks, that was the only
way that we could actually capture those other issues. Because we would not be able to vote
on any other amendment to the ordinance, other than the tipped employees’ wage until June,
where you had already noticed and scheduled two hearings with a vote scheduled for May
27", So that was the reasoning for adding the additional noticing in case you wanted to
broaden your discussion on the proposed amendments.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I just want to offer, if [ could, and I
apologize if I created any confusion, Commissioner Chavez or my fellow colleagues. I’'m not
waling away from a discussion about the seasonal workers and the youth at all. Before we
have that discussion and before we have the hearing I want to engage in some more informal
dialogue around a table with people in this room on both sides of the matter.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: On that point only.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Go ahead.
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COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Just on that point.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Are you done, Commissioner?
. COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, I’m done.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: So it’s just the seasonal part-time minors that
you’re speaking to right now.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: That’s correct. On the tipped worker discussion
we’re going to have the next hearing and more comment and then deliberate on a
determination whatever that might be.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Okay. All right. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank
you, Commissioner Anaya.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. And again, so I’'m not confused on this, and
it was the way the noticing came out on this agenda, we specifically had it noticed tonight for
a first public hearing of discussing the base rate. That’s what we just did.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, that is correct.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So now we have tabled the other two items in my mind,
because we have not published for a public hearing for to discuss our seasonal employees. I
think Commissioner Anaya is asking that we can have that dialogue and right now I see as
it’s been noticed we cannot have that dialogue. I just want to be corrected if ’'m wrong on
that one.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I'm going to take my chances as
Commissioner and with any colleagues that want to join me sitting around a table with
restaurateurs and with people in support of the wage ordinance as it exists to have some
dialogue before I re-engage that item I tabled.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Okay. Great.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So we’re all on the same understanding. So Ms. Miller,
when will the second public hearing happen on the base rate component of this, and then
when will we have a hearing on the seasonal worker component?

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, the only thing that has been noticed for public
hearing and potential action by the Commission is just the tipped employee, the base wage

for the tipped employee. It has been noticed for you requested as a Board two public hearings.

It was notlced for tonight, May 13", as well as the next Tuesday, two weeks from tonight,
May 27", At that point you can Vote or choose to have additional time, but that’s what we’ve
noticed in the newspaper. Any other amendments to the ordinance, whether it be summer
employees or any other issues that have been brought up since it was passed, we have, based
upon the action tonight there is no noticing. There’s no authorization given to County staff to
publish title or general summary of any other amendments at this stage.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Ms. Miller. Commissioners, with
that, our public hearing on the base wage component for tipped employees is closed and we
will see you all and anybody else who would like to attend the second public hearing. Thank
you for being here tonight.
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[For additional comment see page 104.]
[Commissioner Holian excused herself from the remainder of the meeting.]

VIIL. B. Land Use Cases

1. BCC CASE # PCEV 14-5060 John Young Vacation of Easement.
John Young, Applicant, Ed Trujillo (Dawson Surveys), Agent,
Request Approval to Vacate a Platted Thirty-Eight-Foot (38°)
Wide Private Access and Public Utility Easement on Three Lots
Totaling 22.95 Acres. The Property is Located in the Traditional
Community of Galisteo at 3 Tobias Lane, within Section 35,
Township 14 North, Range 9 East, (Commission District 3)

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’re going to move into our land use cases. We’re on
item VIIL. B.

MS. MILLER: Mr. Chair, I don’t think the staff was ready because we had
executive session scheduled next and so I don’t think the Land Use staff is quite in here so
we will get them as quickly as possible.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’ll wait for them. Thank you. We will be going back
to public comment right after this one case. Mr. Romero, please.

MIKE ROMERO (Case Reviewer): The subject lots originally were made up
of five legal non-conforming lots that were consolidated into three legal lots of record, which
were created through a Lot Consolidation in December of 2013; one lot, Tract A-1A, consists
of 13.328 acres, one lot, Tract B1, consists of 8.718 acres and one lot, Tract A1, consists of
0.903 acres.

There is currently a residence on Tract A-1A, where the Applicant resides. The
thirty-eight-foot wide private access and public utility easement runs through Tract A1, West
onto Tract A-1A and South down Tract Blwhere the easement ends. There are existing
easements that provide access to the subject properties as well as the adjacent lots.

Therefore, the Applicant has stated that he does not need this portion of the private access
and public utility easement and claims no other party will be adversely affected by vacation
of the easement.

Staff recommendation: Approval to vacate a platted thirty-eight-foot private access
and public utility easement on three lots totaling 22.95 acres, subject to the following
condition:

1. The Applicant shall file the portion of the Final Plat (Tract A-1A), (Tract B1) and

(Tract A1) affected by the vacated easement with the County Clerk’s Office (As

per Article V § 5.7.3).

I stand for any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, just a few questions. The three lots
are all owned by the same party? And he wants to vacate his own easements that he has to
those three lots to where he will no longer have those easements on his own property?

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that is correct. At one point
in time all the lots that Mr. Young does own and at one point in time when those lots were



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 103

individual lots that easement was created to access those individual lots. But since he’s
consolidated them, he owns all of them, he states he no longer needs them for access.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Move for approval, Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: This is a public hearing so we do have to afford public
comment please. Is there any members from the public who would wish to comment on this
case? Please come forward. Sir, can we have your name?

[Duly sworn, Edward Trujillo testified as follows:]

EDWARD TRUJILLO: My name is Edward Trujillo. I’'m with Dawson
Surveys and I’m the agent for John Young, and I did the majority of the plat work which
consolidated the other lots and nullified this lot, so essentially, it’s an easement to him from
him through his own land. I approached Land Use and explained that to them to see if we
could get it done administratively because right now my client has had to pay over $500 in
application fees to be heard here and then another $500 or some dollars to Land Use to
reapply for the application fee to get the plat done. And if this could have been done
administratively, since it is an easement to himself from himself over his own land it seemed
like that could have been just, you know, something that would have no cause for him to have
incurred the cost for this or for you to be listening to me, because I’ ve been here since five
and [ know how busy you guys are.

Basically, that’s it. There is no need for that easement.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, sir. Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I just want to say I appreciate the comment and
the feedback. Staff’s doing what they’ve been given policy to do. That can be something that
we can look at and address when we look at fees and other practices, so I appreciate you
bringing that up. I will say though, sometimes I do get in an argument with myself. But 1
appreciate the feedback. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, sir.

[Duly sworn, Barry Phillips testified as follows:]

BARRY PHILLIPS: My name is Barry Phillips. I'm also with Dawson
Surveys. [ appreciate your interest in trying to sort through this problem that we’re having is
that I’m not sure where this whole vacation of easement needs to fall under the whole
vacation of the final plat category because the mere fact that Mr. Young had these lots
transferred ownership to himself negates the whole need for an easement because one of the
basic tenets of an easement is you have to have a [inaudible] while in this case that just falls
away. There is no — the easement, and I’m not aware but the easement really does fall away
by merger or is vacated by merger, and to go through this whole process of going to the
County Commission and then on a separate occasion going through the Land Use application
process is I feel unnecessary. Thank you for hearing me.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, sir. Are there any other members of the
public wishing to comment on this case? Seeing none, this portion of our public hearing is
closed. Commissioners, we had a motion and a second on the table. Any further discussion?
Seeing none.

The motion passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote. [Commissioner Holian was not
present for this action. ]

iy
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: I said a little earlier there would be times when we
move back to Public Comment. I’'m going to go back to Public Comment really quick on the
last ordinances that we addressed. I know that there were some members that thought there
would be a little more scope or discussion on the living wage ordinance. Please, anybody
who would like to make any comments to the Commission on the living wage ordinance.

[Previously sworn, Paula Roybal Sanchez testified as follows:]

PAULA ROYBAL SANCHEZ: My name is Paula Roybal Sanchez and I took
the oath a little bit ago thinking that I would be able to speak. I am one of the owners of
Rancho Las Lagunas. We are a 185-acre farm in Nambe that was established in the late
forties, so we’ve been in business for a long time. There’s a lot of economic issues that face
farmers today. The drought, just the regular everyday taxes, just the whole economy is tough
on us, along with the drought which makes it even more difficult. We still have all our
expenses, our irrigation expenses, all of that along and we’re not able to produce as much
because of that drought.

I’m here to speak because on the 28™ or 29™ — 1 don’t remember the exact date, but I
received a notice from the County indicating that there would be a living wage that went into
effect on April 26", This notice was received two days after the law went into effect or the
act went into effect. And yes, public comment was held. For whatever reason I did not see
that. There were three opportunities to respond and I recognize that, but I did not seem it. It
seemed like the County who has all our business license addresses could have informed
business people that this might be going on.

But I would like you all to, when you’re looking at exemptions, to look at an
agricultural exemption as well or exception or whatever the legal term is. We are currently
paying our employees — we have two employees. The owner, my brother, and another farm
worker. We are currently paying that farmworker above the New Mexico minimum wage. In
addition we are providing him with housing. Earlier tonight it was said that the housing wage
here in Santa Fe is $19, would be the equivalent of $19 an hour. So if we’re looking at
$10.66, which is a 42 percent increase from the New Mexico minimum wage, with no notice
of it being phased in or any kind of warning to give employers a chance to work towards that
amount. Like I said, in fact we got the notice after the date that this went into effect.

So I would ask that you consider this as one of those exemptions that would be looked
at. There are other exemptions that the New Mexico minimum wage law has. That includes
domestic workers, foremen, superintendents, supervisors, seasonal workers like were
mentioned earlier and youth workers, but also people that work for non-profits and volunteer
groups. That would also be another exemption that the New Mexico law also takes into
effect. So I just respectfully ask that you consider that in your deliberations.

Erik Aaboe, when I contacted him to see if there was any kind of exception for
agricultural worker he indicated that no, there wasn’t, and that I should come and speak
before you tonight. So that is why I’ve been here for the last 4 %%, 5 hours.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. I'm sure though that the Aamodt was very
important and near and dear —

MS. ROYBAL SANCHEZ: Yes, it was. It was very important. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Ms. Roybal Sanchez, thank you so much.
Commissioner Anaya, I know you’re going to maybe try to convene like little task force
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together. I don’t know if we can look at the agricultural aspects of that also please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, I think we should just have a broad
discussion, items of concern.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you so much. Commissioner Anaya, do you
know when that’s going to happen?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I don’t, Commissioner, but I will work with you
and with staff and with other business owners as well as people that have concerns about — or
that want to keep the wage ordinance the way it is, to coordinate something and make it
public and notice on the internet and as best we can to get as many people involved as we
can.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you so much. Thank you again. Is there any other
person that needs to bring a matter to our attention through Public Matters for tonight. Okay,
we’re going to probably close that up because it’s already 10:00. Thank you.

VIII. B. 2. BCC CASE # PCEV 14-5110 Heather McCrea Vacation of
Easement, Heather McCrea, Applicant, Santa Fe County, Agent,
Request Approval to Vacate a Platted Twenty-Foot (20°) Wide
Pipeline Right of Way Easement and Tank Site Easement on Two
Lots Totaling 8.80 Acres. The Easement Will Be Relocated on-Site.
The Property is Located in the Traditional Community of
Chupadero at 448AB NM 592, within Section 5, Township 18
North, Range 10 East (Commission District 1) [Exhibit 8]

MR. ROMERO: The subject property consists of two legal lots of record,
which were created in February of 2008; Lot 1, which consists of 3.80 acres and Lot 3, which
consists of 5.00 acres.

There is currently an existing County Fire Station and a twenty-foot wide pipeline
right of way easement and tank site easement for the Chupadero Mutual Domestic Water
Consumers Association, with a water tank located on lot 1 and lot 3. The twenty-foot wide
pipeline right of way easement and tank site easement runs parallel east to west onto Lot 1
and Lot 3 as indicated by the recorded plat. The Applicant wishes to relocate the easements
east to west parallel to the Fire Station on Lot 1 and Lot 3, where the pipeline and water tank
are currently situated.

Santa Fe County Resolution No. 2012-131, a Resolution incorporating the Chupadero
Mutual Domestic Water Consumers Association, was approved by the Board of County
Commissioners on September 25, 2012. Santa Fe County shall take over ownership and
maintenance of the Chupadero Water Association’s assets. All easement locations need to be
in place and accurate, prior to Santa Fe County taking over the existing water line.

Staff recommendation: Approval to vacate and relocate a platted twenty-foot (20°)
wide pipeline right of way easement and tank site easement on two lots totaling 8.80 acres,
subject to the following condition:

1. The Applicant shall file the portion of the Final Plat (Lot 1) and (Lot 3) affected
by the vacated easement with the County Clerk’s Office (As per Article V §

5.7.3).
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I stand for any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners, are there any questions?
This is a public hearing. Do any members of our public wish to comment on this case? Come
up front, please, whoever would like to comment.

[Duly sworn, Jack Miller testified as follows:]

JACK MILLER: Jack Miller, 01AB Road, Santa Fe. It’s actually Chupadero. I
have board-signed affidavits accepting this agreement to change the easement and I’'m not a
board member; I’m the watermaster. I’m speaking for the board. But I want to thank the
County Commission for considering us, for helping us with our mutual domestic and this will
expedite it somewhat. And then we’re looking forward to a new tank site and new permanent
well. We’ve had very intermittent well service and I’ve even had to ration people. So want to
thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Miller. Sir.

[Duly sworn, Tom Kelly testified as follows:]

TOM KELLY: I'm Tom Kelly. I have offered a place for the new well and
tank for the Chupadero — I guess Chupadero/County or Chupadero Water Association,
whatever it will be. Anyway, I’'m also bordering Chupadero and I've asked if I could be a part
of the community. Land Use decided it might be best if we just split the lot so I’'m proposing
that you allow me to split the lot.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Sir, tonight we’re just asking for a vacation of an
easement.

MR. KELLY: And I’m offering an easement, yes. Also an easement and a spot
for the well and tank. It seems to be the best location. The head of the last water board said —

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Sir, we’re a little off topic. Mr. Romero, if I can just ask
for one second, there’s not a lot split in here. We’re just asking for a vacation of an easement
tonight.

MR. KELLY: I think that’s the next agenda.

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, it’s just regarding to the
relocation, vacation of the easement.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So, sir, would you care to comment on the vacation of
the easement?

MR. KELLY: No.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay. Thank you. This is still a public hearing. Are
there any more questions or comments from our public wishing to comment on this case?
Seeing none, this portion of the public hearing is closed. Mr. Romero. I just want to add that
Santa Fe County has been working with the community of Chupadero to help sustain and
bring in an adequate water supply though the water system. I believe that the vacation of this
easement is necessary to hopefully accomplish that task. I don’t see anybody from our Public
Works Department here, so with that, I will move for approval of vacation of easement.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second, Commissioners.

iy
V]
ﬁg\l&
Jan



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 107

The motion passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote. [Commissioner Holian was not
present for this action.]

VIII. B. 3. BCC CASE # PCEV 14-5120 Heather McCrea Vacation of
Easement. Heather McCrea, Applicant, Request Approval to
Vacate a Platted Twenty Foot (20°) Wide Private Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement on One Lot Totaling 2.50 Acres. The
Easement Will Be Relocated on-Site. The Property is Located in
the Traditional Community of Chupadero at 64A Paseo
Encantado NE, within Section 6, Township 18 North, Range 10
East (Commission District 1)

MR. ROMERO: The subject property is a legal lot of record, which was
created through a Family Transfer/Land Division in July of 1998. There is currently a
residence on the subject property which was constructed in 2000,Permit 00-235, by a
previous property owner. The residence was constructed on the private ingress/egress and
utility easement, which gives access to 64B Paseo Encantado NE which is Lot 2 causing the
easement to run through a portion of the residence. The Applicant wishes to vacate the
twenty foot wide private ingress/egress and utility easement that runs north to south on the
property and relocate the easement 50-115 feet to the east of its current location.

The neighbors have expressed concern, and object to the relocation of the easement.
Staff recommends that the portion of the easement that runs through the residence be vacated
and relocated around the residence and tie back into the existing easement, causing minimal
change to the private ingress/egress and utility easement. This does not remove access; it
relocates the easement and would ensure that the easement continued onto the objecting
neighbor’s property in exactly the same location as currently platted.

Staff recommendations: Denial to vacate and relocate the entire platted twenty foot
wide private ingress/egress and utility easement on one lot totaling 2.50 acres. Staff supports
the relocation of the easement around the existing structure without any alteration of the
remainder of the easement, subject to the following conditions:

1. The Applicant shall file the portion of the Final Plat (Lot 1) affected by the
vacated easement with the County Clerk’s Office (As per Article V § 5.7.3).

2. Staff recommends Approval to vacate and relocate the portion of the
ingress/egress and utility easement that runs through the portion of the residence.

If I may, after discussion with our Legal Department, staff recommends that an

additional condition be imposed, which would be:

3. The adjacent property owners affected by the vacation and relocation of the
private ingress/egress utility easement shall sign the final plat prior to recordation
to signify their agreement to vacation and relocation of the easement.

I stand for any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Romero, maybe in my packet I just don’t have

#3 in here.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: The third was added.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: It was just added? So can you repeat that again,
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please?

MR. ROMERO: Staff recommends an additional condition to be imposed
which would be:

3. The adjacent property owners affected by the vacation and relocation of the
private ingress/egress utility easement shall sign the final plat prior to recordation
to signify their agreement to vacation and relocation of the easement.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair, is the applicant agreeable to
everything?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let’s go ahead and go to the public hearing. We have
the applicant here. Is that okay? So we’ll go to the public hearing portion, if we can have —
oh, sorry. We’ll go to the applicant first and then the public hearing. So whoever’s here to
comment. I don’t know. Please come forward, but let’s go to the applicant really quick.

[Duly sworn, James MacCreight testified as follows:]

JAMES MACCREIGHT: James MacCreight. Mr. Chair, I actually have
another document I’d like to give you in place of that one because someone made a copy
because I was given some additional conditions once we arrived this evening. [Exhibits 9 &
10]

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Romero, could you grab these documents and hand
them out, please? Really quick, can these documents be explained to us, Mr. Romero?

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, the paperwork that I just handed
out is a request by the applicant. This documentation was presented and given to staff prior to
our public hearing a few hours ago and we were requested to hand these out to the
Commission, to the Attorney.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: These documents have been recorded downstairs?
MR. ROMERO: I don’t believe they have been.
CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay. Thank you. Mr. MacCreight.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Mr. Chair, we purchased the property at 64A Paseo
Encantada. It’s in Santa Fe County and as the owner of this property we’re faced with a
somewhat unusual situation. When we purchased this land, due to an existing easement
coming through our property we realized that we were going to be the owners of what is
legally deemed as a servient estate owner. So servient estate or servient tenement is a person
that has the actual easement running through their property. The person who receives it is the
dominant estate or dominant tenement. We were going to have to allow a neighbor to the
north to drive through our property over a pre-existing easement to their property which is
considered by law the dominant estate.

We have no issue with the easement whatsoever in the sense as far as their access to
their property. It’s in no way our intention to inhibit them from utilizing that easement. Prior
to our purchase we were made aware that there was another easement that pre-dated and
supposedly it was a legal easement that we felt was now in place. Upon further investigation
we came to realize that the attempt to create a new easement was not performed according to
law and that the old easement that inadvertently goes right through our house was still active.
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So now what we have is a situation where it could be deemed that we have two
easements going through our property. It is our intention to legally vacate the old easement
going through our home and have the BCC declare, or whatever process you would find fair,
the newer one because it was not created legally. Now, the reason that I say that it wasn’t
created legally was [inaudible] the law since 1978 and it’s in the documents that I submitted
there, and what it is is any kind of survey work has to be done by a legal surveyor upon the
request of the people who receive the easement the dominant estate, they said that they didn’t
remember who it was.

So when we did the survey work for the easement we found that that survey could not
physically be placed in the easement, meaning that the numbers did not make sense, although
we had a general idea of where it was.

So my surveyor also recognized that there was no surveyor stamp on the document.
There was no process to vacate the old one and there’s a County rule that you have to. There
was no public meeting held to do that, so we’re now faced with we have two different
easements going through our property. So in addition to the lack of County procedure which
is recorded on document page 1306062 under Vacation of Plat, Section 5.7.2, action must be
taken in place at a public hearing. This was not requested by the original owner nor was it
performed in accordance with the law.

In addition, it’s required by New Mexico state law, and this is what I was mentioning
previously, that if you use a surveyor they must be licensed, considering that the coordinates
could not be applied to the physical ground our surveyor realized no real surveyor did the
work. When we tried to inquire as to who performed the work it was to no avail.

The creation of a new easement was done haphazardly. It goes through an area of old
pine trees. If placed there it would be an eyesore to all the residents to the west when driving
by the site. If we placed it 50 feet to the east it would be completely out of sight for those
driving by. It would also diminish an unnecessary traffic eyesore to the neighbor to the west.
It also goes right in front of the area where anyone would logically build in the future,
because our lot is in the traditional community of Chupadero, we have the right to place two
other homes on that lot. We respectfully request to move a section of the easement to the east
and in moving the easement to the east it actually assists the owner of the dominant estate —
the person receiving the easement — by providing a better grade for their ingress and egress. It
will also assist them in providing the proper turn for the fire department that is required by
law.

Chairman Mayfield, Commissioners, we had a very difficult time with this
application. I did a pre-submittal and I’ve been back about 16 times and I’ve been asked
to do things that were not in the original package. I was asked to get a letter saying that
PNM had no [inaudible] going through there. PNM has a woman that works there as a
contractor. She comes in one day a week and when you go see here she then makes an
appointment when you can come and see her. Then they have to send out a field
representative with two weeks advance and you have to pay a fee in order to get that
done. And there were many other complications, including the one on the last page of
the document I gave you which I got tonight and that is that the adjacent property owners
affected by the vacation and relocation of the private ingress/egress utility easement shall
sign the final plat prior to recordation to signify their agreement to vacation and
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relocation of the easement.

Now, if I had known that, one of the other things that I was asked after their
lawyer sent a pretty heavy-handed letter in, and I don’t know if someone was intimidated
by it or not but we originally were told we were going to be granted the approval, and it
mentions in the lawyer’s letter that he says the same thing and he wanted to know why
that was happening. My point is is that in the midst of this we were then asked, because
the people in the dominant estate, the recipients of the easement, requested that we show
them where it’s going to be. Now, we had an approximation but now we were told we
had to do a survey. So that cost me another $800.

Then, to let you know, I would have never done it. I would have probably
proceeded to court because once this was — I was given this third condition here and the
condition is, and if you think about it’s like tying our hands, and that is we’re here to ask
the Commission to vote on our situation, but yet the wording of this is that we have to
get their approval, even if we get your approval. And the reason for that is, and there’s a
lot of confusion about easements and the moving of easements. On the third page from
the end in yellow you’ll see there’s a case in South Carolina and this document came
from a document that was drawn up by Mr. Kent for the surveyors of New Mexico, and
you are allowed to move an easement without the other person’s consent as long as it is
reasonable — we have an easement running through our home — or for development. And
where that easement goes goes right across the front of where we would put two
additional homes.

So by this request, what we did put on here is it says the adjacent property
owners affected by the vacation and relocation of the private ingress/egress utility
easement shall sign the final plat prior to recordation to signify their agreement to
vacation and relocation of the easement. Well, what you’re telling me is is we’re denied
due process, because we can’t come here and get anything resolved due to this thing that
was added on one hour before we were due to come in tonight.

Because if you say, okay, we’re going to grant you this new easement or anything
else, this is saying, this is conditional that they have to agree. Well, they wouldn’t be
here in the first place if they agreed. So what we’ve written here is, or in lieu of
signatures by the adjacent property owners, the applicant shall obtain a final, non-
appealable order from a court of competent jurisdiction allowing the relocation of the
easement shown hereon.

So what I would like to ask Mr. Shaffer if he’s in agreement with that.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Let’s stay up here with me, please.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Yes, sir.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Just stay with me. Let’s not go to Mr. Shaffer.
Thank you. So is that all you have, Mr. MacCreight on that?

MR. MACCREIGHT: No, it’s not, sir.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I’m going to interrupt you just for a minute
and I’'m going to ask for some help. I’ve been on this Commission for a few years now
and I’ve been puzzled at times and I’ve been confused at time. I’ve had to ask for
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clarification, but I’ve got to tell you, I’'m lost. I am completely lost with where we’re at.
So I’m going to back up. I’'m going to ask you, and Mr. Chair, if you’ll indulge me.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Commissioner Anaya, can I present a sketch that
you’ll see?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: In just a second. If you’d indulge me, Mr.
Chair. I’d like to have staff come back up and I want you to help me again understand
what — who are the parties that we’re dealing with and what specifically are we talking
about. We’re getting — I’m lost and I want to try and help you help me and maybe my
colleagues aren’t but I want to see if we can get this back to ground zero and figure it out
so we don’t spend the rest of the night wondering what’s going on, because I’m being
honest with you. So I want you to help me. Can you resummarize? Don’t talk to the
memo. Just kind of look at me and help me summarize what are we talking about doing
here and what is staff recommending and let’s see if we can get it back to ground zero
and simplify it for me. Okay?

MR. ROMERO: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: It’s been a long day and I know you guys
have all been waiting. Everybody’s been waiting, but help me to summarize what’s
happening.

MR. ROMERO: Okay, Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I may have to
refer back to my memo so I apologize. To go back, the document that Mr. MacCreight
asked me to hand out to the Commission, I believe Commissioner Mayfield had asked
me if these documents were recorded and I stated no. Actually, they are. The first three
documents that I did hand out to you is a grant of easement which was recorded by the
County Clerk’s Office. Okay? So to go back on that. And that’s what Mr. MacCreight
was trying to touch on was this documentation that I handed out.

What we’re going forward here is a platted private ingress/egress utility easement
that is located on Mr. MacCreight’s property, Heather McCrea’s property.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Two of them, right? We’ve got one that’s
existing that we’re vacating and then a proposed new one. Right?

MR. ROMERO: Correct. So he’s proposing to vacate and relocate the
easement that’s n the property. So currently there is a platted easement which is part of
the exhibit. You’ll see that on the plat, that runs through a portion of his house. He’s
requesting to vacate that easement and relocate that easement 50 to 115 feet east of his
property and there’s also, I believe behind that plat is an exhibit, is his proposed plat
which will show the proposed location of what he’s proposing to relocate.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So if I have an easement through my house
I’m probably going to want to vacate that easement. So for starters —

MR. ROMERO: Probably.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Chair, if I just may has, you’re talking about
Exhibit 4 in front of us, correct?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay.

MR. ROMERO: I'm going to refer back to my report.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: And while you’re looking at it, there’s
disagreement as to the proposed route between the applicant, Mr. MacCreight, and his
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neighbors?

MR. ROMERO: Correct. :

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. All right. I'm getting there.

MR. ROMERO: So the Exhibit 4 is the proposed plat that shows the
existing easement that runs through the portion of the house, and then the proposed
relocation of that 20-foot easement. And behind that is the plat, the recorded plat that
shows the existing easement that has been platted. Again, to summarize, the neighbors
which own Lot 2 are in opposition of this vacation and relocation of the easement that is
coming forward to you for your decision.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. They’re in opposition to vacate the
existing easement that goes through their house? His house?

MR. ROMERO: Correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay.

MR. ROMERO: My understanding, that is correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. I’ll listen and we’ll see where that
goes. So if you don’t get the vacation on the easement through your house then you
obviously can’t relocate it somewhere else. In a nutshell?

MR. ROMERO: Pretty much.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. Okay, Mr. MacCreight, just based on
that, if you could help us and be real succinct with your comments and the map so that
we can go to the rest of the public hearing and hear both sides.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Chairman Mayfield, Commissioner Anaya, I can
do it in about less than a minute. What we have here is the original easement that came
through. What happened was that the owner of this property owned this lot and this lot.
He gave this property or sold it to his daughter. The daughter came in, dropped a house
in the easement. They created, on page 3, the recorded document here, they created this
new easement. But in the creation of it they never vacated the old easement which is still
-running through the house. And again, just to make a point, this was created without a
public hearing. Not that you need a public hearing for an easement but you do need a
legal surveyor which it wasn’t, and the numbers don’t add up.

So we’re now faced with, and I just want to correct — you asked the question of
Mr. Romero a moment ago and that was so we got an easement and we have the other
one. Now we have two easements on our property right now. And we want to vacate
both of them and create a third one because if a title company was to look at this they
would say, well, it was never done right, we could clear out our title. So what we want to
do is join this in but we want to move it over a little bit, so if you’ll just bear with me a
second —

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: And while you’re looking at that, I heard
you say earlier you want to have another easement, if I could, Mr. Chair, I apologize.
That affords you the opportunity to do other things with the property that you own.

MR. MACCREIGHT: That’s correct. This is a very thin line,
Commissioner. So this is the original easement as you can see, which was this easement
here. Going there, is going right through the house and comes over here. This is on the
edge of the property. There’s a house that sits right here and it’s facing this. Now, what
we want to do is bring it in here, and this was actually the second one that they did and
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joined it in to that one. So what they did is circumvented this, moved it over there. But
these lines in here do not work physically. You cannot lay them out. So what we have
done is — we’re looking to take the original and bring this easement in and bring it
around here. And what that comes to is this moving it over here.

So you can see the width of the house, 1,700 square feet. We’re looking to move
it over here. So it’s not a major thing. So when I approached the people of the dominant
estate or tenement, or the people receiving the easement, they asked me, they said they
would get back to me and when they did they gave me a list of things that they wanted,
which is in those documents, such as survey of a new easement. I have no issue with
that. They asked for a County permit for a new easement. No issue. New plat indicating
the easement over 64 A and its entry into 64B. We have no issue with that. We have a
20-foot driveway finished to 64B proper line with proper drainage. That’s negotiable.

The recipient, the dominant estate, has made it clear that they do not want to
contribute in any way, shape or form to the road itself, although, it’s what’s known as a
non-exclusive easement. Non-exclusive that both people can use it but if we never do
they’re fully responsible for creating it and for maintaining it. So they want a phone, of
course. They want the building set back 50 feet. They want covenants indicating the
buildings on 64A will not have pitched roofs. They want power for four homes from
PNM. I don’t know if you’re up to the latest date on what that kind of move would entail
but it’s easily $40,000 to $60,000 to draw a line in there, just to move the thing over.

So in their letter that was sent by their attorney, he claims that they have had a
use of this property for ten years of that easement, so when we went out with our
surveyor, they said that the easement was at a certain place and once the surveyor did
what part of that easement that works, he realized that it was over further. So their
attorney’s claiming that they have a prescriptive right. And I can tell you, if anybody
knows anything about prescriptive rights it’s a boondoggle. It’s like a spider web. It goes
back to 1189. And there’s really no clearly defined issues on prescriptive rights. There is
lots of case law, but there’s so many different variables and our land happens to be open
land. So anybody that crosses over our land, they really don’t allow those kinds of
prescriptive easement. It doesn’t matter how many years it’s been.

The other thing is that their lawyer claimed that they’ve been making ingress and
egress, and as you can see, in both of those easements all these trees, no one has ever
driven in there. We took down some trees to get in there for our construction site. They
may have walked on it but they weren’t walking on what they originally thought was the
easement. So there’s a lot of complications involved with this. We started this back in
2012. They said they were going to get back to me and when they gave me that list that
was ridiculous so I just decided to come forward and explain what’s going on.

So it’s a strange situation in the sense that there is no case law in the state of New
Mexico but yet this document was prepared by an easement expert and one of the things
that he states is, and it’s probably on page 5, is that if the geographic extent of location
of an easement is not described in the document creating it — now this was described, but
it’s inaccurate, so the owner of the servient estate, that’s the person who has the
easement running through their property, has the right to designate its location.

And the other case law, which is what’s known as a restatement of the law. A
restatement of law is the work done by the brightest minds in that particular area of law
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in order to define the law, so that it can be implemented properly, and what they say is
unless expressively denied by the terms of an easement the owner of the servient estate is
entitled to make reasonable changes in the location or dimensions of an easement at the
servient owner’s expense to permit normal use or development of the servient estate, but
only if the changes do not significantly lessen the utility of the easement, increase the
burdens on the owner of the easement and its use and enjoyment. It says also to frustrate
the purpose for which the easement was created. We have no intention to do that.

So, what we’re asking for is the Commission to look at this. I know it seems a
little bit complicated but we have two easements, one of which is running through our
house right now. We’d like to get rid of that, and the other one and create an easement
that works for everybody, whether or not the recipient, the dominant estate agrees with
that is another thing. Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. [inaudible] is a
senior easement similar to a senior water right?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, I’m not sure that
the concepts are exactly analogous in terms of a priority water right. I think that the issue
is more of the party’s intent with respect to creations of easements but I think the issue
before the Board now is the fact that you have an easement that was on a plat approved
by the Board and that that’s now being requested to be vacated after a private party
purchased the lot that’s benefited by the easement.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: [inaudible] the question is whether or
not we have to deal with the first easement before we deal with the second one.
[inaudible] I agree with Commissioner Anaya. It is a confusing issue. [inaudible]

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, the easement that
the Board approved is on the plat that the Board approved. As far as I'm aware, and staff
will correct me if ’'m wrong, the Board had no hand in the creation of some additional
easement by private agreement of the parties. So the only thing that the Board has
approved is the easement that’s reflected on the plat that was recorded to effectuate the
lot split. I hope that —

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Sorry, my mike wasn’t on for the
public.

MR. SHAFFER: The Land Use Administrator corrected me. The lot split
was approved administratively, so that was the action approved by the County or was the
plat that created the first easement. And I think that’s the only matter that’s in front of
the Board, based on this application.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you for now.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Anaya first, then Commissioner
Chavez. Commissioner Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Just a general comment. As a
Commissioner, having dealt with land use cases before, if somebody has an easement
and they want to vacate that easement on the property but still afford an easement for
another individual to get to their property, I don’t think that’s unreasonable. I’'m not
saying I agree with this case. | want to hear the comment. But the other thing I would say
is that if this individual or anyone else had a case that came before us and they said they
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wanted to vacate an easement and then they wanted to send the individual that’s going to
utilize the new easement through a mountainous ridge or though an inoperable road or
through an area they couldn’t access — and I’d ask the Fire Department to come forward.
I’d ask Public Works staff to evaluate that easement and say is it reasonable? Is it a
reasonable change of use to afford this easement from one point to another. So [ don’t
have a problem having discussion and deliberation as we have in the past about vacation
of easement, but what I will say is you brought up a lot of other things that I absolutely
wouldn’t want to get involved in, additional electrical meters and other conditions.
That’s where I would concur with our attorney that those might be — those are legal
issues that you would have to take up with your neighbors in a court of law or they
would have to take those up with you, but associated with land use and our responsibility
to make determinations on land use, I see no problem evaluating whether or not an
easement is in place that should be vacated if it goes through a house, and that we
evaluate whether or not another easement makes sense or not, and its location. So I
would say that across the board, for this case or any other case. Because that’s a land use
functional item that’s platted that we approve as County Commissioners.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Chairman Mayfield, Commissioner Anaya —

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I'll yield.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Mr. MacCreight, please.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Yes, sir. That’s why this law, it’s case law that was
quoted by this Mr. Kent who is an expert and who did a complete report for the New
Mexico surveyors. It mentions in there, there’s things like, to give you an example, let’s
say you have an easement and somebody wants to change it but what they change it to is
20 feet down the road they make a 90 degree turn and then in another 20 feet they make
another 90 degree turn. And the owner, the guy that’s receiving that, has a tractor-trailer.
Well, that would be inhibiting his easement. We’re not doing that. We had the Fire
Department out there and the Fire Department agreed with us. [ had three visits from
Land Use and they all agreed that it made sense. So we’re not putting — and just to let
you know, on this topo, the average slope analysis — now, it has to be under 30 percent
by County rules. It’s mostly, it’s all but I think three or four feet is 12.2 percent. All you
would have to do is to reduce it to 11 percent.

When you do a fire turnaround that has to be two percent or less. So we have to
consider all that in what we’re doing and we weren’t going to create a survey that would
inhibit them in any way, shape or form, because it would just cost us, in this case, it was
$800 for that portion. The rest of it was like $3,000.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Right now, I’'m going to go to the
public hearing.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Chairman Mayfield, I just request that I could
make a comment at the end if I -

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We’ll come back to that.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: At this time we’re going to go to the public
hearing. Who would from the public care to comment on this case? Sir, please come
forth. And if you’re not an attorney you need to be sworn in.
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CULLEN HALLMARK: I am an attorney.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay. Could you still say your name first?

MR. HALLMARK: Commissioner, members of the Commission, my
name is Cullen Hallmark. I represent William Berra and Alanna Burke. My clients own
the easement that Mr. MacCreight has asked you to vacate and we oppose the
application. To put it charitably, some of the statements that were made to you a moment
ago, based on the facts and on the law were inaccurate. No one is talking about running
an easement through his house. Mr. MacCreight and his wife bought a property that was
known to have some recorded easements on it. They now don’t like it. They want to
vacate it over our objections without addressing our concerns.

I think that a couple of — Mr. Romero made a couple of comments that I think
you need to keep in mind here. This is a private easement. There is no subdivision that’s
going on. The division of the two lots was originally created by a family transfer. As a
result, it is exempt from the SDLC. It is also exempt from the Subdivision Act, and as a
result, the Commission needs to be considering whether it even has the jurisdiction to be
dealing with this, and I think that Commissioner Anaya, you actually had your finger
right on the pulse just a moment ago. This is the wrong forum for this dispute. This is
something that belongs in a court of law.

If Mr. MacCreight and his wife believe that the easement is defective in some
way they are free to go in front of a court of law and make their case. I believe that there
is an easement by necessity. There was an express easement, contrary to what he
represented, the platted easements were done by a licensed surveyor. I think that there is
a prescriptive easement. I think that Mr. MacCreight, while he may have read lots of
books his statements regarding the law in New Mexico on prescriptive easements is
inaccurate.

I think that the County does have the right in some situations to vacate
easements. I think the Subdivision Act and the SLDC clearly give it that right but this is
not that case. You don’t have a situation here that involves a public easement. You don’t
have a situation which involves a subdivision. It’s specifically exempt. And so I think
that this body does not have the power to act on this matter. What he is really asking you
to do is to take my clients’ property right.

Now the constitution of the United States, the constitution of New Mexico both
prohibit that unless there has been a compensation or there has been due process. There
has been neither one here. So what Mr. MacCreight and his wife are asking you to do,
essentially, is to get into a lawsuit.

It’s really — what he essentially is doing, you can look at it like this: if you had a
couple of people that were involved in a contract dispute, would you have any inkling
that you had the jurisdiction to decide that? I don’t think you would. You’d say that
belongs over at the district courthouse. That’s the same thing here. You have the
jurisdiction in certain situations but not here.

The district court deals with these things all the time. They can look and see
whether there was in fact a licensed surveyor that did this, whether there was in fact
prescriptive use for ten years or more, they can deal with whether there’s a use by
necessity. They are familiar with the law. They deal with that stuff. You guys are not
equipped to deal with that and I think that what you should do — I commend Mr. Romero



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 117

and to the County attorneys for trying to find a solution to this but I think there’s a
preliminary problem and that is I don’t think you guys should even be involved in this
problem. You should kick this out and you should refer it over to the district court.

Mr. Anaya, you had asked for a little bit more information about the layouts and
how everything was laid out, and I wanted to ask you in particular do you have any
questions? Have all of your questions been answered?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair and sir, respectfully, if I have
some additional questions —

MR. HALLMARK: All right.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Chair, we also have some protocol here so
please come through the chair to go to other Commissioners.

MR. HALLMARK: Sure. Anything else?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: This is a public hearing. Is there anybody else
wishing to comment on this case? Ms. Guerrerortiz, please.

[Duly sworn, Oralynn Guerrerortiz testified as follows:]

ORALYNN GUERRERORTIZ: Thank you, Commissioners, I spoke on a
case similar to this, I think it was about two months ago. And Karl Sommer joined me,
and he actually states what is happening tonight. He said you’re doing — you’re looking
at easements that you don’t have jurisdiction on, and potentially you’re going to get
caught in a situation and a civil suit that you really shouldn’t be involved in. We have a
new County Attorney. I’'m hoping that you’ll give him the opportunity to review the case
law and to examine whether or not land divisions and projects that are not subdivisions
should be coming before the BCC for easement vacations.

Again, you’re the only jurisdiction that I’ve ever worked in that is dong this and I
think it’s going to cause you some problems and I hope you see that tonight. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Please come forward.

[Duly sworn, Alanna Burke testified as follows:]

ALANNA BURKE: My name is Alanna Burke. Hello, Commissioners.
I’m one of the landowners, the 64B people who have the easement and I’m speaking for
myself and my husband, William Berra. I just wanted to clear up a few things that Mr.
MacCreight said that I would take issue with and the first is the easement that took care
— when we bought this property in 2001 we worked with Mr. Romero who had made the
original division of the property and his daughter is the person who had 64A and had put
the house very close to the easement. And so before we bought the property we asked to
put together that grant of easement document that you have there [Exhibit 11] to relocate
that portion of the easement that was interfering with the house.

John Noble of Southwest Title and Escrow and Sandra Brink, a lawyer in town,
wrote the text and Paul A. Armijo, who is a licensed surveyor in New Mexico did the
Exhibit A there. So Mr. MacCreight was saying that that work was done illegally but it
was done by a legal surveyor and I have a document from him that I received yesterday
that attests to the fact that he did that work. With the current easement we’ve had
Victoria DeVargas came to our house on March 24™ and she works for the Fire
Department and she verified with the current easement there is fine ingress and egress
for fire trucks, and there’s enough room for a hammerhead turnaround. That’s fine.

We’ve had people look at the pitch. Builders who have done slope analysis to
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confirm that the entrance and exit would work with County fire regulations. When we
asked Mr. MacCreight to meet with us to discuss what we could do with the easement
we gave him a list of topics that we wished to discuss. They were not demands for
electricity for four houses, etc. We wanted to discuss a variety of things with him. He
looked at the list and said, I’'m out of here. ’'m not going to discuss this. So that’s how
that went.

And basically, there is absolutely no reason to even be talking about this because
this is a manufactured problem. The granted easement that we recorded at the County on
November 30, 2001 took care of any problem with easement going too close to the
house. That document was drawn up by very — the best educated people to draw it up. It
was insured by Southwestern Title and Escrow. The underwriting insurance company,
Old Republic Title Insurance, has no idea why the County of Santa Fe is not recognizing
that document and in essence there is no problem with the easement over this property.
Thanks very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Do we have anybody else from the
public wishing to comment on this case? Seeing none, this portion of our public hearing
is closed. Mr. MacCreight, we’ll go back to the applicant, please.

MR. MACCREIGHT: Chairman Mayfield, Commissioners, this is the
first time I’ve heard anything about a licensed survey. I requested that, put that up on
numerous occasions and the letter that I gave you of demands was submitted to me as
demands; it wasn’t about negotiation, anything, so of course I walked away from it
because I wasn’t interested in doing something like that just to move an easement. The
thing about this easement is we already have a permit to put our road in for our home
and if we put the road where the current easement is, when we go down four feet or
something you’re going to see literally a gouge going across the edge of the property,
because it’s right on the edge of an arroyo. That’s the platted easement, the one that they
created after the other easement — after it was recognized that the other easement goes
through the home.

So we’re still faced with the same issue. We have two easements on our property,
one going through the house another one circumventing the house but going out over an
edge, which is not unreasonable for us to request that we want to move it. We appreciate
whatever it is that you find. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. MacCreight. Just let me ask staff
really quick, Vice Chairman Anaya. Mr. Romero, and [ apologize, I think it was Mrs.
Berra that was speaking — I may have that wrong, but do we have a copy of that recorded
survey that she mentioned? ,

MR. ROMERO: You do, and that’s part of the documentation, Mr. Chair,
Commissioners, that we made copies of that Mr. MacCreight requested that hand out to
you, the grant of easement.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Could you hand one also to Karen.
Thank you. Guys, we got a lot of the same paper here so we have it then so we don’t
need to waste all this paper. If you speak you go to the mike then really quick and I will
ask you that. Okay, I see it.

MS. BURKE: The copy that I handed out to you, on the last page is a
letter from Paul A. Armijo, who is the surveyor who did the work for that grant of
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easement. And he’s verifying when he did the work, etc. So that’s the extra piece there
that I don’t think was handed to you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Mr. MacCreight has a copy of this also
please? Thank you. I’'m going t go to Vice Chairman Anaya, please.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, staff, ’'m going to
make a motion based on the feedback we received and based on staff’s recommendation, to
approve staff’s recommendation dealing with the easement around the property, vacating the
portion that goes through the house and the segment, as staff reads it. I’ll just read it. Staff
supports the relocation of the easement around the existing structure without any alteration of
the remainder of the easement, subject to the following conditions:

1. The Applicant shall file the portion of the final plat affected by the vacated
easement with the County Clerk’s Office; and

2. Staff recommends approval to vacate and relocate the portion of the
ingress/egress and utility easement that runs through the portion of the residence.

This being said, do we have any approvals on the road construction and building permits

for either the applicants of the adjacent property owner? Have the applied for permits?

MR. ROMERO: The applicant has, correct. The existing home that’s on
the property was permitted and the applicant has also submitted for an application I
believe for an addition to the residence.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: For the existing residence?

MR. ROMERQO: For the existing residence that the easement runs
through.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Not a new residence on a different part of
the property?

MR. ROMERO: Lot #2 that Ms. Burke spoke of is vacant. The only lot
that has a structure on it, which is a residence, is the one that is owned by the applicant,
which is lawful.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So any additional construction — Mr. Chair,

I apologize — Mr. Chair, staff, if we — they’ve got to come in and apply for a permit to do
anything on the other lot, as well as the adjacent property owner, correct?

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that’s correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: That’s going to take into consideration the
driveway that they’ll have and the access therein for either of the subject properties,
correct?

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that’s correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So that being said, I would ask,
respectfully, of the applicant as well as the adjacent property owner to continue their
dialogue, to continue whatever other process they can, hopefully to come up with an
amicable solution, but for us here now today I would just move, as I said, staff’s
recommendation as read it. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair, I think there’s a third —

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: What was the third? Did you have a third
one? I apologize.

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that is correct. We did
add another recommendation and I will read it again. The adjacent property owners
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affected by the vacation and relocation of the private ingress/egress utility easement shall
sign the final plat prior to recordation to signify their agreement to vacation and
relocation of the easement.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: On the motion I have relative to the
easement going in and around the area of the residence, I don’t agree with the third
condition. I don’t in my motion. I’'m asking the applicant as well as the neighboring
property owner to work through — hopefully they can work through some of their
concerns and differences and they may very well need to go to court to do it, but relative
to my recommendation, I’m going with the recommendation we have in our book, items
1 and 2. That’s why my motion is.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: And I’ll second that. I’'m going to go to discussion
to our County Attorney. So, Mr. Shaffer, we heard from the applicant, again, public
comment and also even some past cases that you’re not totally aware of. I know Ms.
Ellis-Green is. But do we have authority or jurisdiction over this? Santa Fe County?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, I think that’s a matter that would warrant
further research, both with respect to the statutes and case law but also how that’s been
interpreted by the County over the years. So as I understand it from Land Use staff this
issue has come up in the past and I’d want to make sure I was fully informed as to what
that best practice was before I offered advice. But I also note that the Board always has
the option, if it’s uncertain and wants to have additional analysis, legal or otherwise, of
tabling the matter and taking it up again at the next land use meeting, either to receive
additional public input or additional legal advice in executive session where you could
deliberate there as well.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I’m going to say this respectfully
because our Commissioner Stefanics said this earlier. I expressed some concerns early
on as did Commissioner Stefanics. I don’t want to get into a series of debating our
County Attorney or the legality of a particular item. I also don’t want to get us in a mind.
We need to do more due diligence so we’re not in these positions. So I’m pretty
frustrated at the moment but we’ll just deal with and move on. Mr. Chair, what do you
want to do with your second, and based on what we just heard from our County
Attorney, do you think we should modify and table the discussion or what do you want
to do? This is your district. I defer to you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I appreciate that and I appreciate the comments. I
know it’s been a long night but I still have a couple questions. So as far as Exhibit A
[Exhibit 10, page 4] that ’'m looking at on one of the three sheets of paper that were
handed to me tonight. Is there a utility line going through there and is there a second
utility line?

MR. ROMERO: From my understanding, according to the applicant there
is not.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Okay. And there is a current — ma’am, you’d have
to come up to comment, but hopefully, you just talk to staff and staff can provide that.
So the house — the original easement. The house is already constructed, correct?

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, that is correct.

[
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Will you defer with the other party, Mr. Romero
and ask about that utility issue? I’m going to ask you to go through staff, please.

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, again, to answer your
question, we deliberated. To go back to your question, my answer stands. There is no
utilities in that easement.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners, there’s a motion and a
second on the floor in front of us. Do you want to restate that motion, Commissioner?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, based on what we just heard
from our attorney, do you want to go forward with a motion or do you want to give them
a chance to review the item as Commissioner Stefanics suggested earlier and bring it
back later?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Well, and I guess I appreciate the Attorney’s
statement but this Commission has made decisions on these such cases in the past and I
know maybe we’re just not at the liberty of having our former County Attorney here, but
we’ve kind of — or I will ask if we set any precedents and how we’ve already proceeded
in past cases.

MR. ROMERO: Mr. Chair, I’'m not speaking for the County Attorney but
there is an exhibit, Exhibit 2 which is in our Land Development Code, a 5.7 Vacation of
Plats, and I don’t know if that helps but there is some language in there that does
mention, action shall be taken in a public meeting in approving and vacation of all or
part of a final plat. The Board shall decide whether the vacation will adversely affect the
interests of persons on contiguous land or the persons within the subdivision being
vacated. There’s language in there. I don’t know if that helps. Just thought I’d throw that
out there.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. We have a motion and a second on the floor.

The motion passed by majority [3-1] voice vote with Commissioner Stefanics
voting against the motion. [Commissioner Holian was not present for this action.]

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Shaffer, though I would ask that hopefully you
do some consulting with our Land Use staff and we can get this issue resolved for future
cases of such in front of us, please. Thank you.

VIII. B. 4. CDRC CASFE #V 14-5070 Judith Moore Variance. Judith Moore,

Applicant, Requests a Variance of Article 4, Section 4.2 of
Ordinance No. 2008-10 (Flood Damage and Stormwater
Management) to Allow a Family Transfer Land Division of 3.44
Acres Into Two (2) Lots That Do Not Meet All-Weather Access
Requirements. The Property is Located at 22 Santa Cruz Dam

Road, in the Vicinity of Chimayo, within Section 7, Township 20

North, Range 10 East (Commission District 1)

JOHN LOVATO (Case Review Manager): Thank you, Mr. Chair,

Commissioners. On April 17, 2014 the CDRC met and acted on this case. The decision of the
CDRC was to recommend approval of the variance request. Access to the subject lot would be
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off County Road 92, Santa Cruz Dam Road, which is a dirt road located within a FEMA

designated Special Flood Hazard Area, which may be frequently impassible during inclement

weather and thereby is not all-weather accessible. The existing driveway also lies within the

FEMA designated special flood hazard and is the only access to the property. The driveway has

been in existence for over 20 years. The floodplain runs along the entire frontage of the

property, and there would be no place to relocate the driveway outside of the floodplain.

There are currently two manufactured homes on the property. The main residence on
the property is recognized as a legal non-conforming residence. There is a permit dating back
to 1990 associated with the applicant’s daughter’s current modular home on the property for a
foundation permit only.

The Applicant states she requests the variance so she can provide her daughter’s
family with an affordable place to reside. She further states, the only way her daughter can
place a new manufactured home on the property is if the property is in her daughter’s name to
obtain a mortgage.

Growth Management staff has reviewed the application for compliance with pertinent
code requirements and finds the project is not in compliance with County criteria for this type
of request. However, this property is accessed via a County road and there is no other feasible
way to relocate the County road or driveway outside the floodplain.

Staff recommendation. On April 17, 2014 the CDRC met and acted o this case. The
decision of the CDRC was to recommend approval of the request to allow the variance of
Article IV, Subsection 4.2 of Ordinance 2008-10, Flood Damage and Stormwater
Management, subject to the following conditions:

1. Water use shall be restricted to 1.00 acre-foot per year per lot. A water meter shall be
installed for each lot. Annual water meter readings shall be submitted to the Land Use
Administrator by January 1% of each year. Water restrictions shall be recorded in the
County Clerk’s Office.

2. The Applicant must obtain a development permit from the Building and Development
Services Department for the additional dwelling unit.

3. A plat of survey meeting County Code requirements shall be submitted to the Building
and Development Services Department for review and approval of the Family Transfer.

4. The Applicant shall comply with all Fire Prevention Division requirements at time of
Development Permit.

5. The Applicant shall provide an updated liquid waste permit from the New Mexico
Environment Department with the Development Permit Application.

6. A note must be placed on the plat regarding the lack of all-weather access to the subject
lot. This restriction shall include language as follows: The access to this property does
not meet minimum standards set forth by County Ordinances and Code. Site access
including access by emergency vehicles, may not be possible at all times.

Thank you, Mr. Chair. I stand for any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [inaudible]
[Duly sworn, Judith Moore testified as follows:]
JUDITH MOORE: I'm Judith Moore. Honorable Chairman and Commissioners,

I’m humbled by how much work you’ve done for the public tonight. Thank you. The variance is

— I think should be granted because we’ve lived there for 24 years. We’ve never had a problem.

Up Santa Fe County road there is the community water supply, which is accessed by Santa Fe
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County Road 92. So for the community water supply to be able to be accessed they have to
drive up the flood plain. We have three neighbors in the canyon. All of us are on the right side
of the road. All of us have to cross the floodplain to get to our residences and none of us have
had problems, so granting this variance will give my daughter and her husband and their three
children a chance to get an FHA loan which makes a home affordable and possible for them
right now. So I humbly ask you to approve this and [ won’t keep you any longer. Thank you.
Unless you had some questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: [inaudible]

MS. MOORE: I’ve complied with everything. In fact John’s really worked with me
to help me to know just what to do and I’'m right on track. I’m getting everything done and
we’re working together as a team so that [ can comply with his requests and everything’s on
track.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: So with all of staff’s recommendation and a recommendation
for the applicant shall comply with all Fire Prevention Division requirements, you’re aware of
what those are?

MS. MOORE: And I'm right on track. I’'m doing them all. Ive got everything done.
In fact everything should be in this next week. I’'m doing everything that they requested. John
Lovato’s worked well with me so I understand what he requests and I’'m complying

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. This is a public hearing. Are there any members
from the public wishing to comment on this case?

KARL SOMMER: I'll be very brief. My name is Karl Sommer, P.O. Box 2476,
Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87504. Just briefly, I support the variance with respect to the language
on the plat related to the floodplain. I've worked with Buster Patty for a long time on this
particular issue all over the county. You all run into it all the time. The note on the plat that
advises the own, hey, you may or may not have — it does two things. It advises the public. It also
lets Buster know he’s done his job to tell these people we may or may not be able to get to your
property. He didn’t create the problem. Granting the access doesn’t exacerbate the problem and
I’m in full support of handling these cases until you change your code on this particular issue in
that way. And so I just think that’s a good practice on your part to follow that. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Sommer. Is there anybody else wishing to
provide any public comment on this case? Seeing none, this portion of our public hearing is
closed. Commissioners, I am going to move for approval of this case with staff’s
recommendation.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second. For discussion really quick,
on County Road 92, I’'m very familiar with the area. I don’t know if I had a lot of talk. This is a
recreational area also. It’s on the bottom side of the spillway of Santa Cruz Dam. There are a lot
of folks that go out there and go fishing, believe it or not, down in there. But we’ve had
numerous discussions right up here about all-weather crossings or low-weather road crossings
that aren’t even improved by Santa Fe County. And this is one definitely that has not been
improved by Santa Fe County, and it provides public access to recreational areas, it provides
access to a public water system that services the whole community, and as was stated by the
applicant, it provides access to three, four, potentially more homes back in that area. So again,
just so I can say this, when we’re asking applicants to go through or to make all kinds of
compliance with the rules that we have in place. I respect them but I really think that Santa Fe
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County itself needs to step it up and provide those all-weather crossing accesses and make that
investment before we go out and ask each individual community member to do. We’ve all
heard that many, many times. It’s late, so thank you.

The motion passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote. [Commissioner Holian was not
present for this action. ]

VIII. B. S. CDRC CASE #APP 14-5041 Michael Velarde Appeal. Michael
Velarde, Applicant, is Appealing the County Development

Review’s Decision to Approve a Home Occupation Business
Registration for a Pet Crematorium on 2.5 Acres. The Property is
Located at 40 Vista del Monte, within the Valle Lindo Subdivision,
within Section 25, Township 16 North, Range 8 East (Commission
District 5)

JOHN M. SALAZAR (Case Review Manager): Thank you, Mr. Chair. On
February 20, 2014 the County Development Review Committee heard and acted on Case #A
14-5040 in which Rachel Tapia appealed the Land Use Administrator’s decision to deny a
home occupation business license which would allow an onsite pet crematorium. The
decision of the CDRC was to overturn the Land Use Administrator’s decision and allow the
pet crematorium as a home occupation by a 6-0 vote. You can refer to those in Exhibits 8 and
9.

Article 11, Section 2.3.4.c of the code affords anyone aggrieved by a DRC decision
the opportunity to appeal to the Board. The appellant, along with two other neighbors is
aggrieved by the CDRC’s decision and has filed an appeal to the BCC. The appellant has
stated that such a use is inappropriate for a residential area. We have some case history with
this. In August of 2007 the applicant submitted an application for an amendment to an
existing home occupation. The applicant requested permission to install an incinerator on the
property in order to expand into a pet cremation business. Currently her business license is
for a home office. She does pick up deceased pets or vermin that are affecting people’s
gardens or their properties and disposes of them in a different facility.

That business license was given to her in August of 2007. So the cremation process
takes place at the Santa Fe Animal Shelter. The applicant proposed this use in order to
provide clients a more personal experience with their deceased pets since it is currently
possible that the client could receive not only the remains of their pet but also the remains of
other animals as the Santa Fe Animal Shelter uses a community kiln in order to cremate
animals.

In 2007 the Land Use Administrator denied this request. The property owner appealed
the decision to the County Development Review Committee. The CDRC upheld the Land
Use Administrator’s decision. This was then appealed to the BCC and the BCC upheld the
decision of the CDRC. The property owner then appealed to the First Judicial District Court
of New Mexico in which the BCC was affirmed by Judge Daniel A. Sanchez. The standards
upon which Judge Sanchez made his decision were based upon criteria from the
Extraterritorial Zoning Ordinance, which was repealed in 2009.

Since these standards no longer apply the applicant was afforded the right to reapply
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under the Santa Fe County Land Development Code. A similar request for amendment to the
existing home occupation business registration was submitted by the applicant in January of
2012. The 07 request proposed a separate, detached structure for the crematorium while the
2012 request had the structure attached to the dwelling unit. The application was denied by
the Land Use Administrator citing the decision rendered for the applicant’s 2007 submittal.

Land Use staff did not receive a notice from the applicant nor her agent regarding a
desire to appeal the Land Use Administrator’s decision at that time so on December 17, 2013
the applicant’s agent submitted a new application requesting an amendment to the existing
home occupation similar to the 12 submittal. Staff reviewed the materials submitted, which
included a letter of intent, acknowledgement of the home occupation criteria, development
permit application, business registration application, vicinity map, a letter from the New
Mexico Environment Department Air Quality Bureau, which was dated January 17, 2008, a
site plan, a floor plan of the proposed structure and a report by the manufacturer on emissions
testing on the proposed crematory incinerator.

Staff also reviewed the findings from the BCC 2007 request and determined that the
subject application was pretty similar and that the application was not substantially different
from the 2007 nor the 2012 applications. Therefore this request was denied as it did not
comply with the home occupation performance standards set for by Article III, Section 3.2 of
the code, which states no equipment or process shall be used in the home occupation which
significantly interferes with the existing use of property in the adjacent area.

The Land Use Administrator also determined that a decision rendered by the First
Judicial District Court is not something that could be overturned administratively, and the
proposed use could negatively impact neighboring properties with the smoke emitted from
the incinerator. Under the Sustainable Land Development Code the use of a crematorium as a
home occupation would be prohibited. The approval that’s sought for this application is to
overturn the CDRC’s decision, which approved application AHBL 14-5040.

Staff recommends that the BCC approve the appeal and uphold the Land Use
Administrator’s decision to deny the home occupation. I’ll stand for questions, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Salazar, thank you. Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAY A: Mr. Shaffer, it will get better. Welcome back to
the County. You worked here for a while, so you understand the dynamics. My question ties
not to this proposal but to the fact that District Court did render a determination on this
decision after a County process. Does that have credence to the determination that we have
before us? Because it’s the same submittal in nature?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, as I understand it from the
Land Use Administrator, the historic practice is not to preclude serial submissions by land
use applicants. As I understand it it is a matter that’s addressed in the SLDC. There is a
prohibition on submitting the same application I think for a period of two years but the
current practice is not to give that preclusive effect to decisions of either the Board or the
District Court. The idea is the same. If the Board acts and someone doesn’t appeal then that
should be a final decision as well. It doesn’t seem that the involvement of the District Court
necessarily changes the analysis.

So again, to sum up, as I understand it the current practice does not prohibit serial
submissions on the same matter.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Well, again, let me ask the question a different
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way. When people come to a land use case that they are on the losing end or the winning end,
they always have an avenue of appeal beyond the Board of County Commissioners and that’s
District Court. And that’s predominantly what’s happened. And then beyond District Court
they can go to appeals court and then ultimately they could go all the way to the Supreme
Court.

But historically, we’ve acknowledge and informed people they always have that right.
And in this case, for this submittal, that right was exercised beyond the determination we
made and then it was upheld at District Court. So what you’re saying is the fact that a case is
approved here in this adjudicatory process that we have really has no bearing beyond our
approvals what someone else does or some other court or hearing officer may do, we’re only
concerned with our ordinance and laws and those determinations aren’t of our interest, I
guess is what I’m asking?

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, [ think the point I was
trying to make and I think it answers your question is that your action is final if it’s not
appealed. But if it’s appealed and it’s upheld by the District Court and it’s not further
appealed it’s still final. And so whatever action you take once it runs its course, either
through not being appealed or being appealed to District Court it’s a final action. I guess what
I’m articulating based upon the information I received from the Land Use Administrator is
we have not established as a position that we are going to give preclusive effect to previous
final actions and do not preclude subsequent submissions. And that is a matter that is being
addressed in the SLDC in terms of prohibiting that sort of application or reapplication, at
least for a period of two years. I hope that answers your question.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I think it does and I appreciate your additional
clarity. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Just a couple questions and hopefully
they’re not off-topic for staff. One, are there any crematoriums within the country right now,
for either pet or humans?

MR. SALAZAR: Mr. Chair, this is one called Braemar. It’s off of Old Santa
Fe Trail. Old Las Vegas Highway.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Is anybody aware of any in the City of Santa Fe?

MR. SALAZAR: I’'m not aware of any, Mr. Chair. And also, I did mention in
the report there is the one at the animal shelter as well.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Unless I'm wrong, I think there’s one for humans at
Berardinelli, off of Luisa Street.

MR. SALAZAR: That’s right, Mr. Chair. There is Berardinelli’s. It is for
human beings, however.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Second question. Either the code or if it as the proposed
Animal Control Ordinance, right now animals can be buried in somebody’s yard. It could be
a horse, if somebody wants to bury in their yard, four feet underground. We don’t ask for
them to be in boxes. You just put the loved animal, the pet into a pit, correct?

MR. SALAZAR: That’s correct, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: And that’s in our proposed code or in our current
ordinance?

MR. SALAZAR: Mr. Chair, that’s not in the current Land Development Code.
I don’t believe it would be in the Sustainable Land Development Code.



Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 13, 2014
Page 127

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I just know we had discussion on this and I brought it
up. [ don’t know, maybe, if it’s in the new proposed Animal Control Ordinance or in the
code. But I just wanted folks to know that, that right now, if anybody needed to inter a pet
that they could just do it in their yard right now in the ground. Thank you. I’'m going to go to
the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Excuse me. Commissioner Stefanics, [ apologize. You
were on the list.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: That’s all right. Mr. Chair, Penny, the new
Land Use Code, when it becomes effective after the zoning maps, etc., has the no-impact,
low-impact. Would this pet crematorium meet either condition for a home occupation? From
my reading it would but is there anything that would prohibit it?

PENNY ELLIS-GREEN (Land Use Administrator): Mr. Chair, Commissioner
Stefanics, it would not fall under a home occupation because there’s specific language that
says a crematorium is not allowed as a home occupation.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So we have identified it as an excluded
business.

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Yes, I believe we have. Yes. I can go and check. I’1l go
and get my copy and confirm that.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay, so, let me follow up, why would we
have excluded it when we have other businesses in the county already?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, what was put in
there as exclusions are the type of home occupations that have caused issues in the past. [
don’t know how the pet crematorium on Old Las Vegas Highway was approved. The one at
the animal shelter was approved through a development plan; it wasn’t a home occupation.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Well, Mr. Chair, I know that the one on Old
Las Vegas Trail has been there for years and years and years and years, because I and people
before me have used it many years ago. I mean, 30, 40 — people have used it for years. So
that’s what’s — that’s why I’m wondering why we would have excluded it. This may or may
not be the right neighborhood to do this, but why we would have excluded it in our land use
code. So we don’t have a rationale?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, it’s just due to
issues that have been caused in the past and it was probably the earlier denial of this as a
home occupation.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: But we have an earlier approval for one. We
have them here in the county.

MR. SALAZAR: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics the one on Old Las
Vegas Highway, upon researching it for this case, it was something that was done
administratively I believe in the early 90s.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: It was before 90s. I moved here in the 80s.

MR. SALAZAR: Okay. I’d have to research it but it has been quite some time
though and that was done administratively.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. We also have, as the chair indicated,
we have a crematorium right in the city for people. So I just would like to understand a little
bit more. I thought when I first looked at this that maybe there was some environmental or
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water quality issues, but I don’t see anything in our application denial around those issues. In
fact the state said we don’t have any requirements for this type of business. So I'm trying to
understand the standards. So maybe we could go on with other testimony or comments but I
just have big questions about our standards. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Commissioner Stefanics.
Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Well, Commissioner Stefanics, I don’t know if
this changes any of your thought process but in our packet on the last page, right before the
staff recommendation, it does state that Growth Management staff has reviewed this
application for compliance with the pertinent code requirements and finds no evidence that
would allow a crematorium as a home occupation. So I think that staff’s thought that out and
I guess — so you’re questioning whether our criteria is —

‘ COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: And what are our standards.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Could staff respond to that?

MR. SALAZAR: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, Article III, Section 3.2.5, it is
very vague in what it says but it does state, no equipment or process shall be used in the home
occupation which significantly interferes with the existing use of property in the adjacent
area. And while the Land Use Administrator was deliberating this, through those
deliberations and consequently through her decision, she felt that this was going to
significantly interfere with the existing use of properties around Ms. Tapia’s property.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: No, that’s good.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So, Mr. Chair, when I heard that we were
going to be dealing with this and I think I’'m going to be interested to hear from the applicant,
and I think it’s significant whether the applicant wants to go up against the neighborhood. 1
think that’s an issue. But I went back to Braemar and I thought, I’'m going to go, I’'m going to
see what I remember about the property, if there’s any smells, if there’s any odors, go up to
the area. And the one — the difference that I see in terms of the property is one is wooden and
set back up on Old Las Vegas Highway and this is much more open property. We don’t have
a lot of trees down our way. And so it is a much more open space.

But not only did I go up to check myself, I asked other people who lived around the
area and it’s been there so long that it’s a non sequitur. But that’s why I still want to go back
to standards. And I do think that we have to have some standards. It’s kind of like what we
did with churches and schools being places of community service. And how we had that big
debate about it. And I don’t know that we’ve had a debate about what should be a home
occupation and not. Because I certainly don’t remember it in the past couple of years. So I’ll
be interested to hear the rest of the conversation today. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, the applicant is — it’s their
opportunity to present. The applicant on the appeal and then we’ll have other comment. I’11
turn it back over to you, Mr. Chair.

[Duly sworn, Michael Velarde testified as follows:]

MICHAEL VELARDE: Good evening, Mr. Chair and Commissioners. I hope
I can get to this quick so we can all get home to our families. My name is Mike Velarde. 1
live on 35B Camino Bajo. I’ve been a resident there for 25 years. My dad’s also a resident.
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He’s 86 years old. He’s too old to be here tonight. I also had a lot of people here with
concerns but if you look at the time, they all went home.

I’m appealing the pet crematorium, me as well as a lot of residents have a problem
with it. The same questions were brought up in 2012 when this was vetoed here. Air quality,
pollution, property values — they’re all legitimate questions. My business has been brought
into this conversation. I run a septic service out of my business, out of my property for 25
years. It’s one truck. That’s it. The gentleman that’s representing Mrs. Tapia, at the last
meeting, which was with the CDRC, said I was running a porta-potty business. There’s two
different things. A porta-potty business would have 125 porta-potties sitting in their
backyard. That’s a problem I have one truck; that’s it.

I don’t work out of my property. I park my truck there and I leave every morning. I
have a bunch of signatures that were signed by all the residents [Exhibit 12] and like [ said
before, they were here to express their concerns. The time has gone by. All I have to say is we
have — nothing has changed from 2012 to now except for growth. You have Rancho Viejo
Business Park. You have Rancho Vigjo residents. You have Turquoise Trail residents. You
have Santa Fe Skies RV Park. You have all kinds of development around you that has grown
in three years. So nothing has changed.

We’re here talking about the same old thing again. I feel that I’'m wasting my time
when I could be with my family, here to voice my concerns. And I know it’s getting old. I
don’t know what else we have to do to rectify this situation. I have neighbors that were
fuming and upset. They wanted to be here but most of them are elderly and their concerns
was what is air quality. They have emphysema, they have asthma, what’s that going to do to
them if they’re sitting out in their backyard barbecuing in the afternoon?

My last question to you folks, would you like a pet crematorium in your backyard?
That’s all I have to say. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: That’s the applicant. We will open this up for public
comment. Do we have any members of the public wishing to comment?

KARL. SOMMER: Mr. Chair, my name is Karl Sommer. I’'m here on behalf
of the applicant for the permit and various questions have been raised and I’ll get to the
questions right away so it’s pertinent. How did this get in the SLDC? I’ll tell you how it go
there. The original draft of the SLDC, when Jack Kolkmeyer was working on it, had the three
tiers that Commissioner Stefanics remembers. I submitted language related to this particular
issue. Staff took it in and the next thing I knew it was excluded, right after we made our
submission. There have been no other cases except this case, like this.

It was excluded without debate, without discussion, and it came after we made a
request so that her application could be considered fairly. And the question because the no-
impact, low-impact and then you go into a public hearing process. And we addressed that
particularly. That’s how it got in the code; that’s when it got in the code and there was not a
single word of debate anywhere along the way.

The second thing is going to the question that, Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya,
asked, which was about the precedentual value of the court case. That court was looking at
language under the EZC. We’re looking at under the code. You all interpret the code in many
instances very differently than you do the other. She has the opportunity to make this
application in front of you all. Those are the questions that you all have raised. So let’s go to
the specifics of why the CDRC approved this.
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Mr. Velarde got up here and said, I have one truck. I get up in the morning, I go to
work, I come back. His truck emits more air pollution, more noise, more vibration than the
equipment that she owns. How do I know that? Because the Air Quality Bureau has not one
regulation related to this. It emits no particulate matter or visible emissions or fumes that are
detectable so as to require regulation. There is no air quality issue. I can get up here and say,
well, air quality and you know what. But when you get down to the facts of this case there is
no air quality issue. ‘

Let’s go to the question of whether or not there’s vibration. There is no vibration. You
can’t sense, see, feel, hear, this equipment at all. When you’re on her property it’s going to be
inside a building. It is inside a building. You won’t hear it, you won’t see it, you won’t feel it.
When this application came back before there was a question of well, we’ve got more
development. A hundred or more yards away you have an RV park and [ don’t know if you
all have been to an RV park out there but you know what drives by is very large, very large
vehicles that are diesel, that create vibration, that create sound, that create — these are
conditions that exist in this neighborhood. We’re not going to make that any worse, certainly.
We’re not going to have any impact on that.

So when you come down to this case, what is it about? If you look at the code and
Commissioner Stefanics asked the question, what is the case about? Well, here’s the legal
issue. Is there some equipment that she is going to use that interferes with the use of Mr.
Velarde’s property or any neighbor? And the answer to that is, no. She’s not going to do
anything that has any effect on them. So what is this case about? Mr. Velarde revealed it to
you in his parting question. He said this: Would you like this in your backyard? As though
that were the standard at which you should judge this application. But that is the issue that is
being raised. Would you like this in your backyard?

Well, what is this in your backyard? First of all, she has been self-employed in this
community supporting herself, her family, her father, her partner for years and years in a
home occupation that has been legal. What does she do? She runs around helping people who
have dying pets. And she sees a need in this community, a need that says, you know what?
These people want to dispose of their pets that is respectful of the manner in which they lived
with their pets. Mr. Velarde showed you a list of names and he said all of the neighbors are
upset. [ submit to you all of the neighbors are not upset. And in fact, I’'m going to hand to you
a list of 124 people, many of which live in this neighborhood, who say what Ms. Tapia is
doing is an absolutely valuable service that is needed in this community. [Exhibit 13]

This isn’t just a we-oppose based on a two-line petition. This is very specific. These
people read it and they say to themselves, is this a benefit? What are the economic benefits?
What are we doing here? I would submit to you that that’s impressive. There aren’t 124
people here in support but there are 124 people on that list that tell you all this is a needed
service. There is no legal issue under your code. There is just simply the issue that some
people don’t want — they think about — they don’t want to think about that somebody’s pet
dies somewhere and that they have to be disposed of. Well, that’s going on in this community
right now, as you know.

[ would submit to you the following; let me ask you this: I know some of you are
hunters, right? You all go hunting and I know you all use taxidermists. Some of you. Some of
you have your animals mounted, and there are home occupations that are taxidermists. And
you know what? They don’t have an impact on the community. What they deal with is they
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mount animals that have been killed in their home. They might be small animals; they might
be big animals. Would you want that in your backyard? Well, I’ll tell you, it’s going on in our
backyards. It doesn’t have the factor that we’re talking about here, where, ick, I don’t want a
dead pet. Well, these are members of people’s families that are being disposed of in a
dignified way.

What are the impacts that she’s going to have on the community? No greater than the
impact that her current home occupation has. Right now, when she gets a call, she leaves. She
does her work and she comes home. If this is allowed, she will get a call, she will leave, she
will come back and that will be part of her work. She doesn’t employ anybody. She meets the
criteria of a home occupation. What she doesn’t meet is the sensibility of a few neighbors. I
submit to you there is a much broader community the sensitivities of which are not offended
by this use and we would stand for questions related to this. But I believe that under the code,
the County code, there is no issue legally and that you have the discretion to approve this
application and give Ms. Tapia the opportunity to continue to serve our commumty in a very
important way. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Mr. Sommer, thank you. After Commissioner Chavez
looks at this could we get it — Penny, could someone from staff please make some copies and
we get that over to our court reporter. Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair, I have a question for Mr.
Sommer and the applicant. Is there any — I didn’t see anything, but is there any kind of
documentation from a professional regarding air quality. I know about the state permit
standards; there are none, but is there anything in here?

MR. SOMMER: Yes, there is. There is the manufacturer’s specs that were
submitted to Air Quality as well. The manufacturer’s specs tell you exactly how this machine
works and what particulates and non-particulates are emitted. None of them rise to the level
of any regulatory issue. So I don’t know if you have it there in your packet. It’s in the packet
that T got.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. So Mr. Chair, Mr. Sommer, [ don’t
see in here any kind of photo of the actual property. I see diagrams and plans. Is there, in
relation to other properties?

MR. SOMMER: May I approach with a couple of photographs we have?

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Please.

MR. SOMMER: This is looking from Ms. Tapia’s property towards the Ortiz
Mountains, and you can see, there’s Mr. Velarde’s home right there in the left of center.
Those are two similar photographs. That characterizes this neighborhood. These are lots 2 %%
have acres large. There is nobody within 100 feet of her home an the Velarde property is well
over 100 yards way.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I don’t know where this fits but I'm Just going
to read it anyway, and this is a letter that actually I guess was received in May 24™ Karl
Sommer’s office. It’s addressed to Rachel Tapia. It says Dear Ms. Tapia, this letter isin
response to your request for confirmation that an air permit for Loving Animals Service is not
required. Currently the department is not requiring a permit for a crematory, however, this
may change in the future if the department determines that permitting such facilities is
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necessary or if a federal regulation from the Environmental Protection Agency is issued that
requires such a permit. So there doesn’t seem to be much thought put into the permitting
process, even though the manufacturer’s equipment might say it’s okay, but I think the New
Mexico Environmental Department, the Air Quality Bureau is not issuing permits for
crematory at this time.

So I think that —

MR. SOMMER: They don’t have any requirements for it.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: But it tells me that maybe they should, because
I think it just seems that there should be more thought put into this, for me anyway. But I just
wanted to mention this for the record. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Chavez.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Vice Chairman Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I have some other questions. The first
question I’ll ask you, Mr. Sommer, is there were some comments you made relative to the
allowance of this type of business in the home occupation. Did I hear you correct? Did you
say you submitted language to the County staff during the SLDC process? You had some
document you submitted that said that this business should be one of the businesses
considered as a home occupation. Did you say that or did I hear you wrong?

MR. SOMMER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, what I said was when we
saw the first draft we added some language that would address the compatibility. It did not
address the crematorium saying it’s allowed. What we did was we added some language, and
specifically on this issue, so that it could be addressed by the administrator. And the next
thing I knew it was disallowed.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: What I want to say to that point, and thank you
for clarifying what you submitted and what your conversation was. What I do recall explicitly
was that with the home occupation business license discussion and the SLDC, we had several
conversations in these chambers, but additionally, we went out into the communities with
home occupation in hand, in tow, to the entire county. We took meetings to Galisteo. We
took meetings to Edgewood. We took meetings up north. Just on the home occupation,
because as I recall, the home occupation was one of the first items that the Commission was
trying to discuss and come up with some options and kind of float our process, if you’ll
recall, Commissioner Stefanics. We wanted to figure out how the process was going to work.
And so when we came back from those comments staff had a lot of back and forth
discussions and deliberations, and then they started bringing forth specific occupations.

And we published those occupations and then we said, what else? We talked about
existing businesses that maybe didn’t have a license. We talked about what you said earlier,
low impact versus high. Or somebody said. I don’t want to put words — but I guess the
operative point for me was that we went through a deliberative process and we actually sat
there and listed out businesses. And then in the public hearing process we went back again
and said, have we captured those? Because I know it was my intent and I think the intent of
my colleagues to evaluate home occupations to have as broad a brush as we could, but that
we would take that out for input. Do you recall some of those? Were you part of that part?

MR. SOMMER: Not part of that, Commissioner. I wasn’t part of those
discussions in terms of the community outreach, going to those hearing. I was not.
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So for me, as I’m listening to the case and
looking at the past case that went to District Court and this item, it’s not just about the
equipment in itself or the air quality of the equipment or what the Environment Department
does or doesn’t do. It’s about the fact that we’ve gone through this process of saying what’s a
mixed-use area and what’s a commercial area and what’s a home occupation area? So those
are some of the things that are going on in my mind, not that the emissions or potential
emissions might be dangerous, whether they are or they aren’t, but the process we went
through to evaluate and say what’s commercial? What’s mixed use? What’s home
occupation? Was pretty deliberate. I just want to say.

We did go through a deliberative process that included not just staff but included
many, many community members. So I think that if I was sitting in the shoes of the Land Use
Administrator I would have taken into context many of those things. I don’t know that you —
did you, Ms. Ellis-Green, as you were thinking about this particular case? I don’t want to put
words in your mouth.

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, yes. We also had a
previous denial on almost the same case from the Board of County Commissioners, so when
the decision was made to deny this application, all of that was taken into consideration. Just
to expand on the discussion about the SLDC process, we produced, or I produced a document
as we went through the public hearing processes of adoption and that specific section of the
code under home occupations was included in every document that was brought forward
because we actually changed a section in there regarding heavy equipment. And so that
section reads: roofing, towing businesses, construction yards, porta-potty leasing, vehicle
leasing, crematories, auto paint and body shop or heavy industrial uses aren’t permitted. So
there’s a number of those.

They are dealt with in another area, which is the use table of the Sustainable Land
Development Code. And on that use table, crematory facilities are allowed as permitted uses
in the ag-ranch, the rural, rural fringe, planned development districts and industrial districts.
So there are areas that we designated that we believe that that kind of facility would be
relevant to hold those kinds of businesses and not done as a home occupation. All those other
businesses that are listed are also in the use table and are dealt with as where you can do
those uses as either permitted or a conditional use, but not within any areas of the county in a
home occupation.

So it was very deliberate as we went through that and a lot of those businesses are
businesses that when they’re done on a small piece of property through an administrative
home occupation approval have in the past caused problems and caused concern from the
neighbors. And so they were addressed specifically in the use table of the SLDC.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Ms. Ellis-Green. And
I know we’re running late but I do want to ask this of you, Mr. Sommer, if you can help me
and maybe the applicant can help as well. ’'m familiar with Braemar. I’ve been there several
times myself and [ have to say to Commissioner Stefanics’ comments relative to fume
emissions or anything like that. I’ ve never experienced that in the times that I’ve been on that
site, actually known one of the managers that is one of the operators of that facility. I went to
school with the gentleman that helps run that.

But that aside, at Braemar — I think it’s Braemar, there’s a kennel there. They have a
kennel there. They hold animals. Relative to the proposal that we have in front of us, help me
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understand the animal that Ms. Tapia’s picking up and bringing in, is she bringing in animals
that are deceased? That have already died?

MR. SOMMER: That’s correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: And associated with that, [ would think — and
maybe staff will have to help me. When you have a kennel or an operation where you’re
taking in animals, there are no environmental aspects associated with that? And I’'m not
talking about cremation. I'm just talking about facility aspects or requirements on sanitary
conditions and cleanliness. I’m assuming for a kennel that there is and that they’re probably
fairly extensive. Would there be those same types of standards that would have to be upheld
in a facility in someone’s home? Help me understand that.

MR. SOMMER: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Anaya, there are no specifics with
respect to kennels in the environmental regulations that apply to them. However, Ms. Tapia
can describe to you her process and the sanitary nature of the process, if you don’t mind.
Because she knows it intimately. Thank you.

[Duly sworn, Rachel Tapia testified as follows:]

RACHEL TAPIA: Okay, the process that I go through is that if your pet
passed away you would be calling me. I would go out to your home. [ would pick up the
animal, and at this time, what I do with my business is I do a transport for cremation. What
I’m trying to do is personalize that, meaning that I would give you a full guarantee that [ am
the one handling that one animal and giving you all of your remains for your animal. Now,
we go pick up the animal, we would bring them back, we would do the cremation and we
would take you back your ashes. There would be no people on the property. It would just be
me.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So let me ask you a question. Is there any
sanitary aspects associated with the handling of that animal or any checking for potential —
what’s the risk that you’re running for yourself with any potential disease or infection that
could occur?

MS. TAPIA: Most of the people that I deal with take excellent care of their
animals. They go to vets. If the animal was put down — usually the animals I’m dealing with
aren’t diseased animals. They aren’t running at large. These people care for their pets. They
are part of their family and these are the type of people that I would like to service.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. Thank you. I don’t have any questions
right now, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you. Questions for Penny from the
code. If this business wanted to operate in the Turquoise Trail Business Park, could they?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, yes, I believe they
could.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. Keep moving right down the road.
Go to Rancho Viejo Village that has commercial properties in the middle of residential, but
it’s all commercial. There’s like a park and then there’s all these commercial businesses, a lot
of them empty. But could they operate in something like that?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, [ don’t know. We’d
have to look at the CCD Ordinance. They have a use list specifically for the Community
College District.
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COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. So is this property address in the
Community College District?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Yes. I believe it’s in an existing neighborhood of the
Community College District.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. So the Community College District is
mixed use. Is that correct?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Commissioner Stefanics, in general it’s a mixed-use
area but there are different areas. There are neighborhood centers, there are village centers,
there are employment centers. But in general, yes, the CCD is a mixed-use area.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay, so Mr. Chair, Penny, it’s come to my
memory that in Oshara we had approved live-work spaces. Would this occupation or this
business be eligible to be in one of those live-work?

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, again, I would want
to take a look at the use table that is in the Community College District Ordinance. I believe
Vicente’s just gone to get that.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. So Mr. Chair, Commissioners, where
I’m going with this is we might not be ready to make a decision on this. We might really need
to get through the land use code and clarify where things can be. And I’m hearing that we’re
not really there yet. So I just want to put that out and see who else wants to comment. Thank
you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Question for the applicant or for staff. John
Michael, what would the hours based on a home occupation license be of this business?
Hours of operation?

MR. SALAZAR: Mr. Chair, typically, on a home occupation the hours are set
on a case-by-case basis depending on what’s being applied for. Ms. Tapia might — if there
were conditions placed on the hours of operation for her she might recall that.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I’'m not trying to put you on the spot but currently under
home occupation license, maybe Ms. Ellis-Green can answer this, don’t we have core hours?
Seven to seven? Eight to eight?

MR. SALAZAR: Mr. Chair, our land development code doesn’t really have
any specifics as to what the hours of operation should be. As staff, we do our best to
implement decent hours of operation for these home occupations so someone’s not running
their air compressor at 10:30 at night. In general, most applicants, they’ll give us a list of the
hours that they’re proposing to operate and they all fall in typically within an 8:00 to 5:00
timeframe.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: That’s all I have for now, Commissioners.
Commissioners, anything else? This is a public hearing. Would anybody else from the public
care to comment on this? Please, come forward.

[Duly sworn, Patty Montes Burks testified as follows:]

PATTY MONTES BURKS: Good morning, Commissioners. It’s time for my
makeup. I’'m way past due my makeup. My name is Patty Montes Burks. I’ve lived in Valle
Lindo for 35 years, built my house there. Saw covenants there when I was given the property
by my dad. I’ve run a business out of my home, self-employed as a graphic designer. It was
just me. [ didn’t have any employees. I didn’t bother, I don’t think, anybody, unless maybe
the light from my window at 12:00 at night, just burning the midnight oil on jobs. But right
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now I’m a Community College employee. I just got home Friday night and encountered a
Capital company receptacle truck. It’s a large truck. It’s one of those ones that picks up the
dumpsters, the metal dumpsters. It’s mechanical and it’s big. And it met me right at the
corner of where I was going home and it was coming from her residence.

I don’t know if that had anything to do with this business at all. I"d like to know that
because we have a small, little rural road that we took the time to negotiate a dead-end on one
side and a dead-end on the other and I’'m seeing a Capital receptacle truck coming around the
corner. That’s just the kind of equipment we didn’t want to see on that road. It was just going
to be a local road. So that’s my first question.

My second question on this is that I understand that Rachel — I like being self-
employed. [ don’t have anything against self-employment, but I believe that she’s only been
in the neighborhood, she purchased that house seven years ago and I’ve been here 35, 37
years. So there’s a 100-foot width, approximately of this parcel. I have — I want to totally
disagree — I’m sorry, with Commissioner Stefanics who is our Commissioner. This is not an
open parcel. It is a house that’s set back just a little bit from the road, Vista del Monte. It’s
covered. You cannot see the house very well, because it’s got large, dry pine trees. It’s
covered all the way around. So there is a fire hazard, when you consider your packet, because
I saw it. I looked at it before this meeting and the equipment itself runs 1600 degrees. It can
consume 500 pounds of carcass. She is — I saw the packet and I’'m just perplexed at how her
application can include a plat layout of the proposed plan for her business. That little slab of
20 by 20 housing a 10 by 10 metal shed attached to the house. You tell me, would you like to
live in a house where an incinerator reaches 1600 degrees. You’re covered with pine trees
from the very front door. That’s posing a major hazard. It’s only 100 feet on both sides to her
neighbors. Wood, brush, she doesn’t clear her property. It’s not cleared.

There’s a paved road, a paved driveway so that is huge for me. That’s a huge issue for
me. I think that the storage of animals, because she says she’s going to pick up animals that
are trapped. Trapped animals, pet animals, any call that she gets, she’ll pick it up. Isita
diseased — how do handle that in a manner that it should be handled? I think that the packet
also has some very — very old data on the emissions, on the state approval or it’s kind of like
a nebulous approval saying, well, no don’t at the time — at this time we don’t offer a license
for that but in the future it may change. Well, that was 2012. And I understand that it was
stamped in Karl Sommer’s office as having received a copy for this case. So it’s outdated
material. I just can’t overemphasize the lack of true data to make a good decision or even
approve this kind of thing in a residential area.

The other question I have is, okay, if she gets an approval to do what I consider a high
— an industrial use. It’s an industrial use that has gone beyond the spirit of a home occupation
license. How does that tax assessment come back? Does she get taxed as a resident or does
she get taxed as a business? These are the things that we need to consider.

And I really want to commend Penny and her staff. They’ve been working hard and
trying to get these things tightened up. And I’ve seen the permitted uses and I agree with
them and I very much so agree that this use is unacceptable, it’s inappropriate for — it’s an
established neighborhood. There are people that signed a petition. I don’t know how many we
finally got, but they are true neighbors that believe that this is a residential area. She needs to
go somewhere else where the County can give her a license to run an adequate business for
this type of business, for this type of use.
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I think I covered it. I just want to commend Penny and the staff. They worked really
hard to get these codes written and they’re to protect us. And the other, I guess the big thing,
right here, right now, is that since 2008 she’s been wanting to get an approval and she’s got
denials. And when I saw — I wasn’t able — I was out of town. I wasn’t able to make the CDRC
meeting. But they barely opened their binder. It looked like they barely opened their binder.
There was no one here to defend the neighbors for that meeting, and they never addressed or
for the record that there were any objections. I had written a letter because I knew I was going
to be out of town at a conference. I wrote the letter, submitted it. It was never presented for
the record. And I think John Brown and Mike Velarde also wrote letters. So it feels like we
were really blindsided by the CDRC and that’s why Mr. Brown paid the amount that he did to
appeal this to you tonight. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Ma’am, please.

[Previously sworn, Karen Brown testified as follows:]

KAREN BROWN: My name is Karen Brown. I’'m related to the alleged John
Brown; that’s my husband. I’m afraid that the family couldn’t be here this evening. Florence
Ruth says to say Hi, Liz. Flossie goes to bed very early and so does John. But on behalf of the
Brown family — John, Willie, Flossie, myself, my two boys. We all live on the ranch there,
we were never even notified that this was going to happen. It was brought to our attention by
a neighbor on the opposite side of her residence. Apparently, we don’t count. Although the
winds blow our way.

We’ve been there for a long time. Flossie’s parents homesteaded the land in 1935.
We’re not newcomers. We didn’t just show up yesterday. I’ve been there for 34 years; my
husband born and raised. He is an honest to goodness local Santa Fean. We don’t want this.
Flat out. Just the simple facts. We don’t want it. I did a little bit of research online. The EPA
says that it does put off air particles that do affect people with respiratory problems. I have a
respiratory problem. The winds blow my way. I have allergies. Severe allergies. I take 365
days a year an anti-histamine and in the spring and fall I take nasal spray, eye drops and an
inhaler. I come from Illinois. We don’t have these weeds. And she’s going to add something
to the air that can affect a person with a respiratory problem. That doesn’t sound well for me.

I also am part owner of Santa Fe Skies RV Park. Now, granted, some of those
vehicles that come into the park are diesels and they do emit gasoline, just like the people
driving in and out of her house, my house and everybody else’s house and Highway 14, so I
can’t see where that’s really a valid point. These people come to this area as tourists. We pay
a lot of money in Santa Fe County taxes and in Santa Fe County lodgers’ taxes. These people
come here to see the beautiful city of Santa Fe and they suddenly realize they’re at 7,000 feet
above sea level. They have a respiratory problem. You add to this those particles in the air
that also affect people with a respiratory problem.

Now I know he said that the manufacturer says, any manufacturer will tell you
whatever they want you to hear because by golly they want to sell that equipment. I know
because I worked for Capital Scrap Metals Recycling Center and Auto Parks for 24 years. We
had an aluminum smelter. Now, the manufacturer swore that that smelter didn’t put off any
emissions. Yeah, well, it was a good sell. However, the EPA came out and tested that smelter
and said that it did put off emissions and it was shut down.

What I would ask of you, if you decide to do this, I think it’s time that you put some
rules on these types of businesses, where they are tested regularly for water, air, anything. But
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they need to come under some kind of testing. You have no regulations. I looked that up too.
You have no regulations that say, can/can’t, does/doesn’t, limitations. I couldn’t even find it
for the state of New Mexico. Are we that backwards that we can’t set down and say here’s
what you can do and here’s what you can’t and here’s what has to be, so [ kind of leave it in
your hands to maybe set forth some kind of regulations accordingly.

[ wanted to also mention that Mike Velarde washes his trucks out at night. Do you
think he wants to sleep in the same area as those stinky trucks? He’s not stupid, he washes
the truck at night before he parks it in the backyard. So I dare say, emissions from Mike’s
truck, probably minimal.

I also wonder what other animals. I heard rodents, dead pets, pesky animals — what
does that include? Does that mean you get to cremate a skunk? A pig? A cow? A horse? I just
wonder how many other things are being cremated out there. And what does this do to my
property values? Say somebody comes along and says, oh, yeah, there’s a pet crematorium
next door, in case you want to know. Again, we’re back to that same question. Do you want it
in your backyard? Well, I may not but the next person may be really highly opposed to that,
and you do have a very large neighborhood there.

The Turquoise Trail Subdivision — yeah, that’s a pretty big neighborhood. We went
door to door. We got signatures. I don’t know how many signatures we got because we didn’t
count them up. We just know there were a whole lot of people in that particular
neighborhood that didn’t want it. We also know there are people who stay in our RV park on
a regular basis, visiting nurses, traveling nurses, stay for 90 days. They kind of become a
resident. They were opposed to it. So there’s a lot more people out there that don’t want this
than do want this. Thank you.

[Previously sworn, Paul Krumbacher testified as follows:]

PAUL KRUMBACHER: Commissioner and Commissioners, Mr. Chair, my
name is Paul Krumbacher. I’'m a neighbor. I live over the hill in the Valle Lindo little valley.
The northwest corner of my property abuts to the southeast corner of her property. I've lived
here for about 20 years in that particular area. Before that I lived down in Santa Fe. But it’s a
nice little valley, has probably 30 homes or so in it and it is a valley so you can kind of tell
what people are doing on holidays. If they have a barbecue or something it drifts down to —
even some of the some drifts down to what you’re doing or where you are. So I guess my
objection is that I don’t really want particulates drifting down to my area. I have some
allergies; my wife has allergies. So that’s when it was objected to the first time around and
the Commissioners voted to not let it go up, I thought that was the end of it but I guess we’re
doing this again. So thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, sir. Do we have any other members from
the public wishing to comment on this case before us tonight? Thank you. Seeing none we’ll
go back to Mr. Sommer, please.

MR. SOMMER: I’ll be very brief. Let me address something that’s been said
over and over again, about the State Environment Department. I am in touch with the State
Environment Department Air Quality Bureau on a regular basis. The last time I talked with
them about this issue was February 2014 to see whether or not they had implemented any
program to establish any regulations; they have not. And they have no program planned. So
this isn’t out-of-date information. They get tired of issuing letters that say, hey, we don’t
regulate this.
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The second thing is I note for you that your SLDC doesn’t apply to this application.
The application is under the current County code and the only issue is the equipment. I also
note that the SLDC doesn’t have a minimum lot size. It has a zone. There are zones that it’s
allowed. If I have a quarter acre lot in this zone it’s a permitted use. So are we talking again
about the impact? Or are we talking about the perception. The code as you have drafted it and
the code as you are going to draft it doesn’t deal with lot size and the distance or the location.
I could have a one-acre lot, a quarter-acre lot and if I have a P in the column in that district I
can use it. What’s the logic there? I’ll tell you what the logic is. It isn’t the use that’s the
problem,; it’s the perception.

Just one last thing about property values and we could debate that all night long. Your
code doesn’t say your job is to protect their RV park’s value or her value. The code says that
you are to apply the regulation, and the only regulation in front of you deals with the
equipment. We’d stand for any questions you might have that might have been raised by the
testimony.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Sommer. I will go back, as long as
there’s nothing else that we have to go over that’s been stated, to Mr. Velarde. Mr. Velarde,
does the applicant on this appeal have anything else you care to add? Thank you. I’'m going to
go to Vice Chairman Anaya. Excuse me. I’m going to close this portion of our public
hearing. It’s now closed. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, I don’t think this is a simple case. I
don’t know that we’ve had a simple case today or for a long time. But I will say that I think
acting in the interest of the code and acting based on prior information and the current code is
what our Land Use Administrator seems to have done thus far and I think that in looking at
the deliberations of the prior Commission and some of the comments made on that particular
case and given that there isn’t a position in our new code that explicitly lays out this business,
that might change. I don’t know, Commissioner Stefanics, maybe there’ll be other
communications and other information that we might have where we maybe would have this
in the new code under a home occupation, but I don’t think it came up in those deliberations.
It’s not in there now.

Based on that fact I would move to accept the appeal.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: [ will second that, and my rationale is after
listening and consideration I don’t think we have clarity for a home occupation for this versus
light industrial. And I was trying — when I asked the questions about where this could be
located I think that that remains a big question mark in my mind. And so the reason I’'m
seconding the motion to approve the appeal is because until we have clarity I don’t think we
can even identify where this should be. And that’s why I asked questions earlier about
standards. I think we need some standards. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner Stefanics. Commissioners,
seeing no other discussion we have a motion and a second in front of us to accept the appeal.

The motion passed by unanimous [3-1] voice vote with Commissioner Mayfield
casting the nay vote. [Commissioner Holian was not present for this action.]
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CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioners and thank you all for being
with us.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I am asking our Land Use Administrator
though to address this for the future so that we do have some clarity in our code.

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, in the use table —

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I think that as we hear about different
occupations we need to decide where they fit.

MS. ELLIS-GREEN: Okay. We will be in front of the Board at the end of
May and the end of June. We are bringing forward changes to the use table and changes to
the SLDC so we can certainly have that discussion.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: It would be appreciated. Because we’re
going to have requests for different types of occupations and maybe we have to identify not
the occupation per se but the issue. Acceptance within a neighborhood? Now, I don’t believe
in not in your backyard, especially when it comes to things like affordable housing, etc. So I
think we have to be careful about occupations and not in my backyard. But if we want to start
looking at water quality, air quality, hours of operation, anything else, I think we need to
identify some of those things. Thank you very much.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Commissioners. Welcome to a new day.

VIII. B. 6. BCC CASFE # MIS 02-4326 La Pradera Subdivision Time
Extension. Gardner Associates and La Pradera Associates,
Applicants, Request a 2-Year Time Extension of the Previously
Approved Final Plat and Development Plan for Phases 4, 5 and 6B
and the Master Plat Lots (Lots 33 and 69) in Phase 1 Consisting of
72 Lots of the La Pradera Subdivision. The Property is Located
Off of Dinosaur Trail, South of I-25, within the Community
College District, within Section 17, Township 16 North, Range 9
East, NMPM, Santa Fe County (Commission District 5)

On January 31, 2006 the BCC granted Preliminary Plat/Development Plan approval
for Phases 2 thru 6 and final approval for Phases 2 and 3 consisting of 97 lots. The final plat
for Phase 2 and 3 were recorded per this approval. .

On July 10, 2007, the BCC granted Final Plat/Development Plan approval for phases
4 thru 6 of the La Pradera Subdivision which consisted of 60 lots on 28.4 acres

On May 10, 2011, the BCC granted authorization to proceed with a Master Plat for
the creation of 21 residential lots within Phase 1of the existing La Pradera Subdivision,
which does not require that a specific lot layout be defined prior to plat recordation and
would grant administrative authority to create lot boundaries once buyers are identified or
home construction is complete.

On September 13, 2011, the BCC granted approval of a Master Plan Amendment to
allow the creation of 27 new residential lots and to allow for the previously approved 32,667
square feet of commercial/residential area, parking lot and 11 condominiums to be replaced
with 17 single-family residential live/work lots. The request also included Preliminary and
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Final Plat and Development Plan approval for 27 new lots and several lot line adjustments in
Phases 2-6 and 4 Master Plat lots which could be developed into a total of 17 single-family,
live/work lots.

The Applicants now request a time extension of Phases 4, 5, 6B which expired in July
2009 and Master Plat Lots 33 and 69 which expired in September 2013. Phase 6B will be
recorded immediately if this request is granted. Phase 5 will likely be recorded in February
2015. Phase 4 in August 2015 and Master Plat lots 33 and 69 will likely be recorded in
summer of 2014.

The Applicant states: “As you are aware market conditions slowed the home sales in
our community.”

Article V, Section 5.4.6 of the Code states, “An approved or conditionally approved
final plat, approved after July 1, 1996 shall be recorded within 24 months after its approval or
conditional approval or the plat shall expire. Upon request by the subdivider, an additional
period of no more than 36 months may be added to the expiration date by the Board.” On
December 13, 2011, the Board of County Commissioners adopted Resolution No. 2011-193
which found the existence of severe economic conditions and suspended enforcement of
specified provisions of Article V of the Land Development Code that concern expiration of
Master Plans, Preliminary Plats and Final Plats.

On December 13, 2011, the Board of County Commissioners also adopted Ordinance
No. 2011-11, which states “The Board of County Commissioners may suspend provisions of
Article V, Sections 5.2.7, 5.3.6, and 5.4.6 of the Code upon a finding of economic necessity,
which is defined in terms of a score of 100 or less on the Conference Board’s Leading
Economic Index for the United States for any quarter, and for three years following any such
event, and the Board recognizes that these conditions are present and desires to temporarily
suspend the enforcement of those sections of Article V that set forth expiration of Master
Plans, Preliminary Plats and Final Plats for two years pending an economic recovery.”

As of July 10, 2009, the Final Plat and Development Plan for La Pradera Phases 4, 5
and 6B have expired. As of September 13, 2013 the Preliminary and Final Plat for the Master
Plat Lots in Phase 1 have also expired. As of December 2013, the Conference Board Leading
Economic Index was 99.4.

Staff recommendation: Approval of the request for a 24-month time extension of the
approved Final Plat and Development Plan for La Pradera Phases 4, 5 and 6B and the Master
Plat Lots — Lots 33 and 69, in Phase 1.

Mr. Chair, I stand for questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Archuleta. Do we have the applicant
with us tonight? Ms. Guerrerortiz.

[Previously sworn, Oralynn Guerrerortiz testified as follows:]

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: I'm Oralynn Guerrerortiz with Design Enginuity and
I’ve already been sworn.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Please, do you have anything to add?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: I don’t at this time. I can’t think anymore. But there’s
no conditions. We’re hoping that you’ll go ahead and agree to our request for extension.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. This is a public hearing. Does anyone from
the public wish to comment on this case before us tonight? Seeing none, this portion is
closed.
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COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics.
COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I’ll move for approval.
COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second.

The motion passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote. [Commissioner Holian was not
present for this action.]

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thanks for being with us tonight.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Just a question. The item expired — typically
we’ve been seeing them before the expiration. Just as we go forward, I would just encourage
all applicants to come in for the extension before the expiration, not after.

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: May I speak to that point?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Sure.

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: I don’t really want to go into the details but we did
make application. We had several conversations in 2009 which — we expired I think they say
in August 2009. We actually got a letter from Shelley Cobau dated April 2009. I have it in
my possession if you’d like a copy, and it says that the staff made a determination at that time
that we did not need to come before the BCC for an extension. I could read it if you’d like me
to read it but I can guarantee you that we mind the dates; we were here and we were told we
did not have to come.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. You could give that to Ms. Ellis-Green
though so she could have it for her records.

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: Staff was given a copy.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Oralynn.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Chair, one other question. Mr. McCarthy or
Mr. Bobby Lee, are you guys seeing any indication of the market shifting and improving
associated with real estate and construction? Do we have — they seem to be improving but
from your perspective, are they?

BOBBY LEE TRUIJILLO: Yes, the market is starting to get better now. We’ve
seen more of a stabilization and we’ve been able to get a couple of buildings out of
Albuquerque to come and work in our subdivision so it’s starting to pick up.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Good. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

VIII. B. 7. CDRC CASE # 7, 14-5010 31 Bonanza Creek Road. Leslie Moody
and Mitchell Ackerman, Applicants, Jenkinsgavin, Agents,
Request Master Plan Zoning Approval to Allow a Bed and
Breakfast within an Existing Residence on 9.94 Acres. The
Property is Located on the West Side of Highway 14 Off Bonanza
Creek Road (County Road 45), within Section 26, Township 15
North, Range 8 East (Commission District 5)
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JOSE E. LARRANAGA, (Case Manager): Thank you, Mr. Chair. On March
20, 2014, the County Development Review Committee met and acted on this case. The
decision of the CDRC was to recommend approval of the Applicants’ request, for Master
Plan Zoning with staff conditions. The CDRC also recommended that the Applicants provide
water rights if the water use for the bed & breakfast exceeds three acre-feet of water per year.

The Applicants request Master Plan Zoning approval to allow an existing 5,580
square foot five-bedroom residence to operate as a Bed and Breakfast. There are two
dwellings on the 9.94-acre site. A 4,561 square foot residence will be utilized by the
Applicants as their primary residence and the second residence will be utilized as a five-
bedroom bed and breakfast. The Applicants are not proposing any expansion of the existing
structures as part of this Application.

The bed & breakfast is currently in operation without the proper zoning approval or
Business License from Santa Fe County. This statement is based on an observation made by
staff on a site visit and advertisement on the internet as Rancho Gallina in Santa Fe.

The two existing dwellings on the 9.94-acre parcel are non-conforming as per the
density requirements of the Land Development Code. The Applicants propose two kitchens
in the five-bedroom residence which will operate as the Bed and Breakfast and a kitchen in
the Applicants’ residence. Ordinance No. 1998-9 states: “Any such structure, mobile home or
unit that contains both a kitchen or cooking facility and a bathtub or shower shall be
presumed to be a dwelling”. At the most basic level, a bed and breakfast is a place, often
found in a renovated home, mansion or small hotel, to spend the night and enjoy a full
breakfast in the morning. In observance of the non-conforming status of the site only two
kitchens shall be utilized on site.

Building and Development Services staff have reviewed this project for compliance
with pertinent Code requirements and have found that the facts presented support the request
for Master Plan Zoning: the Application is comprehensive in establishing the scope of the
project; the County Hydrologist has determined that the application is sufficient for Master
Plan; the Application satisfies the submittal requirements set forth in the Land Development
Code. The review comments from State Agencies and County staff have established findings
that this Application is in compliance with state requirements and Article V, § 5, Master Plan
Procedures of the Land Development Code.

Staff recommendation is conditional approval of Master Plan Zoning, to allow a Bed
and Breakfast within an existing residence on 9.94 acres, subject to the following staff
conditions:

1. The Applicant shall comply with all review agency comments and conditions, as per
Article V, § 7.1.3.c.

2. Master Plan with appropriate signatures shall be recorded with the County Clerk, as
per Article V, § 5.2.5.

3. Only two (2) kitchens shall be allowed on the site in keeping with the non-conforming

status of the site, as per Article II, § 4.5.
4, The Preliminary and Final Development Plan shall be submitted promptly after 90
days of data collection on actual water use is obtained. The Final Development Plan

shall be submitted to the County Development Review Committee accompanied by a
staff report, as per Article V, § 7.
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5. The Applicant shall provide water rights if the proposed water use for the Bed and

Breakfast exceeds three acre-feet of water per year.

Mr. Chair, I stand for any questions.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Larrafiaga. Commissioners, any
questions of staff? Thank you. The applicant please.

[Duly sworn, Jennifer Jenkins testified as follows:]

JENNIFER JENKINS: Good evening, Chairman, Commissioners. I’'m
Jennifer Jenkins with Jenkins-Gavin Design and Development, and this is Colleen Gavin, and
we are here this evening on behalf of Leslie Moody and Mitch Ackerman in request for
master plan approval. Oh, good morning. I apologize. Good morning.

We’ll attempt to be extremely brief. Are your monitors working at your seats this
evening?

MS. JENKINS: Okay, wonderful. Great. So the subject property is just under
ten acres and it is located just west of Highway 14 on Bonanza Creek Road, just about a
quarter mile west. The property houses a 5,500 square foot structure as well as a 4,500 square
foot residence. That is the owners’ residence. They have invested significantly in this
property. They are producing 80 percent of their own electricity with solar panels. They’ve a
geothermal system. They have significant water catchment and it’s really their desire to create
a very eco-friendly lodging opportunity for the Turquoise Trail corridor.

With respect to the Sustainable Land Development Code the proposed zoning for this
area is rural residential. Bed and breakfast inns are listed as a conditional use in the
Sustainable Land Development Code, so the master plan process that we are engaged in right
now actually aligns with the conditional use permit process that is laid out in the Sustainable
Land Development Code. This process is actually more stringent than what would be
required once that code is effective. So we are consistent with the future code. I
would like to bring your attention to Exhibit 3 of your staff report. We have two letters of
support from the community associations. There are essentially two community associations
in this area. One is the San Marcos Association and the letter from Walter Wait of the San
Marcos Association states that the plans are in keeping with the rural residential nature of our
district and that the B&B would make a good contribution to our community.

Secondly, we have a letter of support from Kevin Box who is the president of the
Turquoise Trail Association, and Kevin points out that the Turquoise Trail Corridor
Management Plan, or the CMP, calls out for creating, achieving appropriate development of
rural lodging in the Turquoise Trail Corridor. Bed and Breakfasts are precisely the type of
lodging and business encouraged by the Corridor Management Plan because it creates high
quality jobs in the area while retaining the rural character that is important to the Turquoise
Trail. And that this proposal is really ideal in realizing the vision of the Corridor
Management Plan for the Turquoise Trail Corridor.

With that, [ would like to state that we are in agreement with staff conditions and we
would be happy to stand for any questions. Thank you very much for your attention.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. Commissioners, any questions of the
applicant? Seeing none, this is a public hearing. We will go to the public. Do any members of
the public wish to comment on this case? Mr. Wait.

[Duly sworn, Walter Wait testified as follows:]
WALTER WAIT: Walter Wait, 48 Bonanza Creek Road, Santa Fe. The San
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Marcos Association of which I’'m a board member, the board of directors met with Leslie
Moody and Mitchell Ackerman at the association’s March 13" board meeting and at that
meeting we discussed their plans to initiate a bed and breakfast at 31 Bonanza Creek Road in
the San Marcos district. And after discussing their plans and reviewing the history of the
property, which included quite a bit of past schools and rental properties and so on and so
forth, our board felt that the plans are in keeping with our rural lifestyle and feel very
comfortable with them joining our neighborhood. And our board recommended strongly that
you approve the development of the B&B.

Now, I live on Bonanza Creek Road, just down the street from there and I feel as
though it would be a really good addition to our neighborhood as well, speaking as an
individual living just down the street from them. So I do hope that you’ll pass this and let
them go forward. Thank you.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Wait. Commissioners? Commissioner
Chavez, please.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: I have a question maybe for staff. I'll just put it
out there. Bed and breakfasts, do they collect lodgers’ tax the same as a hotel?

MR. LARRANAGA: Mr. Chair, Commissioner Chavez, yes. Until the get the
business license and get it totally approved then they would start charging.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: So you’re tracking that as well?

MR. LARRANAGA: That’s correct.

COMMISSIONER CHAVEZ: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I'd move for approval.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Second.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: We have a motion and a second. I just have a quick
question and I’ll be brief. On the summary, there were some questions brought up, Mr.
Larrafiaga about the water for this business. What are they asking to use and what permits to
do they have for their water?

MR. LARRANAGA: Mr. Chair, the water use, there was a disagreement. It
was reviewed by the County Hydrologist and she didn’t quite agree with the water budget
that the agent submitted. So they are on a — for master plan the County Hydrologist agreed
that they had enough water for the master plan but for final development plan they would
have to come up with a plan to meter the well and turn in meter readings for up to 90 days
and see if they would come in under a quarter acre-foot of water for that use and then she
would — we would go forward with preliminary and final development plan.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: And they do have a commercial well application or a
commercial well permit? Three acre-feet from the State Engineer?

MR. LARRANAGA: Mr. Chair, the well is a residential well and the property
is residential right now. So after the master plan, the zoning would change for commercial for
a bed and breakfast and that would be one of our conditions, that they would re-record the
well as a commercial well.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Thank you. We have a motion and a second in front of
us.

MR. SHAFFER: Mr. Chair, if I could, just a point of clarification before you
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vote on the motion. If you want to confirm that there are no other members in the public that
want to speak on the matter and close the public hearing, just so you have a clean record.
That would be my recommendation.

CHAIR MAYFIELD: I appreciate that. I thought I did that but it’s a little late.
Are there any other members from the public wishing to comment on this case in front of us?

Seeing none this public hearing is closed on this matter. Thank you, Mr. Shaffer. We have a
motion and a second.

The motion passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote. [Commissioner Holian was not
present. |

CHAIR MAYFIELD: Commissioners, there’s no need for executive session, 1
hope, because I ain’t going to be here. Mr. Shaffer, we’ll see you in a couple weeks.

IX. CONCLUDING BUSINESS
A. Announcements

B. Adjournment

Having completed the agenda and with no further business to come before this body,
Chair Mayfield declared this meeting adjourned at 12:50 a.m.

Approved by:
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Dear Santa Fe County residents:

On behalf of the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC} | am pleased
fo present our county’s first calendar
year Annual Report. The Annual
Report is a glimpse info the daily
operations of Santa Fe County,
by highlighting a few select ac-
complishments. In 2013 many
accomplishments were noteworthy
in particular the approval of the Sus-
tainable Land Development Code,
completion of a community survey,
construction of new solar projects,
the expansion of our senior services
and continved effarts to improve
county government transparency.

The Santa Fe Board of County Com-
missioners unanimously approved
Ordinance 2013-6, which adopted
the Sustainable Lland Development
Code (SIDC} at the December 10,
2013 Board meeting. Currently,
Santa Fe County is working on
the public process element of
the Zoning Map, which will be
presented to the BCC mid 2014.
The Sustainable Lland Development
Code will not become effective
until after the County Zoning Map
is adopted.

Santa Fe County has made vast
improvements in transparency over
the last few years. Commission
meetings are broadcast live on the
website www.santafecountynm.
gov, Comcast Ch. 28 and on Que
Suave AM 810. Santa Fe County

also sends out a meeting summary

1he Tesugue
FHire Station
solarization
oroject nas
served as
a modael
renewable
energy intiative
and led to
another solar
oroject at
the Chimayo
Fre Station
n 2014,

after each meeting as a quick
reference for residents. For several
years, in addition to broadcasting
meetings, agendas and packet
material (when available) is posted
on the County website for County
committees as well as committees
Commissioners participate in.
Santa Fe County is a multiyear
recipient of the Sunshine Award
(Website Transparency Efforts) and
received an A+ for the final year
of the awards, which was 2013.
Santa Fe County continues to work
diligently to ensure that we achieve
the highest level of transparency in
county government and community
outreach. In 2013 the Citizens
Survey was sent fo randomly se-
lected County households located
in unincorporated areas of Santa
Fe County, which focused on the
quality and usefulness of Santa Fe
County services.

Along with fransparency, Santa
Fe County has been making great
strides in solar power and energy
efficiency. In 2013 the Tesuque Fire
Station become the first fire station
in Santa Fe County to be powered
by the sun. The project, which
boasts a 6.1 kilowatt solar system,
was funded by Commission District
1 funds along with funds from the
nonprofit New Energy Economy
as part of its “Sol not Coal” cam-
paign. The Tesuque Fire Station
solarization project has served as
a model renewable energy inifiative
and led to another solar project at
the Chimayo Fire Station in 2014.




Additionally, the new Steve Herrera
First Judicial Courthouse olso has
solar panels on the roof that help
offset electricity costs and is seeking
LEED Gold certification. Santa Fe
has other County buildings with
energy efficient technology and
solar technology including the
Public Works Facility. One area
of significant note is the unanimous
passage of Santa Fe County Resolu-
tion 2013-7, a Resolution adopting
Sustainable Resource Management
Principles and directing stoff 1o
"lead By Example” with respect to
implementing costeffective waste
reduction, recycling and clean ener-
gy strategies in County operations.

Santa Fe County worked diligently
over the past year fo expand our

Senior Services, including the ex-
pansion of home delivered meals,
food commodity distribution and
a new monthly newsletter that is
available o program participants
and the public. In 2013 Santa Fe
Counly increased home delivery
services by approximotely 20
percent. We added the Rufina
meol site, which provides congre-
gate and home delivered meals.
Santo Fe County also started food
commodity distribution os part of
their home delivery bringing fresh
vegetables like cabbage, squash,
cucumbers, tomatoes and more
to seniors. One of the favorite
changes amongst the seniors
in 2013 was the addition of a
monthly newsletter. The newsletter

showcases monthly activities,

while announcing monthly events
and acfivities.

| hope you enjoy reading about
more of our accomplishments and
enjoy the 2013 Annual Report. We
look forward to completing more
great projects in 2014. As alwoys
we encourage residents to confact
us and let us know how we are
doing and where we can improve.

Q0 ok

Chair, Daniel Mayfield
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The Health Care Assistance Pro-
gram provides financial assistance
toward health care costs of County
residents without adequate funds.
The program is administered by the
Board of County Commissioners in
its capacity as the indigent Hospital
and Health Care Board funded by
the County’s gross receipts tax.

In 2013, the program processed
8,914 approved claims of County
residents, for close to $6.2 mil-
lion. These claims covered care
provided by clinics, substance
abuse freatment providers, ambu-
lance services, and mental health
providers with Santa Fe County.
Claims also covered care provid-
ed by CHRISTUS St. Vincent and
hospitals in Espancla, Los Alomos
and Albuguerque.

Through the Health Care Assistance
Program Santa Fe County paid for
the cremation of 38 indigent and/
or unclaimed County residents in

20138.

This program is expected to undergo
significate changes in 2014 os a
result of State Statute changes and
the Affordable Health Care Act.

"We are proud
of developing
relationships
with partners
ke CHRISTUS,
the City, the
Department
of Health, La
Familia and
SO many
others wno
helo make
Our community
healthier,
and more
engaged,” sad
Fatricia Boies,
Community
Senvices
Department.

The Santa Fe County Mobile Health
Van travels throughout the County,
providing free health services
including blood pressure screening,
glucose checks, cholesterol fests,
body-mass index {BMI} tests, and
oxygen assessments. Nurses also
provide health information, in both

English and Spanish and refer people
to health care providers, including
primary care, behavioral health, and
denial providers. In 2013 the Mobile
Health Van expanded services to
include weekends.

In 2013, the Community Services
Department hired a full-time
community health nurse and began
outreach and collaboration with
new locations, including parinering
with the Interfaith Community Shelter,
Santa Fe Community College, Zona
del Sol, and the Turquoise Trail Fire
Station. This is in addition to frequent
visits to all the Santa Fe County senior
centers in El Rancho, Chimayo,
Edgewood, Eldorado, and Santa
Cruz, and to local churches and
community events and gathering
places. These preventive efforts, as
well as new approaches to using the
van, will lead to reaching more of the
underserved in Sanfa Fe County.

For more on the Mobile Health Van
visit www.santafecountynm.gov »
Community Services » Health and
Human Services Division » Santa Fe
County Mobile Health Van.

Total visitors 2,010
Blood pressure checks 2,006
Blood glucose checks 1,807
Referrols to providers/agencies 396
Discount prescription drug cards 521
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The purpose and objective of the
Santa Fe County DWI Program is
to reduce impaired driving, DWI
crashes, and alcohol related fa-
talities. The Santa Fe County DWI
Program develops, implements and
sustains programs and initiatives to
mifigate the horrible consequences
of driving while impaired. The Pro-
gram works fo increase personal
and public safety by preventing
or reducing the incidence of DWI,
DWI related crashes and fatalities,
alcoholism, and alcohol and other
drug abuse.

Santa Fe County closed 2013
with six alcohol involved fatalities,
which represented 66 percent
of all crash deaths in Santa Fe
County. This is down from seven in
2012. There were a total of 106
alcohol involved crashes, down
from 128 in 2012. The number of
DWI arrests decreased from 820
in 2012 to 781 in 2013, a five
percent decrease. Overall 504
vehicles were seized, 50 of them
by the Santa Fe County Sheriff’s
Department.

For more on Santa Fe County DWI
Program visit www.santafecoun-
tynm.gov » Community Services »
DWI Program.

"Santa Fe
County pald for
over 12,000
cab rndes
nome last yeer,
keeping drunk
drivers off the
roads In our
community,”
Lupe A
sSanchez,
DWI Planning
Coordinator

In 2013 the Santa Fe County
DWI Program launched two public
awareness campaigns, Who's
Picking You Up Tonight and At .08
We Incarcerate. Both campaigns
featured purchosed and earned
media that highlighted the increosing

threat of arrest by law enforcement
for driving drunk and the safer option
of a Cab Ride Home. Advertising
appeared in the Santa Fe New
Mexican, Santa Fe Reporter, the
Nightlife Guide and the Restaurant
Guide, The Santa Fe Bandstand
program guide, AHA Festival Guide,
and other high-visibility and high
traffic areas. Radio commercials ran
on several Santa Fe County radio
stations. Public transportation buses
also spread the word. King Kong
wraps adorned the sides of buses
with the message in both English and
Spanish, and over 25,000 coasters
were delivered in 2013 to more than
30 bars throughout Santa Fe with the
message fo not drive drunk but to
take a reduced rate cab ride home.

The Cab Ride Home is provided
as a public service on Friday
and Saturday nights, as well as
some holidays nights because
crash and arrest data show this
is when more drunk drivers are on
the road. During 2013, a study
of the pilot program determined
that there was a slight reduction
in ridership but an increase in
the most important ride, the ride
home after drinking. The study
recommended increasing the price
patrons pay from $1 to $5 per
cab for one or two riders and
$10 per cab for three or more.









The RECC receives all police,
fire, medical and animal control
Emergency 911 calls and non-emer-
gency calls for Sania Fe County,
the City of Santa Fe and the Town
of Edgewood, and dispotches the
appropriate agency fo the location
as needed. The Center operates on
a 24 hour/7 day a week schedule.

In calendar year 2013, the RECC
completed the implementation of
the pilot project for utilization of
Clobal Positioning System [GPS)/
Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL]
systems and the upgrade to the
Computer-Aided Design [CAD) and
mapping systems. RECC is now
implementing closest unit dispatch
protocols that will allow disptach
to deploy the response resource
that is physically closest to the
incident, in place of radio calls to
units. This will decrease response
times, improve officer and field
unit safety, and increase overall
dispatch efficiency.

RECC has established the Santa Fe
County Cenfer as a training hub for
the region, hosting classes attended
by law enforcement, fire and EMS
agency personnel from various sur-
rounding jurisdictions. Many Santa
Fe County RECC employees have
attained certification as State law
Enforcement Academy accredited
instructors, allowing them fo teach
at the State Dispatch Academy and
elsewhere as needed.

Santa Fe RECC was instrumental in
getting New Mexico @11 operators
included as scholarship recipients
for funding to attend training in
dealing with all ospects of violent
crime. As a result, New Mexico
911 operators have also now
been added to the list of eligible
recipients for statewide training
grant money provided by the United
Stotes Department of Justice through
the New Mexico Crime Victims
Reparation Commission under the
Violence against Women Act.

Total telephone calls handled 413,058
of those 76,658 were 911 calls

County response units dicneiched 76,176

City response units dispatched 143,500

Town of Edgewood
response units dispatched 5,942

National Incident Management
System Utilized for Santuario de
Chimayo Pilgrimoge

Over 20 Public Safety Agencies
spanning five separate jurisdictions
came together in the 2013 event
using the National Incident Man-
agement System. This system is a
joint coordination effort between
Santa Fe and Rio Arriba County
Emergency Management Offices.

By request from County Commis-
sioners the Office of Emergency
Management presented several
Community Wildfire Preparedness
meetings throughout the County.
The public was introduced to the
Ready, Set, Go Program which
was recently adopied by the New
Mexico State Forestry Department.

Flooding in 2013 ied to over
a week of Emergency Manage-
ment response. Over a thousand
sandbags were delivered to San
lldefonso Pueblo. Severe flooding
around Santa Fe County led to four
simultoneous swift water rescue
calls in the Turquoise Trail orea and
below the Galisteo Dam. General
Goodwin and other roads in the
area were impassable by emergen-
cy vehicles. Santa Fe County Office
of Emergency Management request-
ed National Guard assistance.

o Full Scale Active Shooter Exercise

* Bureau of Reclamation/ County
Emergency Operations Center Drill

¢ School Emergency
Planning Activities






























The Sustainable Lland Development
Code (SIDC ) was adopted by the
Board of County Commissioners
through Ordinance 2013-6 on
December 10, 2013. The SIDC
was adopted after an extensive
public input process. The public
input process included the release of
the SIDC Adoption Draft in October
2013, which incorporated revisions
to the SLDC Public Review Draft that
was released in September 2012.
Meetings were held in each area |
El Centro, El Norte, Galisteo and
Estancia) of the County as part of
the outreach process in addition to
Board of County Commissioners
Study Sessions and Public Hearings.
The public provided comments on
the draft throughout the process.

In addition to the extensive rewrite,
the following items were developed
for the SIDC process:

® Developed preliminary
zoning map for the SIDC

e Created Official Map Series for
Sustainable land Development
Code, consisting of:

® Sustainable Development
Areas map;

* Existing rightsofway map;

* Future road network map;

® Bikeways map;

* Open space, frails,

“We take pride
N WOorking witn
communities
within Santa e
County. The
community
panning
orogram
continues to
evolve under
the Sustainable
Growth
Management
Flan objectives,
setting forth a
transparent,
manageable
and legal role
for community
and area vased
carticipation,”
Robert
Griego, Santa
Fe County
Flanning
Manager

and parks map;
* Uilities map

* Created Affordable
Housing Requirements and
Archaeological Profection
Zones maps for Sustainable
Land Development Code.

® Revised proposed Official
Zoning Map for Sustainable
Land Development Code,
based on public comments
that have been received.

* Created zoning map GIS data for
the community plarbased zoning
ordinances and land use plans (12
altogether ) that has been rectified
to the County’s current parcel data,
for potential use in SLDC Official
Zoning Map. Also created matrix
showing passible relationship of
zoning districts in community zoning
ordinance to SIDC zoning districts.

¢ Reviewed and revised
zoningrrelated provisions in
the draft Sustainable Land
Development Code.

® Prepared GIS data and maps
showing the geographic analysis
zones that will be used for making
population and employment
forecasts, for use in drafting
the Counly's development
impoct fee ordinance.

The zoning map will move through
an approval process in 2014,
once it is approved the SLDC will
take effect as the new development
Code for Santa Fe County.







Santa Fe County received a
$2,500 grant from the NM Eco-
nomic Development Department for
the Certified Communities Initiative,
which will be used to support un-
incorporated communities within
Santa Fe County with their mar-
keting and Public Relation efforts.

Santa Fe County initiated environ-
mental remediation efforts at the
Galisteo Road property {Old Public
Works yard) in an effort to prepare
the site for a residential housing
project with affordable housing
and senior housing components. A
Phase | Environmental Assessment
was completed, as well as a Min-
imum Site Assessment for the NM
Environment Dept. Petroleum Tank
Storage Bureau.

Santa Fe County collaborated on
ond hosted a series of economic
development seminars for elected
officials and staff from Santa Fe
County, los Alamos County, Rio
Arriba County, and Taos County.

Santa Fe County sponsored the
BizMix business plan competition.

Santa Fe County sponsored the
SF Business Incubator’s Global
Entrepreneurship Week.

In collaboration with City of Santa
Fe, the Regional Development Cor-
poration, and the NM Partnership,
coordinated efforts to include out-
door recreation/ecotourism on the
list of the NM Partnership’s fargeted
industries for business recruitment.

Santa Fe County completed a
draft Economic Development Plan
in 2013, to be considered by the
Board of County Commissioners

for adoption 2014,

The Economic Development Plan is
an initiative to implement the Eco-
nomic Development element of the
Sustainable Growth Manogement
Plan {SGMP). This Plan addresses
the five target industries identified
in the SGMP, which include:

o Ars/Culture

e Outdoor Recreation/Ecotourism
e Film/Media

* Green Energy/Vater

* Agriculiure

It also adds on odditional target
industry of Health/Wellness. The
Plan provides an analysis of the lo-
cal economy, and includes specific
recommendations and policies for
implementation.

Santa Fe Studios is one of the
largest economic development
projects in Santa Fe County, and is
the newest, most modern studios in
New Mexico. With 2 sound stages
totaling almost 40,000 sq. .

On Site Llocal Economic Develop-
ment Act (LEDA]} Job Hours

® 2nd Quarter 2013 On Site
LEDA job hours: 6,474

e 3rd Quarter 2013 On Site
LEDA job hours: 7,774

o Ath Quarter 2013 On Site
LEDA job hours: 7,202
The total LEDA hours of 207,700

is Construction plus on Site.

A Million Ways To Die In The West
* The Sixth Gun
* Cosmos: A Space Time Odyssey

The Open Space and Trails Com-
munity Planner position was moved
to the Planning Division in 2013
to address open space and trails
planning and 1o be the liaison
with the County Open Lands Parks
and Trails Committee [COLTPAC).
COLTPAC initiated a process to
address long range planning
needs for open space, trails and
parks Countywide. The Board of
County Commissioners approved
a Resolution for El Camino Reol
Buckman Road refracement project
fo submit a Federal lands Access
Program (FLAP) application for
federal grant funds.













A new fraffic calming policy was
adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners on September 23,
2013 as the previous speed hump
policy sunset in July of 2010. This
new policy provides a mechanism
for local residents 1o initiate traffic
calming in their neighborhoods and
allows for the use of appropriate
traffic calming tools to help alleviate
the negative impacts caused by
traffic and speeding vehicles. This
traffic calming policy is designed
to coordinate the collaboration
of County staff and citizens, in
an effort 1o produce effective traf-
fic calming throughout Santa Fe
County’s Communities on Santa Fe
County maintained roads. For more
information, including a copy of the
Ordinance and related documents
visit www.santafecountynm.gov »
Public Works » Traffic Engineering
Division

Santa Fe County completed the
second phase of the CR98 Road
Widening project. This project
involved widening the east side

"The most
direct
interaction that
many County
resicgents
nave with thelir
government is
tnrougn Pubiic
Works: roads,
solld waste ana
water, This
makes our job
that much more
important,”
Santa Fe
County FPublic
Works Director,
Adam Lelgiana

of CR98. The project length was
2.26 miles, just east and south
of Chimayo. The construction of
this project began on August 27,
2013 and was completed on
October 31, 2013. The final

consfruction cost came in at a
savings of $26,226.02 from the
initial construction bid amount. The
savings on this project came from
the implementation of supplementary
quality assurance procedures the
contractor had to adhere to in the
placement of construction material
and the construction inspector
ensuring compliance. This project
also required the modification to
existing drainage structures in order
fo accommodate the road widening.

Sania Fe Counlty recently complefed
the Caja Del Rio Road Improvement
Project and upon the completion
had a total project savings of
over $200,000 and a reduced
completion time. The cost savings
and shorter project time came from
an exfensive coordination between
the Project Management, Public
Works Department, Public Safety
Department, Public Information
Office, City of Santa Fe, local
business and homeowners and
the Contractor. The coordination
allowed for a full road closure
and work performed overnight, in
place of building temporary roads,
which was needed for installing a
necessary culvert. In Addition to
the cost savings, by not construct-
ing and removing the temporary
roads, the project was completed
six weeks earlier.




Santa Fe County contracted Bohon-
nan Huston as the design firm, The
Louis Berger Group construction
manager and contractor, Albuquer
que Asphalt, Inc, for this project.
The Caja Del Rio Road Improve-
ment Project included the rehabilito-
tion of 1.9 miles of existing asphalt
surface to withstand current traffic
demands and widening the road
fo accommodate bicycle lanes.

The new Steve Herrera First Judicial
Complex was completed in Febru-
ary of 2013. The 103,000 square
foot facility encountered numerous
challenges during construction
including the removal of 25,000
tons of contaminated soil, the treat-
ment of approximately 5.5 million
gollons of impacted ground water
to remove contaminants and over
15,000 gallons of perched gaso-
line left by leaking tanks at three
former gas stations. The Courts
moved info the new building during
the first week of June and officially
opened on June 10, 2013.

The completed project is seeking
a LEED Gold |leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design) designa-
tion. Conservation features include
Storm Water calchment and sforage
for irrigation, high efficiency heat-
ing and cooling, high efficiency
water fixtures, green paper products
and janitorial supplies and a roof
mounted array of photovoltaic solar
collectors that provide 12% of the
buildings total electrical demand.
The completion of this project
represents the culmination of over
eight years of collaborative effort
between Santa Fe County, the First
Judicial District Court and its judges
and the State of New Mexico.

The £l Rancho Community/Senior
Center Basketball Court and Pojoa-
que Tennis Courts located off NM
503 were rebuilt and re-surfaced in
the Summer of 201 3. The existing
courts were over laid with three
inches of new asphalt and received
new acrylic playing surfaces. Both
facilities receive high use by the
public and their refurbishment will
allow for continued use well into
the future.

The Edgewood Open Space is a
30 acre tract located in the Town
of Edgewood. The project consists
of an equestrian arena, trails, and a
picnic area and is jointly operoted
with the City of Edgewood and the
County. The project was completed
in August 2013.

Located at the intersection of
South Meadows Drive and Rufina
Road, the South Meadows Open
Space property was identified as
a significant community resource
by community members the year
2000. The County Commission
recognized a unique opportunity
fo provide a single, large parcel
of open space to the community in
a rapidly urbanizing area of the
greater Santa Fe Metro Area and
approved the property for acqui-
sition in 2001, The design of the
project is complefe and the project
is curiently waiting for additional
construction funding.

The Rail Trail is a proposed 12
mile improved trail within the San-
ta Fe Southern Rail Road Right
of Way. Construction of the first

1.7 mile segment of the alignment
and the Rabbit Road trailhead are
complete. The first segment runs
from Rabbit Road south to the
Spur Trail.  Sections 2, 3, 4 are
being prepared for construction in
Spring 2014. The completion of all
four segments will extend the trail
through the Eldorado subdivision.

The community garden af the Edge-
wood Senior Center was fenced
and a rainwater catchment system
was installed to supply necessary
irrigation during the dry season.
Vegetables grown in the garden are
utilized at the Senior Center’s funch
room, providing a fresh, nutritious
supplement to the senior citizens
in the Edgewood area.

The San Isidro River Restoration
Project included the development
of the Son Isidro River Park {ap-
proximately 2 acres] and the River
Trail along with the rehabilitation
of approximately one mile of the
Santa Fe River between San Isidro
Crossing and lopez lane. The
Project included approximately
29 acres of open space property,
part of which is adjacent to Agua
Fria Park. Phase | of the Restoration
Project employed a variety of inno-
vative “Bioengineering” techniques
to maintain the newly excavated
channel configuration. The design
consisted of a widened, meander
ing channel, sloped banks, and
constructed flood plains. The series
of meanders ond other features,
is hoped to create a more natural
flow way that could enhance water
quality, improve the environment
and provide wildlife habitat along
this part of the Santa Fe River.

Phase Il was completed in August
of 2013 and consisted of the
construction of rock structures and
willow wattles to stabilize the river
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channel below San Isidro Crossing
and address off-site drainage
issues. The project also included
landscaping and re-vegelation. A
community sculpture designed by
Michael Bergt will be installed at
the San Isidro Crossing trailhead.

The Edgewood Fire Station is a
14,998 square foot facility that
accommodates the career and
volunteer firefighters ond Emergency
Medical Personnel for the Southern
Region of Santa Fe County as well
as the Edgewood Fire District,
providing coverage for the Town
of Edgewood, southern Santa Fe
County and assistance as needed
to adjacent jurisdictions.. The fire
station will provide comfortable
accommodations for three different
work shifts, including accommo-
dations for volunteer staff, a living
room, kitchen, offices, laundry room
and outdoor patio spaces. Like the
Rancho Viejo station, Edgewood
has a training room with exercise
and weight lifting equipment, a
conference meeting room with a
divider that separates the room
in half to accommodate muliiple
meeting requests, offices for staff
and an apparatus bay that houses
nine fire and emergency vehicles.
The Edgewocd Fire Station sits on
a 3.5 acre parcel leased from the
State Land Office in the Town of
Edgewood. The final construction
cost was $3.3 million.

The La Cienega Fire Station #1 is
a remodel of an existing fire station
that was converted to administrative
offices for the Fire Prevention Division.
The facility remodel created eight
offices, a kitchen, a secured records
room, a meeling room, a reception
office and an apparatus bay.

The Vista Grande Library serves the
Eldorado, Glorieta, and surround-
ing area. Santa Fe County appro-
priated funding for the building
expansion from the Gross Receipts
Tax-funded Copital Projects that
wads initiated in 2012. The project
consists of a 4,000 sq. ft. expan-
sion along with site improvements.

This building addition will accom-
modate expanding the library
collections, book shelf stacks, refer-
ence and periodical reading area
as well as providing additional
computer stations. Also included in
the expansion is a new processing
workroom, new office, three new
tutoring/small meeting cubicles, a
new meeting room {with a separate
building entrance) that will allow
the use of the meeting room for
community meetings as well as for
showings for the popular “Movie
Night” and children’s programs.
Support spaces in the expansion
include a kitchenette, store room,
restroom data and janitor closets.

The chart below shows fotal work
orders from road, facilities, traffic,
and parks and open space as
tracked in Cartegraph and Main-
tenance Connection. The ontime
completion rate exceeds the infernal
goal of 75% {which is our budget
performance measure).

Total Wark Orders 4415
On-time Famnletion 3599
On-time Completion Rate 82%

The upgrades o Human Resources
Building consisted of new tile floor-
ing throughout hallways, bathrooms
and existing conference room, new
interior point and new carpeting in
office spaces. Expansion of the IT
training rocm, custedian’s closet
and remodel of existing space to
create new conference area was
also included.

The demolition and complete re-
build of existing bathrooms was
completed including replacement
of all existing plumbing piping
and fixtures. New sewer line was
installed along perimeter of exterior
of building. Bathrooms are now
ADA compliant.

Improvements at the County Cor-
rectional Facilities during 2013
include: Asbestos remediation at the
Youth Development Program facility
(YDP}, Additional and replacement
fencing at YDP, new canopy at
the Adult Detention Facility [ADF),
Plumbing upgrade including shower
fixtures, toilets and wash basins at
ADF and Cooling Tower replace-
ment at the Public Safety Complex.

Improvements at the County Admin-
istration Building at 102 Grant in
2013 included the remodel of two
Commissioner offices and minor
upgrades to the Treasurer’s office.










Placement of a fog seal for .31
miles of road.

Project Funding Source
NMDOT Local Government Road
Fund Grant. NMDOT 75%,
Santa Fe County 25%

Project Cost

$2,400*

Construction of new low water
crossing

Project Funding Source

Sonta Fe County Road Mainfe-
nance Budget

Project Cost

$27,000

Construction of new all weather
crossing

Project Funding Source
Sanfa Fe County Road Mainte-
nance Budget

Project Cost

$25,000*

Drainage improvements, place-
ment of 6" of basecourse, and a
new double penetration chip seal
surface along with a fog seal

on 1./5 miles of road. Roads
improved were Vuelta Tomas,
Vuelta Linda, Vuelta Muerdago,
Vuelta Montuoso, and Estrada
Redonda.

Project Funding Source

la Tierra Subdivision Homeawner
Association Fees

Project Cost

$170,000*

*Reflects the cost for materials
only, does not include County
labor or use of equipment to
perform the work.

Santa Fe County Utilities incorporat-
ed approximately 1,000 water and
wastewater customers, exponding
the customer base by over 40%
in 201 3. The expansion was part
of the County-City Annexation
agreement. The Utilities Division
has implemented additional cus-
tomer services and operations
programs as port of the customer
base growth.

Santa Fe County also added the
Penitentiary of New Mexico as a
utility customer.The Penitentiary can
rely on a safe, renewable potable
supply, while local groundwater
resources are rested.

Utilities provided approximately
500 acrefeet {162 billion gallons)
of potable water 1o its customers
in 2013, thus reducing the basin's
reliance on groundwater through
the Buckman Direct Diversion [BDD).
The BDD produces safe, reliable,
and renewable water for utitities
customers using Santa Fe County
Rio Grande water rights.

The Utilities Division has made criti-
cal repairs in the treatment process
to the Quill wastewater treatment
plant; including replacing lagoon
liner, increasing aeration capacity,
and emptying a sludge basin.
With additional planned repairs
and upgrades, the Quill plant will
be able to accept wastewater from
nearby areas, thus protecting the
region’s groundwater quality.

Aamodt settlement confinues
to make significant headway. In
efforts io help provide information to
residents affected by the setilement
Santa Fe County has a webpage
dedicated to providing information,
imporiont documents and meetings
dates on our website. Residents can
access the page by going fo www.
santafecountynm.gov and clicking
on Aamodt Settlement Information
under Hot Topics.

Recognizing the need for woter
planning in light of projected im-
pacts from climate change, Santa
Fe County is partnering with the
City of Sanfo Fe and the Bureau
of Reclamation in a federal basin
study program. The Santa Fe Basin
Climate Change Studies will identi-
fy how water supplies in the Santa
Fe watershed will be impacted and
what kinds of adaptation measures
would benefit our community.
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Rio en Mecdio / Chupadero Center

Lla Cienega Community Center,
la Cienega, NM

Rio en Medio/Chupadero
Community Center, Chupadero, NM

Nambe Community Center, Nambe,
NM

The Nancy Redriguez Community
Center, Santa Fe, NM

To Rent a Community Center vis-
it www.santafecountynm.gov »
Community Services » Community
Centers.

Satellite Offices provide outreach
constituent services fo the cifizens
of Santa Fe County. Satellite of-
fices are located in Edgewood,
Eldorado and Pojoague. County
staft answers general constitu-
ent questions, registers people to
vote, provides other County Clerk
information; Assessor information:
Healthcare Assistance information;
Counlty vacant job descriptions and
applications; and processes solid
waste landfill permits.

From January 2013 through De-
cember 2013, Satellite Offices sold
805 solid waste landfill permits for
$152,617.

For Information on the Satellite
Offices visit www.santafecountynm.
gov > Contact Us » Satellite Offices.

The Sunshine Review, a national
nonprofit organization dedicated to
government fransparency, released
the winners of the fourth annual
Sunny Awards in March and among
the 2013 winners was Santa Fe
County. The award honors the most
fransparent government websites
in the nation. Santa Fe County
received an A+ from the nonprofit
organization. Santa Fe County
received an A+ and Sunny Award

in 2012 from the organization and
an Ain 2011.

For the 2013 awards, editors at
Sunshine Review analyzed more
than 1,000 qualifying government
websites and graded each on a
10-point transparency checklist.
Editors looked at content available
on government websites against the
criteria of what should be provided.
They sought information on items
such as budgets, meetings, lob-
bying, financial audits, conlracts,
academic performance, public
records and taxes.

In 2013, Santa Fe County in-
creased ifs online survey pres-
ence in hopes of soliciting more
Community Input. ltems such as
the Old Judicial Courthouse Study
and National Citizen's Survey were
available online for residents to
provide input. In addition to online
surveys, Santa Fe County asked
members of the public to email
comments on the Sustainable Land
Development Code and Animal
Control Ordinance among many
other items. Santa Fe County also
encourages residents to use our On-
line Public Comment form to send
information to Santa Fe County.

Sanfa Fe County launched a new
online comment form for residents.
The new form was developed to be
quick and easy fo fill out. The tool
allows residents the opportunity to
leave their contact information so
staff can follow up with them or by-
pass the contact information fields
by simply clicking an anonymous
bufton. The form is a great tool for
residents to provide feedback and
ideas to Santa Fe County.

The new online comment form
can be found by selecting “Public
Comment Form” from the Quicklinks
dropdown menu on the homepage
www.santafecountynm.gov.

In 2013, Santa Fe Counly created
a mobile website for individuals
who access information on devices
such as smart phones and tablets.

Sonta Fe County adopted a res-
olution establishing the Veterans
Hiring Initiative for the purpose
of increasing opportunities for
Veterans to obtain employment
with Santa Fe County. This hiring
initiative recognizes veferans who
have served and sacrificed for our
Country with honor, courage and
dignity. It assists in recognizing the
economic loss suffered by citizens
who have served our country in
uniform. The initiative adds great
value to the County because veter-
ans are highly trained individuals
that possess a multitude of skills and
experience and the motivation to
serve the public.




e All Santa Fe County staff
received a Cost of Living
Adjustment (COLA) increase of
one percent in January 201 3.

* inJuly 2013, all employees
received a COLA flat
rate percentage increase
depending on their annual
income pay range.

* Atemporary solory adjustment
was given to employees
earning less than $70,000
as a refenfion incenfive

in July 2013.

Increased the sfarting poy
for Sheriff's Office Deputy
Cadets to $17.50 per hour
fo remain competitive with
surrounding agencies.

Increased Sheriff's Office

defective incentive pay fo

remain compefitive with
surrounding agencies.

Canducted salary studies on
various job classifications which
resulted in salary adjustments
for identified classifications.

o [ffective March 1, 2013,
Santa Fe County apted fo
pay employees consistent
with the City of Santa Fe
Living Wage Ordinance.

e Conducted 163 training
sessians which resulted in

323.5 training hours

® Processed 163 NM Edge
applications which resulted
in $39,750 in assistance to
emplayees to aftend NM Edge
training ond education courses.

o Assisted 21 employees
with tuition assistance fa
complete college courses.

® Successfully negotiated wage
re-apeners with the Caalition

of Public Safety Officers-Sheriff
Deputies Union, Coalition of
Public Safety Officers RECC
Union, Coalition of Public Safety
Officers -Corrections Union, and
the International Association of
Firefighters Local 4366 Union.

Successhully completed
negotiations of the entire
agreement with AFSCME.

Conducted open enroliment
for employee benefits which
required a mondatory

audit and collection of
required documentation

Canducted open enrollment far
ASI Flexible Spending Account
Program. Due to the State of
New Mexico Risk Management
Division na longer offering this
benefit to lacal public bodies
such as Santa Fe County, we
opted 1o continue to provide

this benefit o our employees
{withaut a disruption in services).

Emplayees who earn $30,000
ar less, fram 63% to 80%

Employees who earn $30,001
ta $50,000 from 63% to 70%

Capital High School Career Fair
- Human Resources attended
the Capital High School
Career Fair and were able

fo communicate with students
the various options for careers
with Santa Fe County. Stoff
was olso able to explain aur
tuition assistance program ta
students who may be interested
in beginning work immediotely
upon graduation, but would still
like to oftend college. Sonta Fe
County distributed over 50 job
applications during this event.

¢ Northern New Mexico College
Job Fair in Espanofa and Santa
Fe Community College Job
Fair - Sonfa Fe County Human
Resource staff attended the
Northern New Mexico College
Job Fair to promote vacant
positions, explain benefits,
and discuss various employee
progroms. With participation
of the two College Fairs,
staff engaged discussion and
employment opportunities with
approximately 65 people.

National Night Out — Santa
Fe County had Human
Resources staff present at
the National Night Out on
the Ploza event to promote
County job oppartunities,
employee benefits and other
emplayment infarmation.

The Human Resources Division host-
ed the annual Health Fair during
the annual County Picnic with great
turnout. In total, approximately 240
employees attended ond 10 ven-
dors participated in supporting the
County's healthy lifestyle initiatives.
Staff hos provided greot feedback
on the benefits and enjoyment of
the Health Fair.

Santa Fe County hosted the July
2013 NM EDGE courses, which
were conducted at aur Rancho
Viejo Fire Station. County Man-
ager Katherine Miller taught CPM
111-Knowing Your Government
and Adom Leigland, Public Warks
Direciar taught CPM 1 5&dmpraving
Your Whriting Skills. We are proud
to announce that many employees
are inferested in taking NMEDGE
caurses and obtaining their cerfi-
fication.

NM EDGE, a service af New
Mexico State University's Coop-



erative Extension Service, is @
program designed fo provide a
comprehensive course of study to
administrators, managers, elected
officials, and staff in local, state,
tribal, and national government,
through which participants can ac-
quire and apply the best practices
and theory to their management
behaviors and strategies using
the highest professional standards.

Santa Fe County hosted the Sec-
ond Annual Public Safety Day.
The Public Safety Day is an op-
portunity for the public to learn
more about careers with Santa Fe
County Public Safety to include the
Sheriff’s Office, the Corrections
Department, the Fire Department
and the Regional Emergency Com-
munications Center. The event
allowed interested candidates to
take proctice written and physical
agility exams as a measuring
too! in preparing for the actual
testing process. A coordinated
effort was established for getting
the information to the community
including: interviews on a local
radio stafion, information provided
through the County’s social media
Facebook and Twitter, the County
website, an informational booth
at the State Fair, af the County
Fairgrounds, National Night Out
event, as well as flyers distributed
to various businesses.

For the past 16 years, Santa Fe
County has maintained an unmod-
ified audit opinion. This represents
a “clean” audit. Santa Fe County
worked diligently to resolve its
four prior year audit findings and

will strive to resolve new findings

in FY 2014,

Santa Fe County received the
Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award for the Fiscal Year 2013
Budget from the Government Fi-
nance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA).
The award was presented af the
October 29, 2013 regular Board
of County Commissioners meeling.

This is the fifth year our Finance
Division has received the distin-
guished budget award. It is a
testament fo the staff's commitment
of providing a quality document that
provides more than spreadsheets
and numbers. The budget actually
tells a story of the County’s needs,
resources, commission priorities
and more.

When a Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award is granted fo
an enfity, a Cerfificate of Recog-
nition for Budget Presentation is
also presented to the individual or
department designated as being
primarily responsible for having
achieved the award. This award
has been presented to the Santa
Fe County Budget Office, Finance
Division.

In order to receive the budget
award, Santa Fe County had
to satisfy nationally recognized
guidelines for effective budget
presentation. These guidelines are
designed to assess how well an
enfity’s budget serves as:

* A policy document

e A financial plan

* An operations guide

* A communications device

Budget documents must be rated
proficient in all four categories,

and the fourteen mandatory criteria
within those categories, to receive
the award.

The Government Finance Officers
Association is a nonprofit profes-
sion association serving over 17,
800 government finance profes-
sionals throughout North America.
The GFOA's Distinguished Budget
Presentation Awards Program is the
only national awards program in
government budgeting.

Santa Fe County completed the
second phase fo fransition o a
performance-based, results-ac-
countable budget in its FY 2014
budget process. Each department
was asked fo collaborate within
its divisions to develop broader
departmental functions which cross
divisional lines. Performance mea-
sures and goals were established
based on these cross divisional
functions. All performance measures
and goals were required to impact
|directly or indirectly) at least one
of the County’s seven key areas
of focus and/or a Commission or
Citizen priority. The next phase in
the fransition to performance-based
budgeting is being planned for the
FY 2015 budget.

A high priority in the FY 2014 bud-
get was to invest in existing County
resources. First and foremost, the
County invested significantly in
its workforce during 2013. This
investment took the form of a high-
er level of County contribution to
health insurance premiums for staff
earning under $50,000 per year,
expanding educational benefits
for professional development and
providing cost of living increases,
refention incentives and creating
a merit pool.

This investment in staff also included
improving the physical environment
for staff and improving the equip-
ment provided for staff to use. The




investment in County resources
also funded a higher degree of
maintenance for the County’s as-
sets from its heavy equipment, to
its buildings, fo its roads and its
open space.

The outcome of the budget process
was a sound financial plan for FY
2014 which provides the resourc-
es necessary fo accomplish the
goals established by the County's
departments. The plan included
very conservative increases in
gross receipts taxes and some
other revenue sources, significant
onetime expenditures of cash for
large maintenance and repairs at
the County’s facilities, and a lorge
asset renewal and replacement
plan which provides staff with
the equipment they need fo reach
their goals.

During the November 2012 gener-
al election, Santa Fe County voters
opproved three Bond Questions
totaling $35 million for capital
improvement projects including
roads ($19 million], water and
wastewater ($10 million), and
open space ($6 million) projects. In
response fo voter approval of these
bond questions, Santa Fe County
issued $19 million in general ob-
ligation bonds in May of 2013.
Santa Fe County is very proud fo
have maintained ifs Standard and
Poor’s general obligation bond
rating of AA+ ond received the
lowest interest rate (lowest cost to
borrow} of any bond issuance in
recent history. In rating the bonds,
Standard and Poor takes into ac-
count the sound financial practices
that the County cbserves and its
strong cash reserves which are
af or greater than both the State
mandated level of reserves and
the stricter Santa Fe County policy
regarding reserves.
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EXHIBIT

Daniel “Danny” Mayfield

Commissioner, District 1

Miguel M. Chavez teran
Commissioner, District 2 Commissioner, District 5

Robert A. Anaya \ - “Katherine Miller
Commissioner, District 3 O o ~S County Manager

MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 6, 2014

TO: | Board of County Com)nissioners
FROM: Adam Leigland, Public Works Director
VIA: Katherine Miller, County Manager

ITEM AND ISSUE: BCC Meeting May 13, 2014
SUMMARY OF AND UPDATE ON THE AAMODT SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

- SUMMARY: -

The Aamodt litigation is a federal lawsuit involving Pueblo and non-Pueblo water rights in the
Pojoaque Valley. The case has been in federal court since 1966, and was very contentious and
complicated. In 2000, the parties involved began talks on a settlement agreement, as an alternative
to pursuing the court case until a final judgment. Negotiations on the settlement agreement
continued until 2006, when all parties agreed on a finalized agreement. The County conceptually
agreed to the Settlement Agreement in June 2005 with Resolution 2005-78 (attached) and agreed,
along with the other parties, to the draft Agreement in January 2006. Congress was sent the
Settlement Agreement in 2006 and approved it in 2010.

The Settlement Agreement is a negotiated alternative to a court decision. In fact, the opening
paragraphs of the Settlement Agreement state:

The Settlement Parties, as defined herein, desire to resolve the issues and
controversies involved in United States District Court for the District of New
Mexico lawsuit State of New Mexico ex rel. State Engineer and United States of
America, Pueblo de Nambe, Pueblo de Pojoaque, Pueblo de San Ildefonso, and
the Pueblo de Tesuque.v. R. Lee Aamodt, et al.; No. 66¢cv6639 (D.N.M.), in a just
manner without needless expenditure of funds and other litigation resources. The
United States of America ("United States") and the State of New Mexico
("State"), as a matter of policy, favor resolution of disputes concerning water
rights through negotiation.

102 Grant Avenue - P.O. Box 276 - Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 - 505-986-6200 - FAX:
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Agreements:

The entire Aamodt settlement is governed by four key documents.

1.

Settlement Act. In 2010, Congress passed the Claims Resettlement Act of 2010, which
addressed four separate Native American water rights cases. Title VI of the Claims
Resettlement Act deals with the Aamodt litigation and is called the Aamodt Litigation
Settlement Act (attached). This Settlement Act sets the general framework for the
Settlement Agreement and describes the federal role in constructing the Regional Water
System, including allocating federal funds. It also spells out the other agreements necessary
for implementing the Regional Water System. It states that the US Bureau of Reclamation
(BOR) will be the agent for implementing the Regional Water System.

Settlement Agreement. The Settlement Agreement (attached) was finalized in
January 2006 and formally signed by all parties in March 2013. The Settlement
Agreement is ultimately about Pueblo water rights, but it involves a number of
other factors in order to meet the water right provisions, such as disposition of
wells of non-Pueblo well owners in the Valley. The Settlement Agreement is
very complicated and involved (50 pages long). The key aspect in the
Agreement for non-Pueblo residents is what to do with their wells. Non-Pueblo
residents have several options with regard to their wells, one of which is to
abandon the well and hook up to the Regional Water System. Making this
decision is known as the “well election.”

Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement (CSSIA). This agreement (attached)
is specifically mentioned in the Settlement Act. As the title suggests, this agreement
discusses many of the technical details of the Regional Water System, addressing such
things as phasing, easements, well locations, and operation and maintenance
responsibilities. It also spells out construction cost sharing among the US, State, and
County. Paragraphs 3.1.1 and 3.1.3 of the CSSIA break the cost responsibilities out as
shown below:

Party Construction Cost Share
(excluding connection costs)
US $106,400,000
State of NM $45,500,000
Santa Fe County $7,400,000
Total $159,300,000

Paragraph 3.1.4 of the CSSIA says that service connections costs, the costs to actually hook
up non-Pueblo customers to the new water system, could be as high as $18,000,000. Of this,
the State has dedicated $4,000,000. The remainder will be paid by the County, according to
policies that the County develops. The BOR estimates that the actual County obligation will
be $5,696,000 for connections.

Paragraph 3.1.5 of the CSSIA says that the costs shown above will be adjusted for inflation
on an annual basis. Paragraph 3.1.6 of the CSSIA says that the County will enter into an
agreement with the BOR describing how the County cost share will be paid. That
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agreement is currently being drafted, but the BOR has submitted a draft payment schedule
(attached) that indicates both the timeline for payment and the new adjusted amounts. The
BOR estimates that after adjusting for inflation (using an inflation rate of 3.9%), the actual
County share, including both construction costs and connection fee costs, will be
$23,460,000.

The CSSIA is also where the County’s sale of the Top of the World water rights for
$5,400,000 was specified.

The CSSIA was finalized in August 2009 and formally signed by all parties in March 2013.

4. Operating Agreement.  The Operating Agreement (OA) is also specifically required by the
Settlement Act. The OA will be an agreement between the County and the four Pueblos
describing the details of how the Regional Water System will be operated. Paragraph 612 of
the Act has a list of items that the OA must address, including delineation of water lines,
allocation of system capacity, and cost and payment procedures. Drafting of the OA has
not started yet, but the Act does state that the OA must be completed 180 days after the
submission of the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS).

5. Joint Powers Agreement (JPA). The JPA between the County and the four Pueblos is not
specifically mentioned in any of these four key documents described above. Further, the
JPA is separate from the Operating Agreement. Rather, a JPA is needed to implement
Paragraph 9.5 of the Settlement Agreement, which says that the County and Pueblos shall
establish a Regional Water System. The JPA will describe the governance of the Regional
Water System. It will create and describe the duties of a board of directors, describe voting
procedures, and describe the role of the general manager. It will be similar to the 1998 JPA
between the City of Santa Fe and the County that created the Solid Waste Management
Agency and the 2006 JPA that created the Buckman Direct Diversion Board. This
agreement is still in draft form; the most recent draft is attached.

Court Process:

The Aamodt litigation is a federal court case, and the federal court is the lead agency in the
Settlement Agreement. All the parties signed the Settlement Agreement in March 2013. The court
then reached out to the non-Pueblo well owners of the Pojoaque Valley who would be affected by
the Settlement Agreement to see if they had any objections to the Agreement. The outreach was in
the form of a mailed affidavit whereby the well owner had to indicate if they objected to the
Agreement and the nature of the objection. The forms were mailed out in January 2014 and the
court-determined deadline for submission was April 7, 2014. The County, in partnership with the
State and the BOR, led a public information campaign to help the well owners make an informed
decision.

Now that the April 7 deadline has passed, the court will evaluate any and all objections received and
make a determination, based on the objections, if the Settlement Agreement is valid or has some
fundamental flaw. The court will make its decision on the merits of the objections themselves and
not merely on the sheer number of objections received. In other words, the court could receive
1000 objections that are not sound and thus discarded and just one that is sound and renders the
Agreement invalid.
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Once the court evaluates the objections, it will make its final determination on the Settlement
Agreement. If it finds that the Settlement Agreement is valid, the Agreement will go into effect. At
that point, the non-Pueblo residents will be asked to make their well election. It is unknown how
long this process will take, but it is conservatively estimated that it will be at least a year before the
well election must be made.

Regional Water System

The pillar of the Settlement Agreement is the construction of a Regional Water System that will
divert water from the Rio Grande, treat the water, and transmit the water throughout the Valley.
Each Pueblo and the County will receive this treated water and then distribute it throughout their
service areas. Non-Pueblo well owners will voluntarily choose to join this water system through
their well election. The Regional Water System will be governed by a joint board (as described
above).

Technical Implementation:

According to the Settlement Act, the BOR is the lead agency for the technical implementation of the
Regional Water System. This includes developing the EIS, designing the entire system,
constructing the system, and operating any phases of the system that are completed early. The EIS
is in process now, and the BOR has contractors in the field conducting surveys and geological and
archeological analyses. The BOR is also evaluating the various alternatives for the diversion off the
Rio Grande and the back-up storage. The design process has also started. The BOR has already
completed an approximately 30% design of the transmission system.

The Settlement Act contains various deadlines that the BOR must meet. For instance, by September
15, 2017, the EIS must be complete and all permits from the State Engineer for creating a new point
of diversion on the Rio Grande must be granted. On June 30, 2021, the BOR must report to the
court on the state of completion of the Regional Water System, and the system must be substantially
complete by June 30, 2024. As of the date of this memo, the BOR is on track to meet its deadlines.

ACTION REQUESTED:
None; for information only
Attachments:
1. Resolution 2005-78
2. Settlement Act
3. Settlement Agreement
4. Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement
5. Draft Cost-Share Plan
6. Draft Joint Powers Agreement
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Chronological Sequence of Aamodt Documents

Aamodt Litigation Settlement Act:

1. Defines Regional Water System (RWS)

2. Allocates Federal funds for RWS

3. Specifies Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement
4. Specifies Operating Agreement

Settlement Agreement:

1. Addresses Pueblo water rights

2. Addresses Non-Pueblo water rights

3. Makes creation of RWS a condition of the Agreement

A

Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement:
1. Location, Capacity, Management of RWS
2. Allocates costs of RWS:

A. Construction and O&M

B. Rights-of-way

C. Acquisition of water rights

Joint Powers Agreement:

1. Creation of RWS board
2. Duties, powers of board
3. Operations of board

4. RWS operator

Operating Agreement:

Distribution of water within RWS
Allocation of RWS water capacity
Management of unused capacity
Shortage-sharing

Operation, use of wells

Transfer of water rights for Pueblos
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SANTA FE COUNTY
Resolution No. 2012 - 5%

A Resolution Authorizing Amendments to the Aamodt Settlement
Agreement, Authoring Execution of a Cost Sharing Agreement and a
Cooperative Agreement, and Directing County Staff to Prepare Plans

and Analysis of the Design of the County Water System that will Serve
the Pojoaque Basin and in order to Inform County Residents of the
Availability and Cost of Water Utility Service to be Provided as part of
the Water Rights Settlement of the Pueblos of Nambe, Pojoaque, San
Ildefonso, and Tesuque in the Case of New Mexico ex rel. State
Engineer v. Aamodt

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2006 the Board of County Commissioners of Santa Fe
County (hereinafter referred to as “the County”) approved the Settlement Agreement in
the case of New Mexico ex rel. State Engineer v. Aamodt, No. 66cv06639 MV/LCS-
ACE (D.N.M.) (hereinafter referred to as "the Settlement Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the County, the State of New Mexico, the City of Santa Fe, the
Pueblos of Nambe, Pojoaque, San Ildefonso and Tesuque and a number of pnvate parties
signed the Settlement Agreement on May 3, 2006; and

WHEREAS, the Aamodt settlement will resolve the water rights claims of the
four Pueblos and will provide financial resources for water infrastructure benefiting the
Pojoaque Basin, both for Pueblo and other County residents; and

WHEREAS, Congress approved the Settlement Agreement by enactment of the
Aamodt Litigation Settlement Act, as part of the Claims Resolution Act of 2010, Pub. L.
No. 11-291, tit. VI, §§ 601- 626, 124 Stat. 3064, 3134-56 (2010), which was signed into
law by the President on December 8, 2010 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorized the Secretary of the Interior to execute the
Settlement Agreement as revised to conform to the Act and further authorized the
Secretary to execute the Cost-Sharing and System Integration Agreement (hereinafter
referred to as “Cost-Sharing Agreement”) and to acquire a portion of the County’s Top of
the World water rights in the amount of 1,141 acre-feet, for a purchase price of
$5,400,000.00 (hereinafter referred to as “Pueblo Top of the World Rights”) under the
terms of the proposed Cooperative Agreement between the County and the United States
Bureau of Indian Affairs; and



WHEREAS, Section 3.1.7.2 of the Settlement Agreement provides each non-
Pueblo domestic well owner a choice with respect to the future use of the well: (i) to
connect to the County water utility after service becomes available and thereafter take
domestic service from the County rather than the well; (ii) to continue using the well in
perpetuity but at a reduced or limited amount with no obligation to connect to the County
water utility; or (iii) or agree to connect to the County Water Utility upon transfer of
property and discontinue use of the well at that point; and

WHEREAS, as provided in the Act and the Settlement Agreement, the
comerstone of the settlement is the construction by the United States Bureau of
Reclamation of a regional water system that will provide service to the four pueblos in
the amount of 2,500 acre-feet and to other County residents who elect to connect to the
County Water Utility in the amount of up to 1,500 acre-feet; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes up to 1,500 acre-feet of capacity for use by the
County, and both the Act and the Cost-Sharing Agreement give the County the right to
make its own determination whether a smaller capacity or modified alignment is more
suitable for County uses and whether the current plans and designs of the water system
should be modified to better serve potential County customers; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Cost-Sharing Agreement, the United States
Bureau of Reclamation will prepare engineering designs and cost estimates before the
County must make its final capacity and alignment determination; and

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement calls upon non-Pueblo well owners to
make an election either to continue receiving supply from their wells or to connect to the
regional water system;

WHEREAS, although execution of the amendments to the Settlement Agreement
and execution of the Cost-Sharing Agreement and the Cooperative Agreement are
necessary to continue implementation of the Aamodt settlement, the County recognizes
that additional significant steps will be required to fully and fairly consummate the
settlement; and

WHEREAS, an essential step to implement the settlement is the creation of a
joint utility or regional water authority by the County and the Pueblos to govern and
operate the regional water system; and

WHEREAS, in particular, as the settlement moves forward significant additional
information, analysis and planning will be needed (1) for the County to reach a final
determination on the sizing and alignment of County water utility (2) for potential
County customers to be informed of the availability and cost of service when making
their connection elections (3) for creation of a regional water authority comprised of the
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County and the four Pueblo governments and (4) to assure adequate water rights for use
by the County water utility;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners of
Santa Fe County:

Approves the Amendments to the Settlement Agreement and approves the Cost-Sharing
Agreement and Cooperative Agreement and hereby authorizes the Board Chair to sign
the amended Settlement Agreement, the Cost-Sharing Agreement and the Cooperative
Agreement.

AND FURTHER,' BE IT RESOLVED, that County staff is directed to gather
information and engage in further planning and analysis in support of implementation of
the Aamodt settlement, and in particular shall focus on the following tasks:

1. Design and Alignment of County System. The County shall work with the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation to design the County utility portion of the regional water
system. The design should be optimized to provide cost-effective service to areas
that currently have or are projected to have sufficient demand to justify extension
of service. To this end, within the next twelve months the County shall perform
the following tasks:

a. Existing Demand Estimate. The County Utilities Division shall be
responsible for defining the demand area by area so that corresponding
water service infrastructure will be properly designed for size and
alignment. If staff deems it necessary, residents and other water users
within particular areas proposed for service may be canvassed to more
accurately determine demand levels.

b. Future Demand - Land Use Analysis and Demographic Projections. The
County Planning Division shall prepare an assessment of undeveloped
non-Pueblo lands located within potential service areas and shall use the
most current demographic information and projections to estimate future
County customers. The analysis shall take into account existing County
development plans that are conditionally approved upon requirement of
connection to available County water utility service.

c. Water Quality Considerations. In preparing the above analyses, the
County Utilities and Planning Divisions should seek to determine those
areas most susceptible to groundwater quality degradation and therefore
that are more likely to need County utility service in the future.

d. Fire Protection Considerations. The Utilities Division shall consult with
the County Fire Department to consider what areas would benefit most
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from improved access to reliable fire fighting water flows such as those
provided by a public water system. This information should be considered
in determining system capacity and alignment.

e. Rural Character and Density Considerations. Estimates of future demand
shall incorporate the County’s policies for preservation and protection of
traditional agriculture.

f. Intepration with existing County Utility. The Utilities Division shall
determine whether benefits will derive from integrating the proposed
infrastructure and operations with those of existing or other proposed
County utilities, such as improved efficiencies, cost effectiveness or
improved reliability of supply.

g. Financial and Capacity Analysis and Recommendations. Taking into
account all of the information and analysis described above, along with
other relevant data, the Public Works Department shall prepare a cost-
benefit and capacity analysis of the County’s portion of the system and
shall recommend to the Board of County Commissioners the preferred
design for such portion. The preferred design shall be based upon a
capacity and alignment that will make the system economically viable.
The cost-benefit analysis shall include an estimate of the capital costs the
County will be required to pay and an estimate of costs for operations,
maintenance and replacement of the system.

2. Customer Information. In conjunction with the analysis described above, the
Utilities Division shall prepare the following:

a. Service Map and Timeline. The Division shall prepare a preliminary
service area map delineating the likely alignment of distribution lines and
the projected timeline for service availability, area by area.

b. Customer Costs. The Division shall prepare estimates of service rates,
based on water used, as well as fees for connection to the system for
potential customers who elect not to connect, or are not eligible for free
connection as provided by the settlement.

3. Governance of Regional Water Authority. The County Attorney is directed to
work with the Pueblos to prepare a proposed Joint Powers A greement (hereinafter
referred to as “JPA”) pursuant to New Mexico state law that will create a joint
board and will establish governance of the regional water authority. The JPA
shall assure the following:
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a. Protection against withdrawal. The JPA shall contain strict provisions to

deter withdrawal of any of the five members from participation in the
authority.

b. Reliability of Service. The JPA shall contain provisions to protect the
County’s participation in the governance of the authority and to assure that
service to County customers is reliable. The JPA shall contain voting
rights protections and dispute resolution mechanisms to assure no
disruption in service to customers.

c. Assurance of financial integrity. The JPA shall require its member entities
to be responsible for their respective financial obligations to operate and
maintain the system. The authority shall at all times have in place
appropriate and sufficient insurance to cover its operations. Any liability
incurred in connection with operations of the authority shall be subject to
the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

In addition, the JPA shall contain such other provisions as the County Attorney
recommends are necessary to carry out the purpose of the regional water authority
and to protect the interests of the County and of its utility customers. Once the
County Attorney and Pueblo representatives have negotiated a draft of the JPA,
the County shall consult with representatives of potential customers to receive
comments regarding any additional provisions that may be needed. Once a final
proposed JPA is prepared, it shall be placed on a meeting agenda of the Board of
County Commissioners for consideration and action.

. Water Rights Assessment. In addition, the Utilities Division and the County
Attomey are directed to prepare an assessment of adequacy of the water rights,
including the Top of the World right, that have been identified to provide the
basis for supply to the County system. In the event the identified water rights are
inadequate or deficient in any manner, the assessment shall contain a contingency

plan to assure that adequate water rights are in place in order to provide the
service intended.
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PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this |0 DAY OF QM, 2012.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

b Gefoens

Liz&tefanids, Chair
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Valerie Espinoza, Santa Fe County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
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tephen C. Ross, Santa Fe County Attomey
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United States Department of the Interior
BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
SOUTHWEST REGION
1001 Indian School Road, N.W.
Albuguerque, New Mexico 87104

18&%&e Regional Diref:'mr
APR 16 2014

The Honorable Ben Ray Lujan

330 Caxmon Honse Office Building
Washmgton DC 20515

Dear Representative Lujan:

1 have been asked to réspond to your letter to Assistant Secretary Kevin Washburn, dated January 15,
2014, That letter concemed Notices to Show Cause that were sent in 2013 to the County of Santa Fe
(County) and two private landowners, alleging trespass on property held in trust by the United States on
behalf of San Ildefonso Pueblo (Pueblo). Those letters were sent by the Superintendent of the Northern
Pueblos Agency (Agency) of the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA). The Agency’s letters were prompted by
repeated requests from the Pueblo to resolve what it considers to be the unauthorized use of Pueblo land
by the County and certain individual landowners.

On numergus occasions since at least 1999, the Pueblo has encouraged the County to enter into legally
sufficient rights of way for all road segments claimed by the County The Pueblo has also expressed its
concern that the County and certain private land owners were in trespass due to various factors, including
boundary survey emors, the development of “private” points of egress to join county roads, and the
deviation of roads from the original roadbed. In July 2012, the Pueblo organized & meeting and site visit
to discuss the alleged trespasses with staff from your Office, and officials from the Pueblo, the County,
(then) U.S. Senator Jeff Bingarian’s Office, and the BIA. Despite assurances made in 2012 to work with
the Pusblo, the BIA was informed that the County had not ‘taken meanmgful steps to discuss and/or
resolve the Pueblo’s land use concerns, We were encouraged to learn that in the last two weeks, and at
least in partas a result of the Agency s Show Cause Notice, all the involved parties have again started
meeting in an effoxt to resolve these matters. We understand that you attended such a meeting on January
31, 2014 at which representatives from all the involved parties pledged to work to resolve the Pueblo’s
land use concerns.

In response to the Nonce to Show Cause related fo the legal status of six roads designated by the County

as “County Roads?, ! the County provided a letter and “Right of Way Agreement By and Botween San
Ildefonso Pugblo and Santa Fe County,” signed in 1989. The County argues the Right of Way Agreement
Between San lldefonso Pueblo and Santa Fe County grants to “the County a right-of- ~way on all the roads
in question.” While the County’s letter contains some useful information that-we will consider, we, and
the Pueblo, believe the County reads the 1989 agreement too broadly and that the County does not, in
fact, now have the legal authority to occupy all the roads in question, The County, in its response, also

3
2

2 ma agency’s December 2013 Notice to Show Cause related to six specific roads and raad segments, identified as
CR 84, CR 84A, CR 848, CR BAC, CR 84D, and Sandy Way. it should be noted that the Pueblo has identified a
number of other roads, including private roads that It believes to also be in trespass,




Responses to Questions Raised in January 15, 2014 Letter

In Representative Lujan’s January 15, 2014 letter, nine (9) questions were posed to the BIA. We address
¢ach question below.

Are you aware that the Northern Pueblos Agency (Superintendent Raymond Fry) has gent letters to the
County of Sanita Fe and local residents living within the exterior boundaries of San Ildefonso Pueblo,
stating that the cointy and individuals are in “trespass” of the Pueblo boundaries?

Response to Question No. 1:

Yes. Based upon numerous Pueblo of San lldefonso (Pueblo) requests, the Northern Pueblos
Agency (Agency) on November 13, 2013, issued a Notice to Show Cause to the County of Santa

Fe (County). The Show Cause. Letter alleged the County to be in trespass of County Road 84, and
certain side roads, identified as 84A, 84B, 84C, 84D, and Sandy Way. ‘

Further, following the Pueblo’s request, the Agency also issued lefters of trespass to two
individuals residing on private claims but whom were either encroaching on tribal lands with
basriers or were ufilizing tribally owned roads for egress and ingress to their property. Both letters
requested that th owners meet with the Tribal Council of the Pueblo to discuss the issue and
work out an arrangement It is our understandmg that the mdmduals have smoe met wﬁh the

rrrrr

1ssues

Where did this effort originate? Did San Ildefonso Pueblo request the BIA to get involved or is this
something the BIA has decided to engage in, on its own without notifying the Congressmna] Delegation?

pons e to Question N ",.\2:

The issue of County Trespass has been an on-going matter at least since 1999. See Tribal
Resolution, No. SI-R-031 aﬂopted by the Tribal Council on November 9, 1999, and titled
“Requestmg Federal Action to End Santa Fe County Road Trespass, and Renewing Wlﬂmgness

ofiate. 1ad previously issued a letter on October 15, 1999 to the Santa Fe
133 an statmg “[t}he County of Santa Fe needs to meet thh th Pneblo

< and p :
subsequent action by the Counity was dis : pomtmg Thus, San Ildefonso Pucblo Govemor Terry
Martinez requested through cqrrespondcncé dated November 13, 2013 that the Agency issue-an
official letter to the County Manager to Show Cause as to why the County was not in trespass.
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Question No. 3:

Is it a new initiative or new policy by the BIA, to insert themselves into easement issues relating to
communities in New Mexico who have historical checkerboard issues where non-tribal private property
mtemnngles with tribal lands?

The BIA’s trust responsibility to protect tribal lands held in trust and lands held in trust for
mdmdual Indxans is long established. The authority, duties, and responsibilities of the BIA are
set out in statute and regulation,

Question No. 4:

What is the legal basis for BIA to make a determination of “trespass” or demand that the County “show

cause why the County should not be immediately assessed trespass damages and why the County should
not be evicted from the subject Pueblo lands” as it did in its December 6, 2013 letter? Is there a legal basis
for the BIA and/or 8an Ildefonso Pueblo to close roads, enforce trespass, or charge people to access their
private land via County Roads?

ueshqn No. 4:

As explained in more detail below in our Response to Question No. 6, the BIA has a trust
responsibility to protect from trespass tribal lands held in trust for Federally recognized Indian
Tribes. When a Tribe alleges that a trespass is occurring, the BIA reviews all pertinent documents
related to those allegations. Documents reviewed normally include relevant approved surface use
agreements including grants of easement, permits, and leases; surveys, maps, land valuation
(app 'sals), and, if applicable, environmental documents and Archeologi /Cultural Surveys.
Once all documents are reviewed, the reviewing Agency will make a determination as to whether
a trespass has occurred.

Here, the Pucblo and the, BIA were concerned that certain roads, deemed County Roads, were in
use absent the requisite Iegal authority. Moreover, it was alleged that certain individuals were
cutting across Pueblo laiid for reasons of convenience and that, in some cases, 10 easement
existed for the road segment connecting the private parcel to the County Road.

Qggggon No. 5.

Does the BIA recognize the Pueblo Lands Act and the proceedings of the Pueblo Claims [Board] which
previously resolved a number of these claims?

Response to tion No. §:

The BIA recogiizes all Federal laws concerning tribal trust properties and the Pueblo Lands Act,
in particular. The BIA is also cognizant of decisions rendered by the Pusblo Claims Board.




" Questio n No. 6;

What legal definition and evidence is the BIA Northern Pueblos Agency using to prove “trespass™?

Response to (¢] uestion No. 6

The primary authority concerning rights of way over Indian lands are found at25 U.S.C. §§ 323-
328 and the implementing regulations at 25 C.F.R. Part 169. The Agenoy relies upon a Federal
common law definition of “trespass” and the remedies available to protect Tribal trust property.
See, e.g., County of Oneida v. Oneida Indian Nations, 470 U.S. 226, 234-236 (1985) (Federal
comm ‘n law recognizes a veriety of causes of actlon to protect Indnan lands from trespass).

Wi ouit authonzauon and wuhout pnvxlege » US. v. [mpenal Irngatmn Distr:ct 799 F Supp
1052, 1059 (S.D. Cal. 1992), citing, W. Page Keeton et al., Prosser and Keaton on the Law of
Torts § 13 at 70 (5“‘ ed. 1984). We further note, the most reliable source of information for
boundary matters is provided by Bureau of Land Management cadastral records.

Quesiion No. 7:

Is BIA aware of the previous agreements made on June 12, 1989, by San Hdefonso Pueblo officials and
the County of Santa Fe, granting easements for access to private homes and businesses in exchange for
the pavmg and maintenance of Couuty Road 84?

Response to Question No. 7:

The June 12, 1989 document titled “Right-of-Way Agreement By and Between San Ildefonso
Pueblo and S € ty” isa poorly draﬁed mstmment whlch unfortunately, contains a

re{rxeifwmg all apphcablc documen”ts to determme the scope of that mstmment The BIA remams
ready to work with the Pueblo and the County to develop and clarify land use records.

Question No. 8:

Will BIA recognize and respect previous agreements made by San Ildefonso Pueblo allowing for the
paving and maintenance of County Road 84 and all of its arterials in exchange for a perpetual sasement
for non-tribal residents to access their: private homes and businesses?

In reviewing the documents available to it, the BIA did not find any agreements that refer to
perpetual easements for nontribal residents. Nor did it find agreements that purport to include all
arterials of County Road 84. We look forward to reviewing any such documentation held by the
County If, in the future, the Pueblo determines it appropriate 10 consent to additional easements
for the County, the BIA would certainly facilitate the process.




Question No. 9:

What can BIA do to resolve this issue and is BIA will
Ildefonso Pueblo from shutting down access to private
permanently resolved?

ing to make a public commitment to stop San
homes and businesses wntil this issue can be

The BIA is committed to fulfilling its trust responsibility
continue to participate, as necessary, in any negotiatio
resolve these issuies 6f great import,

and duties to the Pueblo, The BIA will
ns between the Pueblo and County to




xecogmzed that there is some ambxgulty as to its authonty, statmg “[t]he County has a]ways been

agreement, is éﬁil unéettled inthe: view of the San Ildefonso Pueblo.”

vaen tbe d:ffenng mterpretauons of the 1989 Right of Way Agreement By and Between San ldefonso
Pueblo and Sants Fe County, the BIA is now undertaking the following actions:

; P
estabhsh the County s lega] authonty to occupy Pueblo property

We recognize the need to resolve these matters quickly and deﬁnmve[y, both to secure the Pueblo s lands
and to facilitate the timely construction of the regional water system, which is a key component of the

Aamodt water settlement. We share your concem and wish to ensure you that the BIA will provide every
resource it can to fac:lﬁate resolution of these matters between the Pueblo, the County, and private
landownes.

' as we " work together to resolve thls 1ssue » We addms sach of the
chment, We stand ready to provide any additional information or
$sigtance to you.

The BIA looks forward to working with your Office, the County, and the Pueblo to address this matter of
great importance.

Sincerely;

Regional Director
Enclosure

~ co: Superintendent, Northern Pueblos Agency
Mr. Terry Aguilar, Govemor- Pueblo of San Tldefonso

*The 1989 Right of Way Agreement By and Between San ldefonso Pueblo and Santa Fe County Is poorly drafted
and subject to various interpretations. Moreover, a map which would likely shed light on which roads were subject
to the  Agreement is not attached to the Instrument recorded with the BIA Land Titles and Records Ofﬁge
Apparently, nefther the County narthe Agency has a copy of the 1989 Right of Way Agreement By and Between
San lldefonso Pueblo ahd Santa Fe County thatincludes all the referenced exhlbits The Pueblo Is searching its
records to see if ithas a complete copy.
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EXHIBIT
Subject: Fw: Responding to your message to Senator Heinrich g é/
From: Beverly Duran—Cash (durancash@yahoo.com)
To: trujillodrep@gmail.com;
Date: Saturday, May 10, 2014 7:11 PM
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On Friday, May 9, 2014 8:39 AM, Office of Senator Martin Heinrich <donotreply@heinrich.senate.gov> wrote: EE
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May 9, 2014 fal
o,
Dear Ms. Duran, It
3
. . . e
Thank you for contacting me regarding your concerns about electrical rates related to an easement '™

contract between the Jemez Coop and the San Ildefonso Pueblo. I appreciate knowing your
thoughts and concerns on this important issue.

As a United States Senator for the state of New Mexico, I help write federal laws that I believe will
benefit New Mexicans. The routing of local power lines is within the jurisdiction of the New
Mexico Public Regulation Commission (PRC). Please contact Valerie Espinoza, Commissioner of
District Three and Vice-Chair of the Commission, with your concerns at
Valerie.Espinoza@state.nm.us.

Again, thank you for contacting me. I hope you, the Community of El Rancho, and the San
Ildefonso Pueblo will be able to reach an amicable solution to your utilities dispute. I also hope
you will continue keeping me informed of the issues important to you.

Sign-up to receive email updates for the latest news on issues important to you.

Sincerely,

MARTIN HEINRICH
United States Senator

Follow me on Facebook and Twitter:

1of2 5/13/2014 3:25 PM




UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

EXHIBIT

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
NORTHERN PUEBLOS AGENCY
P.O. BOX 4269-FAIRVIEW STATION
ESPANOLA, NEW MEXICO 87533

g 5w

1% REPLY REFER TO
M25 - Offiee of the Superintendent

CERTIFIED MAIL

NOTICE TO SHOW CAUSE

Ms. Katherine Miller

County Manager, Santa Fe County
102 Grant Avenue

Santa I'e, New Mexico 875012061

Dear Ms. Miller:

We are formally informing you and the County of Santa Fe (*County™) of the issue of trespass
by the County on tribal Jands of the Pueblo of San Ildefonso (“Pueblo™). Upon notification by
the Pucblo and a review of our documents, we have determined that the County is in trespass on
Pueblo land. This Notice provides the County information concerning the instances of trespass
and notifies the County that it must show cause why the County should not be immediately
assessed trespass damages and why the County should not be evicted from the subject Pueblo
lands. '

TRESPASS

The County of Santa Ie is in violation of the federal requirements in the use of Indian irust land.
County Road 84 and side roads 8§4A, 848, 84C, 84D and Sandy Way (see attached map and
photo) are in trespass. No record exists to the fact that the County has an easement or rights-of-
way in our files nor is there any record that the County has submitted an application for an
easement or Rights-of-Way.

County Roads in Trespass:

County Road -~ 84 ™ Township 19 North, Range 8 East, NMPM within Sections 17, 8, 9 and 10

From the intersection of Povi Kaa Drive (main entronce to the Pueblo of San Tidefonse from
Huwy. 502) east to the infersection of 101-D.

County Road ~ 84A ™ Township 19 North, Range 8 East, NMPM within Section 10
From the intersection with Evergreen Lane east to the reservation boundary line.
County Road ~ 84B  * Township 19 North, Range 8 East, NMPM within Sections 8 and 9

From the end of the pavement east of the Pueblo, east to the intersection with County Road
84.

TAKE, PRIDE
INAMEIRICA




County Road - 84¢  * Township 19 North, Range 8 East, NMPM within Sections 5, 4, 3, 10, and 11
From the infersection with Tunyo Po east to the reservation boundary line.

Country Road - 84D * Township 19 North, Range 8 East, NMPM within Sections 10 and 11
From the infersection with Sandy Way east to the reservation boundary line,

Sandy Way *Township 19 North, Range 8 East, NMPM within Sections 9 and 10
From the intersection with 84D west to the private cloim.

*Espancla Quadrangle, New MQica - 2.5 Minute Series (Topographic)

CONCLUSION

The County is in dirget violation of the federal requirements governing the use of Indian trust
lands. Specifically:

No eascruent or Rights-of-way exist for County Road 84 and the side roads on tribal trust
land of the Pueblo of San Ildefonso, thus, the County is in trespass.

You are hereby informed that the County has thirty (30) business days from receipt of this letter
to either enter into good faith negotiations to settle the current trespass and enter into a new
easement for rights-of-way, or to show canse why the County’s failure to pursue valid casements
for the county roads should not be turned over 1o the U. S. Department of Justice for action
against the County.

We encourage the County to enter into negotiations with the Pueblo to resolve the current
trespass as quickly as possible and establish legal bases for the County’s continued use of Pueblo
land.

If you should have any questions or require additional information, contact my office at (505)
753-1400 or Norman Jojola, Natural Resource Manager at (505) 753-1451.

Sincerely,

Enclosure

cc:  William T. Walker, Regional Director, BIA-SWRO
Terry Aguilar, Governor, Pueblo of Sau lidefonso
Stephen Martinez, Natural Resource Director
Carolyn Abeita, General Counsel
Peter Chestnut, Special Counsel
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© - , EXHIBIT

0

Daniel “Danny” Mayfield

Commissioner, District 1

Liz Stefanics
Commissionet, District 5

Miguel M. Chavez

Commnrissiornter, District 2

Robert A. Anaya Katherir;: Miller
Conmissioner, District 3 County Manager
January 7, 2014

Raymond Fry, Superintendent

United States Department of the Interior
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Northern Pueblos Agency

P.O. Box 4269 — Fairview Station
Espanola, New Mexico 87533

Re: Notice to Show Cause
Dated December 6, 2013

Dear Mr, Fry,

Your letter of December 6, 2013 has been forwarded to this office for response. The
letter demands that Santa Fe County, New Mexico show cause why it “... should not be
immediately assessed trespass damages and ... should not be evicted from the subject
Pueblo lands.” The “subject Pueblo lands” consist of County Roads numbered 84, 84-A,
84-B, 84-C, 84-D and Sandy Way. The letter further states that the Burean of Indian
Affairs has “deterinined” that the County is in fact trespassing on San Ildefonso lands.

Santa Fe County believes the assertions in the December 6 letter to be a serious
overreaching on the part of the Bureau of Indian Affairs and request it be withdrawn
immediately. This is far from a constructive way to renew the debate about County lands
and access to non-Indian property within the Pueblos, It comes at a time when the
County had already initiated discussions with all four Pueblos on this very issue. It also
has the potential to shift what has been a positive and responsible discussion of the issues
to a negative adversarial situation.

The most obvious problem is that the Bureau of Indian Affairs lacks any authority
(statutory or regulatory) to require the County to “show cause” in this or any instance.

An order to show cause is not authorized by statute. It is authorized by regulations of the
Bureau only as specified in 25 C.F.R. § 141.56 (show cause order authorized to enforce
compliance with business practices specified in the regulation on the Navajo, Hopi and
Zuni reservation); and 25 C.EF.R. § 162.006 (show cause order authorized for violations of
leases and permits). Aside from these meager regulatory examples, nothing further
exists. In fact, 25 C.F.R. § 162.006(b)(1) explicitly states that it does not apply to right of
way issues, which this is, Nor is there authority in the Code of Federal Regulations for
the “declaration” of trespass. 25 C.F.R. § 161.700 et seq. authorizes a declaration of
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Raymond Fry, Superintendent
Northern Pueblos Agency
January 7, 2014

Page 3

Hordes, supported by a team of expert and well-qualified historians and researchers. The
resulting report was provided to the San Ildefonso Pueblo many years ago. We have had
brief discussions about the report with the Pueblo from time to time, but those

discussions did not mature into serious discussions until Governor Aguilar initiated
further discussions last year, and indicated he wanted to resolve the issue once and for all.
We discussed the Governor’s desire to close certain roads which had been created by the
public, and the need for the County to acquire formal easements rather than rely on the
previously-mentioned agreement. And we discussed with Governor Aguilar the County’s
concern that local residents have legal access, and the right to receive gas electric, water
and other utilities through the County roads. We believe that through concentrated

efforts and dedication on the part of both governments on this issue, both governments
would ultimately benefit. Of overriding concern with respect to the Bureau’s sweeping
conclusions and directive here is the fact that the Pueblo Lands Act of 1924, in
authorizing the activities of the Pueblo Claims Board and the federal Court, failed to
expressly provide a process for adjudication of non-private, i.e. public land, or the issue
of access to and from the many private claims and exception lots that were adjudicated by
the PCB and the federal Court. This failure is a failure of Congress, and the ambiguity
about these important matters continues, but it is certainly not something that is
susceptible of a “declaration” by the Bureau. The Bureau’s declaration is tantamount to a
determination that many thousands of non-Pueblo residents in the Pojoaque no longer
have legal access to their homes and businesses --- rendering those homes and businesses
worthless --- and which was something that the Pueblo Lands Act was intended to avoid.

Dr. Hordes’ discussion of the PCB and its work is helpful to understanding the present
status of the County maintained roads in question:

“As stated above, in 1924, Congress passed the Pueblo Lands Act
in an attempt to clear up title issues resulting from overlapping claims
between Pueblos and non-Indians living in close proximity to Pueblo
lands. The Act established the Pueblo Lands Board (PLB), which
gathered testimony and issued reports based on its investigations. The
PLB confirmed to the Pueblos all the lands within each of their grants,
with the exception of portions of tracts of land that were patented to non-
Indian settlers, as well as rights of way for utilities, railroads, and roads.
The claims of the non-Indians were only partially honored by the PLB, In
many cases, while the tracts claimed by the non-Indians included grazing
areas located above their cultivated lands, houses and barns, extending to

the hills, the PLB recognized only the cultivated lands and improvements, -

eliminating over half of the acreage claimed by the non-Indian settlers.
This was to have a particularly significant impact on one of the roads
passing through the boundaries of the Pueblo of San Ildefonso ...



Raymond Fry, Superintendent
Northiern Pueblos Agency
January 7, 2014

Page 5

conclusion. For example:
“1. CRB84:

“County Road 84, approximates the course of the road that has
connected the communities of Pojoague and San Iidefonso for centuries.
Beginning in the 1890s Santa Fe County authorities began to assert
responsibility for maintaining this thoroughfare, which runs through the
grant lands of both Pojoaque and San Ildefonso Pueblos. In response to
petitions from local residents, the BCC in 1892 instructed the county road
overseer to “put in good condition the public road known as the road from
Jacona to San Tldefonzo on the south side of the river as soon as possible .
... A 1913 map shows a “wagon road” running near the same route as
today’s CR 84 and 84B. Six years later, the BCC again responded to the
request of local residents, and resolved to investigate the possibility of
constructing a new road between San Ildefonso and Pojoaque, “so that it
may be made in such condition that it may be used for the public, and for
the regular mail route from the above towns to Santa Fe.” Apparently no
action was taken immediately, since the journals of the BCC did not
reflect any such implementation.

“In 1925, however, the State Highway Engineer revived these
plans in a preliminary letter to the Northern Pueblos Agency. The
Engineer articulated the antiquity of the highway, indicating that “the road
now in existence and being traveled through the Pueblo of San Ildefonso
on the east side of the Rio Grande is the old original trail which has been
in use for an indefinite period.” He acknowledged that the 1919 plans still
remained unfulfilled, stating that “[w]hile this route was made a part of the
State Highway System by act of the State Legislature in 1923, it has not
yet been improved by the State Highway Department.” Thus, the State
Highway Engineer not only linked CR 84 to the old camino real, but
asserted that it was now an official part of the state network of highways.

“The PLB’s Report No.1, as cited above, exempted certain roads
from Pueblo ownership, including FAP No. 14-B, the highway that
“extends in a westerly direction to and across what is known as the Jacona
Grant and to and across the west boundary of the said Pojoaque Grant, and
is known as State Highway Project No. 4,” clearly referring to today’s CR
84, The Report acknowledges the absence of a formal right of way from
the Pueblo of Pojoaque, but cites the fact that




Raymond Fry, Superintendent
Northern Pueblos Agency
Janvary 7, 2014

Page 7

Please withdraw the letter immediately, or consider this to be an appeal of the
determination pursuant to 25 C.F.R, Part 2.

Sincerely,

CF?Q/—(AI&L/IL&/L’}/)/ '

Katherine Miller, County Manager

Stephen C, Ross, County Attorney

Ce: Daniel W. Mayfield, Chair, Board of County Cominissioners -
Robert A. Anaya, Vice Chair
Miguel M. Chavez, Member, Board of County Commissioners
Kathy Holian, Member, Board of County Commissioners
Liz Stefanics, Member, Board of County Commissioners
Terry Aguilar, Govemnor, San Ildefonso Pueblo
John Utton Esq., Attorney for Santa Fe County V
Peter Chestnut, Esq., Attorney for San Ildefonso Pueblo



easements needed to complete the projects referred to in Articles
2 and 3 the County will:

1. Install a gate at the end of County Road 84B which
leads inito the Pueblo. This gate will be part of the
construction project on County Rcad 84. This gate will be closed
during Pueblo ceremonies and festivities at the discretion and
direction of the Pueblo.

2. The County will sponsor the Pueblo with the New

Mexico Department of Energy and Miperals, Land and Water

Conservation Division in a cooperative effort to obtain lights *

for the baseball field. Sponsoréhip shall include application

for funding.

3. The County will clean up illegal dump sites on
Pueblo Land and bury the trash on Pueblo Land.

4, ‘The County will hire one summer youth to be
employed at the Pueblo's Visitor center. The youth will be
hired at minimum wage for eight (8) to ten (10) weeks during
1989.

5. The County will pay the Pueblo $20,000.00.

6. The County will install four (4) lights at the
entrance rdads into the Pueblo at their intefsection with Sstate
Road 502. The installation of the lights will be part of the
County Road 84 Paving Project. Once installed the operation and

maintenance for the lights will be provided by the County.

2 of b



construction easements and construction maintenance easements.

2. The right-of-way, as  shown by Exhibit A,
shall extend from a tract of non-Indian land in the vicinity of
the El Rancho Bar to a tract of non~Indian land approximately one
hundred eighty two and eighty one-hundreds (182.81) feet north of
the bridge.

3. The right-of-way shall be sixty (60) feet in width, the
roadway shall bé thirty (30) feet in width but " the bridge
stucture shall not be less than twenty-five (25) feet in width,

C. Improvements to existing development. The alignments
will necessarily follow the existing roadways adjusted to meet
minimum Highway Department standards.

1. Construction Plans have been developed for the
County Road 84 Project and will be supplied to the Pueblo.

2. As of the date of execution of .this agreement,
plans for the paving of County Road 101-D have not been
developed. While plans are in design, the Pueblo will be
informed and shall have the right of review and approval of said

plans.

D. The County agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the

Pueblo from property damage and personal injury caused by the
acts or omissions of the County and/or its employees, agents or

representatives.

Agreed to by action of the Santa Fe County Board of County
Commissioners this |2 day of Mg;{ 1989,

4 of 5



AMENDMENT

-— . 8
v,

This document will amend the right-of-way agreement betwééﬁ'sﬁﬁ
Ildefonso Pueblo and Santa Fe County regarding the easements for
improvement purposes of the following:

1. The " E1 Rancho Bridge ',
2. County Road 101-D,
3. County Road 84,

All rights-of-way are as presented in the agreement dated June s,
1989 and addressed in San Ildefonso's Resolution # SI-008 dated .
June 6, 1989,

The purpose of this amendment is to specify the term of the
rights~of-vway.

It is hereby agreed to by all parties that the rights-of-way for
items 1,2 and 3 in this amendment are granted in perpetuity by
San Ildefonso Pueblo to Santa Fe County.

Santa Fe County , San Ildefonso Pueblo
/ o Ao 5 it
Lt B . oo X TheiZigs
Narﬁ?odrlguezdchéﬁf Dennis Martinez, Go‘_xférnor
712 89 70 8/5 9
Date Date -
J7y — Ll oaF _2A
Norman Osborne osepd Calabaza
County Attorney Secretary, Tribal Council

Approved By:
The Bureau of Indian Affairs
Authority: BIAM Section 2.14
Amendment # 2
3A0 Redelegation

Order # 2
:: ; - 3§ i
James. M. Absita
sclipg Superintendent

BIA/Northern Pueblos Agency
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WHEREAS,  the Pueblo of San lidefonso is a federally recognized iribe wit i

(505) 455-2273 sovereign powers and authority to conduct and determine the l“,f
DENNIS P. MARTINEZ - business of Tribal Government, and i
GOVERNOR ) \ . \@J’E
EDMUND GONZALES »ﬂi
st LT. GOVERNOR WHEREAS,  the Pueblo wishes to participate in the "Right of Way Agresment j
By and Between San I1defonso Pueblo and Santa Fe County. " 14

NS

. [T

WHFREAS,  the Pueblo agrees 1o all terms and conditions set forth in said fuk

agreement. ‘ Ira

o

N

NOW THEREFORE BE 1T RESOL VED THAT, the Pueblo of San i1defonso hereby
enters into the Right of Way Agreement By and Between San
Ildefonso Pueblo and Santa Fe County.

BEIT FURTHER RESOL ¥ED THAT, the Governor of San l1defonso Pueblo or his
designated representative is authorized to negotiate and execute
the contract and any amendments.

CERTIFICATIO

| hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was considered af a duly called
meeting of the San |1defonso Pueblo Tribal Council on the & 2 day of Perie —
1989, at which time a quorum was present with _&___voting in favor,”. )
opposed and. & ___abstaining.

ATTEST:

ﬁgc;etary, Tribal Council Governor, San |1defonsa Pueb}@




EXHIBIT

N | B

BEN RAY LUJAN
Sro Desmict, New Meaco
Susca!
WasningTon Orricx INDisN anD
330 Cannon House Orrice BuiLbina WaTER AND PoweR

WasHingTon. D.C. 2088
Puong: 202-225-8190

Fax:202.226-1528 CommITTER ON SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

811 SamT hsﬁ::::::scg;v'v:: Suire 104 SUBCONMITTEES ON .

ot i @ of e & om0 46 haowON i
Fax: SOS-HDBB-5047 » ‘ﬂt
omgress of the Zﬁmie tates | k)

House of Represenintives o

Washingtor, BC 20515 l;;j;

Tanuary 15, 2014 E;J*

)

The Honorable Kevin K. Washburn )
Assistant Secretary — Bureau of Indian Affairs i
U.S. Department of the Interior i‘“g
1849 C Street N.W. i
Washington, D.C. 20240 :::Z}E
Dear Assistant Secretary Washburn: : §§%{

I write to request your assistance in resolving an issue of critical importance to both tribal and "
non-tribal communities in northern New Mexico. More specifically, I want to bring your N
attention to letters (enclosed) sent by the Superintendent of the Northern Pueblos Agency of the m
Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA), notifying Santa Fe County and private land owners in E1 puk

Rancho, NM that they are in “trespass” on San Ildefonso Pueblo lands (the Pueblo). According fan
to a letter dated December 6, 2013 sent by the Superintendent of the Northern Pueblos Agency to

Santa Fe County Officials, Santa Fe County “must show cause why the County should not be

immediately assessed trespass damages and why the County should not be evicted from the

subject Pueblo lands.”

The Pueblo of San Ildefonso and the community of El Rancho, NM have co-existed for well over
a century and the BIA must consider the historical dynamics of these communities as well as the
legally-binding commitments they have made to each other. Local roads, including County Road
84 (a focal point of BIA’s letter), now lay in place of historical wagon trails that have been
common ingress and egress for the community for over a century. As federal, state and local
governments modernized and land claims were adjudicated, many of the land claims in the area
were resolved by the Pueblo Lands Act and the Pueblo Claims Board.

Over the past several decades, restdents of El Rancho, NM and San Ildefonso Pueblo have relied
on services provided by Santa Fe County, paid for at taxpayers’ expense, including road paving
and maintenance, and access to local residences for ambulances, firefighters and first

responders. In their response to the BIA, the County asserts that it has a long history of working
with the Pueblo and utilizing the roads in question. Further, the County details the many
agreements and commitments made by tribal leaders, elected officials, and BIA officials. Due to
the BIA’s assertion that the County must “show cause” for its use of these roads within 30 days
of its letter, I urge the BIA to respond with great urgency before the situation escalates further.
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In addition, I have several questions that I would like for BIA to directly answer as a matter of
transparency and fact finding as we work together to resolve this issue:

1) Are you aware that the Northern Pueblos Agency (Superintendent Raymond Fry) has sent
letters to the County of Santa Fe and local residents living within the exterior boundaries
of San Idefonso Pueblo, stating that the county and individuals are in “trespass” of the
Pueblo boundaries?

2) Where did this effort originate? Did San Ildefonso Puebio request the BIA get involved
or is this something the BIA has decided to engage in on its own without notifying the
Congressional delegation?

3) Isitanew initiative or new policy by the BIA, to insert themselves into easement issues
relating to communities in New Mexico who have historical checkerboard issues where
non-tribal private property intermingles with tribal lands?

4) What is the legal basis for BIA to make a determination of “trespass” or derhand that the
County “show cause why the County should not be immediately assessed u'espass
damages and why the County should not be evicted from the subject Pueblo lands” asit
did in its December 6, 2013 letter? Is there a Iegal basis for the BIA andlor San Tidefonso
Pueblo to close roads, enforce trespass, or charge people to access their private land via
County roads?

5) Does the BIA recognize the Pueblo Lands Act and the proceedmgs of the Pueblo CIaxms
which previously resolved ma.ny of these issues?

6) What legal definition and evidence is the BIA Northern Pueblos Agency using to prove
“trespass™?

7) Is BIA aware of the previous agreements made on June 12, 1989 by San Ildefonso Pueblo
officials and the County of Santa Fe, granting easerents for access to private homes and
businesses in.exchange for the paving and maintenance of County Road 847

8) Will BIA recognize and respect previous agreements made by San Ildefonso Pueblo
allowing for the paving and maintenance of County Road 84 and ali of its arterials in
exchange for a perpetual easement for non-tribal residents to access their pnvate homes .
and businesses?

Page20of3
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9) What can BIA do to resolve this issue and is BIA willing to make a public commitment
to stop San IIdefonso Pueblo from shutting down access to private homes and businesses
until this issue can be permanently resolved?

Finally, I am extremely concerned that the aforementioned letters sent by the BIA have begun to
nnravel the fabric of the local community. Community members are in fear of losing access to
their homes and businesses. There have also been assertions that the Pueblo has begun to contact
individuals asking for payment to utilize local county roads. I appreciate your assurance that you
will work to prevent any harms to be inflicted upon the effected communities as the BIA, San
Ildefonso Pueblo, and Santa Fe County work to resolve these issues.

1 thank you in advance for your attention to this critical matter and I look forward to working
with you to resolve this issue so that community members of El Rancho, NM can have access to
their homes, businesses and private property.

Sm

Ben Ray Luja.n @
Members of Congress

Page 3 of 3
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EXHIBIT

Chupadero Water-Sewage Corporation 5 %
Resolution No. 2014 5 12-1

BCC CASE # PCEV 14-5110 Heather McCrea Vacation of Easement

At the May 12, 2014 meeting, the Board of Directors of the Chupadero Water-Sewage Corporation, a
Mutual Domestic Water Consumers Association created under the Sanitary Projects Act, NMSA 1978,
§§ 3-29-1 et. seq. unanimously voted their support of “BCC CASE # PCEV 14-5110 Heather McCrea
Vacation of Easement.” The Santa Fe County Board of Commissioners approval of this Land Use Case
will facilitate the County's acquisition of the Chupadero Water-Sewage Corporation into the County's
Public Utilities.

Signed,

M NQ/ s
inda Miller, President JultaeMunde, Vice- President
A W [ e D J el

Philllp Villareal, Secrétary David Roybal, member’

NeT PRPresenT

S o /|

“ {a .
mee Roybal, me

Jon Goldstein, member R be

Nor  Prug e ey Wn

Waldo Duran, member Sharon Weaver, member
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GRANT OF EASEMENT

2044870

This Grant is madé'this 39 day of November, 2001, by Rose V. Martinez, an m
unmarried woman, and Frank J. Lucero, an uamarried man (hereinafter referred to as ‘3
“Martinez and Lucero”), in favor of Ramon M. Roemiero, an unmarried man (hereinafter L
referred to as “Romero™). “
il
WHEREAS, Martinez and Lucero warranit that they are fee simple owners of 31][
property legally described as follows: E:'f
iy
Lot 1 as shown on Plat of Survey entitled “Plat of Survey showing w
Family Transfer Land Division requested by Ramon M. Romero,” ¥l
filed for record as Document No. 1031-079, appearing in Plat f‘]g
Book 389, at page 045, records of Santa Fe County, New Mexico. gas;
WHEREAS, Romero is the fee simple owner of property legally described as i%‘(n
follows: lfi.]l
Lot 2 as shown on Plat of Survey entitled “Plat of Survey showing et
Family Transfer Land Divisjon requested by Ramon M. Romero,” m
filed for record as Document No. 1031-079, appearirig in Plat o
Book 389, at page 045, records of Santa Fe County, New Mexico. Jl
o
e
WHEREAS, Martinez and Lucero desire to identify the location of the ingress, bl
egress and utility easement described in the Romero Family Transfer Land Division Plat, fﬁgf

as relocated, as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, and Martinez and Lucero have .

. e Fam
agreed to grant to Romero the Ingress and egress and utility easement as shown on

Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals stated above and for other
valuable consideration, Martinez and Lucero agree as follows:

1. Martinez and Lucero grant to Romero a_non-exclusive easement for
ingress and egress and construciion and maiitenance of utilities over,
under and upon the easement particularly described on Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof by reference.

2, Martinez and Lucero agree that the easement granted herein shall be
binding upon the owners of the land on, over or under which the
casements are located and shall be appurtenant to and shal} benefit the
property to be served by such easement; and such easement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ heirs, personal
representatives, successors and assigns.

'y



2044871

In the event of any lawsuit or arbitration to enforce this Grant of
Easernent, the prevailing party shall recover from the non-prevailing party
all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the prevailing
party. - *

The grant of easement, rights and obligations set forth herein shall run
with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
Martinez and Lucero and Romero, and any person or persons, and any

entity or entities acquiring, holding or owning an interest in or to the
properties 1o be served by this easement.

Executed the date and year first written above,

‘@%
Mé %l P
Rose V. Martifez /fank [ 7/cero

/

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )

'S8,

COUNTY OF SANTA FE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Rose V. Martinez on

November 30 | 2001.

OFFICIALSEAL ¢ Not blic
JOHN A. NOBLE ¢ commission expires: /2/1/43

otr.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )

:SS.

COUNTY OF SANTA FE )

The foregoin,

Novenber 20 2001,

OFFICIAL SEAL
JOHN A. NOBLE

g instrument was acknowledged before me by Frank J. Lucero on

s

Notar¥ Public
% /63

NOTARY PUBLIC commission expires;__ / 2'/ 2
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
"y
’ .
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UTILITY EASEMENT RELOCATION
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61-23-2. DECLARATION OF POLICY.--The legislature declares that it is a matter of
publlc safety, interest and concern that the practlces of engineering and surveymg

professional engineer or professional surveyor in New Mexico, except as
otherwise provided in Sections 61-23-22 and 61-23-27.10 NMSA 1978, with or
without a New Mexico license, has thereby submitted to the jurisdiction of the
state and to the administrative jurisdiction of the board and is subject to all
penalties and remedies available for a violation of any provision of Chapter 61,
Article 23 NMSA 1978. The practice of engineering or surveying shall be deemed a
privilege granted by the board based on the qualifications of the individual as
evidenced by the licensee’s certificate, which shall not be transferable.




23 Am.Jur.2d Dedication § 1 (1983). However, the owner's intent need not be express.
"The owner's intention to dedicate land to the public may be manifested by his
acquiescence in its use by the public, and dedication of the property may result from such
acquiescence, provided the use is of the necessary character and duration.” Id. at § 34.

The essential elements of implied dedication are acts by the landowner that induced the
belief the landowner intended to dedicate the road to public use, the landowner was
competent, the public relied on the acts and will be served by the dedication, and there
was an offer and acceptance of the dedication. Las Vegas Pecan & Cattle Co.v. Zavala
County, 682 S.W.2d 254, 256 (Tex.1984). "The theory of implied dedication ... rests on
the presumption of an intent on the part of the landowner to devote his property to public
use." Medina Lake Protection Ass'n v. Bexar-Medina-Atascosa Counties Water Control
& Improvement Dist. No. 1, 656 S.W.2d 91, 94 (Tex.Ct.App.1983). Luevano v. Maestas
et al, 874 P.2d 788 (1994), 117 N.M. 580.

Aspects of Easements

The Scope of an Easement

The document creating the easement should define the scope of the easement. An easement

generally can be used only for the purpose expressly stated in the document that created 1t d

The interest created by an easement is a right of use, measured by the nature and purpose
of the grant, "and, so far as [is] consistent therewith, the owner of the fee may make any
reasonable use desired of the land in which the easement exists." Dyer v. Compere, 41
N.M. at 720, 73 P.2d at 1359. Luevano v. Maestas et al, 874 P.2d 788 (1994)

117 N.M. 580.

"The extent of an easement is to be determined by a true construction of the grant or
reservation by which it is created, aided by any concomitant circumstances which have a
legitimate tendency to disclose the intention of the parties. Where, however, the grant or
reservation is specific in its terms, it is, of course, decisive of the limits of the easement.
..." (Citations omitted). Dyer v. Compere, 41 N.M. 716, 73 P.2d 1356 (1937). Kennedy
v. Bond, 460 P.2d 809 (1969), 80 N.M. 734.

If the easement is not specifically defined, it need only be such as is reasonably necessary
and convenient for the purpose for which it was created. Leffingwell Ranch, 276 Mont. at
430, 916 P.2d at 757 (ellipsis in original) (quoting Strahan v. Bush, 237 Mont. 265, 268,
773 P.2d 718, 720 (1989)).

The right of the easement owner and the right of the landowner are not absolute, irrelative



As a general rule, in the absence of statutes to the contrary, the location of an easement
cannot be changed by either party without the other’s consent, after it has been once
established either by the express terms of the grant or by the acts of the parties, except
under the authority of an express or implied grant or reservation to this effect. (footnotes
omitted); F.M. English, Annotation, Relocation of Easements, 80 A.L.R.2d 743 § 4
(1961). [Cited in South Carolina Court of Appeals - Troy K. Goodwin and Fonda E.
Goodwin, Appellants v. Martha E. Johnson and Ernie Johnson, Respondents, Opinion
No. 3696, Heard November 4, 2003 — Filed November 17, 2003.]

[From John R. Sheppard and William J. Sheppard, Respondents, v. Justin Enterprises, a South
Carolina General Partnership, Russ Pye and Lee Pye, Appellants. Appeal From Charleston
County, Daniel F. Pieper, Circuit Court Judge. Opinion No. 4245. Heard April 10, 2007 — Filed
May 14, 2007]

Traditionally, the location of an easement, once selected or fixed, cannot be changed by
the owner of the servient estate without the express or implied consent of the owner of
the dominant estate. Goodwin v. Johnson, 357 S.C. 49, 53, 591 S.E.2d 34, 36 (Ct. App.
2003). The Restatement, however, provides, in pertinent part:

Except where the location and dimensions are determined by the instrument or
circumstances surrounding creation of a servitude, they are determined as follows

il
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D EMANDS

November 26, 2012

1. Survey of new easement

. County permit for new easement

. New plat indicating the easement over 64A and its entry into
64B

w N

4. 20’ driveway finished to 64B property line, with proper drainage

5. Electricity sufficient for 4 homes for 64B

6. Phone to 64B property line

7. Buildings set back 50’ from the 64A/64B property line

8. Covenants indicating that buildings on 64A will not have pitched
roofs

9. Covenants on 64A specifying all of the above (in the event that

Mr. McCreight sells 64A before fully developing it)

10. Cost of Alanna Burke/William Berra’s lawyer drawing up
contract and reviewing documents such as the new plat
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After discussion with our legal department, staff recommends that an additional condition .
B

be imposed: Ll

3. The adjacent property owners affected by the M‘)i
vacation and relocation of the private o5
ingress/egress utility casement shall sign the Final
Plat prior to recordation to signify their agreement
to the vacation and relocation of the cascment

)
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EXHIBIT

GRANT OF EASEMENT

This Grant is madé this 30 day of November, 2001, by Rose V. Martinez, an .
unmarried woman, and Frank J. Lucero, an unmarried man (hereinafter referred to as il

. Y

“Martinez and Lucero™), in favor of Ramon M. Romiero, an unmarried man (hereinafter ﬁé
referred to as “Romero”). "
O

WHEREAS, Martinez and Lucero warrant that they are fee simple owners of ,Z":i‘
property legally described as follows: }R
e

Lot 1 as shown on Plat of Survey entitled “Plat of Survey showing i
Family Transfer Land Division requested by Ramon M. Romero,” i
filed for record as Document No. 1031-079, appearing in Plat l:i}l
Book 389, at page 045, records of Santa Fe County, New Mexico. H{
1§
WHEREAS, Romero is the fee simple owner of property legally described as i;:];
follows: ’i}l
Lot 2 as shown on Plat of Survey entitled “Plat of Survey showing -
Family Transfer Land Division requested by Ramon M. Romero,” o
filed for record as Document No. 1031-079, appearing in Plat e,
Book 389, at page 045, records of Santa Fe County, New Mexico. u»\;;

?!n‘\
WHEREAS, Martinez and Lucero desire to identify the location of the ingress, q:n
cgress and utility easement described in the Romero Family Transfer Land Division Plat, R;%‘M
as relocated, as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, and Martinez and Lucero have ot
agreed to grant to Romero the ingress and egress and utility easement as shown on Fan

Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals stated above and for other
valuable consideration, Martinez and Lucero agree as follows:

1 Martinez and Lucero grant to Romero a non-exclusive easement for
ingress and egress and construciion and maiitenance of utilities over,
under and upon the easement particularly described on Exhibit A attached
hereto and made a part hereof by reference.

2, Martinez and Lucero agree that the easement granted herein shall be
binding upon the owners of the land on, over or under which the
casements are located and shall be appurtenant to and shall benefit the
propatty to be served by such easement; and such easement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ heirs, personal
representatives, successors and assigns.
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In the event of any lawsuit or arbitration to enforce this Grant of
Easernent, the prevailing party shall recover from the non-prevailing party

all costs, including reasonable attommeys’ fees, incurred by the prevailing
party. - *

4 The grant of easement, rights and obligations set forth herein shall run
with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
Martinez and Lucero and Romero, and any person or persons, and any

entity or entities acquiring, holding or owning an interest in or to the
properties to be served by this easement.

Executed the date and year first written above,

Rose V. ez /ﬂmk J/ ?éero

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
:SS.
COUNTY OF SANTA FE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Rose V. Martinez on

November 30 2001,
OFFICIAL SEAL —=
@ JOHN A. NOBLE (
s NOTARY PUBLIC
; STATE OF NEW MEXICO
)Xy Commission Expires
STATE oF NEW MEXICO )
:SS.

COUNTY OF SANTA FE )

The foregoirg instrument was acknowledged before me by Frank J. Lucero on
Noveniber 20 2001

JOHN A. NOBLE - s /7
Nomamy mimuc commission expires:__¢ 2/ 2/03
"y
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CONSENTED TO AND APPROVED BY:

FIRST UNION NATIONAL BANK, as Trustee under a variable fundin
Agreement dated March 3, 1995 by _ Mary Jo Perry, Aexst Vice Presi

INC. as. its Attom n-Fact
Name: CW

Mary Jc . Perw. Asst. Vicé%s

Title:

STATEOF __FrorIDA ) >
88, =

COUNTY OF HIL SBOROUGH ) ’

The foregoing Consent was acknowledged beforc me by _ Mary Jo Perxy
hsst.Vice President of Mid State Homes, Inc. ag its of.ﬁ,si‘ Union National Bank,
on behalf of the Bank, °'W -in-Fact ,

A M ;W Commiasion CCBB0834 My commission expires;____
\- Expires Jonuaty 13, 2005

5834001

STATT O e/ £ 7 Yag597
:,’::53' CERTIY f
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-’-’ffo’-’ff.’o’o’o’lf.’.’l'.’-’-’o’f.’o’f.’

Ramon M, Rcmero, an unmarried

mhmmmum

2L P i N

2

Southwestern Title & Escrow, In?.044874

L I LI
W. DEED

01081358 IN -

m.huddetﬂmpdd.mmmmam!mmdmm C.
Burke, husband and wife, as joing téants with rights of survivorship, whose address is '86A Paseo Encantado
Santa Fe, NM 87505 the following described

Lot 2 a3 shown on Plat of Sury

wal estate in Santa Fo Cousty, New Mexico:

¢y eatitled "Plat of Susvey showlag Famlly Transfer iand

Division requested by Ramon M. Romero®, flled for record as Document No. 1031-979,
048, records of Santa Fe County, New Mexico.

RN 00

Y N N

SUBJECT TO: Restrictions, reservations and easentents of record. 25 set forth in Restrictive
Covenants recorded in Book 1511 at Pages 317-319, records of Santz Fe County, New

Mexico, Plat of Survey showing Family Transfer Land Division requested by Ramon
Romero, recorded in Plat Book 389, Page 045, records of Santa Fe County, New Mexico v
and county taxes for the year 2001 and subsequent years.
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WITNESS my hand and seal this 28 1 day of November, 2001. .
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~, . ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR NATURAL PERSONS g
., FOR R§COFDER'S USE ONLY . F
., : . STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) o
., . ) 8. Fl
., . COUNTY OF SANTA FE ) B
.,. . The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this 2 & l
.. . day of November, 2001, by Ramon M. Romero.
. OFFICIAL SEAL
JOHNA.NOBLE B
NOTARY Pt ic P

TE OF NEW MEAICO

ission Expires:
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61-23-2. DECLARATION OF POLICY.--The legislature declares that it is a matter of
public safety, interest and concern that the practices of engineering and surveying
merit and receive the confidence of the public and that only qualified persons be
permitted to engage in the practices of engineering and surveying. In order to
safeguard life, health and property and to promote the public welfare, any person
in either public or private capacity practicing or offering to practice engineering or
surveying shall be required to submit evidence that he is qualified to so practice
and shall be licensed as provided in the Engineering and Surveying Practice Act. It
is unlawful for any person to practice, offer to practice, engage in the business,
act in the capacity of, advertise or use in connection with his name or otherwise
assume, use or advertise any title or description tending to convey the impression
that he is a professional, licensed engineer or surveyor unless that person is
licensed or exempt under the provisions of the Engineering and Surveying
Practice Act. A person who engages in the business or acts in the capacity of a
professional engineer or professional surveyor in New Mexico, except as
otherwise provided in Sections 61-23-22 and 61-23-27.10 NMSA 1978, with or
without a New Mexico license, has thereby submitted to the jurisdiction of the
state and to the administrative jurisdiction of the board and is subject to all
penalties and remedies available for a violation of any provision of Chapter 61,
Article 23 NMSA 1978. The practice of engineering or surveying shall be deemed a
privilege granted by the board based on the qualifications of the individual as
evidenced by the licensee’s certificate, which shall not be transferable.



23 Am.Jur.2d Dedication § 1 (1983). However, the owner's intent need not be express.
"The owner's intention to dedicate land to the public may be manifested by his
acquiescence in its use by the public, and dedication of the property may result from such
acquiescence, provided the use is of the necessary character and duration.”" Id. at § 34.

The essential elements of implied dedication are acts by the landowner that induced the
belief the landowner intended to dedicate the road to public use, the landowner was
competent, the public relied on the acts and will be served by the dedication, and there
was an offer and acceptance of the dedication. Las Vegas Pecan & Cattle Co. v. Zavala
County, 682 S.W.2d 254, 256 (Tex.1984). "The theory of implied dedication ... rests on
the presumption of an intent on the part of the landowner to devote his property to public
use." Medina Lake Protection Ass'n v. Bexar-Medina-Atascosa Counties Water Control
& Improvement Dist. No. 1, 656 S.W.2d 91, 94 (Tex.Ct.App.1983). Luevano v. Maestas
et al, 874 P.2d 788 (1994), 117 N.M. 580.

Aspects of Easements

The Scope of an Easement

The document creating the easement should define the scope of the easement. An easement
generally can be used only for the purpose expressly stated in the document that created it. If the
geographic extent or location of an easement is not described in the document creating it, the
owner of the servient estate has the first right to designate its location.

The interest created by an easement is a right of use, measured by the nature and purpose
of the grant, "and, so far as [is] consistent therewith, the owner of the fee may make any
reasonable use desired of the land in which the easement exists.” Dyer v. Compere, 41
N.M. at 720, 73 P.2d at 1359. Luevano v. Maestas et al, 874 P.2d 788 (1994)

117 N.M. 580.

"The extent of an easement is to be determined by a true construction of the grant or
reservation by which it is created, aided by any concomitant circumstances which have a
legitimate tendency to disclose the intention of the parties. Where, however, the grant or
reservation is specific in its terms, it is, of course, decisive of the limits of the easement.
..." (Citations omitted). Dyer v. Compere, 41 N.M. 716, 73 P.2d 1356 (1937). Kennedy
v. Bond, 460 P.2d 809 (1969), 80 N.M. 734.

If the easement is not specifically defined, it need only be such as is reasonably necessary
and convenient for the purpose for which it was created. Leffingwell Ranch, 276 Mont. at
430, 916 P.2d at 757 (ellipsis in original) (quoting Strahan v. Bush, 237 Mont. 265, 268,
773 P.2d 718, 720 (1989)).

The right of the easement owner and the right of the landowner are not absolute, irrelative



As a general rule, in the absence of statutes to the contrary, the location of an easement
cannot be changed by either party without the other’s consent, after it has been once
established either by the express terms of the grant or by the acts of the parties, except

under the authority of an express or implied grant or reservation to this effect. (footnotes A
omitted); F.M. English, Annotation, Relocation of Easements, 80 A.L.R.2d 743 § 4 ;§¥
(1961). [Cited in South Carolina Court of Appeals - Troy K. Goodwin and Fonda E. .
Goodwin, Appellants v. Martha E. Johnson and Ernie Johnson, Respondents, Opinion ':‘.vff

No. 3696, Heard November 4, 2003 — Filed November 17, 2003.] ‘;}i

I

[From John R. Sheppard and William J. Sheppard, Respondents, v. Justin Enterprises, a South "
Carolina General Partnership, Russ Pye and Lee Pye, Appellants. Appeal From Charleston 1l
County, Daniel F. Pieper, Circuit Court Judge. Opinion No. 4245. Heard April 10, 2007 - Filed lf:ji)’
May 14, 2007] iﬁ%ﬁ
¥

Traditionally, the location of an easement, once selected or fixed, cannot be changed by %ﬁf

the owner of the servient estate without the express or implied consent of the owner of ™

the dominant estate. Goodwin v. Johnson, 357 S.C. 49, 53, 591 S.E.2d 34, 36 (Ct. App. m

2003). The Restatement, however, provides, in pertinent part: ot

Rud

Except where the location and dimensions are determined by the instrument or v

circumstances surrounding creation of a servitude, they are determined as follows
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November 26, 2012

Survey of new easement

County permit for new easement

New plat indicating the easement over 64A and its entry into
64B

20’ driveway finished to 64B property line, with proper drainage
Electricity sufficient for 4 homes for 64B

Phone to 64B property line

Buildings set back 50’ from the 64A/64B property line
Covenants indicating that buildings on 64A will not have pitched
roofs

Covenants on 64A specifying all of the above (in the event that
Mr. McCreight sells 64A before fully developing it)

10. Cost of Alanna Burke/William Berra’s lawyer drawing up

contract and reviewing documents such as the new plat

—



WHEREAS. Romero

is the foe simple owner of propery

EXHIBIT

Comyon wmmnmise 0

Jegally described 3s




[ R I . b




L LRt R ol




fowtuens e v

20° INGRESS—EGRESS AND
uhuTy
EXHIBIT DRAWING

T RELOCATION

LIE DATA
LT | SBYD26E 1319
2| 700w 397
(3 [ n7agoew 20865 |
QRVE GATA
H-BRG. & OIST RADUS ARC LENGTH DELTA_
NZAS13E 18177 21955 14435 373954
WIAITOSE_ 1521 2599 15447 3402067
16.07 .66 16.41° 432528

"8 400.50'

AN,
‘--
u\\\t
NN -
20° ACCESS N x
AD UTUTY a)’/‘,‘\g E3d
RELOCATED A 1 ° 3
o s O Vis 3%
tocanon C42 717 132 g
/7 1 i 82e
17 Lot % B
c}l ) l-." iz "3
z
//'I ,I I//'g
277 /
/7 ;) Fees
/ s 7 EUSTING

ENINISYI ALUIN ONY

$SIUDI-SSIUONI ONILSIXY 02

430,50’ B0O'22'00'W




FEEAT e Lavrearmes

e

PR Y Y Y T L L
DEED
‘William Besra sod Alaems C.
wihose address is “86A Faseo
County, New Mexico:
ﬂﬂucl&nngihndngihnﬂy1huuﬁr!ali

considerstion psid, granis fo
survivorship,

in Sapta Fe

filed for record as Document Na. 1631979,

sights of

ﬁb&i&';&ii'ri&'r'r'r%lb'r%'r'ri%'l"y

'ﬁ'lbb'l¥§§§%6§§&§§i§§656§56656w

following desczibed real extate
Sarvey entitied
Dﬁﬁhnnupuuiiyl--lLlansdk
lgp.igﬂl!lil.t!lhtp.;.ﬁsnunﬁhcfﬂnnnitﬂh-qbthuhiuu

wite, 23 joint temants with

Tunband snd
- Sauts Fe, NM 87506the
Lot 2 33 showa on Pist of

l-n-ILlh-:nl--.nuhl-nuir

b )
>
“
>

-

m.
LA I m
-.\5\$$\s\$i\$\\\$\s.\ss$\$$$5

4 4

this 20 - day of Novemsber, 2001

\Uo
o~
)
lw,.
~N
o)
|

SYATE OF NEW
S uzy hand sod scal

+ with varmaty covcoants.
WITNGSS
M.

(KD

i |

. STATE OF NEW MEXHCO

L T T S N S S ST S T T T S R )
el s e veeeh
b

PEIPIPPIN

. day of Nevember, 2001, by Ramon L. Romero.

ju
. COUNTY OF SANTAFE )
) bﬁaﬁsw-wuﬁ,-azg

lIIIIIIIIIlIIIIIIfllIIIIIII”JIIIIII!IIII

s Ry~

CssrsENIRISTSEERIROITS
PPPIIIIPPIPPIPPIPIPIPIIIS

-




ARMIJO SURVEYS, INC.

P.0O. Box 24438

Santa Fe, NM 87502
Phone (505) 471-1955
Fax (505) 471-1925

May 12, 2014

Alanna Burke & William Berra
86A Paseo Encantado NE
Santa Fe, NM 87506

Dear Ms. Burke & Mr. Berra:

On November 7, 2001, we were given an order by John Noble, with Southwestern Title
& Escrow, to complete an Improvement Location Report {ILR) and “an exhibit to
attach to an easement agreement to identify the location of the easement.” The
ILR is a document used by the title company, and is not as comprehensive as a
Boundary Survey/plat.

I compieted both the ILR and the exhibit, and delivered it to the tite company for
their review. | did not hear back from them. | did not complete a Boundary
Survey/Plat of the property. From the documents you included in your letter dated
May 8, 2014, a Grant of Easement document, with the exhibit | prepared, was
recorded with the County Clerk’s Office in Book No. 2044, page 872.

This Grant of Easement document is not a "plat” by a land surveyor, but the
centerline of the easement can be plotted on the property because Exhibit “A"
shows the location of the property corner monuments and the centerline description
of the relocated easement. The easement can be plotted on the ground. The
bearings and distances are shown on the Exhibit. It is not clear what is meant by
“coordinates.”

You may want to contact Georgette Romero, the realtor involved with this matter, at
505-984-73310r 505-603-1494, to obtain more information re: the Grant of Easement.
You may also want to contact the attorney who prepared the Grant of Easement
document.

if you want me fo complete any additional survey work, please contact me for a
cost estimate and turnaround time. | can probably offer you a discount based on
the work we've already completed.

Sincerely,

Paul Armijo, Professional d Surveyor
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Residents of Turquoise Trail and
Valle Lindo Subdivisions

County Land Use Administration
102 Grant Avenue
Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

RE: CDRC Case # APP 14-5040

The undersigned owners/residents of Turquoise Trail and Valle Lindo
Subdivisions hereby request the Board of County Commissioners to over
turn the CDRC’s approval and uphold all previous denials of the pet
crematorium home occupation business license to Rachael Tapia for Loving
Animal Services on residential property at 40 Vista Del Monte, within

Section 25, Township 16 North, Range East.

The intended use is a dog crematorium and even the best equipment used
inevitably creates unacceptable air quality emissions, and odors in a high

density residential area.

We ask the BCC to accept this appeal and deny this land use activity.
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Resl:;:;;is :’§ Turquoise Trail and
Ir<ssssmsy clo Subdivisions

County Land Use Administrti ————
102 Grant Avenue ” n
Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

RE: CDRC Case # APP 14-0—mm ¢

The undersigned owners/resid e
Sub d1v1310n§ hereby requesithm —=mmm1ts of Turquoise Trail and Valle Lindo
ourn the CDRC’s appr oval A «———— Board of County Commissioners to over
crematorium home occupafora. s 1phold all previous denials of the pet
~ EE>usiness license to Rachael Tapia for Loving

Animal Services on residentia ¥
Section 25, Township 16 Norh?‘)roperty at 40 Vista Del Monte, within
Range East.

The intended use is a dog ae
g UCIT™""m —=—ytorium and even the best equlpment used

inevitably creates unaccepibl e
density residential area. air quality emissions, and odors in a high

We ask the BCC to acceptthi
| g , = ==appeal and deny this land use activity.
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Residents of Turquoise Trail and
Valle Lindo Subdivisions

County Land Use Administration
102 Grant Avenue
Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

RE: CDRC Case # APP 14-5040

The undersigned owners/residents of Turquoise Trail and Valle Lindo
Subdivisions hereby request the Board of County Commissioners to over
turn the CDRC’s approval and uphold all previous denials of the pet
crematorium home occupation business license to Rachael Tapia for Loving
Animal Services on residential property at 40 Vista Del Monte, within
Section 25, Township 16 North, Range East.

The intended use is a dog crematorium and even the best equipment used
inevitably creates unacceptable air quality emissions, and odors in a high
density residential area.

Address [ D A /J LU

Name M /{Q /f A/[’A " Address 5 = -

@
Nam(e_//gfvgZ yel /W\/Address 3) 4

Name Address

Name L\ '

Name Address

Name | Address




Residents of Turquoise Trail and

Valle Lindo Subdivisions i

‘ 4

County Land Use Administration o
102 Grant Avenue ;}'t
Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276 he
: Y

RE: CDRC Case # APP 14-5040 i
[}

, o ,w

The unders1gned owners/res1dents of Turquoise Tra11 and Valle L1ndo i
Subdivisions hereby request the Board of County Commissioners to over l }
turn the CDRC’s approval and uphold all previous denials of the pet w
crematorium home occupation business license to Rachael Tapia for Loving | m
Animal Services on residential property at 40 Vista Del Monte, ‘within o

Section 25, Township 16 North, Range East. ;

W
bt

The intended use is a dog crematorium and even the best equipment used Yoo
inevitably creates unacceptable air quality emissions, and odors in a high

density residential area.

We ask the BCC to g_j:cept this appeal and deny this land use activity.
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Residents of Turquoise Trail and
Valle Lindo Subdivisions

County Land Use Administration
102 Grant Avenue
Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

RE: CDRC Case # APP 14-5040

The undersigned owners/residents of Turquoise Trail and Valle Lindo
Subdivisions hereby request the Board of County Commissioners to over
turn the CDRC’s approval and uphold all previous denials of the pet
crematorium home occupation business license to Rachael Tapia for Loving
Animal Services on residential property at 40 Vista Del Monte, within
Section 25, Township 16 North, Range East.

The intended use is a dog crematorium and even the best equipment used
inevitably creates unacceptable air quality emissions, and odors in a high
density residential area.
We ask the BCC to accept thigappeal and deny this land use activity.
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Loving Animal Services has been in operation for over 22 years and
would appreciate your support for the expansion and operation of a

Crematorium for our treasured animals which we consider
members of our family.

BENEFITS

» Provides a community service to people in their time of need;

» Personalizes cremations for your beloved pets;

» Incinerates animals with infectious diseases as opposed to burying them;

» The service provides pick-up of the animal and delivery of ashes to the client;

ECONOMIC BENEFITS

» Since New Mexico has now moved to an animal euthanization state the

crematorium supports government agencies i.e., National State Parks, Game and
Fish by;

e Cremating rather than burying dead animals in a landfill;
e Removal of dead animals from the highway;
e Reduces communicable diseases thereby providing a safer environment;

CREMATORIUM

» Located at 40 Vista Del Monte ( On 2.5 acres off Highway 14);

» The incinerator runs at 54 decibels (which means two people can have a normal
conversation while the incinerator is running);

» Noise outside the housed unit is virtually non-existent;

» The incinerator expels zero emissions ( A fireplace, fast food restaurant and RV
expel more emissions than the incinerator);

The County Development Review Committee (CDRC) has already approved my

application. Please join them in supporting my endeavor and sign the following petition so

I can display your support to the County Commission Board in providing this much
needed service. Thank you!
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